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Overview | Performance Highlights and Financial Sumnsary

Performance Highlights

Pre-tax profit’ Underlying earnings per share! Dividends per share
% 1% 2%
-71% -1 +2%
2012 | £310m 2012 | 350p 2012 | 14 1p
2011 ] £334m 2011 | 355p 2011 I 13 8p
2010 | £306m 2010 | 327 2010 | 127

Financial Summary

{fm unless otherwise specified) 2012 201 Change (%}
Revenue including joint ventures and associates 10,896 11,035 (1}
Group revenue 9,483 9,494 -
Profit from continuing operations

- underlying! 309 331 {7}
— reported 74 243 {70}
Pre-tax profit from continuing operations

- undertying' 310 334 {7}
—reported 75 246 (70}
Earnings per share from continuing operations

— underlying' 350p 35 5p {1
—basic 6 5p 267p {76}
Dividends per share 141p 13 8p 2
Financing

—net cash before PPP subsidiaries {non-recourse) 35 340

—net borrowings of PPP subsidiaries {hon-recourse) (368) {332}

! From continuing operations before non-underlying items

Balfour Beatty
differentiates itself
through strong local
businesses, global
sector expertise

and end-to-end
capabilities including
the ability to develop
and finance

lan Tyler
Chief Executive

Go online to watch our film
www balfourbeatty com/
ARZ2012




We work Day in, day out around the world,
Balfour Beatty teams are working with
their clients and partners to fund, design,
deliver, operate and maintain infrastructure
efficiently and safely.

For you For everyone. Our business is
creating the infrastructure assets that help
communities, society and nations to live,
thrive and grow.

For the future \\We are focused on
geographical regions and key market sectors
that will enable us to prosper today and
grow sustainably for years to come.
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Overview | Group at a Glance

Group at a Glance

We draw on our global knowledge,
across the infrastructure lifecycle
to develop innovative assets to
create and support tomorrow’s
communities, today.

Balfour Beatty 1s a global infrastructure group that delivers world
class services essential to the development, creation and care

of infrastructure assets, from finance and development, through
design and project management to construction and maintenance

Our businesses draw on more than 100 years of experience to
deliver the highest levels of quality, safety and technical expertise
to our chents principally in the UK, the US, Southeast Asia, and the
Middle East We continue to develop our business in key growth
markets in South Africa, Australia, Canada, Brazl and india

With proven expertise in delivering infrastructure cntical to
support communities and society today and in the future, our
key market sectors include transportation {roads, rail and aviation),
power and energy, mining, water and social infrastructure such
as hospitals and schools

£11trn

Estimated value of global
tnfrastructure market in
2013-2017°

£11bn

Revenue? generated this year

80+

Presence in over 80 countries

50,000

Employees worldwide

1 Befare non-underlying rtems
2 Including joint ventures and associates
3 Glabal Insight
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Professional
Services

Qur Professional Servicas business
15 a global player in design, planning
and programme management and
a market leader in transportation
and power

What do we do

* Programmme and project management
s Construction managerment

Project design

Technical services

Planning

-
-
L ]
* Consultancy

Key highhghts

» |ncreased transportation market
share iIn Amer(cas

= Significant highways wins
in US following approval of
Transportation Bill

* Acquisition of Subsurface Group
to expand energy storage capability

e Highways, rail and power
transmission contract wins involving
other Group businesses totalling
£2 bdlion

£1.6bn

Order book

£1,668m

Revenue?

£98m

Profit from operations’




Construction
Services

We manage market leading
construction businesses in the
UK, the US, Hong Kong and the
Middle East

What do we do

¢ Civil and ground engineering

* Rall engineenng

+ Building

* Refurbishment and fit-out

= Mechanical and electrical services

Support
Services

Our Support Services business 1s
focused on infrastructure and well
established as a provider of facilities
management, business services
outsourcing, utiity infrastructure,
and rall renawals and highways
management

Qverview | Group at a Glance

Infrastructure

Investments

A leader in UK and US PPP, our
Infrastructure Investments business
has a strong track record of
developing and financing projects
over the last 15 years

What do we do

= Upgrade and maintain water,
gas and electncity networks

* Total faciities management,
business services outsourcing
and energy services

* Highways network management,
operation and maintenance

* Rall renewals

What do we do

= Operate a UK portfolio of PPP
concessions, mainly in education,
health, roads/street ighting,
renewables and student
accommaodation

* Operate a US portfolio of
rmultary housing and student
accommodation PPP concessions

Key highlights

+ UK and US organisations
streamlined and restructured

* US business recognised as a
natronal leader in sustainable
construction, with "green”
sales of over US$2 billion

« Major wins for Hong Kong business,
including biggest solo contract

Key highhghts

* Continued growth across the
majonty of market segments

* Won new gas distribution contracts
worth £1 1 bilion tn the UK and
started work on first contract
in lreland

* Further increase in share of UK
highways maintenance market

* Major wins for local authonty unrt

¢ Facilities management unit
appointed to run services for
the Qlympic Park

Key highlights

e | everaged US military housing
expenence to establish a student
accommeodation portfolio in the
US and UK

* Made significant progress in
UK waste and energy projects

e Successfully disposed of two
assets, achieving £84 million of
proceeds and £52 milion of profit

» Completed first round of fundraising
for managed investment fund

£8.0bn

Order book

£6,959m

Revenue?

£122m

Profit from operations!

£5.7bn

Order book

£1,633m

Revenue?

£52m

Profit from operations’

£734m

Directors’ valuation

£636m

Revenue?

£97m

Pre-tax result’

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012 03
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Overview | Chairman’s Welcome

Chairman’s Welcome

Balfour Beatty’s success is very much dependent on its
people, and never more so than in challenging times.

We closed the year reporting
revenue, Including joint ventures
and associates, of £10,896
million, down 1%, and profit
from underlying operations

of £309 million, down 7%

We retain a strong balance sheet
with a neutral cash position,
despite working capital

impacts reflecting reduced
volume and changing mix

in Construction Services

Qur UK and US construction businesses
ware held back by tough economic
conditions in 2012 But as a Group we
were able to mitigate the impact through
our diverse portfolio, ongoing operational
efficiency and focus on new growth
geographies and market sectors

Tough trading conditions persisted in
most of our major construction markets,
particularly in the second half of the year
US construction markets remained
depressed, the performance of cur UK
construction business was weaker than
anticipated and structural problems in
Mainland European rall markets acded
to the challenges

04  Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Against this challenging economic
background, our Professional Services
and Infrastructure Investments businesses
demonstrated resilience and strength

Throughout the year, we maintained our
relentless focus on operational efficlency
We have made progress in restructuring
both the UK and US construction
businesses, which helped to offset

some of the impact of volume and
margn pressure We have concluded

an operational and strategic review of our
Mainland European rail business and will
be divesting all of this business over time

As you will read later in this repoart, in
the near term we are addressing current
market condittons by seeking additional |
efficiencles while continuing to focus on

customer value We expect this focus will

also address some of the operational

1ssues we have expenenced In certain

areas of the business For mid to long

term growth we are also stepping up

implementation of our strategy to target

growth geographias and market sectors

You can read more about this on pages

t0and 1

Board

We have made a number of boardroom
changes over the past year We
announced in January 2013 that our Chief
Executive, lan Tyler, would hand over to
Andrew McNaughton at the end of March
2013 Over his eight-year tenure lan led a
transformation of the business 1t has
trebled in size, extended its global reach
and capabilities, and in particular
developed a strong professtonal services
business following the acquisition of
Parsons Brinckerhoff in 2009 He will
remain with the Group untd 30 April 2013
to ensure a smooth transition

Andrew McNaughton has an excellent
understanding of all areas of the Group
and 1s supported by & strong team In
hus previous capacity as Deputy Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer
he has already shown that he has both
the skills and the experience to take on
the leadership of the business Andrew
has been instrumental 1n developing the
strategy that we ara now implementing
It 1s encouraging that Balfour Beatty has
the depth of management talent to ensure
& smoath succession with a high calibre
internal candidate



During the year we also announced the
retirement in June 2012 of Deputy Chief
Executive Anthony Rabin, who had been
with the Group for 17 years And Senior
Independent Director Robert Walwvis
retired from the Board at the end of

the year after over 11 years’ service

We were pleased to welcome our first
female non-executive to the Board with
the appointment of Maureen Kempston
Darkes in May 2012 Unul her retirement
at the end of 2009, Maureen was group
vice-president for General Motors'

Latin America, Afnica and Middle East
operations After qualifying as a lawyer
she joined General Mctors in 1975

and held a senes of increasingly senior
roles there

Within the senior executive ranks, after
almost 40 years of distinguished service,
Brian Osborne retired from the Group at
the end of 2012 Bnian had worked in
vanous parts of the business in roles that
included managing director of Balfour
Beatty Civil Engineering, Group managing
director for civil engineenng and most
recently International Business director

Qur pecple and reputation

Balfour Beatty's success 1s very much
dependent on 1ts people, and never more
so than in challenging times In some
areas of the business, our people have
had to centend with tough markets
while adapting to ongoing internal
change | extend my thanks to all of
them for theirr commitment, dedication
and skill in helping us navigate today's
business environment

As the Group embarks on its new
strategic direction, collaboration and
knowledge sharing assumes ever greater
importance Our capacity to harness the
wide range of skills, knowledge and
huran potential across the business is
key to secuning competitive advantage

Another crucial concern is the safety of
our people, our suppliers and the general
public In 2012, the Group Accident
Frequency Rate (AFR) improved to 0 16
{2011 017), where the AFR 15 a ratio
relating the number of major injunes to
the total hours worked There were
significant improvements in many parts of
the Group in relation to safety, however it
15 with deep regret that there were eight
employee fatalities dunng 2012 — three in
the UK, two in North Amenica, two in

Australa and one in Indonesia Every
fatat accident 1s subject to a thorough
investigation and review by the Balfour
Beatty Board Lessons learnt are shared
across the Group to help improve future
performance and our focus in this area
remains vigilant

As a consequence, in 2013 and beyond
we are reinwigorating our Zero Harm
efforts, setting clear health and safety
expectations for all of our businesses,
redoubling our efforts to pursue the
elmination of fatal nsk and increasing the
level of personal accountability for safety
Read more about this on page 48

Dividend

The Board believes that it remains
appropriate to retain our longer term policy
of progressive dividends In recognition of
shorter term earnings pressure, we are
proposing to hold the final dividend at

8 5p per ordinary share to give a total
dividend for 2012 of 14 1p — an increase

of 2% on 2011

Looking forward

Looking forward we can point to a number
of favourable dynamics We expeact to see
the full Impact of our efficiencies coming
through in 2014 We believe our transition
to focus on growth geographies and
sectors will position us well for the

mid term

Steve Marshall
Chairman

www balfourbeatty com

Overview | Chairman’s Welcome

AIMAIDAMN

In the third quarter

of 2012, we launched
our global intranet
“360” is now
available to over

70% of our online
employees worldwide
and is designed to
enable more effective |
collaboration and
knowledge sharing.
More employees

will receive access
during 2013.
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Our Business | Chief Executive’s Review

Chief Executive’s Review

We are realigning our business to sharpen our focus on growth
markets in key geographies and industry sectors. Combined with
our spread of capabilities across the lifecycle of the infrastructure
asset, this will differentiate us from competitors and allow us to
benefit from markets where growth is buoyant.

For the past 15 years,
we have been on a
journey from a UK-
based construction
business to a leading,
global infrastructure
provider. | am proud
to have led the Group
on this journey and |
am confident Balfour
Beatty will continue
to go from strength
to strength as it
continues this journey
in the future.

For the past 15 years, we have
been on a journey from a UK-
based construction business to
a leading, global infrastructure
provider This journey has had,
and continues to have, a
profound effect on how we
deliver value to our clients
when we operate In this way,
and on our expaosure to higher
growth markets

We have focused on egconomic
nfrastructure as we believe this will drive
investment in the long term Infrastructure
markets are resilient because sustainable
aconomic growth will always requrre
infrastructure iInvestment In developed
economies this will be driven by ageing
infrastructure which needs replacing

and the sustainability/carbon agenda,

In emerging economies it witl be driven
by urbanisation and economic growth
Infrastructure 1s high on government
policy agendas virtually everywhere

Qur long term vision

Our strategy for growth remains

based on bulding a platform of asset
knowledge and capabilities that span

the infrastructure lifecycle with the ability
to finance and develop projects, focusing
on strategic market sectors Our services
are delivered via local country businssses,
harnessed together to deliver value to
infrastructure owners around the world

These asset owners are predominantly
national or regional organisations that
generally own assets in a single market
sector To deliver our strategic vision
we must be structured better to suit
therr needs So we are reshaping our
operations Into country led business
units that delver a full range of services
Iin spectfic infrastructure market sectors

These business units will be able to

put our global expertise at their clients’
disposal We connect them through
efficient knowledge transfer and support
them with the necessary specialist skills
and resources from market sector
experts leadership for specific sectors
15 being provided on a global basis
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Focusing on growth markets

The reshaping of our business will
continue through 2013 as we focus

it more closely on our chosen growth
geographies and industry sectors We
have already made good progress with
bullding our credentials in these markets
Successes In 2012 included signifrcantly
increased activity in the power and water
sectors and in growth geographies such
as Australia

Qur traditional markets in the UK and
the US rematn a bedrock on which the
business will be based In these markets
our construction businesses were
impacted by the continuing economic
downturn, which has reduced the
number of larger, more complex and
higher margin projects where we excel
But the impact was mitigated by the
broadening of our capabilities beyond
construction, and our Professional
Services and Infrastructure Investments
businesses finished the year with
performance in line with expectations
This reinforces our view that our focus
on infrastructure 1s sound even when
markets become less buoyant, and

that it will remain so as we expand into
other geographies at different stages

of the cycle

In mature markets we are particularly
targeting opportunities where we can
provide end-to-end services rather than
Just being part of the value chain In
emerging markets where we anticipate
significant long term investment in
infrastructure, such as India, Brazil

and South Africa, we are establishing
relationships and showcasing our skills
to future clients, paruicularly in the
transportation, mining, and power

and snergy markets

The resiient performance of our
Professional Services and Infrastruciure
Investments businesses gives us
confidence that over the medium to
long term our posttion in infrastructure
markets, our competitive advantage in
our focus market sectors of transportation,
power and energy, water and mmning,
and our intiatives to expand our gurrent
access In growing markets such as
Austrabe, Canada, South Africa, Brazil
and India will deliver sustainable growth
and a more robust business base




Addressing short term pressures
Meanwhile, for the near term we have
been managing our busingss on the basis
that market conditions would be tough,
and this has proved an effective strategy
We have concluded an operational and
strategic review of our Mainland European
rail business and we will be divesting all
of this business over time

In August 2010, we announced the
creation of a shared service centre In
the UK, with a target of £30 mullion of
annual savings by the end of 2012 This
programme was realised as planned and
has reached I1ts targeted run rate at the
end of 2012 The second phase of our
cost efficiency activity was announced n
March 2012 This programme is broader
and deeper and targets an additronal
£50 million of annual savings by 2015

We have already made good progress in
Phase 2 The UK construction business
has been rationalised into three business
streams, with a structure of regional
delivery units We are gaining efficiency
and flexibiity by reducing back office
support functions and the number of
offices we occupy

The US construction business 1s

moving to a unifled operating madel,
encompassing bulldings, rail and
infrastructure operations They have
raorganised from five to three regional
business streams As part of the structural
realignment, a national Capability Centre
was also formed to harness expertise,
capture best practices and depfoy that
knowtedge across the national business
The new structure focuses on sharing
resources and contributes savings

Qur Support Services business 15
currently implementing cost reduction
measures and our Professional Services
business is transferring 1ts support
functions from New York City to Lancaster,
Pennsylvania to improve cost efficiency

These initiatives have already reached
£36 million of savings in 2012 We are
aiming for a total of £80 million of savings
by the end of 2015

Leading change

It has been my privilege to shape
Balfour Beatty over the past few years
Andrew McNaughton has worked
alongside me In developing our strategy
and future business model Now s the
time for me to hand over to Andrew and
let him continue 1o evolve the business
to being a truly global organsation,
recognised as one of the world’s

leading infrastructure businesses and
acclaimed for the guality of service that
we deliver to our chents The end-to-end
knowledge that we have across the
whole infrastructure ifecycle differentiates
us from our competition Our strength
as an asset owner and In our developing
country led organisations will allow us
to build relationships with clients which
will continue to change our industry

It goes without saying that | have been
proud to lead this business | have warked
with a great team of dedicated people at
all levels of the business and a supportive
Board and senior management team | am
confident the Group will continue to go
from strength to strength in the future
under Andrew’s leadership

lan Tyler
Chief Executive

www balfourbeatty com

Our Business | Chief Executive’s Review
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We hang
overhead lines

Last year our Rall business in Australia strengthened
our presence In Queensland by securing a contract
with Bombardier Transportation to provide part of
the state’s first contemporary hght rail network
being delivered by the GoldLinQ consortium

The Gold Coast Light Rall system aims 1o reduce congestion and
improve public transport at the Gold Coast — one of Australia's
fastest growing cries Our Rail businass working with Parsons
Brinckerhoff will design, procure, construct and comsission the
750V overhead catenary system for Stage One of the systam,
which will be a key component of the transport network for the
2018 Commanwealth Games

10,000 13km

People an hour Length of Stage One system

You hang ten

From 2014, you'll be able to ride safely to Surfers
Paradise from one of the 16 stations — with your
surfboard onboard The 14 new Bombardier Flexity
trams can carry up to 10,000 people an hour, each
carniage with 80 seats and dedicated space for
wheelchairs and prams

Gold Coast Light Rail will run 24 hours from Friday to Sunday
night, with services every 7-8 minutes at peak tmes Expected
benefits include fast, safe journeys, a 10% reduction in private

vehicle trips, a boost to commerce and a 114,000 tonne cut In
greenhouse gas emissions In the first 10 years

309 10%

Passengers per tram Reduction in private vehicle trips

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Our Business | Market Overview

Focusing on Growth Markets

Balfour Beatty is an infrastructure player with capabilities

in many geographies. Our distinctive combination of deep
asset knowledge and broad local presence gives us particular
competitive strength in infrastructure markets — notably
transport, mining, water, power and energy.

Where the money

1s being spent

Over the next five years
(2013-2017) the global
infrastructure market

15 estimated to be worth
approximately £11 tnllion'
85%? of this spend will come
from the transport, power and
energy, and water sectors
Growth In these sectors
conunues to be stronger

Iin emerging markets and
resource nich economies,
with spend from non-OECD
markets nising from around
35% today to 60% I1n 2025

1 Glabal Insight
? Balfour Beatty Investor Day
December 2012

Infrastructure 1s a good placeto be
Infrastructure markets, particularly
economic infrastructure, are relatively
resistant to economic shocks and cycles
Governments recognise infrastructure
investment as a prerequisite for
sustainable economic growth — and by
generating employment and economic
activity helps create a virtuous circle Iin
which increased government revenues
help finance further investment

In developed economies, iInvestment 1s
being driven by the need to replace ageing
infrastructure — amphfied by concerns
over sustainabihty and carbon reduction

In most emerging economies, such as
India, Brazil and South Africa, infrastructure
investment I1s accelerating and accounting
for a growing proportion of construction
expendriture The key drivers include the
need to support urbanisation andremove
constraints on economic growth Qver the
medium term we also expect growing
commeodity demand from emerging
markets to stimulate investment in
resource rich economies

Going where the growth 1s
We are maintaining our strong foundation
in the UK and US and using 1t as abasis to

Rio de Jariero, Brazil
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build our infrastructure businaess in

growth economies Currently, a significant
proportion of our profits come from our
canstruction businesses in the UK and US
markets, however hoth are feeling the
effects of the current economic downturn
In the US, the bullding market has recently
stabilised with more encouraging signs in
economic infrastructure, where we have
won significant new business recently

In UK construction, market volumes
continue to be constrained by reductions
in both public and private sector investrnent
and delays in projects awaiting certanty
on government policy in areas such as
energy These factors have particularly
affected the flow of large, technically
complex and hugher margin projects
where we excel

In the long term, to be a leading player we
have to expand our presence In emerging
economies Therr infrastructure spending
1s growing faster than in developed
economies, and by 2025 they are expected
to account for the majonty of global
investment in economic infrastructure

www balfourbeatty com/growthmarkets




Key growth economies’

Our Business | Market Overview

Today, we have a good presence in a
number of growth markets In addition,
we have identified target geographies
offering particular opportunities for future
development Australia and Canada,
where we already have a significant
presence through our Professional
Services business, and South Africa,
India and Brazil

In all five, economic infrastructure

1s a key sector where investment 1s
gaining traction All have the potential
to be substantial infrastructure markets,
most of them larger than the UK,

In the next decade

In these geographies we see
opportunities across multiple
infrastructure segmeants, this 1s kay to
creating scale, achieving efficiencies and
bullding a strong, resiient business In
maost of them, infrastructure investment
1s further underpinned by resource
related spending and we anticipate a
growing role for the PPP model, an area
where we have extensive expenence

Australia’s economic inirastructure
market 1s worth around £38 bilhon per
annum and has been growing strongly
for over a decade It 15 underpinned by

a large volume of work In the resources
sector, where recent heady growth rates
are now reaching more sustainable levels

Canada’s economic infrastructure spend
closely matches Australia’s Its economy
was relatively unscathed by the banking
cnsis and it has a good spread of growth
drivers, including population, economic
growth, envircnmental pressures and a
large, diverse resources sector Canada
has a functioning PPP market, on a very
simtlar model to the UK's, and we are
seeing an increase In design-build projects

South Africa has a significant need for
infrastructure, and the public sector’s
need for assistance in managing large
scale infrastructure programmes
presents clear opportunitgs for
campanies such as Balfour Beatty

Wae see potential across the infrastructure

Our sectors for growth’

spectrum — especially in power generatton
and transmission and the mining sector

India’s ecanomic growth and relentless
urbanisation provide strong long term
growth dnvers with significant
opportunities coming through the 12th
National Development Plan We see
particular potential in power transmission
infrastructure, including PPPs, and the
accelerating investment in oll and gas
In transportation, specifically rall, we
see opportunities in urban transit dus
to India’s ambitious programme to build
dedicated freight corndors to relieve
pressure on 1ts national rail netwark

Brazil has all the infrastructure growth
drivers associated with a rapidly
developing and urbanising economy

Its Growth Acceleration Programme
envisages US$526 bilhan of infrastructure
investment between 2011 and 2014
Other significant drivers inglude tha next
World Cup and Olympics, and a buoyant
resources sector

We are focusing our attention on four
sectors transport, power and energy,
water and mining

These are charactensed by strong
growth drivers and large, complex
projects that demand our broad range of
knowledge and capabitities Increasing
project scale and complexity are driving
new approaches to procurament, as
clients seek greater efficiency through
partnering with suppliers who can daliver
a solution rather than just an asset

The transport market - including
highways, rail, poris and aviation —1s
worth around £710 billion per annum,
globally Strong growth drivers in

bath developed and emerging
economies include capacity constraints,
environmental targets and the poor
state of existing networks Procurement
trends are positive, with growth

in design-build and PPP ¢ontracts,
more outsourcing of operations and

maintenance, and increasingly
sophisticated client-supplier relationships

Power 1s angther large, sustainable
market k15 worth around £440 billion
per annum, split roughly equalty between
generatton and transmussion Growth
drivers are the carbon agenda and
the need to replace ageing assets in
developed markets, and economic
and population growth in developing
countries VWhatever the generation
technology, demand for new and
strengthened transmission networks
will remain strang worldwide

Water abstraction, treatment and
distribution projects are worth some
£360 billion per annum Growth 15 driven
by urbanisation, demographics and rnising
environmental standards — and pubhc
providers are increasingly seeking private
sector involvement The UK benefits
from a mature regulatory regime and high
visibility from five-year planning cycles,
and US activity 1s benefiting from an

upturn in residential bulding Emerging
markets are growing egually strongly

as rany developed and emerging
economies face water shortages, which
are driving demand for desalination

The mining market 1s easing after a
decade of very strong growth, but stll
has positive long term growth drivers
Large chents are typically multinationals
that favour suppliers they can work with
In multiple territones and most procure
major projects under umbrella
engineering, procurement and
construction management (EPCM)
contracts This represents a significant
oppaortunity for us as we develop our
EPCM capability — particularly since
mining developments, notably for

coal and iron, typrically require major
Investment in power, rall, ports and
water assets where we provide
axpertise and delivery capability

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Our Business | Our Strategy

Our Strategy

Having built a world class
infrastructure business with global
reach, we now aim to sustain this
and grow it into new areas.

QOver the past 18 months we have been working
to iImplement the strategy for growth, based on
applying our knowledge across the lifecycle of
infrastructure assets and harnessing the broad
platform that we have evolved around the world
to delver greater value to infrastructure owners
around the waorld

Our vision 13 to become a truly global organisation, recognised
as one of the world’s leading infrastructure busiesses and
acclaimed for the quality of service that we deliver to our chents
The end-to-end knowledge that we have accumulated across
the whole infrastructure lifecycle differentiates us from our
competition, which, added to our strength as an asset owner,
will allow us to build refationships with, and offer leading
services to clients

Our clients are predominantly local or national organisations that
own assets in a single rarket sector and rarely venture across
borders We recognise that we are at our best when we are
invalved with creating assets which are critical to the delivery

of the service our clients prowide In their community, and we are
adapting our bustness to better support our clients in this respect

lan Tyler has positioned our business to take advantage
of the opportunities we have in new growth markets
Over the next few years | will continue to pursue

our strategy, which 1s built around operating across

the hfecycle of infrastructure assets and focuses

on key geographtes and market sectors Now

Is the time to Inject even moere pace (into our

strategic development

Andrew McNaughton
Deputy Chief Executive
and Chief Operating Officer

www balfourbeatty com/mcnaughton2012

Key to risk
Increased nsk

No change to nsk
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Strategic Imperative 1

Grow in New
Geographies and
Market Sectors

We are already one of the largest
global mfrastructure players, but the
growth opportunities in our traditional
UK and US markets are currently
hmited To achieve further growth we
are looking to Increase our footprint
to faster growing geographies and
sectors We already have a significant
presence In the Middle East and Asia,
now we are looking to expand our
reach further into other growth
economies — Austrahia and Canada,
where we already have a presence
through Professional Services, and
South Africa, tndia and Brazil — and
intensify our focus on the buoyant
transport, power and energy, water
and mining sectors

In 2012, we have seen progress In
these areas in ine with our expectations

Key Performance Indicators

63%

Group order book in target market
sectors {transport, power and energy,
water, mining) as Group % (2011 59%)

48%

Revenue' from target market sectors
(transport, power and energy, water,
mining) as Group % (2011 48%)

14%

Revenue' from higher growth
markets {outside Europe and Narth
America) as Group % (2011 12%)

b Ingluding joint ventures and associates
2 Bafare non-underlying items

Risk
Economic environment
Expansion Into new territories
and by acquisition
Legal and regulatory
Bidding




Strategic Imperative 2

Deliver Greater
Value to Clients

We deliver greater value to clients

by leveraging our end-to-end asset
knowledge This allows us to better
understand our clients’ own strategic
objectives and contribute through the
Iinfrastructure sclutions we create

It enables us to develop infrastructure
solutions that are better value, better
quality and faster and safer to create
and maintain It means we can offer

a full range of services — from finance
and development, through design and
project management to construction
and maintenance

Every year, Roads and Bridges magazine
in the US surveys 10,000 government
officials and asks them which design firm
they prefer to work with In the industry,
this 1s called the Go-To List

While they only cover our professional
services business, these rankings are a
good example of the strength of our track
record and reputation with our chents

Strategic Imperative 3

Improve Operational
Performance and
Cost Effectiveness

In recent years, our unigue breadth

of capabilities and geographica! reach
has been a result of a sustained period
of expansion including a number of
successful acquisitions n 2012,
recognising the more difficult
macroeconomic condittons, we focused
on generating efficiencies across all
our operations and back office support
functions to ensure we operate as
efficrently and as profitably as possible

We aim to increase Group operating
margin to a level of 3 5-4% by 2015 -
mainly through better utilisation of
resources, efficiency savings and
improved business mix

Qur cost reduction programmes remain
on course, but margin progress in 2012
was hindered by difficult market
conditions In our traditonal UK and US
markets and 2013 1s expected to be
similarly affected We also expenienced
operational 1ssues in some areas of the
business which hindered progress

Our Business | Our Strategy

Strategic Imperative 4

Continue to Show
Leadership in Values
and Behaviour

To be recognised as a global leader n
infrastructure services we continue 1o
focus on securing a sustainable, long
term future for the Group and providing
a legacy within the communities in
which we serve We must also be

a leader in areas such as business
ethics, talent management, safety

and the environment

The safety of our pecple and everyone
we come Into contact with remains a
key imperative and 1s embedded across
our business However, whilst most
areas of the business improved In
relation 10 safety performance in 2012,
we stll have progress to make and

our Zero Harm activity has been
reinvigorated for 2013

We have challenged ourselves 1o
reduce our Impact on the environment
In 2012, we made good headway In
water and waste, but our target to
reduce CO2 emissions made hittle
progress due to the mix of energy
Intansive projects we have worked on

Go-To List rankings for
Parsons Brinckerhoff

No.1

In the Road & Highway and
Airport categones (2011 No 1}

No.2

In the Bridge and Mass Transit
categones (2011 No 2}

No.3

In the Design-Burld category {2011 No 4)

55 awards

During 2012 the Group received
55 awards from customers and
industry bodies in recognition
of its achievements {2011 29)

Key Performance Indicators

2.8%

Group operating margin' 2
{2011 3 0%)

£36m

Achieved In cost efficiencies
by the end of 2012 {2011 £15m)

Key Performance Indicators

-6%

Accident Frequency Rate decreased
by 6% 100 16% (2011 AFR 017%)

-13%

Greenhouse gas emissions
reduced by 13%

Risk
Bidding
Project execution
Health, safety and sustainability

Risk
Economic environment
Bidding
Project execution
Health, safety and sustainability

Risk
Lega! and regulatory
Business conduct
People
Project execution
Healih, safety and sustainability
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We hit the
ground running

At Heathrow we are delivering Terminal 2b as a
single point of service for Heathrow Airport Limited,
combining design, construction, ground engineernng,
specialist mechanical and electrical expertise and
Parsons Brinckerhoff's professional services

At £592 milhon, Terminal 2b 1s one of the largest arside projects
in Heathrow's history Terminal 2b will provide pier served tunnet
links to the main terminal The result Phase 1 was completed

in November 2009 on time and on budget and our integrated

approach on Phase 2 enabled our client to open three arcraft
stands three months early, helping them to ease stand congestion

£592m 3

Value of Terminal 2b contract Months early

You get off to
a flying start

Airports must keep expanding and improving to
meet Increasing passenger demand Integrated
delivery, stakeholder and risk management are

key to opening new capacity for arlines and therr
passengers with minimal disruption

Through an integrated single paint of service to our client we
have successfully delivered Phase 1 and on Phase 2 we are on
programme to deliver the completed project to Heathrow Airport
Limited in October 2013, delivering 10 more new stands ready
for operation in 2014 As a founding mamber of the Heathrow

Sustainability Partnership we are working together to build
a more sustainable Heathrow

40% 10

More carbon efficient than More aircraft stands
the old bullding under construction

Balfour Beatty Annua! Report and Accounts 2012
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Grow in New Geographies
and Market Sectors

How are we performing?

63%

Group crder book in target market
sectors {transport, power and energy,
water, mining) as Group % {2011 599%)

48%

Revenue' from target market sectors
{transport, power and energy, water,
mining) as Group % (2011 48%)

14%

Revenue' from higher growth
markets {outside Europe and Neorth
Armerica) as Group % {2011 12%)

What's next?
In the year ahead, we am to

® |ncrease our revenues In target
geographies

¢ |ncrease our share of business
In target sectors

' Including joint ventures and associates

We are already one of the largest

global infrastructure players, but the
growth opportunities in our traditional

UK and US markets are currently Imited
To achieve further growth we are looking
to increase our footprint to faster growing
geographies and sectors We already have
a significant presence in the Middle East
and Asia where we are seeing growth,
now we are looking to expand our reach
further in growth economies — Australia
and Canada, where we already have a
presence through Professional Services
and South Africa, India and Brazil -

and intensify our focus on the buoyant
transport, power and energy, water and
mining sectors

Why is this important?

We do not want our growth to be imited
by the economic and cyclical constraints
in our traditional markets The breadth

of our capabilities and the extent of our
international reach give us accessto

an exceptionally broad range of merkets
and clients Our aim 1s to focus more

of our activity where there are medium
to long term opporturuties for global
infrastructure But to avoid spreading

our resources too thinly we needto be
selective The rationale behind our choice
of target geographies and sectors s set
out In the market overview on pages

10 and 11

What are we doing in our target
growth geographies?

Our chosen gecgraphies are not virgin
terntory for us They are all areas where
Parsons Brinckerhoff has been actve, or
at least preparing the ground, for some
vears Parsons Brinckerhoff's presence,
as well as our understanding of these
markets provides the platform for
Group expansion in these regions

In each target geography, our Professional
Services platform gives us a basis for
development It gives us in-depth client
knowledge and intimacy, and an
understanding of the local business
environment and supply chain Qver time,
wa can broaden our Professional Services
offering into new areas by transfemng
capability and knowledge from elsewhere
across the Group At the same time, we
can capture progressively greater value
from the local markets by drawing on the
Group's world class delivery capability

to broaden our offering to those clients
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This approach ensures that, wherever
we operate, we will be ingreasing the
leverage from our existing businesses

to maximise the value we can bring to
each project It also helps us manage nisk
effectively and allows us tc target the
opportunities where we can command
higher returns more keenly

This is the strategy for all of our growth
geographies, but we are at different stages
of implementation At one end of the scale
1s Austraha, where we have a sizeable
Professional Servicas platform and have
been taking delivery risk sefectively for
some ume, at the other Is Brazll, where
wae are still seeking to estabhsh a platform

in Australia, the majonty of our 3,000
amployees work in Professional Services,
where we are a top five player The nature
of engagement between clients and
supphers 1s sophisticated and plays to our
strengths - especially given the strategic
relationships Parsons Brinckerhoff has
with many of 1ts clients Qutsourcing
opportunities are opening up In highways,
rail and water — as we have seen in the UK
- giving us the opportunity to transfer best
practice between geographies

Until recently our at-nisk delivery work

has been limited, with a small presence
through our rail construction and power
transnussion businesses Given the
competition from large local general
contracting groups in the broader
construction market, we are inially
targeting sectors where our existing
presence and global capabilities will
differentiate us We are making significant
headway, leveraging the strong client
relationships that Parsons Brinckerhoff
has already built up and iImporting specific
global capabilities that add value to the
local market

For example, on our major Melbourne Rall
project, Parsons Brinckerhoff held the
local client relationship and 1ts reputation
won us the night local partner We added
to the mix our experience of delivery in
complex rail environments — particularly
the UK’s East London Line In power
transrmission we partner with UGL as

the local provider and draw on our
international power transmisston
business, and Iin current power generation
projects we are drawing on delivery skills
from the US




This approach 1s opening up a pipeline of
oppeortunities We are currently bidding
new projects in power generation, expect
to be bidding for a New South Wales
outsourced highways contract, and

see emerging opportunities in rall and
end-to-end services for a number

of mining companies

In Canada, our professional services
platform s based on a leading firm in the
bullding sector, Halsall, which we acquired
In 2010 The purpose of our acquisition

of Halsall was to use this platform to grow
in the Canadian market benefiting from
knowledge transfer from elsewhere in

the Group

We have already been able 1o broaden
our local offering beyond bulldings

By supplementing the onginal Halsall
platform with Parsons Brinckerhoff
expertise, we have secured several
imporiant transportation contracts,
including the role of general engineering
consultant on the CAN$818 million
{£508 million) hght rail ransit in Waterloo,
Ontario, one of the largest infrastructure
projects ever undertaken in the Waterloo
region —won by combining local
knowledge with transport expertise
from both the US and the UK

Having broadened and strengthened our
Professicnal Services platform, we are
now actively moving into at-risk dehivery
wark, again combining local knowledge
with global capabiity We see
downstream opportunities in power
generation and transmission, as well

as transportation In recent months an
increase in the number of PPP projects
coming to market has allowed us 1o
move Into this area as well

In South Africa, we have 400 people
working in Professional Services, focused
mainly on power and rmiring The major
opportunity 1s the country’s huge need
for infrastructure and 1ts public sector’s
Iimited capacity to manage large scale
infrastructure projects For example, at
Medupi we are on the team building the
world's fourth largest coal-fired power
station in partnership with local electnicity
utility Eskom — which last built a power
station 20 years ago Qur role on this
waorld scale project demonstrates the
results we can achieve by importing
delivery capability, whilst at the same tme
working alongside local non-governmental

Our Business | Strategic Imperatives | Grow in New Geographies and Market Sectors

organisations (NGOs) to increase local
capacity We are targeting further
opportunities in the managemenit of large
scale infrastructure programmes and in
at-nsk delivery across the infrastructure
spectrum — particularly In our target
market sectors

In India, we have an established
professtonal services presence with

300 people and eight offices in key cities
We have substantially enhanced our lacal
connections and influence by forming

& joint venture with the engineering
procurement and construction business,
Tata Projects, one of India s leading
companies This will differentiate us
further in pursuing urban infrastructure
opportunities We are focusing on
opportunities In power transmission
infrastructure, including PPP investment
opportunities and rail development

In Brazl, we are at a very early stage

of development We established our
S&o Paulo office in 2012 and have five
employees there However, the massive
investment in infrastructure envisaged
by the country's Growth Acceleration
Programme 1s already well underway

To take full advantage of these
opportunities we need to build scale
quickly through joint venture or
acquisihion We are actively investigating
our options In both these respects

In South Africa, India and Brazil the ethical,
social, and health and safety environments
require careful attention and management
We will need to be selective in the work
we undertake and be mindful of the
potential nsks in this respect Despite
this, we are convinced of the potential

of these markets and our ability to grow
successfully whilst offering our leadership
standard for conduct and behaviour

We emphasise that our drive into these
growth geographies does not mean
neglecting our more astablished "home”
markets in the US, UK, Middle East and
Hong Kong The capabilities present in our
core businesses in these *home” markets
wilt be instrumental In accessing new
terntones, whether by argaric growth

or acquisition

Australian highways

Balfour Beatty has established
a partnership in Australia with
Transfield Services to target
state government outsourcing
opportunities in highways
maintenance on the east
coast of Australia Experience
developed 1n the UK 15 being
mobilised to develop best
practice in Australia

www balfourbeatty com
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Targeting waste
projects

Building our capability in the
waste sector, we have closed
both Essex waste and
Gloucestershire energy-from-
waste projects We have taken
the expertise we learnt from
these projects and are applying
It to other waste projects

www halfourbeatty com/
Investments

What are we doing in our target
growth sectors?

Of the high growth markets that we are
targeting, transportation and power and
energy present particular opportunities
because we already have substantal
platforms and track records 1o build on

In the transportation market, we are
already a key player Iti1s a sector that
engages the whole Group, in markets

all round the world and in all stages

of the asset lifecycle We have deep
understanding of the sector, i1ts clients
and asset types, particularly in highways,
rall and aviation

Our strategy 1s to leverage this depth of
knowledge, along with our local presence
in specific geographies, to target major
projects In our more established ‘heme’
markets in the UK, US, Middle East and
Hong Kong — where we have a strong
local construction presence — we offer

a tull service model embracing integrated
projects and standalone services In

our "growth geographies”, we lead

on professional services and take on
selective delivery risk, drawing on our
asset knowledge and delivery experience
from our home markets Increasingly we
are concentrating on major projects and
programmes, where our end-to-end
expertise adds most value

In lnghways there are still significant
opportunities In integrated projects in
the UK and US In our growth geographies
wae are addressing opportunities where
we have competitive advantage and
avolding smaller projects that are better
served by local businesses In particular
we look to export our skills in operation
and maintenance (O&M) and asset
ranagement as outsourcing gains
momentum around the world

In aviation we have built a strong track
record In Integrated projects in the UK and
US already and have the benefits of best
practice We are also very well positioned
tn Hong Kong, with a sizeable project
pipeline and have recently announced a
£64 million contract at Dubar arport, over
the coming years we a:m to build on this
to explait aviation opportunities ansing

in other parts of Southeast Asta - initially
through our Professional Services
business We have already had success
in this area In Ta:wan
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In rail, we are targeting integrated and
complex projects in our home markets,
and focusing our international activities
on our target growth geographies

The operational and strategic review

of our Mainland European rail business,
which we started in the fourth quarter,
has concluded that maintaining a rail
presence In Mainland Europe 1s not
censistent with our strategy which calls
for bullding a strong local presence In
our geographies in a number of market
sectors In Mainland Europe, we
essentially operate only in ral Therefore,
we will be divesting all of our Mainland
European raill businesses through a
process that ensures that the businesses
and therr customers continue to receive
full support

These factors were offset by considerable
success In major international projects
where we have a strong specialist
position that we can combine with our
Professional Services design capability

to differantiate our offering

Our strategy for the power and energy
sector has a strong and well established
international capability to build on In
professional services we are already a top
10 global player We have a strong track
record In transmission projects, both in
the UK, where we are market leader, and
internationally, with current operations in
the US, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Australia
and New Zealand Alongside this delivery
capability we have been building an
investment and development portfolio

in the UK, notably in the biomass and
energy -from-waste sectors and offshore
transmission assets

As with transport, our strategy Is to
combine local presence with global
expertise In power we are using our
engineering and procurement capability
to take on, and manage more, delivery
nsk selactively We also am to extend
our relationships with international power
and natural resource clients, (n particular
by harnessing our experience in PPP
investrment, in tandem with our skills as

a project developer Global trends support
this approach private sector ownership 1s
already widespread in the sector, and the
use of PPP and concessions 1s Increasing
in both transrmission and generation —
especially In emerging market economies
such as India and Brazil




In power generation the ubiquity of
integrated engingenng, procurement and
construction {EPC) contracts allows us to
leverage our existing US capability across
the world We aim to grow progressively
— first strengthenimg our international
professional services offer and further
developing our EPC activity In generation
projects under 1T00MW, and ultimately
increasing our EPC capability in the over
100MW market

Qur other two target growth sectors
are water and mining Here we have
substantial platforms to build on and
are making good progress, but are at
an earlier stage

In water we have a good position in the
UK and a significant and growing business
in the US — boosted by the Fru-Con
acquisition in 2011 In the near term we
want to grow n the US, where the water
market 15 very localised, by leveraging our
existing regional capabilities nationally

Creating a rail network
from scratch

Opportunities to develop a
complete rall network don't arise
very often But Qatar is doing it,
and on an iImmense scale

Qatar plans to have around 170km of
new metro and light rall Iines in place by
the time 1t hosts the World Cup in 2022,
as well as approximately 400km of high
speed, long distance lines

As strategic programme manager
through Parsons Brinckerhoff, we are
guiding one of the most challenging rail
development programmes in the
world today

www balfaurbeatty com/
professionalservices
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We have already made progress with this,
and over the medium term we arm to
bring our enhanced skills to bear on our
target growth geographias, particularly
Australia Here, our expernience of working
within the UK regulatory framework gives
us a distinctive edge as many clients seek
to learn from, and adapt, the UK model

In mmning we are bullding closer
relationships with our international mining
clients such as Xstrata, Anglo-American,
BHP Billiton and Vale We are responding
to their needs by leveraging our focal
presence In the places where they operate
— Australta, South Afnca and, most recently,
Brazil We are also pursuing opportunities
with smaller operators, where there 18
increasing use of end-to-end destgn build
finance operate (DBFO) contracts for

power generation and transmission assets,

rail inks and onsite miners’ housing

www balfourbeatty com/growthsectors

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

18

SEMIRNAa 1IN



Our Business | Strategic Imperatives | Deliver Greater Value to Clients

Deliver Greater Value
to Clients

How are we performing?

Go-To List rankings for Parsons
Brinckerhoff

No.1

In the Road & Highway
and Airport categories {2011 No 1)

No.2

In the Bndge and Mass
Transit categories {2011 No 2)

No.3

In the Design-Build category
(2011 No 4)

55 awards

During 2012 the Group received
55 awards from customers and

industry bodies in recognition of
its achievements {2011 29)

What's next?
In the next year we aim to

* continue to build strong
relationships with clients in our
target market sectors

» focus on supporting clients by
delivering innovative solutions
across the asset lifecycle

20

We deliver greater value to
chents by leveraging our end-
to-end asset knowledge

This allows us to better understand our
clients’ own strategic objectives and
contribute through the infrastructure
solutions we create It enables usto
develop infrastructure sclutions that are
better value, better quality and faster and
safer to create and maintain It means we
can offer a full range of services - from
finance and development, through design
and project management, to construction
and maintenance

Why is this important?
For our clients, this delivers value in three
key areas

* early engagement allows us to better
understand strategic needs

* using our knowledge and expertise
across the full asset lifecycle delvers
better solutions

* harnessing our end-to-end knowledge
to projects adds value

Upfront, early engagement with clients
through our professional services
relatonships means we better
understand our ¢chents’ strategic
needs We work in partnership with
them to ensure these are met through
the infrastructure we finance, design,
construct or mantam This enables our
clents to achieve their own objectives —
be 1t better transport links, refiable and
sustainable energy supply, high quality
education or world class healthcare

Our recent A11 road scheme 18 a 15km
road widening project undertaken in the
east of the UK on behalf of the Highways
Agency One of the critena for the
contract award was the requirement to
reduce costs by 20% by using innovative
ideas We achieved this and an additional
£500,000 saving by rethinking the design
of the roundabouts at either end of the
new section of the road

We use our knowledge and expertise
across the full asset lifecycle to
develop innovative and market leading
solutions This allows us to create and
mainta:n infrastructure to a higher quality,
at a lower price, faster and safer than

our competitors
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We can design better because we
understand the construction and
operational 1Issues — and we can construct
and operate more effectively because

we understand the engineering 1ssues
Being investors and developers, we also
understand the owner’s perspective

For several local authonties we provide
sarvices to maintain street lighting This
can include upgrade and PPP investment
from our Investments business Our
business is Involved in the change of old
equipment to new which includes an
enhanced technology solution 1o reduce
energy and increase longevity of the hght
Qur business 1s also involved in the
provision of ongoing maintenance via
local teams

This end-to-end knowledge and the
capability to harness it across projects
adds value to all our work, including

In single service contracts where our
understanding of the full ifecycle makes
us a better destgner or constructor or
maintainer or operator It also means we
can manage large, integrated projects
incarporating all these skills in one
package - providing a single point of
contact for our clients and managing the
interface between the different disciplines

The Eagle P3 project is part of the
Denver Regicnal Transportation District’s
12-year multibilion dollar FasTracks plan
to expand and build new commuter and
light rail lines throughout the Denver
metropolitan area As a public private
partnership, It transfers certain
construction and operational risks to the
private sector Denver Transit Partners,
which includes Parsons Brinckerhoff as
consultant, will design, build, finance,
operate and maintain the Eagle P3
commuter rail project, which
encompasses the East Corndor, the
Gold Line and Northwest Rall, using skills
from across the Group We are able to
add value by harnessing our experience
of all elements of the project Iifecycle

www balfourbeatty com/strategy
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Improve Operational

Performance and
Cost Effectiveness

How are we performing?

2.8%

Group operating margin' 2 {2011 3 09%)

£36m

Achieved n cost efficiencies
by the end of 2012 {2011 £15m)

What's next?
¢ complete transfer of UK accounting
into the SSC by Q4 2013

s continue rollout of Oracle across
UK operations with a target to
complete by mid 2014

¢ go operatcnal with service centre Iin
Lancaster, Pennsylvaria in April 2013

Investigate cost benefits from
maoving to country structures

consult employees on ceasing
future accrual in the UK defined
benefit pension schemea

1 Including joini ventures and associates
2 Before non-underlying nems

Qur unigue breadth of
capabilities and geographical
reach has resulted from a
sustained penod of expansion
including numerous successful
acquisitions in recent years

In 2012, recognising the more
difficult macroeconomic
conditions, we focused on
generating further efficiencies
across all our operations and
back office support functions to
ensure we operate as efficiently
and as profitably as possible

Why is this important?

Our chents’ budgets are under pressure,
be they the budgets of governments,
regulated industnes, or private entities
They are looking to us to deliver our
services on time and as efficiently as
possible by deploying the range of our
skills and our scale This requires us to
focus relentlessly on the successful
delivery of clients’ expectations, ensurning
at the same time that we operate
efficiently both at the project site and
also back in the office We believe that
by shanng best practice internally across
our operating units and bringing greater
commonality to our processes, we will
improve the consistency of our delivery
and reduce our cost

What are we doing?

We started on the journey 1o improve our
cost effectiveness with the announcemant
of the creation of a shared service centre
{SSC) In Newcastle In August 2010
tnitially the scope of its activities was
transacthonal accounting and employee
services along with procurement of
indirect spend, 1e largely office costs

By the end of 2011 we had 230 employees
In Newcastle, accounting for 50% of our
UK transactions, and procunng about
£300 milion of indirect spend

The success of this inliative convinced

us to take what we had learnt, expand

the project and consider whether 1t could
be applied elsewhere In March 2012 we
announced that we were targeting to save
a further £50 milhon per annum by 2015,
for an estimated one-off cost in a rangs of
£50 million to £75 million This would have
a number of elements to 1t

= expand the scope of the services
provided by the UK shared service
centre to include [T shared services,
buying activities and further employee
services such as internationa! mobility

e transfer Professional Services
support function roles to Lancaster,
Pennsylvaria from the high labour, high
property cost environment of New York

s reorgamse the UK construction
business from six business streams into
three, within one operating company

Meeting the strategic needs of our client

Our regeneration partnership with North East
Lincolnshire Council broke new ground by
combining skills In regeneration, highways,
transport and planning, asset management

and architectural support from across the

Group 1n a single outsourcing package

The joint team, comprising several of our business areas,
focused on real outcomeas The £250 million, 10-year contract
sets targets that range from cutting road fatalities by 33%

to secunng £570 million of inward investrment And we are
delivering Our joint performance was recognised in Local

Government Chronicle’s 2012 Business Partnership Awards,
where we were rated best in two categories frontline service
delivery and overall transformation of service delivery

www balfourbeatty com/supportservices
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A more agile UK
construction business

Our UK construction business’
transformation programme
has a simple am 1o be

more aglle in meeting our
chents’ needs

To get closer to clients
we've Integrated six business
streams Into one business
focused on growth market
sectors The changes will
increase efficiency, cut costs
and help us collaborate more
closely through centralised
hub offices Clients will
benefit from simpler access
10 a bustness that shares
knowledge and best practice
to work better throughout the
project lifecycle

www balfourbeatty com/
construction

This process involves reducing the
number of offices in the UK from more
than 75 to 37 and implementing a new
organisational structure with

commaon processes

* reorganise the US construction
business from five regions into three,
to better utilise the skills across the
organisation using market sector
expertise and to present a consistent
client experience

* organise Support Services to create
a more efficient back office structure,
maximising the use of the shared
service centre

» coordinate our global buying particularly
in the area of telecoms, data networks
and software

Whilst all of these projects have at least
some element of focus on cost efficiency,
a number of them are also focused on
how we engage with our chents, using
best practice processes and improving
operational delivery

In the meantime, increasingly difficult
market conditions have reduced our ability
to absorb operational errors, intensifying
the pressures on our teams We have
seen some operational problems in 2012,
notably 1n our Mamntand European rall and
UK construction businesses We believe
the actions we are taking to reorganise
our UK construction business and
restructure our Mainland European rail
business will improve performance in
2013 and mitigate operational risks

going forward

We have made good prograss onthese
intiatives, in particular

¢ UK shared service centre — a measure
of the scale of activity now being
handled through the organisation 1s its
number of employees Thase increased
to 420 by year end, of which 320 are In
Newcastle and 100 employees in two
centres in Derby and Liniithgow By the
end of 2013 this should rise to just
under 700 employees in total Another
measure 1s the volume of transactions
The current annual run rate 1s
£3 7 billion of receipts and payments,
over 1 millon invoices, 380,000
payshps, 17,000 IT service requests and
200,000 calls received The growth in
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this shared service organisation has
been achigved with very little disruption
to our front ine operations

s |ancaster, Pennsylvania service centre
—recruitment 15 underway for the new
roles and the scheduled opening of the
centre by March 2013 1s on track and
shouid deliver savings of US$5 million
per annum

» UK construction — the new
management structure with a new
business management system 15 in
place and conselidation into fewer '
offices 1s underway By Apnl over
480 employees will be colocated
together in London

Savings in 2012 from the ongnal and
expanded programme were £36 million,
and we remain on track to deliver
combined annual savings of £80 million
In 2015

in 2013 we will continue to progress
those projects and will also continue

to identify other steps we can take to
improve operational delivery and cost
effectiveness Two further initiatives
that we will pursue 1n 2013 are, firstly,
consulting with ¢ 2,500 UK employees,
who continue to accrue service In our
defined benefit scheme, about providing
them with defined contribution pension
provision in future instead This benefit
has become increasingly expensive, and
can potentially make us uncompetitive
with peers who do not have a simiar cost
Secondly, having put in place back office
shared services on a country basis,

we will look to see whether there are
benefits to the customer and our cost
base from a mare geographic based
organisation structure

2013 will also see increasing use of our
knowledge sharing and collaboration
platform to dnive the sharing of best
practise, both in operational excellence
and also In cost efficiency

www balfourbeatty com/strategy
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Continue to Show Leadership
In Values and Behaviour

How are we performing?

-6%

Accident Frequency Rate decreased
by 6% to 016% {2011 AFR 0 17%)

-13%

Greenhouse gas emissions
reduced by 13%

What are we doing?

To be recognised as a global
leader in infrastructure services
we continue to focus on securing
a sustainable, long term future
for the Group and provide a
legacy within the communities
in which we serve We must
also be a leader in areas such
as business ethics, talent
management, safety and

the environment

Why 1s this important?

Qur reputation s crucial to winning new
business, attracting and retaining the best
people, and building high quality business
partnerships To be seen as a true leader
in our figld we need to build and protect

a reputation for leadership in values and
behaviour In addition, the emergence
and increasingly aggressive enforcement
of anti corruption legislatton with global
reach makes ethical ngour a critical rnisk
management 1Issue ASs we grow Into new
markets where cultural norms may differ
significantly from ours, we must work
harder to maintain our high standards

Our key 1ssues and actions for 2012 1n
the areas of ethics, health and safety,

diversity, people and sustamnability are
set out in more detall In The Way We

Work on pages 48 to 5i

www balfourbeatty com/strategy

Our key achievernents In 2012 include

* state of the art compliance
programme

* over 40,000 employees have
completed the first Code of
Conduct training module

* credited by Robecco SAM as
the biggest mover in terms
of sustainability in the heavy
construction sector

Opening up new energy resources

Growing global demand for coal has prompted Xstrata Coal to
further develop 1ts Ulan mine in New South Wales, Australia by
developing a new underground mine alongside the existing

opencast workings

The US$1 3 billhion Ulan West project will produce 6 7 milllon tonnes of export
thermal coal a year, operating for about 18 years from 2014 Parsons Brinckerhoff 1s
prowiding construction management services In delivery of the surface infrastructure
on the 18,000-hectare sie as part of an Integrated Owner's Team, which includes
input nto engineering design, procurement and construction over three years

www balfourbeatty com/professionalservices
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Business
Model

Value drivers

* Allocate capital to strategic
areas of growth

* Focus on economic
infrastructure to increase
resilience

* Manage costs to facilitate
consistent margins across
business cycles

To achieve our strategic
objectives of growth in new
markets, delivening greater
value to the client, improving
operational performance and
continuing to show leadership
in values and behaviour, our
business model leverages our
strong local presence in multiple
geographies alongside global,
end-to-end asset knowledge

Balfour Beatty has a distinc

Strong local businesses

Deliver valye

Established geographies

Strong local bustnesses, close to clients, committed to local
communities, in touch with local supply chan

M Established geographies M Target geographies Il Professional Services footpnnt

Target geographies

UK
30,000 employees

USA
10,000 employees

Hong Kong
10,000 employees

UAE & GCC
300 employees

Strong local businesses

Local presence allows us to align with
our chents — most of whom are based in
a single country — and be closer to them
That allows us to better understand and
respond to their needs

It also means that, as local organisations,
our chents value the commitment we
show to the communities we sarve

By committing to and investing in
these communities, we provide traning
and development, create long term
employment opportunittes, and support
sustainable economic growth This can
be seen across our business through
our apprenticeship, graduate training
and outreach programmes

With deep roots in a community we are
also able to create resilient businesses
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Australia & New Zealand
3,000 employees

Canada
350 employees

South Africa
300 employees

India
300 employeas

Brazil
5 employees

Employee figures include joint ventures and associates

Our business model will delive

by developing a ngorous approach to risk
management Being on-the-ground gives
us an intimate understanding of the local
operating environment and, crucially, its
local supply chain As most projects In
our industry are delivered through that
supply chain, focal presence helps In
every part of our business, and where
we take delivery nisk ourselves, it's
absolutely critical

We have this deep rooted presence
in a number of countries around the
world already

From our foundation in the UK we've
built strong domestic businesses in the
US, Hong Kong and the Middle East
Experience has taught us that this model
works much better than an expediticnary
fly-in fly-out approach




rompetitive edge

End-to-end capabilities

Global expertise

Intensive expertise across
the full asset hfecycle,
enhanced offerings and
integrated solutions

\/

Develop & Finance
see p4l

S|

Design & Manage
see p28

S

Construct &
Commussion

see p32

\/

Maintain & Operate
see p37

\/

ralue for all our stakeholders

We have then continued to expand

our coverage Into our chosen target
geographies We aren't starting from
scratch in these countries we already
have a presence, In some cases a
significant one — gained largely through
our acquisition of Parsons Brinckerhoff
in 2009

For example, we now have over 3,000

people in Australha, around 350 in Canada,

300 in South Africa and 300 in India

These are solid foundations on which
to expand our activities in these reglons

End-to-end capabilities

Combined with our local presencs, we
also have global end-to-end expernence
and understanding of infrastructure
assets That gives us an edge on

three levels

World class solutions, global
best practice and knowledge
sharing, coupled with
international teams

T

Power and Energy

Infrastructure

Highways

Aviation

Water

9dJAIas 19A1180

Mining

Social

* being investors and developers, we also
understand the owner’s perspeactive In
fact, we can actually develop, structure
and finance investrent projects as well
as dehver them

* through design and planning, we can
laverage strategic relatonships and
early engagement with clients — this
means we can get early visibility of
opportunities, help to shape how
projects come to market and
generate opportunities aursetves

* we can design better because we
understand the construction and
operational 1Issues — and conversely,
we can construct and operate more
effectively because we understand
the engineering 1Ssues

Our end-to-end knowledge adds value
to all gur work Not Just on integrated

Our Business | Business Mod

Service enhancers:

» Relentless focus on
excellent delivery

» Innovative and
sustamable solutions

+ Safe working
environments

* Productivity

contracts where we're providing all
these skifls to one project, but also in
single service contracts where our
understanding of the full hfecycle makes
us a better designer, ar constructor,

or marmtainer, or oparator

Global expertise

And our knowledge 1sn't just end-to-end
It also cuts across all of our core
geographies We are using this
internationat expertise, across the whole
asset lifecycle, 1o help us grow in our
target market sectors We are doing this
through global sector teams that ink up
all the different parts of the Group
around the world that are active in these
sectors These teams are responsible

el

for knowledge flow, specialist resources,

global strategy, and coordination of
global customers

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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We worked
together to
deliver on
schedule

Kirkcaldy Victornia Hospital's £170 million new
wing opened in 2012 [t was delivered via a
Balfour Beatty-led PPP under which we managed
the funding, constructed the asset and will provide
facilittes management until 2041

We completed the construction on ttme and on budget with

zero snags We saved time and cost through offsite prefabrication
{including 273 ensuite tollet pods) and baling segregated waste
onsite to sell for recycling instead of paying for landfill

2m 53,000m?

Hours worked over Chinical area, with 50km
650 days without a of pipework created
reportable accident




You get your
perfect delivery
on a welcoming
ward

The new hospital provides vital new capacity for
NHS Fife, including 11 operating theatres, renal,
maternity delivery, children’s and A&E facilities

It 15 designed to provide a welcoming environment for visitors
and patients, with bright and spacious wards containing

more than 60% single rooms [n the children’s ward, special
curtaining enables children to transform their bedded bays
Into beach huts A dedicated basement corndor helps keep
maintenance traffic away from clinicians and visiters

2,000 360

Rooms including Beds in 20 wards, with
11 operating theatres 31 clinical departments

Balfour Beatty Annual Reportand Accounts 2012
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Professional Services

With presence in 70 countries
worldwide, Professional Services is an
important bridgehead into our growth
markets. We continue to broaden and
deepen our technical expertise to

win work while improving our cost
efficiency and business mix to increase
our margins.

What do we do?

* Programme and project management
+ Construction management

* Project design

s Technical services

* Planning

* Consultancy

What's happened?

* Increased transportation market share in the Americas

» Significant lhighways wins in US following approval of Transportation Bill

* Acguisition of Subsurface Group to expand energy storage capability

* Highways, rall and power transrmission contract wins involving other
Group businesses totalling £2 billion

What's next?

* Direct our resources to markets that align with the Group’s focus sectors
and geographic markets

+ Benefit from favourable developments in procurement models in the
US transportation market

* Rernain focused on resource utihsation and cost efficiency to expand
margins further

www balfourbaatty com/professionalservices
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How are we performing?

Order book
%
+5%
2012 | £16bn
2011 ] £16bn

2010 £15bn

Revenue including JVs and associates

+1%

2012 | £1,668m
2011 | £1,645m
2010 | £1,613m

Profit before non-underlying items

+13%

2012 | £98m

201 | £87m

2010 | £85m

Divisional KPI

Billabihity

Billability 1s a good measure of resource
utilisation, and hence profitability, in what
1s essentially a billable hours business

In 2012, billability improved in the UK and
the Middle East, but this favourable
impact was more than offset by weaker
bilability in Australia and significant
investment in design-build opportunities
in the US

2012 —| 58 3%
2011 58 7%
2010 58 7%

Computes total direct labour cost charged
to projects divided by total labour cost
of ermployees




Our strategy

Professional Services, trading under the
Parsons Brinckerhoff brand, 1s a fee-based
consultancy business We win work

on the strength of our track record of
technical expertise and executton By
applying our resources to best effect,
we alm to increase cour billabity rate
while reducing overall project costs for
our clients — and In some cases retaining
a share of these savings

Professional Services 1s at the heart of
the Group's growth strategy Along with
Infrastructure Investments, we are a key
component of the strategy to access
emerging markets where downstream
construction activity may be limited by
challenges such as incompatible health
and safety and ethical standards

Our Professional Services acquisition
strategy aims to bunld a platform from
which we can grow the business by
leveraging our construction, support
services and investment capabilities
Acquisition targets should therefore
accord with the Group's target
geographtes, such as Australia and
Brazl, and target sectors, such as
power and energy, water and mining
In addition, Professional Services looks
for opportunities in transportation and
power In the US, its major market, to
accelerate organic growth or fill specific
capability gaps

We continue to achieve cost efficiencies
— see "Operational performance” on
pages 30 and 31 - and shift our business
mix towards higher margin services
Typically these involve programme
management roles and projects with
design-build, PPP {public private
partnership) and EPC {engineering,
procurement, construction)
characteristics, where we can achieve
returns commensurate with the higher
level of nsk we take, compared with our
tradittonal client side consultancy work

Collaboration and knowledge sharing are
key to delivering this strategy They are
essential to leveraging the Group's
capabilities, and where we take more
commercial risk they ensure that we
manage It effectively by sharing best
practices and processes across the Group

Our marketplace

Americas

US transportation markets remained on
the whole challenging, due to varying
levels of budgetary constraint faced by
individual states The authorisation of the
Transportation Bill in July 2012, after two
and a half years, helped to progress some
projects that were In design stage, but
there was little growth to speak of

Our Business | Operating Review | Professional Services

Thirty-one states have now put PPP-
enabling legislation in place, and big PPP
projects are begimning to be tendered But
only a few have reached financial close,
mamnly In Texas In an environment where
clhents are seeking speed of execution and
lower interface nsk, design-builld models
have also gained traction

In this enviranment, we believe we again
increased our transportation market share
In Americas in 2012

Our US power business 1s still small but
goes from strength to strength in target
segments which are themselves growing
In power generation, we specialise in EPC
contracts for peaking plants, which are

in demand as the oll and gas industry
develops Another related business is
energy sterage we acquired Subsurface
Group at the end of the year to braaden
our presence and capabilities in this area

The Canadian market 1s reasonably active,
with economic infrastructure faning better
than bulldings Our strengthened position
following the acquisition of Halsall has
helped us to grow In the transportation
and power markets, and we see further
opportunity ahead

Europe, Middle East

and Northern Africa

The UK market remains extremely
competitive, but volumes In the
transportation sector have stabilised

and even improved This 1s evidenced by
strong tendering activity, particularly in
mainhne rail and regicnal highways sectors

Opportunities in the Arabian Guif are still
attractive as countries such as Qatar,
Saud Arabia and Kuwait invest in
transportation and power infrastructure
to achieve therr long term development
visions There are also signs of some
recovery in the United Arab Emirates

Asia, Australia-Pacific

and Southern Africa

Follow:ng several buoyant years,
particularly m power and mining, Australia
experienced someawhat mixed market
conditions in 2012 Faltering commodity
demand from China hit the mining sector,
which responded by canceling or
postponing capital projects Despite this,
our relatively smail mining business was
able to grow and gain market share

We were also active in the power market,
particularly in EPC power generation
plants under 100MW, and continue to
pursue opportunities in this segment

The transportation market remained

flat in the year and shows little sign of
improvement and thus, we have adjusted
our Austrahian workforce to the level

of activity

Integrating our
professional services
expertise with
capabhilities from
other parts of the
Group proved an
effective bid winner
in 2012

George Pierson

Chief Executive Officer,
Professional Services
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Meanwhile, our mechanical, electrical and
plumbing services for complex buildings
have continued to grow strongly In
Singapore, Hong Kong and China —

our biggest Asian markets

Financial performance

Professional Services performed wel,
improving 1ts order book by 5% despite
uncertainty arising from presidental
elections and the fiscal chff in the US
where the dmvision generates half of its
revenue Strong growth in the rest of the
world, particularly Qatar and Canada,
contrnibuted to revenue Performance was
mixed in Australia, with a revenue decline
In transportation oftset partly by growth

mn mining While this has impacted
uttlisation rates adversely, profitability in
Australia remains healthy The UK remains
a difficult market, but recent resiructuring
has improved financial performance
Underlying profit increased by 13% to
£98 million with good contributions from
transportation and power sectors and
some favourable atliance and at-nsk
contracts In Australia and Asia With fewer
projects of this type expected to complete
in 2013, margin performance 1s likely to be
shghtly weaker

Operational performance

Americas

In the US, where 80% of our activity 1s 1n
the transpartation sectar, spending by the
federal and state departments of transport
1s crucial 1o our business So the long
delayed authorisation of the Transportation
Bill in July 2012 was an important turning
point While the btl's term 1s shorter than

Giving commuters 2%
more hours each week

Parsons Brinckerhoff 1s lead
designer on a long-awaited
project to enhance two road

tunnel routes under the Elizabeth

River between Pertsmouth
and Norfolk in Virginia, USA

Since the onginal tunnel was built

50 years ago the local population has
grown by 70% and traffic has risen
600% The US$21 billion project Is
upgrading the existing tunnels, adding
a further 1,400m two-lane tunnel and
extending the expressway links From
2017, it should save 20 minutes a day
for the average commuter by reducing
congestion and i 15 forecast to bring
regional economic benefits of
US$170-254 million per annum

www balfourbeatty com/
professionalsarvices

the customary six years, and the only
partally resolved fiscal ¢liff remains a
drag on decision maksng, we benefited
as some large projects moved forward

In October we won a design-build
contract to provide construction
engineering and inspection {CE&!)
services for the widening of the

I-4 interstate highway in Volusia County,
Florda Significantly, although the contract
was bid on a "best value procurement”
basis, we won the contract on the
strength of our qualifications

In November, as part of a design-build
joint venture, we were named as best
value bidder to undertake the upgrade and
replacement of river crossings in Dallas,
Texas This project, a collabaration
between Professional Services and US
construction, 1s detailed in the cross-
Group coliaboration section on page 31

We are currently bidding other US .
design-build transportation projects, with
both our US construction business and
third party construction cormpanies with
wham we have a good track record

Our three major ongoing projects - high-
speed rail in California, the Westside
Subway Extension in Los Angeles and

the Second Avenue Subway in New York -
are progressing well

In Canada we have been successful in
leveraging the platform provided by Halsall
to expand into transportation and power
markets In May the Regional Municipality
of Waterloo, Ontario appointed us as

30  Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

general engineering consultants on a
transit programme that will be one of the
largest public infrastructure projects ever
undertaken in the Waterloo region And
in June we won a contract to design the
replacement of the controls, drives and
overhead cables at the Burlington Canal
Lift Bndge, spanning the Burlington Canal
to connect Burlington and Hamilton on
Lake Ontario's western shore

We have taken several steps to ensure
growth in the attractive power sector

in the Americas As noted above, we
acquired Subsurface Group to expand our
activities In US energy storage services
Subsurface provides services in
underground injection, underground
storage, specialty wells, petroleum and
natural resources, and environmental
science Based in Houston, Texas with
offices in Baton Rouge, Louisiana and
South Bend, Indiana, 1ts 37-strong team
generated some US$50 million of revenue
In 2012

In 2012 we successfully completed
Marathon Petroleum Company's
Catlettsburg Cavern No 2 Designed and
constructed by Parsons Brinckerhoff to
store a million barrels of hquid butane, this
15 the first hard rock storage cavern built
in the US since 1984

In January 2013 our joint venture with
Kvaerner won an EPC contract to design
and build the Garnison Energy Center, a
309MW combined cycle gas-fired power
plant in Delaware




Europe, Middle East

and Northern Africa

The restructuring of our UK operation
has enabled us to be competitive in the
market, which has been evidenced in

a number of successful major bids
Encouragingly, In 2012 we saw net
increases in staff numbers across the
region of well over 200, and In the second
half of the year saw increases In the UK
as well as in the Middle East

in the year, we waon the preliminary design
of both railway systems packages for the
UK’s HS2 project and all three structures
engineering packages for Transport for
London {TfL} in the UK as well as the
programme management award for the
Odense Light Rail project in Denmark

In the highways sector, we secured

a number of Important wins in Wales

Our two major projects in Qatar = the
Qatar Rail Strategic Programme Manager
and the Project Management Consultant
for Local Roads & Drainage for Ashghal -
have developed considerably over the
year, with combined staff numbers now
exceeding 250 We are pursuing further
opportunities in Qatar

We have been active in Saudi Arabia for
many years, and our work on the Rabigh
Power Station continues to perform well

Asia, Austraha-Pacific

and Southern Africa

While Austraha’s public transportation
market has been flat, some interesting
trends are emerging in the procurement
of highways maintenance Recently we
formed a bid ¢consortium, in partnership
with Transfield Services, to target state
government outsourcing opporiunities
in highways maintenance on the east
coast of Australia A joint team from
Australia and the UK has ccllaborated
to transfer knowledge and best practice
developed in recent years in the UK to
Australian markets

Despite an overall slowdown in the mining
sector, our business grew In 2012, albeit
from a small base One example 5 our
established ¢redentials in the Hunter
Valley, New South Wales Following on
frormn our feasibiity work for the Cobbora
Coal Project, we have also been awarded
Phase 2 (EPCM early works programme)
and most recently Phase 3 {detalled
design, tender, evaluation and
recernmendation} which commenced in
January 2013 In Mozambigque's Zambez
River Basin, on the Estima Coal Project,
our engagement began at the pre-
feasibility phase, and moved through
feasibility, engineenng, design and further
study We are now owner’s engineer and
project manager for the project

Our Business | Operating Review | Professional Services

QOur bustness In power generation
continues to build momentum, based
on the international team established
for the EPC contract at Karratha in
Western Australia

We will be focusing the business on
mining, design-build and power projects
while we make adjustments to our
workforce both by gecgraphy and by
sector to retain a sustainable presence
In this attractive market

In South Africa, we received a further
vote of confidence as our engineering
and programime management contract
at Medup! Power Station was extended
by ancther two years

Cross-Group collaboration
Collaboration between Professional
Services and the other Group businesses
15 a powerful competitive differentiator for
Balfour Beatty Many of the Group's major
contract wins in 2012 were due at least in
part to its distinctive ability to combine
professional services capabilities with
other parts of 1ts business

For example, in January 2012 Denmark's
railway operator and developer,
Banedanmark, awarded us a £335 million
contract to transform much of the
country’s rail signalling system The
winning bid integrated our Rall businass's
expertise in signalling installation with
programme management services from
Parsons Brinckerhoff

In Novembaer, our construction business
was named best value bidder, In a
design-build joint venture with Fluor
Corporation, to upgrade and replace river
crossings in Dallas Parsons Brinckerhoff's
technical design and our US construction
business's experience in design-build
were Instrumental in winning this project,
worth arcund £500 milhcn

And towards the end of the year,
Professional Services and Support
Serwvices teams collaborated to win
two major contracts worth £1 1 billion
to upgrade the UK's gas distribution
netwaork for National Grid

Looking forward

We continue to direct our resources to
markets that align with the Group’s focus
sectors and geographic markets Indeed
In many cases, we create the access
routes to those markets through our local
presence, chent relationships or our
advantage from being at the very top

of the value chain

We expect favourable market
developments and new opportunities,
specifically in transportation in the US,
Canada and the Middle East, mining
i Australia and more generally in
power globally

£2bn

Contract wins involving other
Group businesses

Tmillion

Barrels of hquid butane that
can be stored in Catlettsburg
Cavern No 2

Developing Medupi
Power Station

Parsons Brinckerhoff 1s
providing engineering and
programme managerment
support to Eskom, South
Atfnica’s power utibty, for the
development of the Medup:
Power Station, a 4,800MW
power plant that will be one
of the largest in the world
when completed in 2015

www balfourbeatty com/
professionalservices
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Construction Services

In the face of difficult construction
markets, the restructuring of our UK
and US operations is increasing cost
efficiency, agility and collaboration
while positioning us to leverage our
capabilities more effectively into our
target market sectors.

What do we do?

Ciwvil and ground engineering
Rail engineering

Building

Refurbishment and fit-out

Mechanical and electrical services

What's happened?

Construction profit decline for the second year in a row
UK and US organrisations streamlined and restructured
Target run rate achieved for Phase 1 of cost efficiency programme

US bustness recogntsed as a national leader in sustainable construction,
with "green” sales of over US$2 billion as well as ranking #85 in Fortune
rnagazine’s “100 Best Companies to Work For” list

28 health and safety awards won in the UK business

Major wins for Hong Kong business, including biggest solo contract

What's next?

Focus on cost and sk management in difficult trading conditions in the UK

Grow in healthcare, mission critical and multi-family housing and expand water
expertise across our whole US footprint

Capitalise on the increasing number of design-build and PPP opportunities
in the US

Develop a vertically integrated rail capability in growth markets while realsing
value from our Mainland European rall businesses

Continue implementing Phase 2 of cost efficiency programme

32
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How are we performing?

Order book

-6%
2012 J £8 Obn
201 I £8 5bn
2010 J £9 2bn

Revenue including JVs and associates

-1%

2012 | £6,950m
2011 | £2.050m
2010 | £6,734m

Profit before non-underlying items

-28%

2012 £122m

2011 ] £169m
2010 ] £201m

Divisional KPI1

Secured orders and ABNC

as % of revenue

The secured order book and the awarded
but not contracted orders (ABNC) are
leading indicators of future revenue Goad
pipeline in the US and Hong Kong has
offset weaker orders in the UK in 2012

-3%

2012 | 174%
2011 ] 177%
2010 | 188%




Our strategy

The strength of our construction business
lies in our ability to integrate and manage
local supply chains to deliver projects

on budget and on time Historically, our
proposition to clients has been to deliver
speed, quality and low cost, today we are
differentiating ourselves on the basis of
innovation and leveraging capability across
the Group

QOur asset knowledge across the Group 1s
crucial In meeting the complex needs of
infrastructure customers We see this,
and our ability to deploy resources from
across the Group, as competitive
advantages that differentiate us from
our peers To this end, we have launched
Group wide Initiatives to aid collaboration
As well as colocating operations In the
same offices, we are equipping them
with the toals, processes and culture to
support knowledge sharing and put our
strongest collective offering together for
every project

As a fragmented industry, construction
has lagged behind other industries in
developing innovative technologies

We see tremendous opportunities to
differentiate ourselves as we innovate 10
reduce waste We believe it 1s possible
1o controf waste through technology,
processes and teaming Through
investment 1n technologies such as
Building Information Management (BIM)
and offsite fabnication, we aim to be at
the forefront of innovatton in our industry

In markets that are extremely competitive,
particularly in the UK, we are making
particular efforts to enhance marging
through cost efficiency programmes as
well as effective cost and nsk management

Our marketplace

UK

In 2012 the Government’s public
expenditure cuts and the financial
constraints generally in the UK economy
hit the construction sector hard As we
completed projects won as early as
2008, it became Increasingly difficult to
replenish the order book with equally large
projects Social infrastructure spending
on schools and hosprtals reduced
considerably, and while the commercial
property market fared reasonably well

in London, 1t flagged in the rest of the
country Some of the transportation
projects that had been ringfenced from
the cuts, notably Crossrail, were tendered
in smaller pieces — making them less
surtable for applying significant innovation
to reduce overall cost, but accessible to
more bidders

Spending on power generation plants had
been seen as one area of hkely growth,
there 1s a clear need for investment in
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the current inadequate infrastructure,

and funding looked more likely to be
forthcoming since it would come from

the requlated industry But Government
delays in clanfying key elements of energy
pelicy, such as carbon pricing and strike
prices, caused ublity companies to defer
investment decisions

Towards the end of the year market
conditions were further depressed by
the growing financial strains on the
supply chain and subcontractors,
reducing our abiity to negotiate terms
with thern that matched the terms our
clients were requiring

us

In the US, where more than 80% of
our business 15 In building construction,
activity levels were depressed from
historical highs but stable

In civil infrastructure, some projects have
rmoved to the tender stage following the
long awaited approval of the Transportation
Bl Whare these are procured on a

PPP or design-build basis, our ability to
combine our construction capability with
Parsons Brinckerhoff's design capability
gives us competitive advantage

As 2013 begins, we see oppartunities in
pockets of the US, such as the Northwest
and Houston, with private investment
returning to the market Market segments
with the greatest promise are offices,
healthcare, and mission criical We also
see significant opportunities In the water
sector and energy retrofits, upgrading
buildings to higher standards of

energy efficiency

Rail

Conditions in our traditional rail markets

in Europe have been challenging In ltaly
and Spain, activity levels have reached a
critically low level In Germany and the UK
Intense competition has dnven increasing
commaditisation However, we continue
to see attractive opportunities in the major
signaltling and electrification projects that
we deliver internationally

The US rall transit market continues to
trend towards design-buld procurement
for large, complex projects We are well
positionad to combine the Group's
services and serve as a one-stop partner
for clients seeking to design, build,
operate, maintain and finance projects

International

In Hong Kong, the market has been
buovyed by a strang programme of
government spending on both
transportation infrastructure and
public buildings

The Dubal market has stabilised,
and 1s now showing some signs of
improvement We glso see opportunities

As 2013 begins, we
see opportunities

in pockets of the

US, such as the
Northwest and
Houston, with private
investment returning
to the market.

Robert Van Cleave

Chief Executive Officer,
Construction Services US
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in the Middle East for our mechanical
and electrical services

Financial performance

The construction order book finished the
year at £8 0 bilhon, down 6% from a year
ago The rost significant decrease was

in the US, down 17% from the end of
2011 However, the awarded but not
contracted position has improved, keeping
the overall pipeline broadly stable US
revenue was down by 1% on a like-for-like
basis and up by 8% including the
contnbution from acquisitions

In the UK the order book was up 1%,
however, we have seen a significant shift
In the year frorm major works to smaller
contracts, with the order book for the
regional bulding and civil business up
15% since the end of 2011 while the order
book for major construction work declined
by 24% UK revenue was down by 6%

In the year, with most of the dechne
occurring in the second half Based on
thts order boaok profile, we expect stable
revenue in the US and a revenue decline
of ¢ 20% in the UK1n 2013 In the rest

of the world, Hong Kong has good
prospects, while the Mainland European
rail business will be adversely impacted
by our impending divestments

So good, they made
it an exhibit

For its US$95 million new
bullding, the Perot Museum

of Nature and Science In

Dallas wanted a shining
example of modern technology
with environmentally
sustainable features

It should “inspire minds through nature
and science” and help revitalise the
city's downtown economy Award-
winning architect Thom Mayne's
design certainly met the brtef — and
in announcing Balfour Beatty as the
chosen construction contractor, the
museum’s CEO declared herself
"extremely excited to work with an
internationally renowned firm with
a stelfar reputation” Did we meet
expectations? Well, the museum
now proudly displays an exhibit
entitled “Building the building”

www balfourbeatty com/
professionalservices

Construction Services saw the
anticipated reduction in profitability with
underlying operating profit at £122 million
{2011 £169 rmillion) There was a drop In
prefits in US construction as a result of
more competitive pricing 1n the market

In the UK, whilst we benefited from
successfully completing some long term
projects, we saw overall profits reduce
This was largely a consequence of lower
margins in the regional businesses as a
result of tghtening markets and was
exacerbated by delivery margins being
tmpacted by nsing subcontractor defaults
In the year, the profitability of our Mainland
European rall business weakened due to
a low level of activity as well as one-off
Issues We continue to believe that 2013
will be a difficult year for Construction
Services notwithstanding the benefits

of the cost reductions we are achieving

QOperational performance

UK

Our UK construction business 1s very
diverse, serving multiple sectors and
undertaking both regional and major
naticnal projects In 2012, we streamlined
and restructured the UK operations to one
business with three business streams

to better integrate our service offerng

to chents These streams will share
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centratised support funcitons The new
model, operational from January 2013,
consists of streams for

* NMajor infrastructure focused on
complex projects In key market sectors
such as energy and transportation

Regional civit engineering and building
working through partnerships and
frameworks to provide our strategic
customers with locally delivered,
flexible and fully integrated civils

and buillding services

* Regional mechanical and electrical
covering all sectors

The new organisation 1s more agile,
fosters collaboration within the
construction business as well as with
other divisions, and will ensure that we
emerge from the current downturn in

UK construction as a more operationally
efficient business Ezch stream is also
organised to align with the Group's key
market sectors, to aid global coordination
with other geographies

We made a good start to 2012 by winning
construction contracts in the commercial
sector worth £100 million On two of
these schemes, a high percentage of

the bulding services engineering will




be delivered using BIM and offsite
prefabrication to reduce waste and
increase efficiencies

Despite the investment delays in the
power sector, we won several significant
projects In September, we were
selected as one of two companies on

a £288 million framework for construction,
infrastructure and maintenance projects
across all 10 sites operated by Magnox for
the Nuclear Decommissioning Authonty
This work will complement a broad
portfolio of multidisciplined activities,
mcluding the execution of major projects,
that we are already undertaking at
licensed nuclear sites

QOur Investments division has reached
financial close on the Essex Waste
Partnership’s residual waste treatment
and the Gloucestershire energy-from-
waste concesstons We are the
construction partner on both projects

In a transportation market where large
projects were scarce, we wera awarded
a long term contract, potentially worth
over £125 million, to manage and matntain
major trunk roads in the southwest of
Scotland In January 2013 we were

also awarded a £321 milhon design and
construction contract to upgrade sections
of the M25 London orbital motorway for
the Highways Agency Working as part
of the Connect Plus design, build, finance
and operate contract which 1s responsible
for the M25 and strategic artenal routes,
our construchion jeint venture with
Skanska will construct the infrastructure
for Managed Motorways

In addition to these encouraging
business wins, our UK construction
business was also recognised for its
perfermance on a number of fronts

Our collaborative working practices

won certification to the new standard for
Collaborative Business Relationships from
the British Standard Institute, BS11000,
which acknowledges the importance of
collaboration in enhancing sustainable
relationships, company competitiveness
and performance

Over the year we also received 28 awards
recognising our commitment to health
and safety from the Royal Society for the
Prevention of Accidents And we were
once again named Britain's Most Admired
Company in the Heavy Construction
Sector by Management Today

us

For our US construction business, 2012
was a year of significant successes if not
a year of rmajor project wins Three of our
projects in California received industry
racognition from the Western Pacific
Region of the Design-Build Institute of
America {(DBIA-WPR) and the Southern
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California Chapter of the Construction
Management Association of America
The J Paul Leonard and Sutro Library at
San Francisca State University won the
DBIA-WPR's Project of the Year Award,
and the Wounded Warnor Headguarters
and Hope and Care Center at Manne
Corps Base Camp Pendleton was
selected for a Ment Award These awards
recognise teamwork, innovation and
problem salving in design-build delivery

In 2009 we implemented an aggressive
sustainability strategy highlighting the
economic, social, and environmental
benefits of going green As a result,

we were ranked last year as one of the
top five green contractors in the US with
more than US$2 billion in revenue from
sustainable construction projects in 2011
~ almost double the total we reported in
2010 This growth has raised Balfour
Beatty six places to No 4 on Engineenng
News-Record's 2012 Top 100 Green
Contractors hist

In September 2012, we took the next step
in the evolution of our US construction
operations by mowving to a unified
operating model that allows us to better
compete In, and lead, a changing industry
The business was streamlined from five
to three regions West, East, and Central
Also as part of this structural realignment,
we formed a national capability centre to
harness expertise, garner best practices
in the field, and deploy that knowledge
across the national business In key areas
such as research and development,
innovation, energy, sustainability,
technology, public private partnership
(PPP} and federal procurement

As the US military's Base Reahgnment
and Closure Commission programme
comes to a close, our US PPP business
has signed a US$362 millron deal to
design, build and renovate 3,268 military
homes at four bases in California,
Wyoming, Montana and Missour for the
US Arr Force The construction business
will undertake the new build elements
of the project

Since we acquired Fru-Con Construction
in 2011 to leverage our local civil
infrastructure capabilities into the water
market, we have won approximately
US$300 muilton in new works directly
related to our growth strategy These
include treatment plant projects in
Baltimore, Maryland and Galveston,
Texas We plan to expand our successful
wast coast and east coast water and
wastewater business Into areas of the
country where high population growth

1$ Increasing water demand We recently
won another project The Michelson
Wastewater Treatment Plant 1s a
US$166 5 million project in jont venture

Our UK construction
business is very
diverse, serving
multiple sectors and
undertaking both
regional and major
national projects.

In 2012, to better
integrate our service
offering to clients,
we streamlined

and restructured it
into one business
with three business
streams.

Mike Peasland

Chief Executive Officer,
Construction Services UK
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Britains Most Admired
Company in the Heavy
Construction Sector

No.4

Engineenng News-Record's
2012 Top 100 Green
Contractors list in the US
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The Rail business has
had a mixed year. Its
financial performance
was constrained by
operational issues

on a small number of
projects in Mainland
Europe, combined
with low activity
levels in Italy and
Spain. But these
factors were offset by
considerable success
in major international
projects.

John Moore
Chief Executive Officer, Rail

with J R Filanc Construction Co,and 1s
significant in that it represents our official
entry into the Southern California water
and wastewater market

In November we were named as best
value bidder, in a design-build joint venture
with Fluor, for the Dallas Horseshoe
project 10 upgrade and replace nver
crossings n Dallas, Texas The Texas
Department of Transportation’s (TxDOT)
estimate for the design, construction,
utiities and right of way for the project

15 US$798 million The project involves
upgrading and replacing the 1-30 and 1-35E
bridges and bullding additional lanes as
well as the previously designed Margaret
McDermott bridges TxDOT opted for
design-build delivery to shorten the
construction schedule and lower the
overall cost Parsens Brinckerhoff's
technical design and our US construction
experience In design-build were cructal

to winning the contract

International

Our joint venture {JV) Gammon
Construction continued to grow Its
business in Hong Kong and the wider
region A string of significant contract
awards provided convincing evidence
of the growth potential in this market,
and we broadened our business mix
1o embrace a greater number of
infrastructure projects In line with
the Group's key markets strategy

In March 2012, Gammon was awarded a
HK$6 2 billion (£507 million) development
contract at Hong Kong International
Airport — the biggest solo contract it

has ever won

In June Gammon also won the contract
to build an extension to one of thewaorld'’s
greenest science parks ~ a project that
will target the Leadership in Energy

and Environmental Design {LEED)
Platinum standard

In December Gammaon won a contract to
work on a major section of the new Shatin
to Central Link rail project in joint venture
with Kaden Construction This was a
testament to the strength of its relationship
with Hong Kong mass transit operator
MTR, for whom 1t has delivered numerous
large projects

In Dubar our JV delwered the Dubal Mall
metro link ahead of schedule The
business also won a significant contract
to Install the electrical, ventilation, air
conditioning, plumbing and fire protecticn
systems in the new airport concourse
facility that will also mclude new arcraft
stands and passenger boarding founges

In Indonesia, our JV successfully delivered
an office bullding, World Trade Center 11,
for Jakarta Land
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Through our joint venture with Tata
Projects we are currently looking for
opportunities in rail infrastructure and
power transmission in India

Rail

The Rail business has had a mixed year
Its financial perfarmance was constrained
by operational 1ssues on a small number
of projects in Mainland Europe, combined
with low activity levels in Italy and Spain

The operational and strategic review of
our Mainland European rall business,
which we started in the fourth quarter,
has concluded that maintaining a rail
presence In Mainland Europe 1s not
consistent with our strategy which calls
for building a strong local presence i
our geographies in 2 number of market
sectors In Mainland Europe, we
essentially operate only in rall Therefore,
we will be divesting all of our Mainland
European rail businesses through a
process that ensures that the businesses
and their customers continue to receive
full support This decision has resulted

in a goodwill write down amounting

to £95 milhon As a first step in the
divestment process, we have sold the
Spanish business to Its management
post year end

But these factors were offset by
considerable success in major international
projects where we have a strong specialist
position that we can combine with our
Professional Services division’s design
capability to differentiate our offering

A good example 15 the signalling

contract we won In joint venture with
Thales covering west Denmark Qur role
in the contract integrates signalling
Installation with programme management
services from Parsons Brinckerhoff

In the US we made significant progress
with the design, procurement and utiity
relocations on the Eagle P3 commuter rall
project in Denver Civil work 1s ongoing
throughout the project and systems work
1s ramping up Our performance to date
has led to an extension of our Involvement
in the project Through the end of 2012
our Jjoint venture has reached 30%
completion and received US$233 million
in executed change orders, with a
four-month extension agreed due to
added scope on the East Corndor

Looking forward

Owver the medium term, our construction
businesses are positioned In ther
respective markets as market leaders with
local presence and a good track record

of defivery As the current restructuring
and cost efficiency intiatives are
implemented, the businesses will become
ever more agile, closer to the client and
competitive In the marketplace




Our Business | Operating Review | Support Services

Support Services

We grew our services business

across significant areas of activity

as the trend for outsourcing gained
further momentum in central and local
government, regulated utilities and
other commercial enterprises.

What do we do?

s Upgrade and maintain water, gas and electnicity networks

s Total faciities management, business services outsourcing and energy services
= Highways network management, operation and maintenance

+ Rail renewals

What's happened?
= Continued growth, particularty in the power and bullding segments

* \Won new gas distribution contracts worth £1 1 bilhon in the UK and started
waork on first gas contract 1n Ireland

* Further increase in share of UK highways maintenance market
« Major wins for local authority unit
* Facilities management unit appointed to run services and facilities
for the future Queen Elizabeth Olympie Park tin East London
What's next?
« Continue to benefit from outsourcing actwity by central and local government
¢ Sesk further opportunities for growth in power transmission internationally

* Manage margin pressure in the division in the face of expected contraction
in rail renewal activity

How are we performing?

Order book

+12%

2012 J £57bn

2011 |£51bn

2010 l £4 5bn

Revenue ncluding JVs and associates

+3%

2012 | £1.633m
2011 | £1.684m
2010 | £1,443m

Profit before non-underlying items

-22%

2012 | £s2m
2011 | £67m
2010 ] £62m

Divisional KPI

Customer retention’

Retained customer revenue 15 a key
measure for Support Services, as it
shows how well we have leveraged our
existing customer relattonships We have
malntained a retention rate above 100%
in 2012, albert lower than that in 2011

-4%

2012 | 103 8%
2011 ] 108 2%
2010 | a5 2%

1 Defined as the revenus from existing customers
ratained fram one year to the next Based on

www balfourbeatty com/suppartservices

Batfous Beatty WerkPlace Utlity Solutions and
Living Places revenua
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27%

Qur market share of
maintenance work with the
UK Highways Agency

£1.1bn

Value of gas distribution
contracts won In the year

Green route for green energy

E ON's £736 million Humber
Gateway offshore wind farm
In the north of England will
generate enough green energy
for up to 170,000 homes

We are ensuring that the link to those
homes 1s itself ecofriendly We have a
£12 million contract to design and install
twin 132kV land cable circuits on a
30km route across environmentally
sensitive terrain from the shore to an
inland substation As well as responding
to local community concerns, we are
planning and tming our work to take
care of greater crested newt ponds,
badger setts, nesting birds, marsh
harrier nesting sites, Little Tern breeding
colonies, otter runs, water voles and
grass snakes

www balfourbeatty com/
supportservices

Our strategy

Support Services 15 differentiated by its
expertise In the maintenance, renewal
and operation of hard assets andits focus
on the transportation {(highways and rail),
utilities {power, gas and water) and to

a lesser extent, building sectors

AS a services integrator, we bring together
a diverse set of capabilities to meet

client needs Integrating our teams with
suppliers and clients 1s an everyday part of
the business — and a skill we also employ
to draw capabilities from other parts of
the Group Our increasing alignment

with the Group's target market sectors

15 crucial, and benefits both Support
Services and the Group

Most of our business comes from the
public and regulated sectors in the UK
Pressure on spending In these areas is
driving innovation and creating new
opportunities with central and local
government, and other public entities
As a full service provider we aim to
benefit from the continuing trend
towards integrated contracts

Qur strategy 1s to move progressively
from contracting relationships based on 2
project or input specification to delivening
transformational cutputs for our clents
We intend to capture value by acting as
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an integrator, bringing together service
components to delrver the outcomes that
our customers require

Our clients trust us to deal directly with
their end users and stakeholders The
quality and responsiveness of these client
relationships underpins our organic growth
by enabling us to extend the length and
breadth of successful contracts

Our marketplace

The services market continues to grow
with the trend towards cutsourcing in
the regulated utihities sector, government
and local authorities, and also as

private entities look to outsource ther
facilities management

The trend for local authorities to outsource
their services through larger, more
complex integrated contracts, often over
longer terms, continued In 2012 Asa
strongly differentiated full service provider
with a wide range of capabilities, we have
been able to benefit despite intensifying
competition as an increasing number of
supphers are attracted into the market

A similar pattern 1s evident In outsourced
facilities management {FM) While the
reduction in discretionary spend since the
2008 financial crisis has made this market
extremely competitive at the single




service end, there 1s significant potential
for profitable work in the bundled FM and
total FM segments that we target We
have grown in these segments as we
have progressively proven the value of
our asset knowledge across the lifecycle
of our chents’ assets

Internationally, there I1s significant
mvestment In electricity networks virtually
everywhere to support a shift towards
renewable generation and to meet nsing
energy demand from consumers and the
resources sector This applies particularly
In emerging and resource driven markets,
where robust energy networks are seen
as a cornerstaone of economic growth in
which energy intensive resource mining

1s often a key factor |n some of these
markets, such as India, private mvestment
15 being sought to fund the expansion of
the electricity network

We have power transmission contracts
in the US, Australia, New Zealand, Hong
Kong and Indonesia, where we operate
domestic businesses in joint ventures
We are now seeking further opportunities
in these and other international markets
such as Canada where we have past
experience In all of these markets there
1s a demand for our skilled resources,
technical expertise and capabilities in
managing supply chan relationships

In the UK, the power transmission market
is entering a new eight-year investment
penod Grven our extensive capabilities
and experience In this terntory, we are
confident of securing new work

The UK water market 15 about to bagin
reviewing contract renewals for the AMPG
investment period We have several
current contracts with options to extend
into this penod, and we will also be
seeking to expand our operations with
both existing and new clients

Most of our transportation wark 1s 1n road
maintenance and rail renawals The UK
Government’s plannad £2 3 billion
Invastment in major road iImprovements to
the end of 2014-2015 includes £1 4 bilhon
1o start 14 new schemes in the four years
10 2014-2015 We expect these schemes
to create work In addition ta the current
contracts under which we maintain three
of the 14 existing Highways Agency areas,
reprasenting a 27% market share — an
increase on our 23% share 1n 2011

Growth in the rail renewals market I1s
driven by broader central government
strategies to maintain and improve service
levels on the rail network While Network
Rail and London Underground have been
Increasing competitive pressure In the
routine renewals market, potentaal
Investment in high speed rail links
betweaen major cities and the iendency
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for greater procurement of
multidisciplinary contracts should favour 79
integrated players such as Balfour Beatty

Financial performance

Support Services order book improved

by 12% from last year end to £5 7 billion
(2011 £51 bilhon} Qrder intake was
particularly strong in power, which ended
the year with its order book up 65% from
the start of the year Revenue was up 3%
at £1,633 mullion with a particularly strong
performance in the power secitor — up
24% Excluding acquisitions, revenue
was up 2%

Profitability, however, was lower at £52 us to deal d're‘:tly

million {2011 £67 million), due to start-up
costs on new contracts and some £10m
of one-off cost increases on a small

and stakeholders

number of power sector contracts in The qua!'ty and

Australia and New Zealand in the first responsiveness

half of the year Second half profitabifity of our customer
was tn line with that in the same period relationships

in 2011

For 2013, we expect to see continued
growth In the power and bulldings
segments, a reasonably stable water
business, but with increasing velume
and margin pressure (n rail renewals

growth by enabling
us to extend the

Operational performance

2012 was a year of further revenue
growth for the division, particularly in
the power and bulldings segments

Kevin Craven
Chief Executive Officer,
Support Services

In the power sector, a key focus market
for the Group, we are continuing 1o help
deliver magor infrastructure projects for
National Gnd and Scottish and Southern
Energy in the UK, drawing on our
engineering and asset expertise and
global resources This has included
securing a five-year framework agreement
with National Grid and delivering
additicnal volumes of work above orig:nal
agreements as part of therr investment
programme Wa were also awarded

two new contracts with Scottish Power
Energy Netwaorks, together worth almost
£40 million, for electricity transmission
work In Scotland

In Aprl, E ON appainted us to install the
cable for its Humber Gateway offshore
wind farm The contract, worth some
£19 million, involves the design and
instalfation of a 30km section of
underground 132kV cable to connect

the Humber Gateway offshore wind farm
to a new onshore substation at Hedon

In East Yorkshire Our close collaboration
with the chent to understand the project's
environmental and ecological impact was
a key factor in secuning this contract ~
see case study on page 38

We incurred one-off cost Increases in
some overseas utiities contracts in the
first half of the year These were not
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Our customers trust

with their end users

underpins our organic

length and breadth of
successful contracts.
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Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park

In the first quarier of 2012
we won a 10-year deal to run
services and facilities for the
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
in East London \With over
200 new |ob opportunities
created through the deal and
most of these filled by people
from the local community,
Balfour Beatty's training

and support schemes will
secure new long term career
opportunities n East London

www balfourbeatty com/
supportservices

repeated n the second half, and the
projects have now been completed

Embracing lean approaches to mest ¢client
efficiency challenges has helped us to
secure work in the gas sector, and leaves
us uniguely positioned to help clients

in future In December we won two
elght-year contracts with National Gnd

to upgrade the UK’s gas distribution
network The contracts, valued at

£1 1 bllion, are for design and installation
of modern polyethylene gas distrbution
marms to replace ageing metal pipes The
new Gas Distribution Strategic Partnership
contracts cover the Northwest and

West Midlands and replace our current
Northwest gas contract, almost doubling
our gas work for National Gnd

We also began our first gas contract in the
Republic of Ireland Operating as BBCLG
In joint venture with local operator CLG,
we have an eight-year contract toreplace
and extend the gas network on behalf of
state operator Bord Géis

[n the water market, we have continued
to perform well on ocur AMPS water
contracts with network operators such
as United Utilities and South West Water
We are delivering our first projects in

the non-infrastructure market for United
Utilmies, having established a specialist
team durning 2012 to focus on
opportunities in this sector

In transportation, we were awarded a
£300 million contract to operate, maintain
and improve part of the Highways
Agency's strategic route networkin the
Northwest Through a joint venture, we
will maintam and improve over 500km of
motorway and trunk roads in Manchester,
Cheshire, Merseyside and parts of
Lancashire The Area 10 Asset Support
Contract runs over the next five years,
augmenting a portfolio that already
includes the Area 4 contract in the
Southeast and the M25 design, finance,
huiid and operate contract, the largest

of its kind In the UK

In faciities management, WorkPlace won
severa) contracts that will ensure revenue
growth for this unit in the coming years
At the start of 2012, we won a 10-year
contract to run services and faciities for
the future Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
in East London We will have overall
responsibility for a range of services
Including estates and FM as well as
operating the Arceloriittal Orbit, the
stunning new visitor attraction forming

a centrepiece of what will be a great

new park far London
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In two separate centracts in March 2012,
we were appointed to provide Fiv
services for a range of EDF Energy's
sites in the UK and to deliver total FM
services across UK Power Networks'
property portfolio

We were selected in August as North
Tyneside Council's preferred partner to
provide business services The contract
15 expeacted to be worth £200 million
over 15 years

Living Places also won street hghting
contracts from Leicester City Council,
Peterborough Council and Wokingham
Borough Counci, amongst others A key
companent of all these contracts will be
to convert the existing Installations o
lower energy LED lights

Looking forward

The growth in our order book In the

year 15 testarment to the strength of our
oftering and an indication of the division’s
excellent prospects

The trend to outsource by central and local
government, and commercial enterprises
1s an enduring one QOur expertise and
track record in highways and buildings
puts us In an advantageous position to
develop our invalvement both in local
authanty work and in the facilities
rmanagement of complex privately

owned assets

Power transmission and distribution

1S a growth area both in the UK and

in international markets Our strength In
this area 1s evidenced by the exceptional
growth in order book and revenue In

the year We continue to seek further
opportunities in the power markets

In contrast, rail renewal activity Is expected
to be under pressure as the market
becomes increasingly commoditised
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Infrastructure Investments

Having created significant value through
financing and developing greenfield
infrastructure assets, we have also been
successful in managing our portfolio
more actively — generating additional
cash from disposals and reinvesting in
areas that align with the Group’s target
geographies and market sectors.

What do we do?

¢ Operate a UK portfolio of PPP concessions, mainly in education, health,
roads/street ighting, renewables and student accommodation

¢ Operate a US portfolio of military housing and student accommodation
PPP concessions
What's happened?

+ Leveraged US military housing expernence to establish a student
accommodation portfolio in US and UK

¢ Made significant progress in UK waste and energy projects

¢ Successfully disposed of two assets, achieving £84 million of proceeds
and gains of £52 million

s Completed first round of fundraising for managed investment fund

What's next?

* Continue to make progress in new geographies such as Canada,
India and Australia

* Deliver sustainable returns on our investments through the continuation
of our disposal programme

¢ Achieve financial close on the six projects where we are currently
preferred bidder

How are we performing?

Revenue including JVs and associates'

-16%

2012 | £636m
2011 | £756m
2010 | £682m

www balfourbeatty com/investments

Pre-tax result before
non-underlying items'?

+37%

2012 l £97m

201 | £71m

2010 £30m

Divisional KPI

Directors’ valuation

While there are numerous factors that
contribute to the movement in the year,
Directors’ valuatton of our investments

13 a good indicator of the value we create
in our portfollo The Directors” valuation
was £734 million at year end despite the
disposal of two assets in 2012

-1%

2012 ] £734m
2011 | £743m
2010 | £671m

1 Inctuding subordinated debt interest income
and nat interest iIncome from PPP subsidiaries
isee Notes 6 and 7)

2 Re-presented to rafiect the classification of
Barking Power Ltd as 2 discontinued operation
from 2 March 2011
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We made significant
progress in the year
towards diversifying
our activities into
new sectors and
new geographies,
reducing the
business’s reliance
on PFl in the UK and
military housing in
the US.

lan Rylatt

Chief Executive Officer,
Infrastructure Investments

25,000

Number of homes that the
Gloucestershire residual waste
project 1s expected to power

£55m

Investments made in 2012

Our strategy

Qur strategy I1s to earn fees and returns
by financing and developing greenhield
assets In line with the Group's focus, we
invest principally in infrastructure assets,
and in geographies where the Group has
a presence We Integrate capabilities from
across the Group and with the knowledge
and skills available to us, we believe we
can make investments that defiver
superior returns

We are diversifying our investment
activity to align with the Group's target
market sectors and broaden into regions
outside the UK and US We see potential
in transportation, social infrastructure and
renewables such as offshore transmission
and energy-from-waste, and we also want
to develop the business in the Group's
target gecgraphies such as Canada,

India and Australia

Tweo years ago we announced our
intention to recycle our portfolio actively
and reinvest the capital In new projects
These more regular asset disposals
release some of the accumulated value
in our portfolio, generating additionat
income and cash for the Group In 2012
we decided 10 accelerate the disposal
programme for the 2013-2015 penod
to benefit from favourable conditions,
namely the portfolto’s good growth
trajectory, an active secondary market
and considerable opportunity to make
further greenfield investments

Our marketplace

UK

Following a UK Government review begun
in 2010, the PFl model was relaunched as
PF2 in December 2012 The new model
tackles the 1ssues of Iifecycle costs and
transparency with modest but effective
modifications We are now awaiting new
investment opportunities coming to
market under the new mode!

Regardless of the development of this
model, there are numerous opportunities
for investment in a range of economic and
soclal Infrastructure projects including
waste, student accommaodation and
offshore transmission assets In Scotland,
our focus 1s mamly on roads and
healthcare through the Non-Profit
Distribution (NPD) programme

There 15 also an active secondary market
to accommodate our disposal strategy,
focused on our mature UK PF| assets We
had considerable success in the disposal
of two assets in 2012 and expect the
market to rematn conducive to further
disposals in the near future

North America

In the US we are the fargest and most
successful provider of housing to US
military personnel and their families
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Although the family housing programme
1S 1N 1ts final stages, we anticipate new
opportunities 1n single soldier housing
over the next few years Meanwhile, the
skills we have accumulated are bearning
fruit in the wider PPP market — for
instance, our student accommaodation
business 1s confident of growth across
the US

PPP 1s beginning to be used more widely
as a procurement model for US econormuc
infrastructure projects, and our investment
team has been collabarating with our

US construction business to identify
attractive projects

In Canada, where there 15 an estabhshed
PPP market along similar lines to the UK's,
we have established offices in Toronto
and Vancouver to address the growing
opportunities in social and economic
infrastructure projects

Rest of the world

in addition to Canada, we see Australa,
Indra and potentially Brazil, as exciting
markets where investment activity can
support the Group's growth strategy

Investment management business
In November 2010 we announced plans
1o set up an INvestment management
business Qur objective was 1o leverage
our capabilittes into greater pools of
capital, earning both a return on our
capital and advisory fees

We launched this business, Balfour Beatty
Infrastructure Partners (BBIP), in 2011
with the appointment of four fund
management experts Since then they
have worked on obtaining the relevant
registrations, establishing a presence

in London and New York, identifying
ivestors and pursuing the initial assets
for the fund to invest in

In January 2013 the BBIP fund reached
first close with US$317 million of
commitments, of which Balfour Beatty
has committed US$110 million In
February 2013, the commitments
mncreased to US$420 milhon and
subsequent levels of close are expected
during 2013, ultimately reducing the
Group’s share in the fund to around 10%
Drawdowns will depend on the timing of
investments by the fund, but we expect
our commitment to be invested over the
next three to four years

The BBIP fund will make investments in
predominantly brownfield operational
assets in its key targset sectors of
transport, energy and utilities across
the UK, Europe and North America

Financial performance

Infrastructure Investments showed

a significant increase in profit with
underlying pre-tax profit up to £97 million




{2011 £71 milion) This increase was
driven by disposal gains increasing from
£20 mithon in 2011 to £562 mullion In 2012,
with the profits on the targeted disposals
not only significantly ahead of therr value
in the Directors’ valuation, but also ahead
of our expectations UK PPP profits were
down £1 million, principally because of the
profits foregone from disposed assets
Bidding costs and overheads increased
to £34 million {2011 £30 mulhon)

Operational performance

The Investments division has had another
excellent year operationally We made
investments totalling £5% million into our
projects while laying the groundwork to
expand the business into new sectors
and geographtes

Sustainability remained an integral part
of our business in 2012 Following the
anncuncement that we were chosen

to build the largest solar powered
community In the US at Fort Bliss military
base, our US military housing division
showcased a sustainability inibative,
‘Switch4Good’, at the prestigious White
House-sponsored "Energy Datapalooza”
which I1s designed to reduce community
energy consumption — see case

study below

UK

Energy-from-waste and waste treatment
are growth segments we have been
targeting in the last two years in 2012
we won the Essex Waste Partnership's
residual waste treatment contractin Joint
venture with Urbaser Once operational,
the facility will treat up to 417,000 tonnes
of municipal waste a year [t will
incorporate a visitor and education centre
for the benefit of the lacal community

Gloucestershire residual waste project,
our second joint venture with Urbaser,
reached financial close in February 2013
This 28-year PPP project involves the
design, build and operation of an energy-
from-waste facility for Gloucestershire
County Councit This wili divert aver 91%
of Gloucestershire's residual municipal
waste from landfill and generate an
estimated 116,000MW hours of electncity
annually ~ enough to power more than
25,000 homes

In the offshore wind development market,
where Transitional Round 1 of built farms
has been completed, we are preferred
bidder for two of the largest Offshore
Transrmisston Owner (OFTO) projects,
Thanet and Greater Gabbard We are
currently bidding for Gwynt y Mer OFTO
in Transitional Round 2

We have established our position in the
student accommodation market over the
past 12 months having been successful
on two projects In August 2012 we
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were appointed preferred brdder for

the University of Edinburgh’s Holyrood
postgraduaie student accommodation
and outreach centre project This was
followed by another success in February
2013, when we announced our preferred
bidder appointment for the Aberystwyth
University student accommodation
project We are also making significant
progress in this market in the US, giving
us an opportunity to share learning and
best practice across geographies for the
benefit of our clients

North America

In military housing, we achieved financial
close on the US$362m Western Group
and continue to make progress with our
preferred bidder positions on Northern
Group and ACC Group Il Over the past
12 months we have bullt over 650 new
homes and renovated 960 homes on

20 military bases across the US

We remain committed to developing and
managing residential communities that
maxtmise value for both our partners and
restdents and increasingly that value 15
focused on sustainability

In 2012, 1n the student accommodation
market, we signed a development

agreement with Lake Forest College for
a new 233-bed student housing facility

Switching Fort Bliss on to solar

We are preferred bidder for three other
US student accommodation projects on
a non-PPP basis, and in contention for
a PPP detention centre project

Putting our developer skills together with
the Group’s rail and professional services
expertise, we strengthened our bidding
resources In Canada to address the
growth 1n the transpartation sector which
15 anticipated 1n a number of provinces

Rest of the world

QOver the past few years we have been
developing our capability In the waste
sector inthe UK which wae are applying

to new cpportunities In Australia We are
now actively developing a biomass power
project there which 1s the first in a pipeline
of similar opportunities which we are
exploring

In India we continue to bid on a number
of power transmission projects working
In partnership with Tata Projects

Looking forward

We made significant progress in the year
towards diversifying our activities into
new sectors and new geographies,
reducing our reliance on PFl in the UK
and rmiltary housing in the US We see
significant opportunity to develop the
maodel further

The largest single energy consumer in the US 1s the Defense
Department And with our help it ams to meet 25% of 1ts energy

needs renewably by 2025

At Fort Bliss in Texas we are creating the world's largest solar powered community
by placing 13 2MW of solar power across 4,700 rooftops When we have finished,
sunshine will produce up to 26% of the community's electricity needs The US Army
amms to make Fort Bhiss a “net zere” installation, producing as much energy as it
uses, and we are its sole net zero partner for military housing

www balfourbeatty com/finvestments
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Directors’ Valuation
of PPP Concessions

63

Projects in our PPP portfolio
at the end of 2012

£734m

Directors’ valuation of our PPP
portfolio at the end of 2012

In the UK we have built a leading
posrtion In the Private Finance
Intiative (PFI) and public pnvate
partnerships (PPPs) In 2008 we
acquired a US business giving us
a strong position in privatised
military housing, Amernca's most
developed PPP market Bulding
on this platform more recently, we
have also invested in renewables,
waste and student housing

The Directors’ valuation s intended to
provide an indicator of the value mtrinsic in
our PPP investment portfolio and lllustrate
movements in underlying values hetween
perods, highlighting the impact of
intervening transactions, through the
application of a consistent methodology

it does not set out to estimate the market
value of the investments in the porifolio

The valuation i1s based on the forecast
investments and returns of the projects
based on current projections, and may
differ significantly from the book value of
the investments shown in the accounts

The values are calculated on a discounted
cash flow basis, discounting all future
cash flows to Balfour Beatty at a fixed
rate This rate 1s 9 5% before shareholder

PPP portfolio valuation, 31 December 2012

Value by sector

@

Value by phase

tax for the UK portfoho and 12% before
shareholder tax for the US portfolio

As the chart below left shows, we
promote, develop and invest in assets
in three main sectors We design and
build new roads, upgrade and maintamn
existing roads and replace and maintamn
street ighttng We design and build
hospitals and provide them with
non-medical facilities management
services And we design and build or
refurbish schools, and provide them
with non-educational services

Increasingly we have been transferring our
experience from these more traditional
PPP sectors into other sectors such as
power, waste treatment, energy-from-
waste and student accommaodation As a
result, we now have seven projects in the
UK and one project in the US outside our
traditional sectors of roads, hospitals,
schools and military housing

As part of our asset disposal programme,
we sold the Group's stakes in two
projects a 33 3% Interest in Health
Management {University College London
Hospital) and a 50% nterest in North
Lanarkshire schools

London Underground has exercised its
right io terminate the power services
contract for our Powerlink project in
August 2013

>

No of 2012 2011 No of 2012 201

projects £m £m projects £m £m

1 Roads 12 260 239 1 3+ years post construction 13 150 226
2 Hospitals 7 156 202 2 0-3years post construction 18 355 167
3 Schools 13 L] | 86 3 Construction 6 26 166
4  Other 9 44 42 4 Preferred bidder 4 20 20
UK portfolio 41 551 569 UK portfolio 41 551 569

5 US portfolio 22 183 174 & US portfolio 22 183 174
Total 63 734 743 Total 63 734 743
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Movement in value {Em)
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Cperational
Distn- Unwand Naw perfor-
Equity butions Dhsposal of project Ganon mance FX
2011 invested received  proceeds discount Rebased wins  disposals gains __ translation 2012
UK portfolio 569 42 {60) {84) 55 522 4 17 8 - 551
US portfolio 174 13 {25) - 20 182 - - 9 (8 183
Total 743 55 (85) {84) 75 704 4 17 17 (8) 734

During the year we were chosen as
preferred bidder on the Edinburgh
University student accommodation
project However, we withdrew
from a preferred bidder position

on a roads project in lreland due

to unfavourable conditions

The table above shows the changes
in the value of our portfolio over the past
year, based on

* the 2011 valuation
¢ PLUS equity invested during the year

¢ LESS distributions received during
the year

* LESS the sale value of disposals during
the year During the year we sold our
stakes in two projects a 50% interest
in North Lanarkshire schools and a
33 3% interest in Health Management
{University College London Hospital)

PPP concessions’ valuation range
UK portfolio

900
800
700
600
500
400

300

Directors’ valuation £m

200

100

PLUS the "discount unwind" - the
tnerease In value as time passes,
bringing future distributions closer

Together, these changes give us the
“rebased” figure

PLUS new project wins during the year,
represented by the Edinburgh student
accommodation project on which

we were appointed preferred bidder

in August

PLUS the gains we made from
disposals during the year, over and
above the Directors’ valuation of
those interests

PLUS operationa! performance gains,
which reflect improvemaents or
reductions in the performance of the
investments — these may be due to
higher inflation, better performance,
changes in demand, revisions to costs
and other factors The UK portfolio

US portfohio

300

KN
o
o

[N
o
o

100

Directors” valuation £m
g

50

1$ showing a small net gain in
performance this year, comprising
some Increases and decreases n actual
perfarmance and increases due to
higher inflation on projects coming

out of construction The US portfolio

Is also showing a net gain, with the
movements Including increases in
scope and changes to rental rates

s LESS the effect of foreign exchange
movements on our portfolio value

Together, these give us the valuation of
the 63 PPP projects in our portfolio at the
end of 2012, which include four projects
in our UK portfolio and two projects In our
US portfolto at preferred bidder stags

The graphs below give the value of each
portfolio over a range of pre shareholder
tax discount rates enabling the reader
ta revalue the US and UK portfolios at

a discount rate of their choice

65% 70% 75% BO0% 85% 90% 95% 100% 105% 110% 15%
Discount rate

A-m- 2012
B-= 2011

A.m 2012
B-= 201

0
90% 95% 100% 105% 110% 115% 120% 12 5% 130% 13 5% 14 0%

Discount rate
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We catch
more nutrients

Our three projects to upgrade Baltimore's
Patapsco wastewater tredtment plant will vastly
improve the surrounding environment and the
city's outflows into Chesapeake Bay

They will ensure that the discharge of nutrnents — nitrogen

and phosphorus — Into the Patapsco River maets the “pollution
diet” introduced by the Environment Protection Agency (EPA)
And they are helping to establish us ~ through our Fru-Con
businass - as one of the leading water and wastewater
playars inthe US market

US$269m 100%

Total value of our three Increase In the plant’s
Patapsco projects peak capacity




You catch
more fish

Chesapeake Bay i1s the largest estuary in the US,
a complex ecosystem that supports a wide range
of fish and shelifish But the Bay, and 1ts marine
inhabitants, are suffering badly from pollution

The main cause 1s nutrient rich effluent, which the EPA wants
to see cut by 20-25% Our projects, including constructing the
world’s largest fixed film denntrification system, an enhanced
nutrient removal facility, a biological aerated filter bullding and
pump station, as well as leading utility works for the project will
help the city reach local environmentalists’ target of making
Baltimore Harbour more habitable for marine life by 2020

80% 100,000

Reduction in nitrates that Tonnes of chromium laden soil
the new plant will achieve our work will also eliminate

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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The Way We Work

Showing leadership in values and behaviour is essential for a business
such as Balfour Beatty that aspires to differentiate itself in the market
and be seen as a global leader in its field. That is why we have made

it one of our core strategic objectives: we want high ethical and
professional standards to be evident in every aspect of the way we work.

Integrity

Teamwork

Excellence

Respect

Health and satety

In 2008 we set out to achieve Zero Harm
by 2012 That meant zero deaths, zero
inunes to the public and zero ruined

lives among all our people no senously
disabling injuries, no long term harm to
health and an accident frequency rate
{AFR) below 010 While we falled to meet
these targets across the Group, we made
important progress and remain even more
committed to achieving them

Our overall Group performance improved
In 2012, with most businesses making
further advances towards Zero Harm Of
the 184 {2011 189) major injunes reported
in 2012, one was permanentty disabling,
compared with five in 2011 Group AFR
improved to 0 16 1n 2012 (2011 017}

There were significant improvements

In many parts of the Group, with 20 out
of 34 operations showing either zero
AFR or an improved AFR compared with
2011 Group AFR has reduced by 69%
since 2001

There were 115 Injuries to members
of the public in 2012 (2011 127},
a reduction of 9%

However, we regret that there were
aight employee fatalities during 2012 —
three in the UK, two in North Amernica,
two In Australia and one in Indonesia
{2011 five n Hong Kong) Every fatal
accident 1s subject to a thorough
investigation and review by the
Balfour Beatty Board Lessons learnt
are shared across the Group to help
improve future performance

To emphasise our commitment to the
absolute necessity for Zero Harm, in

June 2012 we held our first ever Group
wide safety stand down Owver 90,000
Balfour Beatty and subcontractor
personnel stopped work to remember
colleagues killed at work, consider new
ways of working to prevent fatal accidents
and reaffirm everyone’s individual
responstbilities for keeping colleagues and
members of the public safe from harm

In 2013 and beyond, our Zero Harm goals
of zero fatalities, zero disabling injunes,
zero Injuries to members of the public and
zero new cases of long term harmto
health will remain As we head into 2013,
we are Intensifying our Zero Harm efforts,
setting clear Health & Safety expectations
for all of our businesses, renewing our
focus on the elimination of fatal nisk and
Increasing the level of personal
accountability for safety
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Ethics and values

Across all of our businesses, we share
the same values — integrity, teamwork,
excellence and respect They help to
define who we are and what we want

to be known for Integnty 1s about being
honest and transparent and always doing
what 1s nght Teamwork means seeing
ourselves as part of a bigger picture in the
way we work with colleagues, clients and
supphers Excellence Is the standard of
performance people are entitled to expect
from working with ar for us Respect
shapes the way we treat other people,
inside and outside the business — and

the wider community and environment

Our programme to embed ethics and
integrity across our business covers not
only bribery, fraud and competition law
but also data protection, human nights
and other areas addressed in our Code
of Conduct For nearly four years we
have been embedding a best practice
compliance programme founded on

our values, the Code of Conduct and i1ts
assoclated training modules To date more
than 40,000 emplovees have completed
the first onhne training module and
more than 26,000 have completed the
second module We have also begun

a programme for site operatives which
should be largely completed in 2013

As part of our programme, in 2009

we launched a confidential helpline for
whistleblowers Last year, for the first

time since its launch, we saw a slight

decrease in the number of potential

breaches of the Code of Conduct reported

via the helpline or other whistleblowing

channels or detected by management 10 !
221 {2011 232), excluding HR grievances

Whilst this may indicate that our ethics
and compliance programme 1s leading
to a reduction in unethical behaviour,
we believe that we are still expeniencing
under reporting in soms countres and
we would also hope and expect to see
an tncrease in reporting, once the site
operative ethics training has been fully
rolled out

During 2012 we continued to embed the
complance programme and developed
an assurance framework, which includes
management self assessments,
comphance function risk assessments
and internal audits of anti corruption
procedures This helps us to test
implementation, address weaknesses
and continually improve




As we seek to grow In emerging markets,
It 1S even more important that we continug
to roll out our ethical programme The
choices that we face can be difficult, but
we must ensure our values are at the
forefront of each and every business
decision [n 2013, we will continue to
implement approprate policies and
procedures to support our growth strategy
In new and often higher risk markets,

and to embed the culture of ethics and
Integrity upon which, ultimately, the
success of our programme will depend

Sustainability

We have set out a clear path to embed
sustainability into everything we do by
2020 At the end of 2012 we published
our roadmap for the 2013-2015 second
stage of this journey — developed in
consultation with over 200 staff and

20 clients and non-governmental
organisations {(NGOs)

This roadmap defines our objectives,
strategies and measures in 11 focus areas
new markets, client engagement,
efficiency, our people, supply cham,
communitigs, chimate change, waste,
water, materals and ecology

In our 2012 Sustainabulity Report online at
www balfourbeatty com/sr12 we report
our progress against the 2009-2012 first
stage roadmap Broadly speaking, we
performed better against our profitable
markets and healthy communities targets
than the environmental hmits targets
Within environmental limits, we
performed better on waste management
than on carbon reduction

We benchmarked our performance
externally by participating in three key
indices — securing a Silver rating in the
Business in the Community Index, a
score of 78 out of 100 from the Carbon
Disclosure Project, and inclusion in the
Dow Jones Sustainability Index Europe
During 2011 and 2012 an independent
programme was conducted by KFMG
to review our progress agamst the
roadmap and help management embed
sustainability within the business The
quality of our reporting was recognised
by the Building Public Trust Awards
FTSE 250 Sustainability Report award In
November 2012 We have been credited
by the asset management business,
Robeco SAM, as the Sector Maver in
the Heavy Construction Sector’ in 2012

Our Business | The Way We Work

Delivering sustainability for customers
We see our sustainability performance 7
and expertise as a strategic asset, and aim

for market leading capability in delivering

sustainable solutions for clients

Sustainability 1s Increasingly important to

clients and we work closely with many

clents to deliver sustamnable solutions

We have now secured positions in
virtualiy all the renewables markets, made
our delivery capability significantly more
efficient through BIM technology and
matenals reuse, and have developed

a comprehensive array of water, carbon
and ecology tools Through traming and
knowledge sharing we have equipped
our business development teams and
design managers to advise clients on
how sustainable thinking can add value
to their projects

To earn the trust

of clients and other
stakeholders, we
must do business

We focus on doing
Environmental performance the right things
We have made good progress against
a number of our environmental targets
We met our target to halve our waste

to landfili by 2012 and in the UK we

with the law as the
absolute minimum

procured 44% of our major materials we expect.
from recognised responsible sourcing
schemes Reducing our energy Chrnis Vaughan

consumption has been more challenging, Chref Corporate Officer
but in 2012 our overall Scope 1 and 2

carbon intensity decreased by 13%

fallowing restatement based on more

comprehensive data Improvements in

our UK businesses were parually offset

by growth In energy intensive projects in

Hong Kong Further details are available

in our 2012 Sustainabifity Report online

at www balfourbeatty com/sr12

Four environmental incidents resulted

in enforcement action and fines in

2012 across the Group {2011 §) totalling
£66,800 (2011 £18,800) These ranged
from £160 to £66,000 Corrective actions
have been completed for each vialation

Looking ahead

In 2013 we are focusing on sustainability
as a driver of growth, supply chain
engagement and a more focused
approach to soctal performance We will
also be promoting sustainable innovation
In products, client engagement and
efficiency — such as our reuse and
recycling practices that have saved

the Highways Agency £55 million over
the past three years
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ethically at all times.

and see compliance
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Our competitiveness
is founded on a
tradition of technical
capability and
collaboration, an
established culture
of respect and
leadership in values
and behaviours,

and individual
empowerment to
drive improvement
and innovation.

Paul Raby
Group HR director

People

Our competitiveness depends on how
well we harness the wide range of skills,
knowledge and potential in our 50,000
global workforce The key ts to 1dentify
and nurture the talents of all our people,
in a values based business where they
can thrive Our people policies are
focused on fulfiling the potential n the
Group s0 our clients benefit from wide
ranging capability, and our employees
from enhanced careers

During the year we continued to enhance
the way we 1dentify and develop talent in
the organisation We supplemented our
Group wide leadership frameweork, which
articulates what the business requires

of its leaders today, with a new set of
requirements for the people with patential
who will lead the business in the future
We ran our first Group development
cenire to test these requirements with a
range of high potential individuals They
were observed by senior leaders irom
across the business to extend the visibility
of our talent across the organsaton

We also launched two new programmes
aimed at supporting people with potential
at key career transition points The
advanced management programme

and executive leadership programme
combine thought leadership, drawn from
the latest academic research, with the
opportunity to address real business
challenges in the Group and to network
with other participants

The launch of individual personal and skill
profiles on the new Group knowledge
sharing and collaboration intranet also
helps us identfy and deploy talent more
effectively — for example by promoting
opportunities to work in different
businesses and locations

We continue to build on our progress

in instilling leadership in values and
behaviours Our commitment to our
values in the treatment of others is now
increasingly embedded in the way we
work We can use this commitment to
extend and enhancea the Group's brand

in the market so that we attract the very
best external talent - and we have already
won several new awards for companies
hughly rated by graduates tncluding The
Guardian UK 300 and the Job Crowd’s Top
Companies for Graduates to Work For
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Our US construction business has been
recognised as a Fortune "Best Company
To Work For” at #8b in the rankings

We also continue to make progress In
our work on diversity so that we attract
and engage more than our farr share of
talent from the broadest possible pools
Formal awards and recogmition for our
achievernents in this area, including from
both Opportunity Now and Race for
Opportunity in 2012, give us a strong
platform to build on 1in 2013

Respecting our communities

Our business 1s centred on communities
We bring them significant benefits by
creating and caring for efficient, high
qualty economic and social amenities
But we also recognise the importance
of engaging more directly with the
communities where we operate

Because our operations are so widely
dispersed, we do this through local
Initiatives that fit with our businesses’
individual objectives and provide
motivation and engagement for our
employees Across the Group there 1s a
high degree of commitment to, and active
participation in, community involvement

At Group level we work, often in
partnership with clients, to support
organisations and activities that aim to
improve social cohesion and inclusion
In the UK these have included the
London Youth Games, Action for Children,
the Coram Foundation and the Prince’s
Trust We also donate cash and the
energles of our employees to selected
charitable causes The Balfour Beatty
Charitable Trust has donated over

£1 75 million to disadvantaged young
people’s charnties since 1ts Inception In
2009, through corporate funding and
employee fundraising

In late 2011 we reviewed our community
policies to take account of the Group's
Increasing size and geographical spread
and to align our community programmes
mare closely with key social 1ssues and
our core business activities The result
was Building Better Futures, a set of
strategic themes focusing on young
people's employability and employment,
helping the most disadvantaged young
people In society




In 2012, we worked closely with

our chantable partners to develop
programmes that meet our common
strategic ambitions We also built
stronger internal networks to help us
identify and promote local inttiatives
and programmaes within the Group
that support our strategic theme of
employability and employment

We continue to build a volunteering
culture across the Group Many of our
businesses’ volunteering policies were
extended in 2012 and will be further
developed during 2013 Qur chantable
partners have been working with us to
identify opportunitias for our staff to
become involved In thelr work and we
plan to build on this in 2013 We also
plan to incorporate a volunteering
module into our apprentice and
graduate development programmes

Hong Kong's first
zero carbon building

Our Gammon joint venture
bullt the Zero Carbon Building
in Kowloon Bay which may be
small in scale but its impact
on green construction will be
long lasting and far ranging

The Zero Carbon Building - the first
of its kind in Hong Kong — achieved
BEAM Plus Platinum environmental
standard, the highest rating possible
It will produce more energy than it
consumes — about 225MW hours

of electricity In total per year

30% of the generated energy will be
denved from solar panels and 70%
from biodiesel made from used
cooking oll

Building Better Futures and our
sponsorship of the London Youth Games
have been very successful in the UK,
but we need an approach that also
embraces the US and our emerging
markets, such as South Africa In 2013,
we will look to build on each aspact of
our community engagement programme
within those markets where we have
sigrificant presence

www balfourbeatty com

www balfourbeatty com/sustainability
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Ist

Female non-executive Director
and managing director of a
business unit appointed

40,000

More than 40,000 employees
have completed the first
Code of Conduct online
training module
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We share
knowledge

fn 2005, we formed a joint venture with local
suppoaort services business UGL to bid for power
transmission contracts in Australasia

The key to our success 1s our collaborative approach, our giobal
teams transfer knowledge and best practice developed n
recent years in the UK to Australasian markets, putting our
global transmission expertise to waork in partnarship with local
asset owners Today, BBUGL i1s the region’s market leader in
extra high voltage transrmission We design and build overhead
and underground transrmussion and distribution systermns for
clients in Australia, New Zealand and the Pacific

500kV 186km

Maxirnum voltage for Length of new Whakamaru-
BBUGL projects Brownhill Road power line



You share
power

Electricity is so versatile that people use
it In more and more ways

Since the power gnd in New Zealand'’s upper North [sland
was last upgraded in the 1870s, the region's population has
more than doubled — and electricity use has trebled To carry
modern loads, BBUGL has just completed a new 400kV
overhead transmussion ineg As New Zealand’s largest
infrastructure project, it presented many engineerng
challenges, including the design of 65m-high monopole
towers to minimise visual impact In sensitive scenic areas

432 460

Number of new transmission Number of old towers
towers built for the project demalished
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Chief Financial Officer’s Review

2012 saw a resilient underlying earnings performance despite
some challenging markets.

We are rigorously
pursuing cost
savings to offset the
impact of continuing
difficult construction
markets and to
position ourselves
for the future

Duncan Magrath
Chief Financial Officer

Trading performance

Professional Services performed well,
improving its order book by 5% despite
uncertainty arnsing from presidential
elections and the fiscal chiff in the US and
a difficult market in the UK Strong growth
In the rest of the world, particularly Qatar
and Canada, contributed 1o revenue
Performance was mixed in Australia, with
a revenue decline in transportation offset
partly by growth in mining, but it remains
an important and successful territory
Underlying profit increased by 13% to
£98m, with good contnbutions fram
transportation and power seciors

Construction Services saw the antcipated
reduction in profitability with underlying
profit at £122m (2011 £169m} There was
a drop in profits in US construcuon as

a result of more competitive pricing in

the market Our Mainland European rail
business weakened due to a low level

of activity as well as one-off 1ssues

The operational and strategic review has
concluded and we will be divesting all

of our Manland European ratl businesses
over ime UK construction benefited
from successfully completing some long
term projects, but overall profits reduced
This was largely a consequence of iower
margins in the regional businesses as

a result of tightening markets and was
exacerbated by delivery margns being
impacted by rising subcontractor defaults

Unexecuted construction orders finished
the year at £8 Obn, down 6% from a year
ago (2011 £8 5bn) The most significant
decrease was in the US, down 17% from
the end of 2011 However, the awarded
but not contracted position has improved,
keeping the overall US pipeline broadly
stable The UK order book was up 1%
from a year ago, but we have seen a
significant shift in the year from major
works to smaller contracts, with the
order book for the regional bullding
and cwils business up 15% since
the end of 2011 while the arder
book for major constructian work
declined by 24% Construction
revenue was down by 4%
overall, excluding the impact
of acquisitions
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Support Services’ order book improved
by 12% from the end of 2011 to £5 7bn
{2011 £5 1bn) Order intake was
particularly strong in power, which ended
the year with order book up 65% from the
start of the year Revenue was up 3% at
£1,633m, agaln with a particularly strong
performance In the power sector which
was up 24% Profitability however, was
lower at £562m (2011 £67m), due to start
up costs on new contracts and some
£10m of one-off costs in a small number
of power sector contracts in Australasia in
the first half Second half profitability was
in line with the second half of last year

Infrastructure Investments showed

a significant increase in profit with
underlying pre-tax profit up to £97m
{2011 £71m) This increase was drniven
by disposal gains increasing from £20m
in 2011 o £52m in 2012, with the profits
on the targeted disposals not only
sigruficantly ahead of their value in the
Directors’ valuation, but also ahead of our
expectations UK PPP profits were down
f1m, principally because of the profits
foregone from disposed assets

See pages 28 to 43 for more detalled
comments on performance by segment

Cost efficiency programme

We started on the journey to improve
our cost effectiveness with the
announcement in August 2010 of the
creation of a shared service centre In
Newcastle By the end of 2011 we had
230 employees accounting for 50% of
UK transactions and procuring £300m
of indirect spend

The success of this intiative convinced us
to expand the programme and apply what
we had learnt elsewhere, so in March
2012 we announced that we would target
to save a further £50 million per annum
by 2015 for one-off costs esumated at
between £50 million and £75 million

In addition to expanding the scope of the
Newcastle service centre including some
global procurement, we are setting up

an equivalent service centre in Lancaster,
PA which will go operational in Apnl 2013
We are also restructuring our businesses,
in particular, UK construction has been
reorganised into three business streams
and 1s In the process of reducing the
number of offices from 75 down to 37,
and US construction has been reorganised
into three regions




We have bocked non-underlying costs for
redundancy, relocation, property and other
associated costs for this programme of
£61m n the year Savings in 2012 from
the orniginal and expanded programme
were £36m, and we remain on track to
deliver annual savings of £80m in 2015

Financial review

Revenue ncluding joint ventures and
assoclates declined 1% in the year to
£10,896m (2011 £11,035m) Excluding
the mpact of currency and acquisitions,
underlying revenue dechned by 4%

QOur share of underlying post-tax profits
from continuing joint ventures and
associates ncreased to £97m from £75m
last year, principally due to increased
profits from our overseas construction
Joint ventures, with improved hquidity in
Dubai and centinuing growth in Heng Kong

Underlying profit from continuing
operations decreased by 7% to £309m
{2011 £331m), including the benefit of
£52m of gamns from PPP disposals

Net finance income of £1m was broadly
in ling with the pnor year (2011 £3m)

Underlying pre-tax profit from continuing
operations therefore decreased 7% to
£310m (2011 £334m)

The underlying tax charge for continuing
operations for the year of £70m (2011
£91m}, excluding the Group's share of the
results of joint ventures and associates,
equates 1o an effective tax rate of 32 9%
{2011 35 1%) Adjusting to include tax

In Joint ventures and associates, and

Results for the year
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comparing this to pre-tax profits for the
continuing Group and joint ventures and
assocliates, the effective tax rate was
25 7% (2011 30 2%])

Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items of £235m {2011
£88m) before tax were charged to the
income statement This compnised
amortisaticn of acquired intangible assets
of £45m (2011 £62m} and other items of
£190m {2011 £26m) The amortisation
charge declined in the year as some
intangible assets becamne fully written
down Other items included rall
restructuring costs of £104m, of which
£95m comprised goodwill write downs
These are as a result of our strategic
decision to divest all of our Mainland
European rai! businesses over tima
During the year we also announced a
major restructuning of our business to
rationalise the cost base, expand our

use of shared service centres and ad
collaboration by colocating employees
Costs incurred on this duning the year
were £61m Post-acquisition integration
reorganisation and other costs totalled
£9m, principally due to the settlement

of a pre-acquisition legal case in Parsons
Bnnckerhoff We also wrote down our
investment in Exeter International Airport
in the first half from £12m to £nil, as a
result of continued poor traffic volumes
in the regional airport market

Earmings per share

Underlying earnings per share from
continuing operations of 35 Op were
down 1% on last year (2011 35 5p)

Percentage

2012 2011 merease
Revenue including joint ventures
and associates £10,896m £11,035m 1)%
Group revenue £9,483m £9,494m —
Profit from continuing operations
- underlying £309m £331m {71%
— reported £74m £243m {70}%
Pre-tax profit from continuing
operations
- underlying £310m £334m (71%
—reported £75m £246m {70)%
Earnings per share from continuing
operations
- underlying 35 0p 35 5p 1)%
— baste 6 5p 26 7p (76)%

Cash flow performance

Cash used in operations of £219m
{2011 generated £35m) was impacted
by a working capital outflow of £310m .
(2011 £201m} Including the impact

of exchange, negative working capital
decreased from £1,085m at the end

of 2011 to £777m at the end of 2012

Of this decrease of £308m, the biggest
component was £250m in Construction
Services This was largely due to changes
In the mix of business, away from larger
more complex projects, which have the
potential for more favourable terms,

to smaller projects, plus the iImpact of
volume reductions with revenue down
10% in the UX and 8% in the US in the
second half year on year

QSAMNSHA NN

Cash from operations was also impacted
by pension deficit payments of £61m
{2011 £58m)

As shown in the diagram on page 57,
average borrowings in the secand half of
the year were £126m, although the Group’s
net cash at 31 December 2012 was £35m
{2011 £340m)}, before taking into account
the consolidation of £368m (2011 £332m) |
of non-recourse net borrowings held in |
wholly owned PPP project companies

More detalled analysis on the movements
in net cash 1s shown in Note 29

Goodwill and intangible assets

Total consideration for the acquisition

of Subsurface Group amounted to £10m,
with goodwill of £9m arising and a further
£3m of other intangible assets being
recogmsed These increases were maore
than offset by the wnte down in the
Marnland European rail business, so

that the goodwill on the Group's balance
shaet at 31 December 2012 decreased
to £1,160m (2011 £1,279m) Other
intangible assets, after amortisation
charges of £49m {2011 £66m), reduced
to £212m (2011 £239m)

Impatrment reviews have been carrned
out, and none of the goodwill, other than
noted above, has been impaired Detalls
of the calculations and assumptions are
shown In Note 13 Two businesses have
no headroom The goodwill relating to the
Mainland European rall business has been
written down to £61m, but a 1% Increase
in the discount rate would lead 1o a further
impairment of £16m The recoverable
amount of the Blackpool Airport goadwill
15 £4m, underpinned by the value of the
land owned
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Balance sheet and capital structure
The diagram below gives a visual
representation of the major elements
that we consider in relation to the shape
of the balance sheet We look to achieve
a balance between the negative working
capital, lquid funds and the PPP
tnvestments portfolio Whilst we have
seen a reduction in net cash during 2012,
we have also seen a reduction in the
levels of negative working capital, with
the Directors’ valuation of our investments
portfolio remaining broadly unchanged

These 1tems are considered further below

Infrastructure investments

During 2012, the Group invested £55m
{2011 £52m) In a combination of equity
and shareholder loans to PPP project
companies and at the end of the year
had committed to provide a further £47m
from 2013 onwards, with some £77m
expected in addition for six projects at
preferred bidder stage

During the year total proceeds of £84m
were received from the disposal of the
Group’s 50% mnterest in Transform
Schools (North Lanarkshire) and

33 3% interest in Health Management
(UCLHY), realising £17m in excess

of Directors’ valuation

At 31 December 2012, the Group's share
of non-recourse net borrowings within
Balfour Beatty Investrnents’ continuing
PPP project companies amounted to
£2,086m (2011 £2,127ml, comprnising
£1,718m {2011 £1,785m) In relation to

Balance sheet elements

joint ventures and associates as disclosed
in Note 16 2 and £368m (2011 £332m)
on the Group balance sheet In relation to
wholfly owned subsidianes as disclosed

in Note 241

The Directors have carried out a valuation
of the Group’s PPP concessions This 1s
set out on pages 44 and 45 and shows
that the value of the portfolio has
decreased dunng the year from £743rm
to £734m, after recemving cash net of
reinvestment of £114m

Working capital

Negative working capital reduced from
£1,085m to £777m, so total working
capital as a percentage of annualsed
revenue {(WCPR} at the end of the year
was (8 3)% (2011 (10 9)%) The most
significant component of negative working
capital relates to Construction Services,
which ended the year with WCPR of

(12 1)% {2011 {14 7)%)

In 2013, we would expect further
reductions In negative working capital

in UK construction as a result of
anticipated revenue reductions, and the
greater proportion of smaller contracts
We also expect an increase in working
capital in Support Services, due to one
very large contract with positive working
capital charactenistics Professional
Services will continue trending towards
5% positive working capital We would
however, expect negative working capital
to be broadly stable in US construction,
before increasing again when the
market recovers

Pensions - balance sheet movement
The Group's balance sheet includes
aggregate deficits of £338m {2011
£275m) for the Group's pension schemes
Note 26 sets out the assumptions used
and a sensitivity analysis which identifies
the impact on the balance sheet from
changes In those assumptions

The Group recorded net actuanal losses
for 2012 on those schemes totalling
£121m (2011 gains £60m), with the
effects of the lower discount rates applied
to the schemes’ obligations exceeding
the better than expected returns on the
assets held by the schemes and revised
mortality assumptions based on historical
experience Movements in the pension
deficit are tllustrated in the diagram below

[n our 2013 accounts, we will be applying
the new |AS 18 reparting standard which
requires the return on assets within the
pension net finance cost to be calculated
using the same rate as the discount rate
on the obligations This has no cash
impact, but we estimate that net finance
cost will iIncrease by £21m n 2013,
compared with a £10m increase for 2012

A formal actuariat valuation of the Balfour
Beatty Pension Fund {BBPF) was carried
out at 31 March 2010 and showed a
funding position of 85% A funding plan
was agreed to eliminate that deficit over
eight years Under this plan, the Group 1s
making regular monthly payments, which
increase each April by the growth in CPI
up to a cap of 5%, plus 50% of any
Increase In the Company's dividend in

Pensions - balance sheet movement
Cumulative contributions for deficit funding since December 2009 of £255m

A £743m £586m
Investments! £166m
-] £734m
£{1085)m| A
I Working capital B a1
£777)m | B o] | £120m
A £340m B £48m f134m £336m
Net cash? £10m
£35m £321m | £275m [ | B
A £75m
Aggregate? 8 £96m |
e £200m
£{275)m £73m
) Pension deficit
£{338)m
A A A A
[Al Dec 2011 [E D
[E Dec 2012 Dec Dec Dac Service Company Actuanal Actugnal Other Dec

1 Drrectors’ valuation of PPP concessions

2 Excluding net borrowings of PPP subsidianes {non-recourse)
Aggregate halance of investments, working caprtal and net cash

2009 2010 20m
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cost contnibutiens gan

logs movements 2012
assets liabilities

[A] Pension deficits, net of tax Deferred tax assets




excess of CPl Monthly deficit paymants
from April 2012 were £4 5m Regular
deficit payments into the BBPF increased
by £0 8m per month to £5 4m following
the merger of the Parsons Brinckerhoff
pension scheme into the BBPF on

30 June 2012 In advance of the formal
tnennial actuanal valuation as at 31 March
2013, additional contributions of £1m per
rmonth are payable for any month where
the BBPF funding levels drop helow the
targets set out in the BBPF funding plan

Dividends

The Board has recommended a final
dividend of 8 5p 1n respect of 2012, giving
a full-year dividend of 14 1p (2011 13 8p}.
up 2% on last year Underlying dwvidend
cover, taking into account PPP disposal
gains, for 20121s 2 5 tmes

Banking facihties

The Group's principal committed facility 1s
a five-year revolving syndicated facility at
E£850m which was arranged in November
2011 In December 2012 an expining
£100m bilateral facibity was extended
through to 2016 The purpose of these
facilities, and other small facihties, 1s to
provide iquidity from a group of core
relationship banks to support Balfour
Beatty In 1ts current and future activities
Over time, as the Group evolves we will
continue to explore diversifying our
sources of funds away from the pure bank
rmarket, and as part of that procass, after
the year end US$350m was raised
through a US private placement of a sernes
of notes with an average coupon of 4 94%
over 9 3 years The incremental cost of

Average net cash/{borrowings)'

£600m EB72m

£50¢m
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this funding on an annual basis I1s
approximately £9m

in addition, the Group has non-recourse
faciliies for companies engaged 1in PPP
projects and infrastructure investments

tn the normal course of its business, the
Group arranges for financial Institutions
to provide customers with guarantees in
connection with 1ts contracting activities
{commonly referred to as bonds) Such
bonds provide a customer with a level
of financial protection in the event that a
contractor fails to meet I1ts commitments
under the terms of a contract In return
for 1ssuing the beonds, the financial
institutions receive a fee and a counter-
indemnity from Balfour Beatty plc As
at 31 December 2012, contract bonds
in1ssue by financial institutions under
uncommitted facilities covered £3 3bn
{2011 £3 7bn} of contract commitrments
of the Group

Financial risk factors and

going concern

The key financial nsk factors for the Group
reman largely unchanged, with two
exceptions Firstly, a year ego the nsk

of econormic events in Europe leading to
disruption in the eurc economies and an
impact on the bonding market was higher
than 1t 1s today In addition, we believe
the measures we have announced for
restructuring our Mainland European rail
business wilt help to limit the iImpact that
future events could have on our business,
although a further detenoration in the
outlook for our business in those markets

£518m

£600m

£400m

£333m

£300m B

£342m
L e P
il £256m
£223m £224m

£200m

£100m

£0m

£440m £436m

£434m

£394m L~

£34m
£104m "*-I-: £35m
—/

-£100m

-£200m

Jun Dec Jun Dac Jun
2008 2008 2008 2009 2010

[0 Net cash -e Sixmonthly average

£35m

£(126Im

Dec Jun Dec Jun Dec
2010 2011 201 2012 2012

1 Excluding nat borrowings of PPP subsidanes (non-recourse)

could lead to a further non-cash goodwill
imparment charge Secondly, however,
the outlock for UK construction has
deteriorated over the last 12 months

The tack of work at attractive rates in

the market will in turn lead to reduced
volumes which will lead to further
unwinding of the negative working capital
posttion, and hence a cash outflow In
addition, the overall health of the market
1s likely to lead 1o increased nsks of
company fallures particularly in our
subcontractor supply chain Given the
Importance of maintaining a strong
balance sheet and liquidity, as noted
above we have put in place a US$350m
private placement and extended a £100m
bilateral bank facihity for four years

The Drrectors have acknowledged the
guidance "Going Concern and Liquidity
Risk Guidance for Directors of UK
Companies 2009" published by the
Financial Reporting Council in October
2009 Inreviewing the future prospects
of the Group, the following factors

are relevant

¢ the Group has a strong order backlog

» there continues to be underlying
demand in infrastructure markets in the
countries In which the Group operatas

* the Group has an increasingly
diversified business model that
gives reslience to the business

* excluding the non-recourse net
borrowings of PPP subsidiares,
the Group had £35m net cash at
31 December 2012 and committed
facilities of £850m for at least the
next three years, of which £640m
waere undrawn

Based on the above, and having made
appropriate enquiries and reviewead
medium term cash forecasts, the
Directors consider i1t reasonable to
assume that the Group and the Company
have adequate resources to continue for
the foreseeable future and, for this reason,
have continued to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements

To appreciate the prospects for the Group
as a whole, the complete Annual Report
and Accounts 2012 needs to be read

www balfourbeatty com/magrath2012
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Managing Risk

Risk management

Effective nsk management underpins the delivery
of our objectives It 1s essential to protecting our
reputation and generating sustainable shareholder
value We aim to identify key risks at an early
stage and develop actions to eliminate them

or mitigate their impact and likelihood to an
acceptable level

Risk management processes are embedded
throughout the Group at all levels and form an
integral part of day-to-day business activity They
help management to 1dentify and understand the
risks they face in delivering business objectives
and the status of the key controls in place for

——— ]

3 Diwvisional
management

4 Operating company
management

managing those risks

Roles and responsibilities

Risks

The Board 1s responsible for our systemn of nsk management and internal control It sets the Group’s appetite for nsk in pursuit of its
strategic objectives, and the level of risk that can be taken by Group, divisional and operating company management without specific
Board approval Group policies and delegated authonty levels set by the Board provide the means by which risks are reviewed and
escalated to the appropriate level within the Group, up to and including the Board, for consideration and approval

The roles and respensibilities of the Board, its Committees, and divisional and operating company management are set out below

L

Responsibitities

Actions undertaken —I

1 Board

Responsible for the Group's systems of nisk
management and internal control

Determine Group appetite for nsk in achieving
its strategic objectives

Issue and review Group risk management policy

Annually review effectiveness of Group risk
management and internal control systems

Review the Group s key nisks and nisk responses

Audit Commuittee

Review the effectiveness of Group internal
controls including systems todentify, assess,
manage and monitar risks

Receive regular reports on internal and external audit
and other assurance activities

Annually assess Group risk management and internal
control systems

Business Practices
Committee

Review Group management of risks
associated with health and safety
sustainability employee engagement,
corporate values ethics and Code of Conduct

Recelve regular reports on implementataon of Group
health and safety sustamability and ethics and
compliance programmes, and Group HR policies

Review effectiveness of the Group s helphine
procedures and ather mechanisms for raising concerns

2 Group management

Strategic leadership

Responsible for ensuning that the Group's
nsk management policy 15 implementad
and embedded

Ensure appropriate acuons ara taken to
manage strategic nsks and key risks arising
from tudding and project execution

Strategic roadmap and annual budget process

Review of nsk management and assurance activiugs
and processes

Group Tender and Investments Committee

Monthly/quarterly finance and performance reviews

3 Divisional management

Responsible for nsk management and internal
control systems within therr division

Ensure that operating compares’
responsibiities are discharged

Rewvigw key risks and rmtrgation plans monthly

Rewview and challenge of operating company
assurance plans

Rewview results of assurance activities

Escalate key nsks to Group management and Board

4 Operating company
management

Maintain an effective sysiem of nsk
management and internal control wathin
their operating company

Maintain and regularly review project, functional
and strategic risk registers

Revtew mutigation plans

Plan, execute and report on assurance activites
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Risk management process

Our nsk management policy requires that
all divisions and those operating companies
within them identify and assess the risks
to which they are exposed and which
could impact their ability to deliver therr
and the Group's objectives

Identfied nsk events, their causes and
possible conseguences are recorded in
nsk registers Their hkelihood and potential
business impact and the control systems
that are in place to manage them are
analysed and, If required, additional
actions are developed and put in place to
rmitigate or eliminate unwanted exposures
Individuals are allocated responsibility

for evaluating and managing these nsks
to an agreed timescale

Risk regtsters and relevant action plans
are reviewed regularly, at various levels
throughout the business, to 1dentify
emerging rnisks, remove expired risks
and update mitigation plans

Reporting structures ensure that rnsks

are monrtored continually, mitigation plans
are reviewed and significant exposures
are escalated - trom project level to
operating company management to
senior management

All divisions and operating companies
must have assurance mechamsms to
ensure that the internal controls and

actions designed to mitigate and eliminate
nsks are operating effectively A range

of procedures i1s used to monitor the
effectiveness of internal cantrols,
including management assurance, risk
management processes and independent
assurance provided by internal audit and
other specialist third party reviews

The Board has concluded that the Group
maintained sound nisk management and
internal control systems throughout the
year and has reviewed therr effectiveness

Principal risks

Dunng 2012, most of our businesses
performed well and in line with
expectations However, our construction
businesses in the UK and US experienced
difficult trading conditions which are hikely
to continue Into 2013 In the UK, reduced
private spending, depressed private sector
nvestment in commercial bullding and
delays in government backed projects
shifted our construction business mix
towards less complex and lower margin
projects In the US, the construction
markat 15 now expected to recover later
than previously expected

These trends will continue into 2013, and
the steps we have taken mn response will
increase the importance of effective risk
management As we reshape the
organisation to deliver our combined
capabilities across our target growth
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sectors, we must ensure that we do not
inadvertently import additional nsk The
Board believes that our established nisk
management and internal control systems
will help us to identify such nsks and
respond in a ttmely manner

Operating In many different business
environments and terntories inevitably
entalls nsks and uncertainties that are not
necessarly within cur contro! Although
we cannot eliminate such risks and
uncertainties completely, we have
established nsk management and internal
control systems and procedures to
manage their impact

We also face significant risks and
uncertanties that are common to many
companies — including financial and
treasury nsks, IT and information secunty
risks, and the management of pension
llabilities, which are ssignificant We have
established controls and systems to
manage such risks

The principal nsks that could adversely
impact our profitability and ability to
achieve our strategic objectives are set
out below and on pages 60 to 61 While
the nsks themseltves have not changed
since last year, the Board's assessment
of their tikelihood and potential Impact
has changed and steps have been
taken to strengthen, as appropnate,

the mitigations in place

Key Increased nsk

No change to nisk

Economic environment

Risk

The continued effect of the global economic
downturn may cause our clients 1o postpone
or reduce existing or future projects

Change in 2012

The challenging economic environment in
some of our main geographies has continued
to depress spending by governments and
other clients and has increased competitive
irtensity which in turn has put pressure

on marging

Impact

Any significant changes in the level or timing
of client spending or Investment plans could
adversely impact our future order book

Such changes could arise from changes in
government policy or clients” fallure 1o secure
financing for future projects

Mitigation

The Group $ strategy to focus on the more
restlient and stable infrastrugture markets

{be they geographies or market sectors)

will further mitigate this nsk The efiect

of spending changes in any one market

1s mitigated by our broad exposure to
Infrastructure markets across the globe and
the continued need for infrastructure spending

Failure of a chent, including any government or
pubhc ssctor body, could result in non-callection
of amounts owed

The finantial solvency and strength of
counterpartias 1s always considered before
contracts are signed and s a specific focus in
the current economic chmate During the life
of a contract such assessments are updated
and reviewad whanever possible Wa sask
to ensure that wea are not over reliant on any
ona counterparty

Failure of a subcontractor or suppler would
result in the Group having to find a replacement
or undertaking the task itself This could result
Iin delays and additional costs

We aim to develop long term relationships
with key subcontractors, working closely
with them to understand therr operations
We develop contingency plans to address
subcontractor fallure and also obtain project
retenuons, bonds andfor letters of credit
from subcontractors, where appraprate,

to mitigate the impact of any insolvency
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Expansion into new terntories and by acquisition

Risk

In pursust of our strategic objectives, we will
seek 1o enter ngw terntories and continue to
make acquisitions This has the potential to
expose the Group to nsks that it may not have
encountered before

Change in 2012

No change

Impact

Failure to identify understand and evaluate
the nisks of conducting business in a new
territory could lead to sigruficant financial
loss and reputational damage

Mitigation

As part of the decision making pracess before
entening a new tarrnory, wa undertake a detaled
country nsk assessment This will consider

and assess the prevalling economic, pohitical
regulatory, ethical health safety and sustanability
conditions to ensure that we can operate there

In kne with our own values and standards

Failure to realise the expected benefits

from acquisitions and to tntegrate acquired
businesses successfully into the Group's
processes could result in an adverse mpact
on our strategic cbjectives future prospects,
financial conditions and profitability

We undertake detalled due ditgence on all
potenttal acquisitions to ensure that all aspects
of their business ahgn with ours In many cases
we have worked with these businesses before
In addition, we prepare valuation models on all
potential acquisitions, drawing on both internal
and external resources Due difigence includes
an assessment of our ability 10 integrate the
acquired businesses successiully into the Group
When a business ts acquired, we develop
detailled integration plans and monitor them to
ensure the business 15 successfully assimilated
tnto the Group and its internal control framework

Legal and regulatory

Risk

We operate in diverse territorntes and our
husinesses are subject 1o a vanety of
complex, demanding and evolving legal
tax and regulatory requirements

Change in 2012

No change

Impact

A breach of local laws and regulations could
lead to legal proceedings investigations or
disputes resulttng in business disruption
ranging from additional project costs to
potential debarment and reputational damage

Mitigation

We monitor a2nd respond to legal and regulatory
developments in the terntones where we
operate We consider the local legal and
regulatory framework as part of any Group
decision to conduct business in a new country

Business conduct

Risk

We operate In various international markets
with partners and supply chains that may
present business conduct related nsks involving
for example, fraud, bribery or corruption

Change 1n 2012

No change

Impact

Failure by the Group and its employees to
observe the highest standards of integnty
and conduct in dealing with clients suppliers
and other stakeholders could result in cvil
and/or criminal penalties, debarment and
reputational damage

Mitigation

Throughout the Group we take a rigorous
approach to assessing and addressing corruption
nsks We have a variety of programmes to
promote compliance with our Code of Conduct
and in areas such as competition and data
protection law Each operating company has a
comphance officer responsible for the application
and monitoring of thase pregrammes

People

Risk

Qur inability 1o recruit and retain the best
management and employees who have the
appropriate competencies and also share
our values and behaviours may hamper our
growth prospects

Change 1n 2012

No change

Impact

Fatlure 1o recruit and retain appropriately
skilled people could harm our abihity

to deliver specific contracts and our
future growth

Mitigation

We measure all potential recruits for key roles
in the organisation against a competency and
teadership framewaork Divisions and thesr
operating companies undertake organisation
and people reviews to review the roles,
competencies performance and potental

of personnel We have a well developed
succession planning process to identify and
develop high potential personne! to fill key roles
Thesa plans are reviewed regularly and discussed
at ak levels within the orgarusation and by the
Board We have appropniate remuneration and
Ingentive packages 1o help us attract and retain
key employees
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Key Increased risk

No change to risk

Bidding

Risk

Through our operating companies we seek 10
win work through a large number of bids each
year In some cases we bid in joint venture
wiath carefully selected partners, especially
where we want to augment our experuse

or knowledge of the territory

We also invast in PPP and infrastructure
nvestments, where success depends on
anumber of assumptions, made at tha tme
of investment, on future revenuas and costs

Change in 2012

Impact

Fallure to estimate accurately the nsks, costs,
impact of inflation and contractual terms and
how best to manage them could diminish the
profitabilty of contracts

Mitigation

All bids are subject to ngorous estimating
and tendenng processes within a
defined framework

We have defined delegated authority levels

for approving all tenders and mfrastructure
investments Al major and significant contracts
above those authonty levals are subjsct to
Group review and approval by the Group Tendesr
and Investment Committee {GTIC})

In the event of a disagreement with, or failure
of, or poor delivery performance of a joimt
venture partner, we could face financial and
reputational risks

Before entering 1o a joint venture agreement
we have procedures for reviewing the relevant
skills, expenence resources and values of

joint venture partners to understand how they
complement ours We moniior the performance

Seamsha Iinn

No change of joint ventures and joint venture partners
throughout the life of the project
It any of the assumptions betund investment Investrment appraisals are performed and
decisions prove incorrect, the profitability of reviewed by experienced professionals We
those investments could be reduced analyse the nsks associated with revenues
and costs and, where appropriate, establish
contractual and ather nsk mitigations
Risk Impact Mitigation

We work on complex design engineering,
construction, facihties management and
asset management projecis |f we fall

to deliver these on time and to ¢lients
requirements we face the nisk of financial
loss, claims and reputational damage

Successfut delivery of many of these projects
depends on the combined availability and
effective management of subcontractors

and other service providers

Failure to manage or deliver against contracted
customer requirements on time and to an
appropnate quality could result in 1ssues such
as contract disputes, rejected claims, design
I1ssues, cost overruns or fallure to achieve
customer savings - which harm our
profitability and reputation

Each operating company has defined cperating
procedures to addrass the nsks inherent in
project delivery In addition, the Group nsk
management framework aids identification

of specific nsks on projects and the mitigating
actions required Projects are subject to
management review at all levels to monitor
progress and to review steps put in place

to address specific nsks identified on

those projects

Change n 2012

Increased incidence of subcontractor failure
or default could affect the successful
executron of projects

A subcontractor s failure to perform to

an appropriate standard and guality could
cause project delays reduce our ability 1o
meet contractual commitments and harm
our reputation

We aim to develop long term relationships
with a number of key subcontractors without
becorming overreliant on any one

As part of our selaction cnteria we seek to
partner with subcontractors and suppliers who
share our valuas

Health, safety and sustamnabihity

Risk

We work on significant, complex and
potentially hazardous projects which require
cantinucus monitoring and management of
health and safety nsks Through our actvities
waea can impact either positively or adversely
the world in which we operate and the
communities with which we come into contact

Change in 2012

No change

Impact

Failure to manage these nsks could expose
our people or the public to injury/harm and the
Group to significant potential habilittes and
reputational damage

Mitigation

We have detalled health and safety policies
and procedures to minimise such rnsks These
are reviewed and monitored by operating
companies, divistonal management and
axternal venfication bodies Each operating
company has expenenced health and safety
professionals who provide advice and support
and undertake regular reviews

A Safety Executive committee meets regularly
throughout the year to develop a consistent
approach to health and safety best practice

Failure to address these nsks and to execute
projects sustainably could result in significant
potential habilities, reputational damage and
Inability to win future work

Our sustainabulity strategy covers our
operations untl 2020 n terms of profitable
markets healthy commurnities and
anvironmental imits Sustainability 1ssues
such as clmate change adaption are considered
in sk management activities at operating
company as well as project level

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012 61

=



Our Governance | Chairman’s Statement

Chairman’s Statement

Balfour Beatty is committed to applying the very highest
standards of corporate governance wherever it operates.

Areas of focus in 2012
* Successton planning
and diversity
* Strategy implementation
¢ Operational delivery
and performance

Areas of focus in 2013

* Transition 10 hew
Chief Executive

+ Implemeantation of evolved
business strategy

* Remuneration policy review

* Implementing diversity and
inclusion programme

Dear Shareholder

The Board welcomed the UK Corporate
Governance Code when 1t was published
three years agc and we implemented

all 1ts provisions We particularly
welcomed the Code’s change of tone,
signalling the importance of general
principles in guiding boardroom
behaviours and its continuing vahdation
of the “comply or explain” principle

The new edition of the Code was
published in September 2012 and apphes
to reporting periods beginning con or after
1 October 2012 Despite this, we have
incorporated some of the new provisions
into this governance report

| would like to ughlight how each of the
Code’s main principles 1s being applied
In practice

Leadership and effectiveness

Our areas of Board focus in 2012 are
highlighted above In the following pages
we explain how we have been addressing
them and the progress we have made

Since my last report to you we have
announced the retirements from the
Board of Anthony Rabin and Robert
Walvis and, most recently, the impending
retirement of fan Tyler

Anthony retired after 17 years with
the Group, 10 as a Director He was
instrumental in establishing Balfour Beatty
Capital, now the Infrastructure Investrents
dwision and ane of the Group's key
value generators Over the years he
brought tremendous knowledge
and experience to the Group and
played a pivotal role in shaping
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our direction and growth and | thank him
for his significant contribution

Robert retired after 11 years on the Board,
latterly as Senior Independent Director
He also chaired our Remuneration
Committee for several years, during
which he displayed independent
leadership in the development of
executive remuneration policy and its

fair and consistent application | thank him
for hts wise counsel and the contribution
he has made to Board discussions
Through his tenure as a non-executive
Dtrector he brought robust challenge and
entique to the Board's deliberations and
provided an effective sounding board

to me and the other Directors

In January 2013 we announced that

lan Tyler would hand over to Andrew
McNaughton as Chief Executive On
behalf of the Board and our shareholders,
| want to say a huge thank you to lan for
his outstanding contribution during his
16-year career with Balfour Beatty,
including erght years as Chief Executive
It 1s testament to his leadership that
Balfour Beatty has the depth of
management talent to ensure a

smooth succession

To build on the strong platform that has
been created and to lead the business
through the next stage of its strategic
develepment, the Board has made

two appointments

in July 2012 we named Maureen
Kempston Darkes as a non-sxecutive
Director With our increasing focus on
market sectors and growth geographies,
the considerable experence Maureen has
already brought to Board discussions in
these areas has added strength and depth
as we enter our next phase of growth

Finally, the Board 15 delighted that a leader
of Andrew McNaughton's calibre has
developed from wathin the business and 1s
now ready to take over as Chief Executive
Andrew has a deep understanding of

our customers and operations, and the
relentless drnive necessary to deliver

the strategy that he has been intimaiely
involved in developing

Diversity

In 2011 the Board approved the
development of a Group approach to
diversity and inclusion Our aim Is to build




on the wide range of good practice in the
organisation to stimulate further progress
and recognition by sharing best practice
and coordinating activity across the Group

Recognising the compelling business case
for promoting diversity in the Group, not
only to help us reach into new markets but
also to retain and attract talent, we have
focused initially on gender diversity

To move this forward in 2012, we
appointed Andrew McNaughton as
executive sponsor of activities to raise
awareness of diversity, agreed a series of
targets and reviewed our key policies and
procedures This review generated an
integrated Group and divisional action plan
and established a Group baseling analysis
of diversity in the workforce and leadership

A three-year diversity programme of
action steps and publicly reported targets
1s included in our 2013-2015 sustainability
roadmap Woe have also reported the
percentage of senior leadership posts held
by womaen, the percentage of women in
the workforce, the divisional diversity
targets and actions achieved in 2012

In the past year we have appointed our
first female Board member and our first
female managing director {(in Balfour
Beatty Living Places) We have launched a
UK wornen’s affinity network, Connecting
Women, and received Bronze Awards
from Opportunity Now and Race for
Opportunity We hope to build on these
as we progress with the implementation
of our action plan

Accountability

We believe that the Company’s policies
and procedures enable the Board to
present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's trading
position and its prospects

Through 2012 the Board continued to
develop i1ts thinking on the business
strategy and model, and how the
organisation can best be structured to
achieve its growth ambitions in a trading
environment that remains difficult

This work has crystalised into a clearly
defined business strategy, explamnead

in detall on pages 12 and 13 and pages
16 to 23, focused on growth markets
and the creation of a robust organisational
structure which will be fully implemented
dunng 2013

Remuneration

Over the coming few months the
Remuneration Committee will be making
its own assessment of whether the
current remuneration policy and incentive
arrangements remain appropnate as the
Group evolves its business strategy and
organisational structure If the Committee
believes changes are needed, we will
begin forma! consuitation with major
shareholders towards the end of 2013 In
order to put proposals to all shareholders
at the May 2014 AGM We will repart an
the Committee’s review findings in our
next annual report, whether or not
changes are thought necessary

Relations with shareholders

Among other stakeholders, engagement
with our Investors remains critically
important In 2012 it again received a
considerable amount of attention Further
information on our investor relations
programme IS given on pages 79 and 80

In last year's governance report, | said
we were looking to increase the levels of
shareholding among US investors, since
a signihcant proportion of our overall
business I1s conducied in the US or
driven from the US headguarters of our
Professional Services business We also
employ over 10,000 people in the US

I 'am very pleased 1o report that, as

a conseguence of our increased
commitment of resources and time to
Investor communication in the US and
through cur ADR programme launched in
July 2012, the percentage of our issued
share capital held by US investors has
grown from 15% to just over 18%

Steve Marshall
Chairman

www halfourbeatty com

Our Governance | Charrman’s Statement

s

In 2012 we appointed
our first female Board
member and our first
female managing
director We also
launched a new UK
women'’s affinity
network and received
Bronze Awards from
Opportunity Now and
Race for Opportunity.

The Bengalla
Expansion Project
in Australia

The AUS$190 million {£122
million) project which was
delivered on time and under
the approved budget involved
three main contracts civil
works, coal handling and
preparation plant (CHPF)
upgrade, and the mining
infrastructure area upgrade
The scope of work included
two additional heavy vehicle
workshop bays, expansion of
the bathhouse, extenston of
existing offices, increased car
parking capacity, improved
outdoor stores facilities,
upgraded heavy vehicle
wash station, and oilfwater
separation plant

www balfourbeatty com/
professionalservices
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Board of Directors

Chairman and
executive Directors

1 Steve Marshall

Non-executive Chairman

Age 66 Appointed a Director in 2005
and Chairman in May 2008 He s
non-executive chairman of Wincanton plc
and a non-executive director of Halma
plc He s aformer charman of Delta,
Torex Retall and Queens’ Moat Houses
He was chief executive of Thorn and of
Railtrack Group, having also served as
group finance director at each company
His earlier career included a wide range
of corporate and operational roles at
Grand Metropolitan, Black & Decker,
BOC and Burton Group He s a

Fellow of the Chartered Instiiute

of Management Accountants

2 lan Tyler

Chief Executive

Age 52 A Director since 1999, he became
Chief Executive in January 2005, having
been Chief Operating Officer since

2002 and prior to that, Finance Director
He joined Balfour Beatty in 1996 from
the Hanson Group where he was finance
director of ARC, one of 1ts principal
subsidiaries He 1s a non-executive
director of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc and a former

nan-executive director of VT Group He 1s
president of Construction Industry Relief,
Assistance and Support for the Homeless
Ltd, the construction and property
industry charity for the hormeless, and
charrman of governors of Woldingham
School He 1s a chartered accountant

3 Andrew McNaughton

Deputy Chief Executive &

Chief Operating Officer

Age 49 Appointed to the Board as Chief
QOperating Officer in 2009, he addiuonally
assumed the role of Deputy Chiet
Executive in July 2012 He joined Balfour
Beatty in 1997, having spent 12 years with
the Kier Group, and held the position of
managing director of Balfour Beatty Civil
Engineenng from 2004 10 2007, when he
became Group managing director with
responsibiity for emvil engineering in the
UK and the Group's interasts in the Middle
East He s a Fellow of the Instutution of
Cwil Engineers, a Liveryman in the
Worshipful Company of Engineers and

a vice-president of the Instrtution of

Civil Engineers

4 Duncan Magrath

Chief Financial Officer

Age 48 Appointed to the Board 1n 2008
He joined Balfour Beatty in 2006 as
deputy finance director from Exel
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He spent 13 years at Exel in a nurmber of
sentor finance roles in both the UK and
US, latterly as director of investor relations
and financial strategy Prior to this he
worked at Price Waterhouse He s a
non-executive director of Brammer plc
and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants

5 Peter Zinkin

Planning and Development Director
Age 59 Joned the Group in 1981 and
became Planning and Development
Director in 1991 after a senes of senior
positions i the finance function He s
responsible for the Group’s merger,
acquisition and divestment activitres
as well as the development of Group
strategy Previously, he worked at the
London Busmess School and UMIST
He 1s a governor of Birkbeck College,
University of London

Non-executive Directors

6 Robert Amen

Non-executive Director

Age 63 Appointed a Director in 2010
Until 2009, he was ¢hairman and chief
executive officer of International Flavors
& Fragrances Inc ("IFF"} Pnor to joining
IFF 1n 2008, he spent over 25 years at
International Paper Company In a



succession of roles culminating in his
appointment as president and member
of the board He was also a director of
Wyeth, the US pharmaceutical and
healthcare company, until its acquisition
by Pfizer in October 2009 He s a
non-executive director of New Page
Corporation, a US manufacturer of
coated papers, and currently serves as
an exacutive-in-residence at Columbia
Bustness School

7 Mike Donovan

Non-executive Director

Age b9 Appointed a Director In 2006 He
was chief operating officer of Marcon
from 2001 to 2005 Prior to that, he was
chief executive officer of Marcon:
Systems and was previously responsible
for managing major divisions of Bntish
Aerospace, Vickers and the Rover Group

8 lain Ferguson CBE

Senior Independent Director

Age 57 Appointed a Director in 2010
Until 2009, he was chief executive of
Tate & Lyle Prior to joining Tate & Lyle
I 2003, he spent 26 years at Unilever in
a succession of roles culminating in his
appointment as senior vice-president,
corporate development He s non-
executive chairman of Berendsen plc and
a non-executive director of Greggs plc

He 15 also chairman of Wilton Park,

an indepeandent and non-profit making
Executive Agency of the Bntish Foreign
and Commonwealth Office and lead
independent director at the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affarrs
He was formerly a non-executive direcior
of Sygen International

9 Maureen Kempston Darkes
Non-executive Director

Age 64 Appointed a Director in July 2012
She joined General Motors Corporation in
1975 and held a number of progressively
senior roles dunng her time with the
business, culminating in her appointment
as group vice-president for General
Motors’ Latin America, Africa and

Middle East operations She retired from
General Motors in 2003 She has a
portfolio of non-executive directarships
including Brookfield Asset Management,
Bridgepoint Health Foundation, Enbridge
Ing, Irving O)) Company and Canadian
National Rallways

10 Hubertus Krossa

Non-executive Director

Age 85 Appointed a Director in 2008
Lintil 2008, he was chief executive officer
of KION Group, a leading international

matenal handling equipment manufacturer

Prior to that, he spent seven years on the
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main board of Linde AG, the worldwide
producer and supplier of industrial and
medical gases He was previously a
member of the European management
board of Whirtpool Europe and was

also charrman of its German operating
company, and has previously held
nen-executive directorships in the UK for
Wassall and Thorn Lighting Group He s
currently chairman of the supervisory
boards of Eckelmann and Bauknecht
Hausgeraete, deputy charrman of United
Power Technology and an advisory board
rnember of Kepler Capital Market
Investment Bank

11 Graham Roberts

Non-executive Director

Age 54 Appointed a Director in 2009

He 1s chief executive of Assura Group, a
UK pnimary healthcare property company
and was formerly finance director of The
British Land Company between 2002 and
2011 Pnor to that, he spent eight years at
Andersen, latterly as a partner spectalising
in the real estate and government services
sectors He s a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants

www balfourbeatty com
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Directors’

Compliance with the Code

The UK Corporate Governance Code 2010
{the Codel 15 the standard applying to
good corporate governance practice in the
UK and the Financial Services Authonty
requires listed companies to disclose
whether they have complied with the
provisions of the Code throughout the
financial year Further information on

the Code is pubiicly avallable on the
Financial Reporting Council’'s website

at www frc org uk

The Company has complied with the
requirements of the Code throughout the
accounting penod, other than In respect
of the effectivaness of the Group's
whistleblowing procedures which 1s kept
under review by the Businass Practices
Committee and not by the Audit
Committee The principal reason for this
1s that the Business Practices Committee,
In parucular, focuses on the Company's
business conduct, 1ts ethics and values,
ensuring that procedures exist for
employees 1o raise congcerns In
confidence and 1s an integral element

in its overall remit However, the Audit
Committee I1s kept informed of any
allegations of fraud or poor financial
controls and internal audit participates

In investigations into such claims

and reports to the Audit Committee

on the outcome

Director’s independence

At its Board meeting in March 2013,
as part of its annual audit of corporate
governance, the Board considered the
independence of the non-executive
Drrectors against the criteria specified
in the Code and determined that each
of them continues to be independent

Report

The Board

The Board currently comprises 11
Directors, of whom seven, including the
Charrman, are nan-executive Detals of
the changes durnng the year can be found
under the heading *Board composition”
below The Directors believe that the
Board continues to include an appropriate
halance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the
Company and retains the ability to provide
effective leadership to the Group

Board composition

The names of the Directors at the year
end are shown on pages 64 and 65
together with brnief biographical detalls
Full details of Directors’ service
agreements, emoluments and share
Interests are shown in the Remuneration
Report starting on page 82

Maureen Kempston Darkes was
appointed as a non-executive Director on
11 July 2012 Anthony Rabin and Robert
Walwis retired from the Board on 30 June
and 31 December 2012 respectively

Each of the Directors brings skills and
experience which enhance the quality

of debate in the boardroom and provides
guidance The Directors believe that the
Board continues to Inglude an appropriate
balance of skills and retains the ability to
provide effective leadership There are,
however, specific areas where the
non-exacutive Directors, in particular,
bring with them a wealth of insight and,
although not exhaustive, some of therr
most significant strengths are highlighted
on page 67
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Board balance

1 Charman

2 Executive Directors

3 Non-executive Directors

Board tenure

1 0-1 year
2 2-3vyears
3 4-byears
4 6+ years

Board geography

1 UK
2 Europe
3 Amencas
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Non-executive Directors - sigmificant strengths
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Strategic
development

Robart Amen
Mike Donovan

Operating
performance
and delivery

Robert Amen

Mergers and
acquisitions

Robert Amen
Mike Donavan

Business
integration

Maureen
Kempston Darkes

Financial
management
and planning

Rabert Amen

2| lain Ferguson | lan Farguson Maureen Hubertus Krossa [ Steve Marshall

Maureen Huberts Krossa Kempston Darkes Graham Roberts

Kernpston Darkes Steve Marshall Graham Roberts

Hubertus Krossa

Stava Marshall

Graham Roberts
Ethics, values Stakeholder HR Risk Health and Experience of
and culture engagement management management safety International

Mike Donovan
Steve Marshall
Graham Roberts

Mike Donovan

tain Ferguson
Maureen Kempston
Darkes

Steve Marshall

l&—

lain Fergusen and assurance

Maureen Kempston [—
Darkes
Steve Marshall

e—1

Robart Amen
Mike Danovan
Graham Raberts

6

Mike Dongvan markets

lain Ferguson
Hubertus Krossa
Stave Marshall

Robert Amean
lain Ferguson
Mauraen
Kempston Darkes
Hubertus Krossa

Matters reserved for the Board

The Board 1s coliectively responsible for
the success of the Company and has a
formal schedule of matters reserved for
its decision which includes the matters
summarised helow

determining the Group's strategic
direction

approving annual budgets and financial
reporting, including the annual and
half-year results and intenm
management statements

approving intenm, and recommending
final, dvidends

approving major acquisitions, disposals
and capital expenditure

ensuring the necessary financial and

human resources are in place to achieve

objectives and raview managsment
performance

satting the Company's values and
ethical standards

approving policies and systems for
nsk management and assurance

The Board reviewed 1ts list of reserved
matters in 2012 and, most recently, at
its meeting in March 2013 The terms
of reference of the Board and the Board
Committees are avallable on request from
the Company Secretary and are afso
displayed on the Company’s websiie
www balfourbeatty com Descrptions
of the specific responsibilities which
have been delegated to the principal
Board Committees are also provided
onpages 72to0 77

Chairman and Chief Executive

The two roles are complementary The
Chairman 1s responstble for managing
the business of the Board, whilst the
Chief Executive actually runs the
business As the senior executive officer
of the Company, the Chief Executive I1s
responsible to the Charrman and Beard
for directing and pnontising the profitable
operation and development of the Group
The Chairman and Chief Executive keep
each other approprately informed on the
other’s current activities

Specifically, their roles comprise
the principal responsibilities in the
sections following

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Chairman’s responsibilities

* Ensuring effective strategic
planning 1s undertaken by the
executive Directors

* Ensuring corporate governance
1$ properly mantaimed

* Formally appraising the performance
of tha Chief Executive and
reviewing with the Chief Executive
his views on the performance of
the other executive Directors

s Provichng teadership to the Board

& Acting as senior ambassador
for the Company

* Considenng Board balance,
composition and succession

* Ensuring the smooth operation
of the Board and its Committees

* Prowding effective communication
between the Board and 1ts
shareholders

Steve Marshall spends an average of
two days a week on the business of
the Company The Board 1s satisfied
that his role as non-executive
chairman of Winc¢anton ple, and

his other business and chantable
commitments, can be accommaodated
without hindering his ability to carry
out his duties as Chatrman

687

AMMIUIAND IR



Our Governance | Directors’ Report

Chief Exacutive’s responsibilities

* Strategy development and the
stewardship of phystcal, financial
and human resources

¢ Group operational and financial
performance

Exscutive leadership

Health, safety and environmental
performance

+ Corporate values and ethics

* Objective setting for the senior
management team

¢ Organisational structure, successton
and talent management

s Major capital expenditure
priornitisation and allocation
of resources

e Consideration of acquisitions,
disposals and financing

¢ Stakeholder management

Senior Independent Director

On 10 May 2012, lain Ferguson
succeeded Robert Walwis as the Senior
Independent Director, and his principal
responsibilities are to ensure that the
views of the other non-executive
Directors are properly considered and
to provide an additional communication
channel between the non-executive
Directors and the shareholders and other
stekeholders, as required Mr Ferguson
will meet with the other non-executive
Directors without the Chairman or
executive Directors being present

at least once a year

Directors’ interests

No Director had any matenal interest

In any contract of significance with the
Group during the perod under review
The Directors have pui in place procedures
to ensure the Board collectively and the
Directors individually comply wath the
disclosure requirements on conflicts of
interest set out in the Companies Act
2006 Atits meeting each January, a
formal declaration of interests 1s reviewed
by the Board

The interests of Directors in the share
capital of the Company and its subsidiary
undertakings and their interests under
the long term incentive scheme {the
Performance Share Plan), the Deferred
Bonus Plan, the Share Incentive Plan and
share options, are set out in the tables In
the Remuneration Report commencing
on page 82

Directors’ indemnities

The Company grants an indemnity to all
of 1ts Directors to the extent permitted
by law These indemnity amounts are
uncapped In relation to losses and
liabilities which Dirgctors may incur to
third parties in the course of actingas a
Director of the Company, or in any office
where such dutes are performed at the
request of the Board, oras a result of therr
appointment as Directors
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Board meetings

Procedures for Board meetings remain
largely unchanged from previous years
Since the beginning of 2011, the Board
has been using an electronic portal to
receive papers and to share information
{see "Board portal” on page 70) The
Company Secretary 1s responsible for
advising the Board on appropriate
governance matters, ensuring good
information flow and ensuring that Board
procedures are followed He also provides
updates on legal matters of relevance to
the Group and 15 available to individual
Directors for advice on Board procedures

2012 meeting programme

In 2012 eight Board meetings were held
at the Company's head office, whilst two
meetings were held elsewhere in London
and one was held in Hong Kong The
meeting in Hong Kong provided the
Directors with the opportunity to meet
management and staff at Gammon, the
Group's Hong Kong joint venture and at
Parsons Brinckerhoff Included in the visit
were presentations on the businesses
and the principal strategic 1ssues each
faces There was also a wider review

of potential opportunities for the Group

in Asian markets

Each Board meeting normally lasts four
to five hours but ¢an be longer

On the evening preceding a Board
meeting, the Directors generally meet

for dinner and sometimes take the
opportunity to discuss predetermined
developrmental themes, led by one of

the executive Directors, other senior
managers or a specialist external speaker
For example, in 2012, the themes included
investor relations and public affars One
of the dinners each year 1s attended by
the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors only, whilst a second includes
the Chief Executive, but none of the other
executive Directors




Each meeting addresses key strategic
topics for the Group which enable the
Directors to engage In In-depth reviews
The Board also reviews at each of its
meetings monthly updates from the Chief
Executive, Deputy Chief Executive & Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Otficer Regular reports are also provided
on health, safety and environment,
operational perfarmance, corporate
communications, nsk management and
assurance, investor relations and any legal
1ssues At each meeting, the chairmen of
the various Board Committees provide a
summary of the discussions held at the
preceding Committee meeting and the key
actions anising The following topics were
also addressed by the Board during 2012
under each of the themes shown For
clanty, a synopsis of certain of the topics
has been included as well

The Board specifically addressed the
Chief Executive's objectives for 2012
which identified those key tasks over and
above his normal responsibihties, which
include ensuring that the Group achieves
its overall budget performance Where
appropriate, each of the objectives had
identified milestones and each one was
integral in moving the organisation
forward along its stated strategic path
Specific objectives incfuded the
development of the market sector
structure and market entry strategies,
development of the Middle East, the
pursuit of the four principal efficiency
projects across the Group, the operating
capability of the Rall business and the
continued development and progress

of the Zaro Harm safety programme

The Chief Executive succession and
management of the transition to his
successor was also discussed by
the Board

Finance

¢ Budgets 2012 and 2013

+ Annual and half-year results
* Pensions

¢ Group Insurances

* Financing capacity and options —
future cash needs of the Group
and vanious financ¢ing options,
including convertible bonds and
private placements

Qperational performance

* Health and safety - performance
across the Group and the status
of the Zero Harm programme

» Efficiency programme — reviews of
each of the four pnncipal divisional
cost reduction and efficiency
prograrnmes and monitoring the:r
prograss aganst predetermined
measures and milestones

+ Business reviews — operating
performance against budget and
strategic plan, nsks and opportunities
and matters such as Health & Safety,
people developrnent and
sustainability, including

- International (Middle East, India,
Braail, Australia)

- Construction Services UK

— Professional Services

— Rail

— Infrastructure Investments

HR
¢ Chief Executive succession

* People planning, talent, diversity
and succession management -
review of detalled divisional
management succession plans, the
encouragement of cross-divisional
and cross-geographical moves
and diversity and inclusion policies
and practices across the Group,
including associated action plans
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Strategy

¢ Group strategy development and
structuring options — development
of the business model to enable
the organisation to operate as an
integrated services group as the
most effective way to enhance
shareholder value Consideration
was given to the shape of the
operating model and the
identification and development of
geographies and market sectors
{a recurring topic throughout 2012)

¢ Infrastructure fund — having
established a funds management
business, the infrastructure fund
will enable the Group to utilise a
combination of infrastructure asset
knowledge, skills and expenence to
earn a superior return on capital, as
well as adviscry fees The Board
receved progress updates on how
this business was progressing
leading up to the first close
announced in January 2013

+ Approval of PPP asset disposals
in 2012

-~ North Lanarkshire schools
— Health Management {University
College London Hospitaly

A UARADG TN

Mergers, acquisitions
and divestments

e Acquisiticn of Subsurface Group in L
the US — power and energy sector
professional services business

e Other opportunities — review of
other acquisition opportunities

For 2013, the Board will meet eight
times One mesting wili focus on the
development of the strategic plan At
least one meeting will probably be held
outside London at one of the Group's
business units
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2012 Board and Board Committee meetings
Detalls of the number of meetings and attendance at the Board meetings and meetings of the Audit, Business Practices, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees during the year are set out In the foliowing table

Name of Director Board Audit Busingss Practices Nomination Remunaratian
Robert Amen 111 5({8) 4 {4) 3 {4

Michael Donovan 11 (1) 515 4 {4) 4 (4)

lain Ferguson 111 2 {4) 3 (4) 5 {5}
Maureen Kempston Darkes 5 (6) 0{2) 1{1)

Hubertus Krossa 10 (1) 5({5) 4 {4) 3 (4} 5 (B)
Duncan Magrath 1M {11

Steve Marshall 1M {1 4 {4) 4 (4) 5{5)
Andrew McNaughton 1 (11

Anthony Rabin 5 (5)

Graham Roberts 11 {11) 5 {5} 4 {4) 5(5)
lan Fyler 1 {11) 4 (4)

Robert Walvis 10 (11} 4 {5) 4 {4) 318}
Peter Zinkin 10 (11

The number shown In brackets is the total number of meetings the Director could attend durning the year {including as a result of

changes to Committee memberships)

Non-attendance at meetings was due to iliness or prior business commitments In each case, where the Directors have not been able
to attend a Board or Committee meeting, they have reviewed the papers circulated for that meeting and provided therr comments
directly to the Chairman, or the Committee chairman, as appropriate As Mrs Kempston Darkes only joined the Board part way through
the year, meatings she missed were atinbutable to business engagements which had been made prior to her appointment to the Board

Any Director who is not a Committee member has an open invitation to attend any Committee meeting and a nurnber of the Directors

take this opportuntty

Further information about the work of each of the Board s Committees may be found on pages 72 to 77 and 82 to 98

Board portal

Board papers are distnbuted by way

of a secure electronic portal, thereby
reducing cost and environmental impact
Documents are made avallable on the
portal at least three business days in
advance of the meeting The portal has
helped to improve Board operating
efficiencies by enabling the Directors to
recelve papers quickly and to review these
at any ime convenient to them It houses
a secure reading room in which key data
and documents are kept This reading
raom Is maintained by the Company
Secretary and regularly updated
Information held in the reading room
includes audit, market and competitor
data, strategy papers, investor relations
and analysts’ reports, as well as the
Group’s principal policies relating to HR,
compliance, and health and safety

Board development

Induction

Directors undertake a thorough induction
programme and receive a range of
information about the Company when
they join the Board, including access to
the Board portal, which includes Balfour
Beatty's Code of Conduct, processes for
dealing in Balfour Beatty shares and
Board procedures, as well as the minutes
and papers of past Board and Board
Committee meetings In addition they
also take part in a series of one-to-one
meetings with other members of the
Board and sentor executives which include
briefings on the Company’s business
strategy, financial procedures, busingss
development, legal and other key issues

In the case of Mrs Kempston Darkes, this
process commenced immediately prior to
her appointment on 11 July 2012 and was
completed in January 2013 Durning her
induction she met with the senior
executives in each of the divisions and
functional heads at Group head ofiice

She also attended meetings and site visits
in Dallas {Construction Services USand
New York (Parscons Brinckerhoff)

70  Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Professional development

In discussion with the Directors and
Company Secretary each year, the
Chairman determines whether there are
any specific traning needs identified by
the Directors which can be addressed
either by the topic being included at a
future Board meeting or on a one-to-one
basis Directors are also enrolled in the
Deloitte Academy, a seminar-led
programme for main board directors of UK
listed companies, which provides regular
updates throughout the year on the
principal governance and other matters
of which directars of a hsted company
should be fully aware

The Directors’ induction programme also
prowvides the foundation for continuing
professional development This takes
place throughout the year by way of a
series of internal and external updates,
including visits to operating companies
to meet local management and visits to
Balfour Beatty projects, both in the UK
and overseas

Normally, such wvisits take place for each
non-executive Director four times each
year, although some Directors have not
been able to attend all the wisits whilst
others have been able 1o participate In
maore of themn




During 2012, the non-executive Directors
visited the Eagle P3 commuter rail project
in Denver a US3$2 4 billion project to
engineer, builld and operate 35 miles

of new lines under the first rail public
private partnership in the US, which
demonstrates the integrated capabilities
of Parsons Brinckerhoff and the Group's
US rail business

.

The non-executive Directors also attended
an internal seminar on the power and
renewables markets where they received
presentations from semor management
and subject experts across several
businesses and geographies The semmar
included an analysis of the global power
rmarket, the Group's current power
capabtlities, power networks (including
transmission) and power generation
{including nuctear and wind} This enabled
the non-executive Directors to engage

Theme

Board size and composition,
Director knowledge and diversity

directly with senior management
concerning the development of the
Group’s capabilities m a market sector
that1s an area of significant strategic
importance for the Group

In 2013, four visits are planned for the
nen-executive Directors which will
concentraie, as in previous years, on key
strategic topics The first wisit has been
organised in the UK and will focus on
power transmission One of the four
visits 1n 2013 will be outside the UK

Board evaluation

Introduction

In keeping with the Code, the Board
receives external evaluations normally
every three years, with internal
evaluations in the intervening two years
The last external evaluation was carned
out In 2010

Evaluation

The Board was thought to be marginally

on the large size, but this was not an issue
A greater mix of gender, emerging markets
experience, HR and complex matrix
organisational experience should be sought
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For 2013, an external provider has been
engaged to carry out the Board evaluation,
the output of this will be reported in 2014

2012 evaluation

For 2012, the Board conducted 1ts own
internal evaluation using an online
structured questionnaire covering the
operation of the Board and 1ts principal
Committees Questionnaires were also
1ssued, In the case of each of the Board
Committees, to those other participants
who regularly attend these meetings
The guestionnaires were supplemented
by indwidual interviews with the Directors
carned out by the Company Secretary
and the emerging key themes were
summarised and presented to the Board
in April 2012

The principal themes ansing from the
2012 Board evaluation are set out below

Status

The appointment of Mrs Kempston
Darkes as a non-executive Director added
valuable emerging markets knowledge
and matnx organisational experience to
the Board's combined experience as

well as addressing, in part, the diversity
objectives set out In the Lord Davies
Report on Women on Boards published
in June 2011

Board papers and presentations

Generally, a greater emphasis on trend
information, key performance indtcators
(KPls) and measurable objectives was
sought and, in some cases, the timeliness
of papers

New format Group KPI report presented
to the Board on a monthly basis Board
papers are 1ssued via the Board portal
on the Fnday before the Board or Board
Committee meeting

Strategic development

Certain improvements were SOUght in the
strategy review process

A sigrificant proportion of the Board's
agenda during 2012 was given to the
development of the Group’s business
rnodel, operating structure and overall
strategy The Directors considered
that the strategic planning and Board
engagement process has improved
significantly during the year

Operational performance

Key performance indicators were identified
{o support analysis of the business

Group KPI report 1ssued monthly
Reviewed and monitored the Chief
Executive's objectives Regular business
reviews frormn the Deputy Chief Executive
and Chief Operating Officer and each

of the dwvisional CEOs

Risk management and assurance

There was a need for the Board to define
its risk appetite and to define clearly those
nsks for which 1t took direct management
responsibibty, as opposed to providing
oversight alone

Although work 1n progress and to be
further developed through 2013, the
Board and Audit Committee have received
a series of detaled business reviews
during the year focusing, in part, on
operating performance, nsk and assurance
across the divisions

Succession planning and evaluation

Board to be made aware of the Chief
Executive's annual objectives and clear
reporting against each of thermn

Reviewed and monitored the Chief
Executive’s objectives as well as a
focus 1n 2013 on managing the Chief
Executive succession and ensuring
a smoaoth transition
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Audit Committee

The Committee's focus in
2012 on risk management
and assurance reviews
will be maintained through
this year,

Graham Roberts — chairman

Meetingsin 2012 5

Members

+ Graham Roberts — chairman

* Robert Amen

* Mike Donovan

* Hubertus Krossa

¢ Robert Walvis (to 31 December 2012)

Responsibilities

* Financial statements

¢ Financal controls

= External audit

* |nternal audit

* Risk managerent and assurance

The terms of reference for the
Commuittee are based on the Guidance
on Audit Committees 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council The man
responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are summarnsed below

+ monitor the integnity of the financial
statements of the Group and any
formal announcements relating to
the Group's financial performance

s raview the Group’s internal controls
established to idenufy, assess, manage
and monitor risks, and recerve reports
from managerment on the effectiveness
of the systems they have established
and the conclusions of any testing
carned out by the internal audit function
and external auditor

monitor and review the effectiveness
of the internal audit function including
1ts work prograrmme

make recommeandations to the Board

In relation to the appointment of the
external auditor and approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor

assess the independence, objectivity
and effectiveness of the external auditor
and develop and implemasnt policy on
the engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services

Graham Roberts, a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants and a former
partner at Andersen and finance director
of The Brnitish Land Company PLC, has
been identified by the Board as having
recent and relevant financial expenence
Minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated 1o all Board members

Partners from the external auditor, the
Head of Group Risk Management and
Assurance, and the Chief Financial Officer
regularly attend each meeting Inaddition,
any mdependent non-executive Director
who 1s not a Committee member has an
open Invitation to attend meetings The
Comnuttee also invites other executives
from within the Group to participate in
Committee discussions, most notably

in 2012 the chief executive officerand
finance director of Construction Services
UK and the chief executive officer of the
Professional Services division

In 2012, the Committee's work
programme included the following
principal topics In addition 1o the standing
agenda items which comprise reports on

* accounting, financial and regulatory
1ssues

review of ngn-audit work carned out
by the external auditors, and ther fees

risk management activiies and
compliance

¢ implementaton of and progress against
the Group assurance plan

February

{two meetings held in this month)

* 2011 annual report and accounts and
preliminary results announcement -
consideration of revenue and margin
recognition, the carrying value of
goodwill and other intangible assets,
the accounting treatment of the
Barking Power sale and the status of
provisions Review of the proposed
Investor presentations and proposed
final dividend
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+ Key contract valuation and accounting
Judgements

+ Directors’ valuation of PPP concessions
— the composition of the Directors’
valuation including the application of
the pre shareholder tax discount rate

& (Going concern review —reaching a
conclusion that there was a reasonable
assumption that the Group had
adequate resources to continue for
the foreseeable future

* Incidents of dishonest acts —
confirmation that there were no
systemic or matena! breakdowns in
controls across the Group

Annual review of internal audit work
and findings

Directors expenses — confirmation
of the process adopted for approving
expenses and subsequent audit

June

¢ External audst and intenm review plan
for 2012, audit fees and assessment of
2011 audit process — a detailed review
of the audit scope and plans for the year
and an assessment of the proposed
audit and non-audit fees

* Risk management and assurance
review Construction Services UK —
a presentation by the chief executive
officer and finance director with a
specific focus on the efficiency and
cost savings programme

August

¢ 2012 half-year financial report —
consideration was given to projects
where 1solated contract deteriorations
and contractual 1ssues had ansen

» Key contract valuation and accounting
judgements

» Major lugation and legal update

December

* External audit plan for 2013 and audit
fees - a detailled review of the audit
scopé and ptans, and an assessment of
the proposed audit and non-audnit fees

* Internal audit plan for 2013 - a detalled
review of the scope and priorities for
the internal audit function for the year

*

Major iigation and legal update

Risk managernent and assurance
review Professional Services —an
assessment of the key nsks which the
division faced and how these varied
across each of its regions The nisk




management protocols in place across
each of the business units to mitigate

against the principal nsks and how the
assurance processes were functioning
and lessons learnt

* Oracle R12 update — a review of
the programme, the methods
applied and coests incurred and the
assurance protocols which had been
implemented to assist with overall
project management and achievernent
of milestones

& Rall —issues which had led to
shortcomings on a UK rail project,
how the learning was being recorded
and appled elsewhere across the
business and confirmation sought that
reviews had been completed on other
projects and that no systemic issues
had been identified

+» Committee terms of reference —
review and recommend any changes

s |IFRS accounting training session —
a separate training session This
addressed contract accounting and
the different nsk profiles associated
with the various contract structures
employed across the Group

In 2013, the Commuittee will continue to
address the topics on its standing agenda
and will also continue to undertake
reviews of the risk management and
assurance practices in the divisions on a
rolling programme The Committee will
also continue to receive targeted training
In order to broaden and refresh the skills
and knowledge of 1ts members

Risk management and internal control
Throughout 2012, the Committee has
continued to review the Group's nsk
management and internal control
systems and processes and paid close
attention to 1solated operational delivery
1Issues which have ansen during the

year and the remedial action which has
been taken As a result, the Committee
recommended to the Board that it

could properly conclude that the Group
continued to maintain sound systems of
risk managernent and internal control and
that a review of the effectivenass of
these systems had been completed

External auditor independence

and effectivenass

The Committee carnies out a formal
review each year to assess the
independence and effectiveness of the
external auditor, Deloitte LLP The
Committee has recommended that the
Board proposes to shareholders that

Deloitte LLP continues as the Company’s
external auditor, having satisfied 1tself

of 1ts iIndependence In reaching its
conclusion, the Committee took into
consideration the following matters

Non-audit work

The chjective set out In the Company's
policy 1s to ensure that the external
auditor 1s not placed in a position
where Its Independence 1s, or might be
seen to be, compromised Under no
circumstances will any assignment be
given to the external auditor, when the
result I1s that

* as part of the statutory audit, st
1s required to report directly on
non-audit work

& 1t makes management decisions on
behalf of the Group

* It acts as advocate for the Group

+ the leve! of non-audit fees 1s such,
relative to audit fees, as to raise
concerns about 1ts ability to form
objective judgements

The Company’s policy identifies the
various types of non-audit services and
determines the analysis to be undertaken
and level of authority required before the
external audiior can be considered to
undertake such services Included within
such analysis 1s consideration of the

cost and efficiency benefits as well as
the real or perceived threats 1o auditor
independence

There 15 no incensistency between the
Financial Reporting Council's ethical
standards and the Company's poficy

In 2012 the external auditor was
appointad to carry out various non-audit
related work, Including corporate finance
services for reasons of commercial
confidentiality and efficiency, as well

as providing tax advice and compliance
services in Australia, Europe, india and
the US

The Committee considers that the
Company receives particular benefits,
mncluding those relating to cost, quality
and consistency, from the advice
provided by its external auditor, given
its wide and detalled knowledge

of the Group and its international
operations There can also be savings
In management time and accelerated
delivery of work in situations where
rapd turnaround 1s required The
majority of non-audit related work
was carred out using the services of
other major international audit firms
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Annualinternal assessment

A detailed assessment of the previous
year's external audit process, together
with any dentified improvement
recommendations Is prepared each year
Each division and operating company
within the Group 1s required to evaluate
the performance of the assigned
external audit team and to compare that
performance against the previous year

External auditor’'s assessment

An assessment was carried out by the
external auditor in consultation with the
operating companies using a structured
questionnare

The external auditor’s annual transparency
report for the year ended 31 May 2012
was reviewed This was prepared In
accordance with the provisions of the
Statutory Auditors {Transparency)
Instrument 2008 rmade by the Professional
Oversight Board (POB} of the Financial
Reporting Council

External auditor rotation

Audit partners are rotated every five
years The advisory partner changed in
2010 and the audit engagement partner
changed in 2011

A number of circumstances would lead
to consideration being given to carrying
out an audit tender review For example

* In circumstances where the external
auditor's performance had been
called into question, or where,
through the audit partner rotation
process, ho surtable replacement
had been identified

whare value for money consideratiens
had arisen

* where there was a real or perceived
threat to Independence

whaere conflict of interests had been
identified

* where 1ss5ues had been raised about
audit quality by a regulator

The Committee Is aware of regulations
and developing guidance n relation to
auditor tendering and rotation and wilt
consider the optimal timing of any tender
in the hight of emerging practice and

in the interests of shareholders
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Nominatron Committee

The transition to the

new Chief Executive and
assessing the implications
of the evolved business
strategy on the senior
leadership team, will be
key areas of focus in 2013,
Steve Marshall — chairman

Meetings in 2012 4

Members

= Steve Marshall — chairman
e Robert Amen

* Mike Donovan

¢ Jain Ferguson

* Maureen Kempston Darkes
{from 11 July 2012)
Hubertus Krossa

Graham Roberts

lan Tyler

Robert Walvis {to 31 December 2012}

Responsibilities

& Structure and composstion of Board

* Appointment of non-executive
Directors

® Succession planning and talent
management

In 2012, the Committee’s work
programme comprised the following
principal topics

¢ recommending to the Board the
appointment of 2 new non-executive
Director {Maureen Kempston Darkes)
and the appointment of a Deputy
Chief Executive {Andrew
McNaughton) and Senior Independent
Director {lain Ferguson} In seeking
suitable candidates for the non-
executive Director vacancy, Korn
Ferry, an external executive search
agency was engaged The Committee
identified the competences sought
and the required experience, and the
agency prepared a shortlist of
potential candidates who were
interviewed by members of the
Committee and by the executive
Directors

* as a critical part of the Chief Executive
succession process the Committee
undertook a detailled process to
assess competences required of
a chief executive given the strategic
direction of the Group, as well as
the internal succession options
for executive Directors and senior
operational and functional leaders
External benchmarking was camed
out by an executive search agency,
Korn Ferry, in relation to the role of
the Chief Executive The process
involved sectoral and company
mapping, the creation of experental
profiles and the identification
of agreed critical competences
Frameworks and learning/leadership
developrment tools were employed
in helping to determine the skills
and leadership/behavioural
critenia required

= management of the Chief Executive
8UCCESSIoN process
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The executive search agency appointed
for the recruitment of the non-executive
Director and for carrying out the
engagement on the Chief Executive’s
succession has no other connections
with Balfour Beatty

In 2013, the Committee will continue to
monitor the transition to the new Chief
Executive and the implications of the
evolved husiness strategy on senior
executive recruitment The Commitiee
will also continue to monitor the
appropriateness of the composition

of the Beard and, if thought necessary,
make recommendations concerning
the need for the introduction of
non-executive Directors to refresh

the Board




Remuneration Committee

Ensuring the current
remuneration policy and the
appropriateness of the short
and long term incentive
arrangements to properly
meet the needs of the
organisation, will be high
on the Committee’s agenda.
lain Ferguson ~ chairman

Meetings in 2012 &

Members

lain Ferguson - chairman

Hubertus Krossa

Steve Marshall

Graham Roberts

Robert Walwis {to 31 December 2012)

Responsibilities

* Remuneration strategy and policies
= Remuneration packages

s |ncentive plans

In 2012, the Committee’s work
programme compnsed the following
principal topics

January

» Executive Directors’ 2011 bonus -
consideration of the proposed
approach to calculating the bonus
payments for the 2011 financial results

* Executive Directors’ 2012 bonus
targets — setting targets for the year

* 2009 Performance Share Plan
performance conditions — an analysis
of the expected 2011 finanaial results
and whether the PSP performance
conditions would be achieved

* 2012 Performance Share Plan
performance conditions —
confirmation that the existing two
performance conditions (EPS and
TSR) should be maintained and
setting of targets

* 2011 Remuneration Report —
review of the draft report

March

e Executive Directors’ bonus payments
for 2011 and 2012 PSP awards - both
confirmed

« Barking Power — consideration on
how the impact of this asset disposal
to the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund
shoutd be treated in assessing future
PSP vestings

June

= Executive Directors’ 2012 salary
review — confirmation of adjusted
salaries based on benchmarking data
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October

» Executive remuneration market
update — presentation made by
New Bridge Street, the Committee’s
remuneration advisers, to take stock
of the Group's broad executive
remuneration strategy and to compare
this against market developments

December
¢ Chief Executive succession — update
from Chairman ahead of Board meeting

Further informauon about the work of
the Committee during the financial year
1S set out In the Remuneration Report
starting on page 82

In 2013, the Remuneration Committee
will undertake a formal review of the
current remuneration policy and the
appropnateness of the short and long
term incentive arrangernents, to
properly meet the needs of the
Company as 1t implements the next
phase of its business strategy If
changes are considered necessary,
the Committee will consubt with
sharehclders ahead of the AGMin 2014

Remuneration Report p82
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Business Practices Committee

In light of the strategic
review, the Committee
will be focusing this year
on reputational risk and
the adequacy of business
processes

Mike Donovan - chairman

Meetings in 2012 4

Members

Mike Donovan - chairman
Robert Amen

lain Ferguson

Maureen Kempston Darkes
{from 11 July 2012}

¢ Hubertus Krossa

¢ Steve Marshall

Responsihilities

* Corporate values, ethics and
Code of Conduct

Health and safaty
Stakeholder management
Sustainakulity
Whistleblowing

Community engagement

The Committee focuses significant
attention on health and safety, values,
ethics and compliance, and sustainability
The Committee also addresses the
Group's Code of Conduct and the
training which ensures that the Group's
business principles are properly
embedded throughout the business In
addition, duning the year, the Commiitee
took over responsibitity from the Audit
Commuttee for reviewing contract
COMMISSION arrangements

At each of its meeungs, the Committee
receves detalled updates on health and
safety performance and the current
status of the Group's Zero Harm safety
programme, including statistical data
and trends, accident reporting and high

potential Incidents, as well as occupational

health The Committee also reviews the
output from the independent health and
safety audit carried out across the Group

In addition to the standing agenda items,
the following principal topics were
considered at Committee meetings
during the year

s A discussion on communication
strategy and how best this could be
developed Iin order to ensure the core
messages concerning the Group's
strategic development and progress
were effectively communicated

+ Development of a series of position
statements to address key 1ssues
taking a thought leadership perspective
in such areas as private finance
and alternative methods of funding
infrastructure projects, the benefits of
infrastructure spend, apprenticeships
and planning regulations

March

* Areview of the external monitor's anty
corruption compliance report for 2011,
a summary of which was incorporated
into the Group’s 2011 Sustainability
Report

* Areview of the top priorities for
Zero Harm in 2012 highlighting high
potential iInardents and trends within
each division, policy, procedures and
¢ivil engineering risks

Areview of the Group's approach to
Government affairs both in the UK

and US as well as in other countries
{Austraha and Canada) The intention 1s
to position Balfour Beatty as a thought
leader and over the past two years the
Group had raised its profile in policy
areas such as procurement, PF,
energy policy and transportation

* Recommendation to the Board of
the adoption of the Group's 2011
Sustainability Repaort published in
April 2012

September

¢ The Committee undertook a detailed
review of the Group’s Zero Harm
safety programme, including
performance durning the 2007-2012
period, lessons learnt and the next
stage of its development There were
concerns over the high number of
fataliies in 2012 and the impact of |
rnanagement changes following the
retirement of the former head of
Health & Safety during the year There
would be a focus on eliminating risks
and placing emphasis on “bottom up”
Improvements to processes Adopting
leading indicatars to measure
performance was one highlighted
change as well as setting minimum
and excellence targets and a sernes
of clearly articulated deliverables
and milestones

July

* Areview of the comphance function
across the Group and the extent to
which the compliance programme has
bsen embraced within each of the
divisions and the operating companies

* A detaled review of each of the
principal whistleblowing cases and
emerging trends across the Group
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December

¢ Rewiew of the 2013-2015
sustainability roadmap and the
progress made against the 2012
minimum expectations

* Discussion on the Health & Safety
matters covered at the September
meeting and the status on each of the
actions in the 2012 and 2013 H&S plans
including the 10 global safety principles
and how these would be promulgated
and adopted across the Group

In 2013, the Commuttee will continue
to address 1ts standing agenda on
Health & Safety, sustainability and
ethics, but will also undertake a
reputational risk assessment In light
of the new organisational structure,
complete a detaled review of the anti
corruption risk processes and their
application and consider the adequacy
of the business processes following
the Group strategic review




Group Tender and Investment Committee

As the implementation

of the evolved business
strategy takes place,

the Committee will

ensure internal approval
processes continue to be
appropriate in the way we
address major projects and
capital expenditure.

lan Tyler — chairman

Meetings 1in 2012 Numerous

Members

* |lan Tyler — chairman

Duncan Magrath

Andrew McNaughton

Anthony Rabin {to 30 June 2012)
Peter Zinkin

Kevin Craven

Manfred Leger

John Moore

{from 1 February 2012}

Brian Osborne

Mike Peasland

George Pierson

lan Rylatt {from 1 July 2012)
Steve Tarr {from 11 October 2012)
Robert Van Cleave

e & B & 8 ¥ b

Responsibilities

* Major contract approvals

¢ Acguisiuons and disposals
+ Capital expenditure

The Committee 1s chared by the Chief
Executive, or In his absence by one of
the Deputy Chief Executive & Chief
Operating Officer or the Chief Financial
Officer Its man purpose IS to review all
major proposed tenders with projected
values above specified levels The
Commuttee also has authority to
approve capital expenditure applications
and any proposed acquisitions or
disposals over certain specified limits
determined by the Board For example,
currently the Committee's terms

of reference require contracts for
construction or services in the UK of

a value exceeding £100 million to be
submutted for review, whilst other mits
vary accarding to gecgraphy and nature
of the contract The Commuttee no
longer autormatically reviews tenders

in territones classified as high risk, as
following the Committee’s work In
previous years, the Group’s compliance
procedures In such territories are now
fully implemented in each division,
through their own divisional nsk
management committeas Routine
monthly operating reviews cover 1ISsues
of territonal and security nsk Any
Director may convene a meeting of

the Committee to discuss any of the
divisional operating reviews In more
detall Minutes of Committes mestings
are made available to all Directors
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Finance and General
Purposes Committea

Meetings in 2012 Numerous

Members

lan Tyler - chairman

Duncan Magrath

Andrew McNaughton

Anthony Rabin {to 30 June 2012}
Peter Zinkin

Responsibilities

* Banking facilities and other
treasury matters

* Share options

The Committee 1s charred by the
Chief Executive, or In his absence by
one of the other executive Drirectors
Its principal purpose 1S to approve
various routine banking and treasury
matters, grants and exercises of
employee share options and other
matters relating to share capital A
summary of the business conducted
at the meeatings 1s provided to all

the Directors
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Risk management
and internal control

The Board takes ultimate responsibility
for the Group's systems of nsk
management and internal control

and reviews their effectiveness

The Group's systems and controls are
designed to ensure that the Group's
exposure to significant risk 1s managed
properly, but the Board recognises that
any system of internal control 1s designed
to manage rather than ehminate the risk
of failure to achueve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss {n addition, not all
the matenal joint ventures in which the
Group 1s involved are treated, for these
purposes, as part of the Group Where
they are not, systems of internal control
and nsk management are applied as
agreed between the partners to the
joint venture

Details of the Group's risk management
framework and of its principal nisks and
how they are mitigated are set out on
pages 58 to 61 The Board continued

to assess the effectiveness of the nsk
management processes and internal
controls during 2012 and to the date of
this report Such assessment 1s based
on reports made to the Board, the Audit
Committee and the Business Practices
Committee, including

* the results of internal audit’s reviews
of internal financial controls

* a Group wide certification that effective
internal controls had been maintained,
or, where any significant non-comphance
or breakdown had occurred with or
without loss, that appropriate remedial
action has been or 1s being taken

* a paper prepared by management on
the nature, extent and mitigation of
signuficant risks and on the systermns
of internal controls

Central to the Group's systems of internal
control are 1ts processes and framework
for nsk management These accord with
the Turnbull Guidance on internal controls
and were in place throughout 2012 and up
10 the date of signing this report

The Group’s systems of internal control
operate through a number of different
processes, some of which are interlinked
These include

* aclear system of delegated authonties
from the Board to management with
certain matters reserved by the Board

the annual review of the strategy and
plans of each division and of the Group
as a whole in order to identify the nsks
to the Group's achievement of its overall
objectives and, where appropriate, any
relevant mitigating actions

monthly financial reporting aganst
hudgets and the review of results and
forecasts by executive Directors and
line management, including particutar
areas of business or project nsk

This 1s used to update management’s
understanding of the environment

In which the Group operates and the
methods used to mitigate and control
the nsks identified

individual tender and project review
procedures starting at operating
company and progressing to dvisional
and Board Committes levels if value,
or percewved exposure, exceeds
certain thresholds

regular reporting, monitoring and review
of the effectiveness of health, safsty
and environmental processes These
processes are subject to independent
audit and certification to internationally
recognised standards

the review and authorisation of
proposed investment, divestment and
capital expenditure through the Board's
Commuttees and the Board itself

specific policies set out in the Group
Finance Manual covering the financial
management of the Group, including
arrangements with the Group's bankers
and bond providers, controls on foreign
exchange dealings and management

of currency and interest rate exposures,
insurance, capital expenditure
procedures, apphcation of accounting
policies and financial controls

legal compliance rnisks which are
addressed through specific policies
and training on such matters as sthics,
competition and data protection laws

a Group wide risk management
framework which 1s embedded
throughout the Group Under it, key
risks are identifled and assessed and
action plans are developed to mitigate
or eliminate unwanted exposures The
results of these reviews are placad on
risk reqisters and are subject to regular
review with maternal risks being
escalated as appropnate

reviews and tests by the internal audit
function of crnitical business financial
processes and cantrols and speaific
reviews In areas of perceived high
business risk
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¢ the Group's policy In relation to
staff being able to raise concerns,
in confidence, about possible
improprieties on matters of financal
reporting and other 1ssues

These systems are extended, as soon
as possible and as appropriate, to alt
businesses joining the Group

The Head of Group Risk Management and
Assurance 1s responsible for ensuring that
a comprehensive framework of assurance
(including internal audit) exists within
divisions and therr operating companies
and for coordinating risk management
activities across the Group No significant
falings or weaknesses have been
identified by the Board in carrying out

its review of the effectiveness of the
Group's sk management and internal
control systems

Other disclosures

Business and financial review

The Chairrman’s Welcome on pages 4 and
5, the Chief Executive’s Review on pages
6 and 7, the strategy review on pages 12
and 13 and pages 16 to 23, the Operating
Review on pages 28 to 43, The Way We
Work on pages 48 to 51 and the Chief
Finanecial Officer’s Review on pages 54 to
57 are incorporated by reference into the
Directors’ Report

Results and dividends

The results for the year are shown in the
audited financial statements presented

oh pages 99 to 161 and are explained
more fully in the Chief Executive’s
Review, the Operating Review and the
Chietf Financial Officer's Review An
intenim dividend payment of 5 &p {net) per
ordinary share was approved by the Board
on 14 August 2012 and a final dividend of
8 5p {net} per ordinary share will be
recommended at the Annual General
Meeting giving a total of 14 1p (net) per
ordinary share, which compares with a
total dividend per ordinary share of 13 8p
{net) for 2011 Preference dividends
totalling 10 75p {gross) per preference
share were paid in 2012 {2011 1075p
lgross} per prefersnce share}

The Dirgctors continued to offer the
dividend reinvestrment plan, which allows
holders of ordinary shares to reinvest therr
cash dividends In the Company’s shares
through & specially arranged share

dealing service




Innovation, research and development
The Group remains committed to
enhancing stakeholder value through
thought leadership and innovation
Innovation is a significant part of the
day-to-day operations of the Group and 1s
integral to the development and delivery
of its projects Developed with our
partner, Impenal College London, our
approach 1o Innovation aims 1o better
meet our chents’ needs through
ploneering soluticns, encouraging

a culture of entrepreneurship and
knowledge sharing, and leveraging our
relatianship with partners and suppliers
By delivering on these aims we are
better able to connect the end-to-end
infrastructure knowledge that we

have around the globe with the client
challenges we find locally In thus way,
we are able to deliver greater value

to them and create new market
opportunities that underpin growth

A sustained central focus and the
successful Integration of Parsons
Brinckerhoff have led to an increase in
research and development activities This
1s evidenced by long term relationships
with thought leaders such as Pringeton
Urniversity and the University of Bristol
and strategic suppliers such as Autodesk
Successes in innovation include the
Olympic Aquatic Centre, where
constraints on time and budget have
been overcome through innovative
thinking, our partnership with Royal Mall
to delrver facilities managemaent that

Is at the forefront of business model
nnovation, and our Highways Agency
maintenance contracts, which are leading
the way in outcome based contracting

In 2013, we will continue to look for ways
in which we can exploit the best practice
we have been developing with our
flagship projects in other areas of the
Group's portfolioc We will also continue to
identify opportunivies where we can
better connect our global sector expertise
with local needs, as we dovelop naw
geographies and market sectors

Share capital and shareholders
Details of the share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2012,
including the nights attaching to each
class of share, are set out in Note 27

on pages 138 and 140 Durning the year
ended 31 December 2012 no ordinary or
preference shares were repurchased for
cancellation 866,427 ordinary shares
were 1ssued following the exercise of
opuons held under the Company's
savings-related share optian scheme
and 229,220 ordinary shares were 1ssued
following the exercise of options held
under the Company's exacutive share
option scheme

At 31 December 2012, the Directors had
authority under shareholders’ resolutions
approved at the AGM and at the Class
Meeting of preference sharehaolders held
tn May 2012 to purchase through the
market 68,736,152 ordinary shares and
16,775,968 preference shares at prices
set out In those resolutions This authority
expires at the earlier of the conclusion

of the Class Meeting of preference
shareholders which will follow the 2013
AGM oron 1 July 2013

Throughout the year, all the Company's
1ssued share capital was publicly listed

on the London Stock Exchange and it
remains so as at the date of this report

In 2012, the Company launched an
American Depositary Receipt programme
to improve access to the Company's
ordinary shares for investors in the US
There are no specific restrictions on the
size of a shareholding nor on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by the
Articles of Association and the prevailing
law The Directors are not aware of any
agreernents between holders of the
Company's shares that may result in
restnictions on the transfer of shares

or on voting nghts

Shares held by the Balfour Beatty
Employee Share Ownership Trust are
not voted

No person has special nghts of control
over the Company's share capital and all
issued shares are fully paid

As at 31 December 2012, the Company
had been notified in accordance with the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the
Fmancial Services Authonty of the following
Interests in its ordinary share capital

Number Percentage

of ordinary  of erdinary

shares held  shares held

Prudential plc 35,103,707 510

BlackRock, Inc 34,469,134 501
Causeway Capital

Management LLC 34,296,464 498

Since 1 January 2013, the Company has
recerved a further notification adwvising
that Standard Life Investments Limited
has an interest of 3 65%

Auditor

Deloitte LLP has indicated 1ts willingness
1o continue as auditor to the Company
and a resolution for Its reappointment
will be proposed at the AGM
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Relations with shareholders

The Board attaches great importance
to maintaining good relationships with
all shareholders and ensures that
shareholders are kept informed of
significant Company developments

The Company continued 1ts programme of
communication with institutional investors
and sell side analysts throughout 2012
Presentations of the half-year and full-year
results wera made in accordance with

the practice of previous years, and
teleconferences have been held for
Interim Management Statements
Through the year, 185 one-on-one and
group meetings were held at regular
intervals with institutional shareholders
{2011 approximately 220) Current and
prospective shareholders, brokers and
analysts were also given the opportunity
to engage with Balfour Beatty at hosted
events including

* an Investor Day which involved
presantations and breakout sessions
1o give the nvestrment community a
better understanding of the Group's
strategic direction

a roadshow in Zurich for local investors

a site visit to the ongoing Heathrow
Terminal 2B project for investors

AMURUIAND INN

¢ two conferences for existing and
prospective invastors

a presentation 10 the UK Shareholders
Association's northeast region

The Chairman held three meetings with
rmajor investors on corporate governance
matters and five further meetings

were held with major shareholders

by senior executives as part of our
ongoing engagement

We will maintain this communication
programme and expand 1t where
appropriate, subject to the constraints of
regulation and practice The 2013 investor
programme will focus on ensuring our
investors and the analyst community
understand the Group, Its operations and
strategy, and that international institutions
are given the opportunity to meet

with management

Care 1s exercised to ensure that any
price sensiive information 1s released
to all shareholders at the same time
In accordance with UK Listing
Authority requirements

Executive Directors report regularly to the
Board on meetings or other contact with
shareholders or their representatives

The non-executive Directors continue to
believe that, through therr direct and ready
access to, and contact with, the Charrman
and the Senior Independent Director and
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through the regular reports to the Board,
they are kept fully aware of the views of
the larger shareholders in the Company
and the investment community generally

The Board continuas to retain the services
of iIndependent external corporate and
investor relations consultants who provide
advice on the relationship between the
Company and its institutional investors

The Board regards the Company's
general meetings as an opportunity

to communicate directly with private
investors and actively encourages
participative dialogue with all the
Company's shareholders The chairmen
of the Board Committees attend the
AGM each year along with the other
Directors and are available to answer
questions from shareholders

The website www balfourbeatty com 1s
regarded by the Company as an important
source of information on the Group,
including financial press releases,
shareholder documentation, annual and
half-year results presentations and the
terms of reference of the principal Board
Committees We continue to develop the
Company’s website 1o ensure It remains
a principal source of information on the
Group and its activities

Political donations

At the AGM held on 10 May 2012,
shareholders gave authority for the
Company and its UK subsidianies to make
donations to political organisations up to
a maximum aggregate amount of £25,000
in the European Union This approval is

a precautionary measure m view of the
broad definition of these terms in the
Companies Act No such expenditure

or donations were made during the year
and shareholder authority will be sought
again at the 2013 AGM

In the US and Canada, donations totalling
£371,000 were made by operating
companies during 2012 (2011 £182,000)
Most of these donations were made by
Parsons Brninckerhoff, they were smal!
and all were permitted by law They are
non-partisan and in the main, they relate
to support given for local campaigns,
public bond or stmilar referenda to
promote investment in infrastructure
Any political contrnibutions or donations are
tightly controlled and must be approved
In advance in accordance with the
Company's internal procedures and must
also adhers strictly to the Company's
policies on prabity set out in its Code of
Conduct A review of existing practices
was undertaken during 2012 and no
changes to these practices were
considered necessary

Parsons Brinckerhoff Group Inc sponsors
a Political Action Commuittee {PAC)

A PAC 1s an independently administered
committee which receives small veluntary
contributions from Parsons Brinckerhoft's
US employees and ailocates the funds
received to US political candidates and
other eligible stakeholders who support
investment in infrastructure markets
generally Contributions are entirely
voluntary from employees and are kept
completely separate from company funds
Decisions taken by the PAC are
independent of influence by Balfour
Beatty Total PAC contributions in2012
were £88,019

Corporate responsibility

A full description of our approach to
sustainability, including imformation on
the Group's community engagement
programme, appears on page 49

The Group's published policies on health
and safety, the environment, business
conduct and ethics remain in place and
are subject to regular reviews

Further information on each of these
policies and the progress which has
been made during the year 1s provided
In the 2012 Sustainability Report at
www balfourbeatty com/sr12

Employment

As the Group operates across a number of
business sectors in different environments,
it has evolved a decentralised management
structure, with employment policies
designed to suit the needs of individual
businesses However, each employing
company Is expected to comply with
certamn key principles in 1ts design and
practice of employment policy

These are

* 1o provide an open, challenging and
participative environment

¢ to enable all employees to use therr
talents and skills to the full, through
appropriate encouragement, training
and development

* to communicate a full understanding
of the objectives and performance
of the Group and the opportunities
and challenges facing it

* to provide pay and other benefits which
reflect good local practices and reward
individual and collective performance

¢ to ensure that all applicants receive
farr treatment regardless of age, origin,
gender, chsability, sexual orientation,
marnital status, religion or belief
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e to ensure that all employees similarly
receive fair treatment, partcularly in
retation to training, development and
career progression

Applications for employment by disabled
persans are always fully considered,
bearing in mind the aptitudes of tha
apphcant concerned and the support that
15 avallable (n the event of members of
staff becoming disabled every effort s
made to ensure that their employrment
with the Group continues and that
appropriate training and other support

1s provided It is the policy of the Group
that the training, career development and
promotion of disabled persons should,
as far as possible, be Wdentical to that

of other employees

Throughout the Group we use a

variety of methods 1o communicate key
business goals and 1ssues to employees
and also consult and involve employees
through local publications, briefing
groups, consultative meetings, training
programmes and working groups to assist
innovation, collaboration and the process
of continuous Improvement in the way
business 1s conducted In 2012, the
Company launched its global intranet
"360" which 1s available to the

majority of employees and 1 a key
communication channel for informing
them of major business and technical
achievements It also aids knowledge
sharing and collaboration

Events after the reporting date

Detalls of events after the reporting date
are set out In Note 35 on page 148

Contractual arrangements

The Group has contractua! arrangements
with numerous third parties in support
of its business activites Disclosure In
this report of information about any of
those third parties 1s not considered
necessary for the understanding of the
development, performance or position
of the Group’s busmess

Change of control provisions

The Group’s bank facility agreements
contain provisions that, on 30 days’
notice being given to the Group, the
lender may exercise Its discretion 1o
require prepayment of the loans on a
change of control of the Company and
cancel all commitmenits under the
agreement concerned

A number of significant joint venture
and contract bond agreements include
provisions which become exercisable by



a counterparty on a change of control of
the Company These include the nght of a
counterparty to request additional secunty
and to termnate an agreement

Some other commaercial agreements,
entered into in the normal course

of business, include change of
control provisions

The Group’s share and incentive plans
include usual provisions relating to change
of control

There are no agreements providing for
compensation for the Directors or
employees on a change of control

Payment of creditors

In the UK, the Company’s policy 15 1o
settle the terms of payment with suppliers
whaen agreeing the terms for each
transacuon or senes of transactions, to
seek to ensure that suppliers are aware
of the terms of payment, and to abide

by these terms of payment as and when
satisfied that the supplier has provided
the goods or services i accordance with
the agreed terms At 31 December 2012,
creditors’ days of the Company were 26
{2011 28)

Financial instruments

The Group's financial risk management
objectives and policies and its exposure
to the following nsks - forergn exchange,
Iinterest rate, price and credit — are detarled
in Note 36 on pages 14910 154

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the annual report and the
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requrres the Directors 1o
prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law, the
Durectors are required to prepare the
Group financial statements In accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union {EU) and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and they have also chosen
to prepare the parent company financal
statements under IFASs as adopted by
the EU Under company law, the Directors
must not approve the financial staternents
unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affarrs of
the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Company for that peniod In preparing
these financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires

that Directors

properly select and apply
accounting policies

present informaton, including
accounting policies, In a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information

* provide additional disclosures when
compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact
of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the Company's and
the Group's financial position and
financial performance

* make an assessment of the Company's
abifity to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy, at any tirne,
the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for taking reasonable steps for
preventing and detecting fraud and

other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the
Company's website Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the

preparation and dissemination of financial
staternents may differ from legrstation

In other junisdictions

The Directors confirm that to the best
of therr knowledge

+ the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with |FRSs as adopted
by the EU and Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation, give a true and fair view of
the assets, habilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whaole

¢ the Operating Review and Chief
Financizl Officer’'s Review, which are
incorporated into the Directors’ Report,
include a fair review of the development
and performance of the business
and the position of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together
with a description of the principal nsks
and uncertainties they face
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Statements of Directors as
to disclosure of information
to auditors

Each of the Directors at the date of
approval of this report confirms that

» 5o far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s
no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditors are unaware

* the Drector has taken all the steps
that he or she ought to have taken as
a Director to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Company’s
auditars are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should
be interpreted In accordance with the
provisions of Section 418 of the
Companes Act 2006

By order of the Board

Chris Vaughan
Chief Corporate Offiter &
Company Secr

6 March 2013

Registered Office
130 Wilton Road

London SW1V 1L
Registered in England Nurmber 395826
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Remuneration Report

82

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Remuneration Commuttee's report for 2012 en Directors’ remuneration

The Government has recently tabled proposals to reform the way that Directors’ remuneration 1s voted upon and
reported Although the new legislative requirements will not come into effect untl October 2013, the Committee
has sought to comply with many of the new requirements in the interests of openness and transparency
Accordingly we have split this report into two sections

* 3 Policy Report which sets out the forward looking policy on the remuneration of the executive and
non-executive Directors for 2013

¢ an Implementation Report which discloses how the current remuneration policy has been implemented in the year
ended 31 December 2012

We will be seeking your support for both parts of the report by way of a single advisory vote at the forthcoming AGM

The Group continues to face challenging trading conditions in many of its traditional construction markets and is taking
action to improve operational performance and effectiveness Underlying pre-tax profit from continuing operations,
which 1s the measure on which we base performance for the Annual Incentive Plan {AIP), decreased 7% to £310 million
in 2012, including the benetit of £52 million of gains from PPP disposals The Group’s financial performance for 2012 has
therefore generated outturns from the AIP for the executive Directors of 48% of hase salary, which 1s below target and
significantly lower than the 78% of base salary for the previous year Furthermore, the 2010 Performance Share Plan
awards will lapse in full in April 2013 as the 2009 Performance Share Plan awards did in Apnl 2012 We believe that this
represents a fair ink between reward and parformance for the year under review

We remain committed to ensuring that rewards for executives are clossly aligned to the interasts of shareholders
through having all of our incentive arrangements linked to the achievement of challenging business performance
targets and generation of market beating levels of shareholder return We remain comfortable that this s the case

We are not proposing any major changes to the remuneration policy for the 2013 financial year, although the surte

of performance metnics used in the Annual Incentive Plan and Performance Share Plan will change for 2013 More
specifically, 30% of the annual incentive will be subject to three business strategy metncs {with 70% continuing to be
subject to profit before tax) Furthermore the earnings per share performance condition attaching to the Performance
Share Plan awards will be removed and replaced with an additional relatve total shareholder return condion Further
detalls of these changes, which have been made following shareholder consultation, are contaned in the Policy Report

Salanes of executive Directors are due to be reviewed in July 2013 but 1t has already been agreed that, consistent
with many parts of the Group, executive Directors will not receive an annual increase in 2013

The Committee encourages dialogue with the Company's shareholders and will consult with major shareholders ahead
of any significant future changes to remuneration policy We were pleased that the 2011 Remuneration Report received
a 97% vote in favour at the 2012 AGM

Sharehaolders are invited to approve this report at the AGM on 16 May 2013

lain Ferguson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Our Governance | Remuneration Report

Policy Report

This part of the Remuneration Report sets out the remuneration policy for the Company with effect from 1 January 2013 There have
been some changes to the performance metnics used in the performance related elements of pay, which the Committee considers
provide better aignment with the business strategy Further details of these changes are provided on pages 84 and 85

The Committee, on behalf of the Board, determines the remuneration packages of the executive Directors of the Company and the
Charrman and the Company's remuneration policy In setting the remuneration policy, the Commitiee takes into account 8 number
of factors, including

+ general trends in pay and conditions throeughout the Group

* the positioning of remuneration levels against the external market — the Committes is, howeaver, aware of the nsk of an upward
ratchet In remuneration levels through overrehance on comparative survey data

= the balance between fixed and vanable pay - more specifically, vanable pay should forrm a significant but not disproportionately
high level of remuneration

» the strategy of the business

In setuing the overall remuneration palicy, general trends and average Increases throughout the Group are taken into account when
setting executive Directors’ reward packages A key feature for the executive Directors is that a higher proportion of their remuneration
package 1s delwered through performance related pay, which has a greater inkage to the results of the Group The areas covered in this
Palicy Report comprise

Executive Director remuneration policy for 2013 Page 84
Remuneration scenarios for executive Directors Page 86
Service agreements for executive Directors Page 87
External appointments of executive Directors Page 87
Appointment of non-executive Directors Page 87
Non-executive Directors’ fees Page 87
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Executive Director remuneration pohcy for 2013
The following table sets out a summary of each element of the executive Directors’ remuneration packages, their link to the
Company's strategy, the policy for how these are operated, the maximum opportunity, a descrnption of any performance

metrics and any changes stnce 2012

Element of pay

Purpase and link to Company’s strategy

How operated in practice

Base salary To attract and retan high calibre ndividuals Salanes are raviewed and set annually In July
To provide a mid-market salary relative to The Committee considers remuneration levels in
comparable companies in terms of size companies of comparable market capitalisations
and complexity revenues and iIndustry sectors
in additron, & key reference pomnt for salary increases I1s the
average incraase across the general workforce twith the
exception of promotions or significant changes in responsibility)
Salanes are paid monthly in cash
Benefits To atd retenttan and to remain competitive 1n the Private medical insuranca
marketplace In addiion medical benafits are Acar and fusl card or car allowanc ftered
provided ta mmimise disruption due to absence car and fusf car ar allowance are o
Pension To remain competitive in the marketplace Executive Directors can elect to either

» participate in the defined contribution {DC) section of the
Group s pension fund Executive Directors must make
contributions of 5% of base salary {up to an earnings cap}
with the Company contributing 20% of base salary [up to the
cap) On earnings above the cap executive Directors receive
a salary supplement, or

¢ receive a salary supplement

Annual Incentive Plan
{AIP) and Defarred Bonus
Plan {(DBP)

To motivate executives and incentivise the
achievement of key business performance
targets over the financial year without
encouraging excessive nsk taking Managing risk
15 cntical, particularly given the nature of the
Company’s bustness

Te facilitate share ownership and provide further
alignment with shareholders

50% of the annual ncentive 1s paid in cash annually and 50%
15 deferred into shares for three years

Clawback may apply In the event of matena! msconduct
andfor matenal misstatement or error of financial results

Performance Share Plan
(PSP}

To incentivise and reward delivery of long term
performance linked to the business strategy

To facilitate share ownership and provide further
alignment with shareholders

To aid retention

PSP awards are granted annually so that no undua emphasis
15 placed on performance in any one particular financial year

Awards vest on the third anniversary subject to performance
over three financial years

Participants afso recewve an award of shares in lleu of the value
of dwvidends on vested shares

Clawback may apply in the gvent of material miscenduct
andfor material misstatement or error of financial resuits

Far 2013, the relative total shareholder return {TSR) performance
metrc 15 considared to be the most appropnate output based
measure of longer term performance Executive Directors should
be incentivised to achueve strong stock market performance to
align therr intaerests with those of shareholders

Shareholding guidelines

To further ahgn the interests of executive Directors
with those of shareholders

Executive Directors are expected to accumnulate a shareholding
inthe Company s shares 1o the value of 100% of thewr base
salary Executive Directors are expected to retain at least 50%
of shares {net of tax) which vest from awards made under the
PSP and DBP until the target shareholding 15 attained

Fees for external
appointments

The Committee recognises that benefits can arnise
from allowing executive Directors 1o take a
non-gxecutive directorship elsewhere

Fees can be retained with the approval of the Board

New joiners

The above policy would also be anticipated to form the basis on which any new executive Director would be appaomted

Ongomng policy for the individual would be subject to the above policy
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Maximum opportunity

Dascription of performance metncs

Changes since 2012

The Committse takes into gccount the performance of the
Group and each individual executive Director’s perfarmance
when setting salaries

No change

The maxirmum opportunity for medical

benefits is cover for the executive

Director and his family Tha taxable

value of the car and fuel card can vary

depending on the car provided and tax

rates from time to time The value of

car allowance 1s

* £18 000 for the Chief Executive

= E£14 000 for other executive
Directors

Na change

Executive Directors who participate
In the Group’s pension fund receive
a salary supplement of 20% of base
salary in excess of the cap

If a salary supplement alone 1s
taken this s equivalent to 20%
of base salary

During 2012 some executive Directors
participated in the defined benefit (DB)
section of the Graup s pension fund
Further details are set out on page 94

Maximum annual incentive
opportunity 1s 120% of base salary

70% of the bonus 1s based an profit before tax and
non-underlying items 30% of the bonus 1s based on
three other Group-based performance metnics inked
to the business strategy

The metncs are based on

+ delvery of cost efficiencies

* strength of order book

* restructuring for strategic growth

Other performarnce goals including those relating to social,
enwironmental and governance responsibilities are assessed
through the normal management review process

Three new Group based performance
metrics have been introduced for 2013 (for
30% of the bonus opportunity) to provide
a link between reward and the strategic
changes required during 2013 The new
measures are designed to provide a more
rounded assessmaeant of performance

The payout for achieving on-target
performance under the profit before tax part
of the bonus has been reduced from 50% to
40% of the maximum bonus opportunity

The imit in the rules of the PSP s
200% of base salary Other than
In excepuional circumstances, the
value of shares at grant s equal to
* 175% of base salary for the
Chief Executive
* 150% of base salary for
other executive Directars

100% of the awards are subject to relative TSR targets
measured over a period of three years

50% of awards are based on TSR against a comparator
group of UK iisted comparies ranked 51-150 by markat
capitalisation in the FTSE All Share Index {excluding
Investment Trusts) at the start of the performance pericd

50% of awards are based on TSR measured against a group
of 8-10 construction and professional services companies,
including international peers

For both tranches there 1s no vesting below median, with
25% vesung at median ranking nsing to 100% vesting at
upper quartle or higher

A sliding scale for performance targets 1s used to provide
incrermnental awards for additional performance delivered,
but with a cap In place to discourage excessive nsk taking

The earnings per share element of the PSP
award (accounting for 50% of awards in
2012) has been removed due to the
difficuities In setting robust targets given the
ongoing uncertainty in construction markets

The Remuneration Committae considers
relative TSR to be a good measure of the
Group s perfaormance In addition, the choice
of the two comparator groups will reward
axecutives far outperforming the sector and/
or the gensral market, althcugh significant
rewards will only be delivered for
outperforming both

Neo change

No change

Maximum of one external
corporate appointment

No change

However, flexibility 1s retained to offer remuneration on a one-off basis on appeintmant outside the above policy
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Remuneration scenarios for executive Directors

The charts below prowide estimates for the potentiat future remuneration based on the remuneration policy for 2013 Potential
outcomas based on different performance scenanos are provided for the Chief Executive (assurming a full year's remuneration for
the iIncoming Chief Executive) and the Chief Financial Officer The remuneration package of the Chief Financial Officer i1s similar in
proportion terms to that of the Planning and Development Director The charts show that the performance related elements of the
package compnse a very significant proportion of the executive Directors” total remuneration from threshold perfoermance upwards,
with payments for on-target and maximum perfocrmance linked to highly stretching business goals

Andrew McNaughton, Chief Executive (from 31 March 2013)

2,750
42%
2 500
2 250
2,000
1,750
33% o
8 1 600 29%
a
1250 o
1000 20%
750 18% B 9% B 5%
500 82% 38% 24%
250
0 A A A
Fixed pay On-target Maximum
[A] Base salary Benefits and pensions  [€] Annual incentve Plan {cash and deferredy  [B] Performance Share Plan
Duncan Magrath, Chief Financial Officer
1750
38%
1 500
1,250
[
o 1000 30% 30%
=}
8
750 p
21%
c ¢
500 19% 8 9% B 6% P
81% 40% 26%
250
0 A A A
Fixed pay On-target Maximum
[&] Base salary Benefits and pensiens  [§] Annual Incentive Plan (cash and deferred)  {B] Perfarmance Share Plan
Notes

The potential values presented in the charts above assume the following at each performance leve!

{) Fixed pay - no vesting under the AIP or PSP

{0 On-target — 43% payout under the AIP {of which 50% 15 paid In cash and 50% 1s deferred into shares) and 50% vesting under the PSP
() Maximum — 100% payout under the AIP and 100% vesting under the PSP
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Service agreements for executive Directors
Detalls of the service contracts of the executive Directors are shown in the table below |n accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, all executive Directors submit themselves for ra-election at the AGM

Notice Notice
pernod from  penod from
the Company  the Directar

Name of Diractor Date of contract {menths) imonths)  Termination payment

Duncan Magrath 11 April 2008 12 6 Theres no provision for specific payment [t 1s not the

Andrew McNaughton Committee’s intention 1o Introduce such provisions |f any existing
{(Note 1} 15 December 2008 12 6 contract 1s breached by the Company, 1t would be hable to pay, as
Anthony Rabin {Note 1) 31 March 2008 12 6 damages, an amount approximating to the net loss of salary and
lan Tyler 22 December 2004 12 6 contractual benefits for the unexpred notice period, subject to
Peter Zinkin 16 January 2004 12 6 mitigation and phased payments where appropnate

Notes

il A new sarvice agraement dated 7 January 2013 was put in place for Andrew McNaughton following the announcement of his appointmant as Chief Executive from
31 March 2013

(i Anthony Rabin retired fram the Company on 30 June 2012

External appointments of executive Directors

lan Tyler was appointed as a non-executive director of Cable & Wireless Communications Ple, effective 1 January 20117 Duncan Magrath
was appointed as a non-executive director of Brammer ple, effective 1 March 2012 Anthony Rabin was appointed as a non-executive
director of Colt Group S A | effectve 20 July 2011 The fees that each executive Director received in 2012 for these roles are set out

in Note {vi} to the Directors’ remuneration tahle on page 90

Appointment of non-executive Directors

Non-executive Directors are appointed by the full Board following recommendations from the Nomination Committee All non-executive
Directors are appointed for a term of three years In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all non-executive Directors
submit themselves for re-election at the AGM

The dates of the letters of appointment or reappointment of the non-executive Dirgctors are shown in the table below

Date of appointment Unexpired perod at
Name of Director or reappointment Dacember 2012 {months)
Robert Armen 10 June 2010 5
Mike Donovan 1 July 2012 30
lain Ferguson {Note 1) 1 January 2010 0
Maureen Kempston Darkes 11 July 2012 30
Hubertus Krossa 9 September 2011 20
Steve Marshall 16 May 2011 18
Graham Roberts 1 January 2012 24
Robert Walvis {Note 1) 26 September 2010 -

Notes

W) lain Ferguson was reappointed on 1 January 2013
{n) Robert Walwis retved on 31 December 2012

Non-executive Directors’ fees

In order to attract and retain high quality and experienced non-executive Directors, the Chairman s paid an annual fee and the
non-executive Directors are paid an annual base fee and additional responsibility fees for the role of Senior Independent Director or
for chairing a Board Committee Non-executive Directars based outside Europe recerve an additional allowance for each visit made
on Company bus:ness' to the UK, or to any other country {excluding their home country) Fee levels are reviewed annually in July

The non-executive Directors are not eligible to join any pension scheme operated by the Company and cannct participate i any of the
Company's share plans or annual Incentive schemes None of the appointment letters for non-executive Directors contain provision for
specific payment in the event of termination for whatever cause
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Implementation Report

This part of the Remuneration Report sets out how the remuneration policy and practices for the Company were implemented over
the 2012 financial year Details of the remuneration earmed by executive Directors and the outcomes of incentive schemes, icluding

details of relevant links to Company performance, are also provided in this Implementation Report

The areas covered In this Implementation Report comprise

Performance graph comparning the Company’s TSR with the FTSE 250 and the Chief Executive’s remuneration  Page 89
Directors’ base salanes in 2012 Page 89
Directors’ remuneration earned 1n 2012 Pagse 90
Directors’ interests in the Annual Incentive Plan 1in 2012 Page 91
Directors’ interests in the Performance Share Plan in 2012 Page 92
Directors’ interests in the Deferred Bonus Plan in 2012 Page 93
Directors’ interests in the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme n 2012 Page 93
Directors’ pensions and pension allowances in 2012 Page 94
Directors’ shareholdings in 2012 Page 95
Membership of the Remuneration Committee Page 96
Statement of shareholder voting at AGM Page 96
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Performance graph comparing the Company’s TSR with the FTSE 250 and the Chief Executive’s remuneration

As in previous reports, the Remuneration Committee has chosen to compare the TSR on the Company's ordinary shares against the
FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts) principally because this 1s a broad index of which the Company 1s a constituent member
The values indicated in the graph show the share price growth plus reinvested dividends from a £100 hypotheucal holding of ordinary
shares in Balfour Beatty plc and in the index, and have been calculated using 30 trading day average values

In addition, the graph shows the movements in remuneration earned by the Chief Executive for each year over the same period
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The detalled information about the Directors’ remuneration, set out below, on page 80 and on pages 92 to 95, has been audited by the
Company’s independent auditors, Deloitte LLP

Directors” base salaries in 2012
At the annual review of base salanes for the executive Directors on 1 July 2012, base salanes were reviewed as shown below

Basesalary at  Base salary at

Namas of Director 1 July 2012 1 July 2011 % uplhft
Duncan Magrath {Note 1} £425,000 £405,000 4 9%
Andrew McNaughton {Note 1} £460,000 £430,000 70%
Anthony Rabin nfa  £450,000 n/a
lan Tyler {Note ) £688,000 £668,000 3 0%
Peter Zinkin (Note m) £443,000 £430,000 30%
Notes

{y The 4 8% increase was based on market and performance factors

{1} Tha 7 0% increase was basad on market and perfaormance factors plus an element for the additional raspensibdibes taken on as a result of Andrew McNaughton s
additional appointment as Deputy Chiet Executive

{u) The 3 0% increase was based on market and performancs factors

As part of the overall succession plan, the Board has recently announced some changes to the management team The Chief
Executive, lan Tyler, 1s leaving the Company in April 2013 and Andrew McNaughton will be succeading huirm as Chisf Executive,
effactive from 31 March 2013 In addition, our Deputy Chief Executive, Anthony Rabin, retired from the Company on 30 June 2012

Andrew McNaughton's base salary will be £650,000 on appointment, with other elements of his package in ine with the policy set out
tn this report

In ine with contractual entitlernents, tan Tyler will work four months of his 12 months’ notice period, up o 30 April 2013, to ensure a
smooth handover to Andrew McNaughton In lieu of the remainder of the notice penod, he will recerve a payment from the Company
equivalent to eight months’ salary, benefits and pension, including phased monthly payrments for the feur months from September to
December 2013, which are subject 1o offset against earnings elsewhera 1an Tyler will be treated as a good !eaver under the relevant
share plans On 30 April 2013, his awards under the Deferred Banus Plan will vest and a proportion of his Performance Share Plan
{PSP) awards will lapse reflecting the proportion of the performance period for each award which had not been completed at that date
The remainder of his PSP awards will vast in the same proportion, and at the same time, as the awards made to the other participants

At the annual review of fees for the non-executive Directors on 1 July 2012 tha annual fee level for the non-executive Directors
{excluding the Chairman) was increased from £54,000 to £56,000 and for Steve Marshall as Charrman from £258,000 to £265,750
The annual fee for chainng Board Committees i1s unchanged ai £10,000 In addition the annual fee for the Senior Independent Director
remains at £10,000 Far non-executive Directors based outside Europe the additional allowance for each overseas visit made on
Company business remains at £2,500
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Directors’ remuneration earned in 2012

Total Total cash

Base Pension Taxable Annual remuneration ramuneration
salary Fees allowances heneflts Incentive 2012 201

Names of Director £ £ £ £ £
Robert Amen - 77,500 - - - 77,500 73,000
Mike Donovan - 65,000 - - - 65,000 63,000
iain Ferguson - 65,000 - - - 65,000 57.451
Maureen Kempston Darkes - 29,500 - - - 29,500 -
Hubertus Krossa 79,390 79,390 82,665

Duncan Magrath 415,000

- 76,027 15,550 102,425 609,002 622,630
261,875

Steve Marshall - - - - 261,875 254,000
Andrew Mc¢Naughton 445,000 - 48,791 15,550 110,860 620,201 647,511
Anthony Rabin 238,846 - 39,263 10,396 - 288,505 717,592
Graham Roberts - 65,000 - - - 65,000 63,000
lan Tyler 678,000 - 80,614 27546 331,616 1,117,776 1,024,390
Robert Walwis - 65,000 - - - 65,000 63,000
Peter Zinkin 436,500 - 60,210 9,881 106,763 613,354 661,286
Total 2,213,346 708,265 304,305 78,923 651,664 3,957,103 4,329,485
Notes

i

n
I}

[0}

v)
v}

{vi)

Base salary and fees wers those paid in respect of the panod of the year during which individuals were Directors [n practice the base salary paid to Pater Zinkin has
been reduced due to his participation in the Company s SMART Pensions salary sacrifice arrangement The salary raduction in 2012 was £6 773 This corresponds to
his contributions to the Bafour Beatty Pension Fund which are now mat diractly by the Company a3 pari of this arrangement

The base salanes patd to Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughton and Peter Zinkin have been reduced due to therr participation in the Company s Share Incentive Plan
The salary reductions in 2012 were £2 625 £1,125 and £2 625 for Dungan Magrath Andrew McNaughten and Peter Zinkin respectively

All executive Diractors received taxable cash supplemants in lisu of some penston prowvision Furiher details are set out in tha section on Directors pensions on pages 84
and 95

The performance measure for the AlP was profit befors tax and non-underlying tems The targets were Set in January 2012 based on a shding scale from threshold 10
target profit and from target profit to maximum The profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 resulted 1n an AIP outturn of 48 2% of base salary for each executive
Director As lan Tyler 1s leaving the business on 30 April 2013 all of his annual Incentive will be paid in cash and this amount 1s shown in the table above For the other
exacutive Directors 50% of this annual incentive is payable in cash and these are the amounis shown in the table above The remamning 50% 15 deferred in the form
of ordinary shares in the Company The number of shares compnsing the deferred element will be determined based on the share price at tha award date of 29 March
2013 These shares will be releasad to the Director on 29 March 2016 providing he s still employad by the Company at that time

Hubertus Krossa received a fea of €30 000 {included above] for his chairmansh:p of the superwisory board of Balfour Beasty Rail GmbH

in addien lan Tyler received a faa of £76 667 for his services as a non-executive director of Cable & Wireless Communications Ple, Duncan Magrath received a fes
of £27 000 for his services as a non executive director of Brammer plc and Anthony Rabin received a fee of €35 625 for his sarvices as a non-executive diractor of
Colt Group S A

Taxable benefits are calculated in terms of UK taxable values All executive Directors receved private medical insuranca for the Director and his immediata family

lan Tylar and Anthony Rabin raceived a fully expensed car and a fusl card Peter Zinkin recaved a fully expensed car only Duncan Magrath and Andrew MeNaughton
raceived a car allowance of £14 000 pa

{vin) No Director recewed any expense allowance

iix}

{x}

{x1)

90

In addition awards made under the Deferred Bonus Plan in 2009 10 Duncan Magrath Andrew McNaughton Anthony Rabin tan Tyler and Petar Zinkin vested duning the
year At the date of vasting on 31 March 2012 the ¢losing market prica was 285 5p and the total values of the awards which vested wers £83 067 £83 492 £116 341,
£172,468 and £110,871 respectivaly

In addiion lan Tyler and Peter Zinkin exercisad savings related share options during the year The closing market price on the dates of exercise ware 312 7p and 300 6p
respectively and the values realisable on exercise were £280 and £183 raspeactively

Anthony Rabin retired on 30 June 2012 All of hus remuneration was earned and raceived prior to 30 June 2012 and he received no compensatian for loss of office In
additon Anthony Rabin s awards under the DBP in 2010 2011 and 2012 vested on 30 June 2012 at which data the closing market price was 298 Op and the total valug
of the awards that vested was £342 497
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Single total remuneration figure for each Director in 2012

Following the draft proposals pubhshed by the Government, the table below presents a single total remuneration figure for 2012 for the
executive Directors Compared to the Directors’ remuneration table on page 90, the additional elements included in the single figure In
the table below relate to the value of any panston provision, the 50% of the Annual Incentive Plan which will be deferred in the form of
shares and any vesting of the Performance Share Plan The single figure for each non-executive Director would be as presented in the
Directors’ remuneration table on page 80

Fixed pay Pay for performance

Annual

Incentive

Plan
Pensions {including Total
and pension Taxable deferred Performance remuney
Basa salary allowances bensfits Subtotal shares) SharePlan Subtotal ation
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Duncan Magrath 415,000 76,027 15,550 506,577 204,850 - 204,850 711,427
Andrew McNaughton 445,000 109,731 15,550 570,281 221,720 - 221,720 792,001
Anthony Rabin 238,846 39,263 10,396 288,505 - - - 288,505
lan Tyler 678,000 154,694 27,546 860,240 331,616 - 331,616 1,191,856
Peter Zinkin 436,500 87,300 9,881 533,681 213,526 - 213,526 747,207

Notas

0} The PSP values are based on the 2010 PSP award which will tapse in April 2013 based on the performance pertod which ended on 31 December 2012

{n)  The value of DB pension entittements has been calculated as the increase In the accrued deterred pension during tha year (n excess of ratail price inflation multplied by 20
The value of DC pension entitlements has been calculated as the sum of Company comributions paid during the year

{} Inaddition lan Tyler and Pater 2inkin exercised savings-relatad share options duning the year Tha closing markat price on the dates of the exercise were 312 7p and
300 6p respectively and the values realisable were £280 and £183 respactively

fiv) See also notes (0 ), o} Gv) (vi) and (x1) 10 the Directors remuneration table on page 90

Directors’ interests in the Annual Incentive Plan in 2012

As detalled In the Policy Report, each executive Director participates in the Annual Incentive Plan, in which performance 1s measured
over a single financial year For the year under review, the performance condition which applied to the Annual Incentive Plan and the
resulting outturn were as follows

Proportion of total annual Resulting annual
incentive availlable Incentive outturn {Note 1)
Performance measure % of maximum_ % of base salary % of maximum_ % of base salary
Profit before tax and ;hreshold £287m 6 25% 75% Actuat £309 8m 40 2% 48 2%
non-underlying items arget £319m 50% 80% {Note n}
Maximum £367m 100% 120%

Notes

i} As lan Tyler is leaving the business on 30 April 2013 all of his AIP outturn will be paid in cash For the other executive Directors, 50% of the AIP outturn will be payable
incash whilst the remaining 50% will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan

{1} As sat out m tha rules of the AIP the Commuttee adjusis the profit before tax figure for acquisiions divestments and exchange rate movements The adjusted profit
befora 1ax figure used for the year ended 31 December 2012 was £311 Bm
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Directors’ interests in the Performance Share Plan in 2012

Maximum number of shares subject 10 award

At Awarded Vested Lapsed At
1 January during during during 31 December Exarcisable
Name of Director Date granted 2012 the year the year the year 2012 from
Duncan Magrath 15 Apni 2009 124,069 - - 124,069 - Apnl 2012
15 April 2010 133,826 - - - 133,826 Apnl 2013
1 June 2011 181,729 - - 181,728 June 2014

219,076 -

16 Apnl 2012 - — 219,076  Apnl 20156

Andrew McNaughton 15 Apnl 2008 135,017 - - 135,017 - Apnl 2012
15 April 2010 143,120 - - - 143,120 Apnl 2013

1 June 2011 193,530 - A - - 193,530 June 2014

16 April 2012 - 232,600 - — 232,600 Apnl 2015

Anthony Rabin 15 Apnl 2009 156,087 - - 155,087 ~ Apnl 2012
15 Apnl 2010 157,989 - - 28,331 131,658 Apnl 2013

1 June 2011 208,274 - - 103,137 103,137  June 2014

lan Tyler 15 Apnl 2009 275,874 - - 275,874 - Apnl 2012
15 Apnl 2010 281,036 - - - 281,036 Apnl 2013

1 June 2011 356,850 - - - 356,850 June 2014

16 April 2012 — 421,565 - - 421,565  Apnl 2015

Peter Zinkin 15 Apni 2009 147,789 - - 147,789 - Apnl 2012
15 Apnl 2010 150,555 - - - 150,655 Apnl 2013

1 June 2011 196,834 - - - 196,834 June 2014

16 Apnl 2012 — 232,600 - - 232,600  Apnl 2015

Notes

1)
{0}

{m

{nv}

{v)
v

v}
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Alt awards are granted for nil consideration and are in respecs of 50p ordinary shares in Balfour Beatty plc It 1s the Company s current intention that awards will be
sausfied by shares purchased in the market

For the awards in Apnt 2010 June 2011 and April 2012 the parfermance penods are the three years ending 31 December 2012 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2014 respectively 50% of each award 1s subject to an earmings per share (EPS) growth target The maximum nurmber of shares subject 10 this performance condition will
only vest if EPS growth exceeds tha retall prices index (RPI} by 36% for the April 2010 award and f EPS growth exceeds 45% for the June 2011 and April 2012 awards
If EPS growth exceeds RPI by 8% for the Apnl 2010 award and if EPS growth ex¢ceeds 15% far the June 2011 and Apnl 2012 awards, 26% of this part of the awards will
vest For growth in EPS between thase points vestng will be on a prorata basis No shares will vest from this part of the award f EPS growth exceeds RP! by less than
6% for the April 2010 awards or if EPS growth s less than 15% for the June 2011 and Apnl 2012 awards The other 50% of sach award 1s subtect to a total shareholder
return (TSR} target under which the TSR of the Company 1s compared 1o a comparator group at the start of the performance penod For the 2010 award the comparator
group was basad on a bespoke group of compantes (as previously disclosed) For the 2011 and 2012 awards the comparatar group was the FTSE 51-150 {excluding
investment trusts) The maximum number of shares subjact to this performance condition will only vest if the Company s TSR 15 in the upper quartife of tha comparator
group If tha Company s T5R is equal 1o that of the median of the comparator group 25% of this part of the award will vest No shares from thus part of the award will
vestif the Company s TSR 1s below that of the median of the comparator group For TSR performance between median and upper quartile vesting will ba on a pro rata
basis There 1s no provision for retesting of either of tha parformance condiiions

The average middie market price of ordinary shares in the Company for the three dasling dates before the award dates which was used for calculating the number of
awards grantad, was 354p for the 2009 award 302 63p for the 2010 award 317 78p for the 2011 award and 277 3p for the 2012 award The closing rmiddle market price
of ordinary shares on the date of the awards was 352 25p, 302 8p 312 4p and 271 9p respectively

Anthony Rahin ratired from the Company on 30 June 2012 At this time a proportian of his 2010 and 2011 awards lapsed reflecting the proportion of the parformance
penod for each award which had not baen completed at tha date of retirament Tha remainder of these awards will vest in the samea proportion and at the same ume

in 2013 and 2014 respectively as the awards made to the other participants

On 16 Aprit 2012 for all part:cipants in the PSP, a maximum of 4 177 096 conditional shares were awarded which are normally exercisable in Apnil 2015

The performance period for the awards made In Apri} 2009 was completad on 31 Dacember 2011 The growth in EPS for this period did not exceed the RPI + 9%
required for threshold vesung The Company s TS8 for this pariod ranked below the median of the comparator group The combined effect of these performance
measures Is that each participant s canditional award lapsed on 15 Aprit 2012

The performanca period for the awards made in Aprd 2010 was completed on 31 December 2012 The growth in EPS for this period did not exceed the RPl + 6%
required for threshold vesung The Company s TSR for this period ranked below the median of the comparator group The combined effect of these performance
measures 15 that aach participant s conditonal award will lapse on 15 Apnl 2013
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Directors’ interests in the Deferred Bonus Plan in 2012

Number of shares awarded

Awarded during the vear

At Awarded n respect of dividends Exercised Lapsed At
1 January dunng Final Intenm dunng dunng 31 Decambar
Name of Director Date of inival award 2012 the year 201 2012 the ysar the yesr 2012 Vesting date
Duncan Magrath 31 March 2009 32,598 - - - 32,598 - ~ 31 March 2012
31 March 2010 21,668 - 608 485 -~ - 22,761 31 March 2013
31 March 2011 21,738 - 721 417 - - 22,876 31 March 2014
30 March 2012 - 55,627 1,846 1,069 - - 58,542 30 March 2015
Andrew
McNaughton 31 March 2009 29,244 - - - 29,244 - - 31 March 2012
31 March 2010 23,174 - 650 519 - - 24,343 31 March 2013
31 March 2011 23,150 - 768 444 - - 24,362 31 March 2014
30 March 2012 - 59,060 1,960 1,135 — - 62,155 30 March 2015
Anthony Rabin 31 March 2009 40,750 - - - 40,750 - — 31 March 2012
31 March 2010 25,581 - - - 25,581 - - 31 March 2013
31 March 201 24,675 - 818 - 25,493 - - 31 March 2014
30 March 2012 - 61,807 2,051 = 63,858 - ~ 30 March 2015
lan Tyler 31 March 2009 60,409 - - - 60,409 - - 31 March 2012
31 March 2010 37,922 - 1,064 849 - - 39,835 31 March 2013
31 March 2011 36,589 - 1,214 703 - - 38,506 31 March 2014
30 March 2012 - 91,750 3,045 1,763 - - 96,558 30 March 2015
Petar Zinkin 31 March 2009 38,834 - - - 38,834 - - 31 March 2012
31 March 2010 24,379 - 684 5486 - - 25,609 31 March 2013
31 March 2011 23,544 - 781 452 - - 24,777 31 March 2014
30 March 2012 - 58,060 1,860 1,135 - - 62,155 30 March 2015
Notes

]

1)
[{]
(vl

{v)

t}

i)

All awards are granted for nil constderation and are in respact of 50p ordinary shares in Baliour Beatty ple 1t1s the Company’s current intention that awards will be
satisfied by shares purchased in the market

The imitial awards made in 2010 2011 and 2012 will vest on 31 March 2013 31 March 2014 and 30 March 2015 respectively, providing the Director 1s still employed

by the Company at the vesting date {unless specrfied lsaver conditions are met In which case early vesung may be permitted)

The 1mbial awards made in 2009 vested on 31 March 2012 The closing muddle market price of ordinary shares in the Cornpany on the vesting date was 285 Sp

The monetary values of the awards which vasted in 2012 are disclosed in Nota (1x} to the Directors’ remuneration table on page 90

The shares awarded on 31 March 2009 31 March 2010 31 March 2011 and 30 March 2012 were purchased at average pnces of 365 801p 300 32p 343 417p and

286 99p respectively

For the initial awards made 1 2011 end 2012, the shares awarded on 25 Apnl 2012 and 10 October 2012 {in hau of the inal 2011 and intenm 2012 dividends respectively)
were allocated at average prices of 256 1p and 301 Op respectively For the inival awards made in 2010 the shares awarded on 6 July 2012 and 7 December 2012 {in lieu
of the final 2011 and ntenm 2012 dividends respectively) were allocated at average prices of 302 7p and 257 Op respectively

On 30 March 2012, for all partscipants in the Oeferred Bonus Plan a8 maximum of 913,786 canditional shares wera awarded which wall normally be releasad on 30 March
2015 On 25 Apnl 2012 and 6 July 2012 a further 54 344 and 19 234 conditional shares were awarded in heu of entitlernents to the final 2011 dividend and on 10 October
2012 and 7 December 2012 a further 29 023 and 14,662 conditional shares were awarded sn leu of entitlements to the intenm 2012 dividand

Anthony Rabin retired from the Company on 30 June 2012 Under the rules of the Deferrad Bonus Plan the awards mada to him in 2010, 2011 and 2012 vested on

30 Juns 2012 The monetary values of these awards which vasted in 2012 ara disclosed in Note {x} to the Directers’ remuneration table an page 90

Directors’ interests in the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme in 2012

Number of options Exarcisable
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At
1 January dunng during during 31 December Exerase

Name of Diraector Date granted 2012 the year the yesr the year 2012 prce Fram To
Duncan Magrath 7 May 2008 1,073 - - - 1,073 3152p  July 2013 December 2013
18 May 2009 628 - - - 628 249 0p July 2014 December 2014

11 May 2010 1,291 - = - 1,291 2360p  July 2015 December 2015

Anthony Rabin 2 May 2007 1,140 - - 1,140 - 3387 July 2012 December 2012
lan Tyler 18 May 2009 439 - 439 - - 2490p July 2012 December 2012
11 May 2010 676 - - - 676 2360p July 2013 Decernber 2013

Pater Zinkin 2 May 2007 1,352 - - 1,352 - 3387p July 2012 December 2012
7 May 2008 804 - - - 804 3152p  July 2013 December 2013

18 May 2009 366 - 366 - - 2490p July 2012 December 2012

11 May 2010 246 - — — 246 2360p  July 2013 December 2013

Notes

il
)

)
vl

All options are granted for nil consideration on grant and are in respect of 50p ordinary shares in Balfour Beatty plc

The closing market price of the Company s ordinary shares on 31 December 2012 was 273 7p During the year the highast and lowest closing market prices were 320 8p
and 237 9p respactively

Options granted to Anthony Rabin and Peter Zinkin in May 2007, exercisable at 338 7p lapsed unaxercised in December 2012

The monetary values realisable from options exercised in 2012 are disclosed in Note (x) to the Directors remuneration table on page 90

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012 93

AMIBILIAAND 1NN




Our Governance | Remunaration Report

Directors’ pensions and pension allowances in 2012

Executive Directors participated i the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund {the Fund) during 2012 The defined benefit (DB} section of the
Fund provides for a pension at a normal retirement age of 62 for pension purpeses The defined contribution {DC} section of the Fund
i1s a money purchase scheme with a normal retirement age of 65 Each Director pays an annual contnbution equal to 5% of contributory
salary except where the Director participates in the Company's SMART Pensions salary sacnfice arrangement as outlined in Note (1)

in the Directors’ remuneration table on page 90

The DB pension for a Director who can complete 20 or more years of pensiongble service at normal retirement age 1s targeted at
two-thirds of final pensionable salary, subject to Fund imits which have their ongin in the former HMRC limits

The Fund operates a Fund-specific earnings cap for penston purposes The pensionable earnings of each Director were subject to
the Fund-specific earnings cap and details of the Company’s allowances paid in ieu of pension contributions on earnings above the
Fund-specific earrings cap are included in the Directors' remuneration table on page 90 Andrew McNaughton elected to have his
pensionable earnings restricted further to a personal earnings cap and details of the Company’s allowance paid in lieu of pension
contributions on earnings above his personal earnings cap are included in the Drrectors’ remuneration table on page 90

Duncan Magrath opted out of the DB section of the Fund on 5 April 2012 and became a deferred pensioner He chose not to participate
in the DC section of the Fund and has been receving an allowance in lieu of Fund membership since 6 Apnil 2012

Andrew McNaughton opted out of the Fund on 31 December 2012 He chose not to participate in the DC section of the Fund and has
been receiving an allowance in liev of Fund membership since 31 December 2012

Anthony Rabin retired from the Company on 30 June 2012 and started to receive his DB pension immediately

Peter Zinkin opted out of the DB section of the Fund on 31 December 2010 and started to receive his DB pension from 1 January 2011
He has not accrued any further DB pension in the Fund during 2012 He has however participated in the DC section of the Fund since
1 January 2011, and the Company's contrtbutions 1o this arrangement for 2012 are shown in Note {vi} on page 95

Pension table 1 below sets out the acerued DB deferred pension which would be paid annually from the Fund at normal retirement
age based on each executive Director’s service to 31 December 2012 {or earlier date of leaving the Fund} as well as showing the
increase in DB pension benefit secured in respect of service during the year

Pension table 2 below sets out the transfer value at 31 December 2012 of gach executive Director’s accrued DB pension entittements
at that date as well as the movement in that transfer value over the penod The transfer values represent the cash equivalent values
that would have been payable from the Fund had the Directors left service on the dates shown {except where noted below), and reflect
each executive Director’s age and DB benefit entitlerment

Pension table 1
Transfer valua
corresponding

Increase in accrued deferred to tncrease

pension during the year Accrued In axcess of

deferred inflation at

Accrued pension at 31 December

Pensionable defarred 31 Dacember 2012 less

Ageat service at pension at Asa Ingrease n 2012 or earlier Director's

31 December 31 Dacember 31 December rasult of excess of date of leaving contrnibutions

2012 2012 201 inflaton inflation the Fund {Note )

Name of Diractar Years Years £ pa £ pa £ pa E pa £
Duncan Magrath {Note v) 48 6 24,825 1,396 {281} 26,040 n/a
Andrew McNaughton 49 15 41,462 2,323 3,047 46,832 46,536
Anthony Rabin (Note vi} 57 18 80,790 n/a n/a n/a n/a
lan Tyler 52 16 51,811 2,902 3,704 58,417 65,705
Peter Zinkin {Note i) 59 23 n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a

Pension table 2

Transfer Transfer

Pensionable valua at Contnbutions Increase in value at

Age at service at 31 December made by  transfervalue 31 December

31 Dacember 31 December 2011 Director dunng  durning the year 2012
2012 2012 {Note n} the year {Note 1) {Note iv}

Name of Diractor Years Years £ £ £ £
Duncan Magrath {Note v) 48 6 378,962 1,724 45,422 426,108
Andrew McNaughton 49 15 621,847 5,807 169,543 797,257
Anthony Rabin {Note vi) 57 19 1,773,166 3,521 (398,797) 1,377,890
lan Tyler 52 16 946,169 7,019 179,963 1,133,151
Peter Zinkin {Note v} 59 29 5,253,257 n/a 237,925 5,491,182
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Directors’ pensions and pension allowances in 2012 continued

Notes to Pension tables 1 and 2 on page 94

(i} These amounts represent the value at 31 Dacember 2012 of the incraase in excess of inflation {where inflation 1s measured using the RPI between September 2010
and Septemnber 2011) of each Director s deferred pension and associated benefits over the period calculated in accordance with the transfer value regulations using the
transfer value basis then stipulated by the Trustee of the Fund less the value of any Directors contributions

) These smounts represent the present value of the accrued deferred pension and essociated benafits st 31 December 2011 for all Directors wha ware in pensionakle
service at this date ¢alculated using the wransfer value basis then stipulated by the Trustes of the Fund For Petar Zinkin who was not in pensionable service at
31 December 2011 see individual comments below

{m} These amounts represent the difference between the transfer value of sach Directors accrued benaefits at the end and the beginning of the year less the value of any
Directers contnbutions pard during the year

Ov) These amounts represent the present value of the accrued deferred pension and asscciated benefits at 31 December 2012 for alt Directors who were in pensionable
service at this date, calcutated using the transtar vatue basis then stipulated by the Trustes of the Fund For Diractors who ware not in pensionable service at
31 December 2012, Duncan Magrath Anthony Rabin and Pater Zinkin see individual comments belaw

v} Duncan Magrath ceased accruing a DB pension through the Fund an 5 April 2012 and became a deferred pensioner He has not accrued any benefits in the Fund since
5 Apnl 2012 The penod of pansionable service shown for Duncan Magrath i1s for the period up 10 5 April 2012 The accrued deferred pension figure as at 31 December
2012 in Pension table 115 his defarred pension on leaving the Fund as at 5 Apnl 2012 The increase in his accrued pansion up untt 5 April 2012 was less than the annual
inflationary increase to his accrued pansion as at 31 December 2011 so using market conditions as at 31 Degember 2012 this represented a reduction in vafue of £6 367
Tha transter value 1n the final column of Pension table 2 15 the present value of his deferred pension a1 § Apnl 2012 calculated using market conditions as at 31 December
2012 The contributions made by the him during the year are in respect of the period 10 5 Apri! 2012

(v} Anthony Rabin s pensionable service mcludes nine years of service transferred in from previous penston arrangements Anthany Rabin drew lump sum benafits
totalling £321 770 from the Fund on 30 June 2012 and he has received a pension of £45 612 pa from the Fund since 1 July 2012 The period of pensionabla servica
shown for Anthony Rabin is for the period up to 30 June 2012 Pension table 1 does not Include the change in value of Anthony Rabin s deferred pansion entitlement at
31 Decernber 2011 to his immediate early retirement post-commutation pensien entitternent at 31 December 2012 as these aie not directly comparable Using market
conditions at 31 Dacember 2312, the reduction in value after aliowing for inflaton Drrecters contrbutions and the lump sum benefits paid was £258,699 The transfer
value In the final calumn of Pension table 2 rapresents the value of his post-commutauon pension on retirement of £45 612 pa based on market conditions as at
31 December 2012 The contnbutions made by the Directar during the year are (n respect of the pencd to 30 June 2012

tvi) Pater Zinkin started to raceive his DB pension from the Fund on 1 January 2011 and has not sccrued any further DB benefits in the Fund since 31 December 2010
The penod of panstonabla service shown far Pater Zinkin 1s for the period up to 31 December 2010 The iranséer value in the final column represents the present value
of his DB pension as at 31 Decemnber 2012 of £202 194 pa Peter Zinkin has participated in the DC section since 1 January 2011 and the Company paid £27 090 into
this arrangement during 2012 n addition to his SMART pansion salary sacrifice contributions of £6 773

tvir) All benetiis shown axclude the value of benefits dernived from Dizectors additional veluntary contributions into the Fund

Directors’ shareholdings in 2012
The interests of the Directors and connected persons (including amongst others, member of the Director’s immediate famly) in the
share capital of Balfour Beatty plc and its substdiary undertakings duning the year are set out below

Number of ordinary shares

At 1 January 2012* At 31 Dacember 2012

Subject to

Subject to Subjectto  performance

Legally Legaily deferral under Subjest to Share conditions
Narme of Diractor ownad owned the DBP SAYE Incentive Plan under the PSP Total
Duncan Magrath 102,579 118,226 104,179 2,992 an 534,631 760,969
Andrew McNaughton 100,601 114,638 110,860 - 363 569,250 795,111
lan Tyler 376,168 376,595 174,899 676 - 1,059,451 1,611,621
Peter Zinkin 301,751 307,117 112,541 1,050 an 579,989 1,001,638
Robert Amen 10,000 10,000 - - - - 10,000
Mike Donovan 10,000 10,000 - - - - 10,000
lain Ferguson 25,000 25,000 - - - - 25,000
Maureen Kempston Darkes - - - - - - -
Hubertus Krossa 7,142 7,142 - - - - 7142
Steve Marshall 7,142 7142 - - - - 7142
Graham Roberts 15,000 15,000 - - - - 15,000
Roberi Walvis 14,285 14,285 - - - = 14,285

* or data of appointment i later

Notes

) Allinterests at the dates shown are beneficial and are in respect of 60p ordinary shares in Balfour Beatty plc There were no changes between 31 Dacember 2012 and
6 March 2013 other than in respect of investments under tha Share Incantive Plan which increased by 88 shares 89 shares and 89 sharas for Andrew McNaughton
Duncan Magrath and Pater Zinkin raspectively

) Peter Zinkin was also interested at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 in 325 curnulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 1p each in Balfour Beatty ple
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Membership of the Remuneration Committee

The members of the Committee and therr attendance at the meetings of the Committee in 2012 are shown on page 70 All the members
are independent non-executive Directors, as defined under the Corporate Governance Code No member of the Committee has
conflicts of interest ansing from cross directorships and no member 15 Involved in the day-to-day executive management of the Group

The Committee also receives advice from several sources, namely

+ The Chief Executive, lan Tyler, and the HR director, Paul Raby, who are inwited to attend meetings of the Committee but are not
present when matters relating directly to their own remuneration are discussed

+ New Bridge Street (a trading name of Aon Corporation), (NBS)

NBS has been appointed as external independent executive remuneration adwvisers by the Commuttee and has provided a range
of advice to the Committes during the year, including

« attendance at Commitiee meetings
* provision of pay benchmarking data for the executive Directors and non-exacutive Dirgctors

» annual update for the Committee on developments in best and market practice and regulatory requirements for all
remuneration elements

* assistance with the drafting of the Remuneration report
¢ valuation of share-based payments for IFRS 2 purposes
¢ calculation of vesting levels under the TSR element of the PSP awards

NBS does not provide any other services to the Company

Statement of shareholder voting at AGM
At the 2012 AGM, the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes from sharehelders

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 414,810,022 96 6%
Against 4,732,739 11%
Abstentions 10,080,212 23%
Total 429,632,973 100 0%

This Remuneratton Report has been prepared in accordance with Section 420 of the Companies Act 2008 (the Act) and Schedules

5 and 8 of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 The report also meets the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty and describes how the Board has applied the principles
relating to Directors' remuneration in the Combined Code As required by the Act a resolution to approve the Remuneration Report will
be proposed at the AGM of the Company

By order of the Board
lain Ferguson

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
6 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the

Members of Balfour Beatty plc

We have audited the financial statements
of Baifour Beatty plc for the year ended
31 December 2012 which comprise the
Group and Company Income Statements,
the Group and Company Staternents

of Comprehensive Income, the Group
and Company Statements of Financial
Position, the Group and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity, the
Group and Company Statements of

Cash Flows, and the related Notes 1 to
38 The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation 15
applicabls taw and International Financial
Reporting Standards {(IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union

This report is made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we right
state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required 1o state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibibities of
directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Staternent, the Directors
are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satished
that they give a true and fair view

Our responsibility 1s to audit and express
an opmion on the financial statements

in accordance with apphcable faw

and International Standards on Auditing
{UK and Ireland} Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Audrtors

Scope of the audit of the

financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures mnthe
financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurange that the financial
statements are free from maternal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assassment of
whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Group's and the
Company's ctrcumstances and have
been consistently apphed and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by
the Directors, and the overall presentation
of the financial statements In addition,
we read all the financiat and non-financial
information In the annual report 1o identfy
material nconsistencies with the audited
financial statements If we become
aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opimon on financial statements
in our opinion

= the financial statements give a trua
and farr view of the state of the Group's
and of the Company's affarrs as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group's
and the Company's profit for the year
then ended,

the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and

* the financral statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Articie 4 of
the |AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed
by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

s the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly
prepared In accordance with the
Companies Act 2008, and

+ the information given in the Directors’
Report for the financral year for which
the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements
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Matters on which we are required
to report by exception

We have nothing to report n respect
of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to repart 1o you i, in our opinion

¢ adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited
by us, or

» tha Company financial statements and
the part of the Directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting
racards and returns, or

s certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law are
not made, or

we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required
to raview

¢ the Directors’ statement, contained
within the Directors’ Report, in relation
to gomg congcern,

the part of the corporate governance
statement refating to the Company’s
comphance with the nine provisions
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review, and

e certain elements of the report to
shareholders by the Board on Directors
ramuneration

T A

John Adam
Semor Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLLP
Chartered Accountants

and Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

6 March 2013




Group Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
Non- Non-
underlying undertying
Underlying items Underlying itams
itams’! {Nota 8} Fotal itams {Nate 8} Total?
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue including share of joint ventures
and associates 10,896 - 10,896 11,035 - 11,035
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates 16 2 {1,413) - {1,413) (1,541) - {1,541)
Group revenue 2 9,483 - 9,483 9,494 - 9,494
Cost of sales {8,433} - {8,433) (8,358} — {8,358)
Gross profit 1,050 - 1,050 1,136 - 1,136
Gain on disposals of investments? 52 - 52 20 - 20
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - {45) {45) - (62) (62)
Other net operating expenses? {8390) {190} {1,080) {900} {26} {926)
Group operating profit/{loss) 212 {235) (23) 256 (88) 168
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 16 2 97 - 87 75 - 75
Profit/(ioss) from operations 4 309 {235) 74 331 {88) 243
Investrnent iIncome 6 62 - 62 57 - 57
Finance costs 7 {61) -~ {61) {54) — (54)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 310 {235) 75 334 (88) 246
Taxation 2] {70) 39 (31) {91 27 (64)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 240 {196) 44 243 {61) 182
Profit/lloss) for the year from discontinued operation 10 - - - - 4 4
Prohit for the year 240 {196] 44 243 (57} 186
Attnbutable to
Equity holders 240 {196} 44 243 (67} 186
Non-controlling interests - - - - - -
Profit for the year 240 {196) 44 243 (57) 186
1 Befora non-underlying izems (Notes 1 11 and 8)
? Re-presented to separately disclose the gain on disposals of investments {Note 1 2)
2012 2011
Nates Pence Pence
Basic earnings per ordmary share
= continuing operations 11 65 267
— discontinued operation 11 - 06
1 65 273
Diluted earnings per ordinary share .
- continuing operations 11 65 267
— discontinued operation 11 - 06
11 65 273
Dividends per ordinary share proposed for the year 12 141 138
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 201
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year - 44 186
Other comprehensive income/{expense) for the year
ltems which will not subsequently be reclassified to the income statement
Actuarial movements on retirement benefit habilities (1286} 53
Tax on above 20 {18)
{106} 35
ltems which will subsequently be reclassified to the income statement
Currency translation differences (586) 4
Fair value revaluations — PPP financial assets 405 204
— PPP cash flow hedges {20) {239}
- pther cash flow hedges 1 -
- avallable-for-sale investments in mutual funds 171 4 (2)
Tax on above {80} 8
244 {27}
Total other comprehensive Income for the year 138 8
Total comprehensive income for the year 281 182 194
Attnibutable to
Equity holders 182 194
Non-controlling interests - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 281 182 194

3 Re-presented to reflect the adoption of amendments to |AS 1 Presentation of hems of Other Comprehensive Income (Note 11}

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Share
of joint
Equity veniures
compenant and
Cafted-up Share of associates Other Non-
share  premium preference Special  reserves  reserves  Hetained controling
capital  account shares reserve {Note 16 5} {Note 28 1) profits  interests Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £rm £ fm fm £m
At 1 January 2011 343 59 16 30 144 334 230 4 1,160
Total comprehensive
income/f{expense) for the year 281 - - 1 - 60 {18) 151 - 194
Ordinary dividends 12 - - - - - - {88) - (88)
Joint ventures' and
associates’ dvidends 161 - - - - {54) - 54 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 271 1 2 - - - - - - 3
Recycling of revaluation reserves to
the Income statement on disposal 165 - - - - (6) - - ~- (6)
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - (5) 5 - -
Other transfers - - - {3) - - 3 - -
At 31 December 2011 344 61 17 27 144 3N 355 4 1,263
Total comprehensive income/
{expense) for the year 281 - - - - 3an (37 {152) - 182
Ordinary dendends 12 - - - - - - {96) (4] (97)
Joint ventures’ and
assoclates’ dividends 161 - - - - (58) - 58 - -
Issue of ordinary shares 271 - 2 - - - - - - 2
Recycling of revaluation reserves to
the Income staternent on disposal 165 - - - - {48) - - - (48)
Moverents relating to
share-based payments - - - - - (2} 9 - 7
Other reserve transfers relating to
joint venture and associate disposalst 16 5 - - - - (72) - 72 - -
Other transfers - - - {2) - - 2 - -
At 31 December 2012 344 63 17 25 337 272 248 3 1,309

4 Includes £52m transfers between the joint ventures and associates’ feserves and retaned profits relaling Yo joint ventures disposed or hquidated in priof years
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Company Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012 2011
Nen Non-
underlying underlying
Underlying Items tUnderhying items
tems’ {Note 8) Total items’ {Note 8 Tota!
Notes £m £fm £m fm f£m £m
Revenue 2 130 - 130 13 - 13
Net operating expense {24} {2) {26) {21} {1) {22)
Profit/{loss) from operations 106 {2) 104 {8} {1) [E))
Investment income 6 6 - 6 3] - 6
Finance costs 7 {35) - {35} (29) - {29)
Profit/{loss) hefore taxation 77 {2) 75 {31) {n {32)
Taxation 9 ] b 9 5 - 5
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 85 (1) 84 {26) Il (27}
Profit for the year from discontinued operation 10 - - - - 598 59
Profit/{loss) for the year attnibutable to equity holders 85 {1) 84 (26) 58 32

! Before non-underlying items (Notes 1 11 and 8)

Company Statement of Comprehensive

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Income

2012 2014°
Notes £m £m
Profit for the year 84 32
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year
ttems whitch will not subsequently be reclassified to the income statement
Actuarial movements on retirement benefit habilities {3) 6
Tax on above 253 1 {2}
Total other comprehensive income for the year {2) 4
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity holders 28 2 82 36
3 Re-presented to reflact the adoption of amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income (Note 11)
Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2012
Equity
componem
Called up Share of Other
share premium  prefarence Special resarves Retaned
capital account shares raserve  [Note 28 2) profits Total
Notes fm £m £m im £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 343 59 16 30 321 382 1,151
Total comprehensive income for the year 282 - - 1 - - 35 36
Ordinary dividends 12 - - - - - (88) {(88)
Issue of ordinary shares 271 1 2 - - - - 3
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - 2 1 3
Other transfars ~ - - (3) - 3 -
At 31 December 2011 344 61 17 27 323 333 1,105
Total comprehensive income for the year 282 - - - - - 82 82
Ordinary dividends 12 - - - - - {96) {96)
Issue of ordinary shares 271 - 2 - - - - 2
Movements relating to share-based payments - - - - (2) 5 3
Other transfers - - - (2} - 2 —
At 31 December 2012 344 63 17 25 321 326 1,096
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Statements of Financial Position

At 31 December 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 20M
Notes £m £m £m £m

Non-current assets
Intangble assets — goodwill 13 1,160 1,279 - -
- other 14 212 239 - -
Property, plant and equipment 15 247 288 - -
Investments in joint ventures and associates 16 726 466 - -
Investments 17 94 96 1,937 1,742
PPP financial assets 18 42 457 - -
Trade and other recevables 21 100 87 23 25
Deferred tax assets 25 117 105 - -

Derivative financial Instruments 36

3.198 3,017 1,960 1,768

Current assets

Inventories and non-construction work in progress 19 172 140 - -
Due from construction contract customers 20 634 604 - -
Trade and other receivables 21 1,241 1,410 1,162 1,295
Cash and cash equivalents — PPP subsidiaries 24 25 18 - -
- other 24 517 577 43 -
Current tax assets 4 5 - -
Denvative financial instruments 36 1 1 2 2
2,594 2,765 1,197 1,297
Total assets 5,792 5772 3,157 3,065
Current habilities
Due to construction contract customers 20 {382) {576) - -
Trade and other payables 22 {2,214) (2,426) (1.464) (1,584)
Provisions 23 {116) {107} - -
Borrowings — PPP non-recourse loans 24 {12) {21) - -
— other 24 (477) {231) {468) (236)
Current tax liabilities {42) (30} - -
Dervative financial instruments 36 {20 {10) {2) {2)

(3,263 (3,481) {1,932) {1,832

Non-current habilities

Trade and other payables 22 {159} {142} {25} {25)
Provisions 23 {112} {130) {(5) (6)
Borrowings — PPP non-recourse loans 24 {381) {329} - -
- other 24 {5) (6} - -
Deferred tax habilities 25 {10} {15) - {n
Retrrernent benefit habilities 28 {338) (275) {6) {4)
Liability component of preference shares 27 {92) {91} {92) {91)
Dernvative financial instruments 36 {123) {120} {1) {1)
{1,220) {1,108) {129) {128)
Total habilhities {4,483) {4,509} {2,061) {1,860)
Net assets 1,309 1,263 1,096 1,105
Equity
Called-up share capital 27 344 344 344 344
Share premium account 28 63 61 63 61
Equity component of preference shares 28 17 17 17 17
Special reserve 28 25 27 25 27
Share of joint ventures’ and associates’ reserves 28 337 144 - -
Other reserves 28 272 an 321 323
Retained profits 28 248 355 326 333
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,306 1,259 1,096 1,105
Non-controlling interests 28 3 4 - -
Total equity 1,309 1,263 1,096 1,105

On behalf of the Board

Steve Marshall Duncan Magrath
Director Director

6 March 2013
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Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Group Company
2012 201 2012 201
Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash {used in)/generated from operations 291 {219) 35 {79) {100)
Income 1axes {paidl/freceived {19) {18) - 9
Net cash {used in)/from operating activities {238) 17 {79) {91)
Cash flows from investing activities
Dmdends received from joint ventures and associates 58 54 3 12
Dividends recerved from discontinued operation - 5 - 5
Dividends recerved from substdianes - - 4 1
Interest received 33 23 3 6
Acqursition of businasses, net of cash and cash equivalents acquired 301 {4) (100} - -
Purchase of intangible assets —~ other 14 {25) {19) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 {(49) (77) - -
Purchase of other investments 17 {5) {21} - -
Investrments in and foans to joint ventures and associates 16 4 {27) {41) - -
Investments in PPP financial assets 18 {22) (40) - -
Disposal of investments in joint ventures 164 81 28 - -
Disposal of UK specialist rall manufacturing business 3056 - 37 - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 21 21 - -
Disposal of other investments 17 9 19 - —
Net cash from/{used in) investing activities 70 {111} 10 24
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of ordinary shares 271 2 3 2 3
Purchase of ordinary shares 283 (3) {4) - -
Proceeds from new loans 283 350 282 230 212
Repayment of loans 293 {53) (8) (32) -
Repayment of finance leases 293 {4) {4) - -
Ordinary dividends paid 12 {96) (88) {96) {88)
Other dividends paid — non-controlling interest 12 {n - - -
Interest paid (47 {44) {13} {18)
Preference dividends paid {11) {11) {11} (11)
Net cash from financing activities 137 126 80 o8
Net {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 293 {31} 32 1 31
Effects of exchange rate changes (17) (2) - -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 580 550 {24 (55)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 292 §32 580 {13 {24)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Principal accounting policies

11 Basis of accounting

The annual financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis as
discussed on page 57 and n accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union and therefore comply
with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation
and with those parts of the Companies
Act 2006 that are applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The Group has
applied all accounting standards and
interpretations 1ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and
international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee as adopted

by the European Union relevant to 1ts
operations and effective for accounting
penods beginning on 1 January 2012

The financial statements have been
prepared under the histonical cost
convention, except as descnbed

under Note 1 26 The functional and
presentational currency of the Company
and the presentational currency of the
Group i1s sterling

Adoption of new and revised
standards

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of
ltems of Other Comprehensive Income
was adopted in the current period
requinng items of other comprehensive
inceme duning the peried to be presented
as items which will subsequently be
reclassified to the income statement and
items which will not The tax applicable
to each category Is also shown separately
and as a result the comparative
information has been re-presented

Amendments 1o the following standards
were also adopted during the current year
with no effect on the Group

* |FRS 1 Severe Hypernnflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters

= IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a Surface Mine

* Amendments to |AS 12 Deferred Tax
Recovery of Underlying Assets

Accounting standards not yet adopted
by the Group

The following accounting standards,
interpretations and amendments have
been 1ssued by the |IASB but had either
not been adopted by the European Union
or were not yet effective in the European
Unton at 31 December 2012

* [FRS 9 Financial instruments

= |[FRS 10 Consohdated Financial
Statements

* |FRS 11 Joint Arrangements

* |IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests In
Other Entities

* IFRS 13 Farr Value Measurement

* Amendments to the following

standards

— IFRS 1 Government Loans

— IFRS 7 Financial Instruments
Dusclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabihues

— 1AS 19 Employee Benefits

— |AS 27 Separate Financial Statements

— IAS 28 investments In Associates
and Joint Ventures

— |AS 32 Financial Instruments
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

~ Improvements to IFRSs {2009-2011)

— IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
Investment entities

— IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12
Transitton guidance

Of these, IFRS 9 and IAS 19 revised
are expected to have the most
stgnificant effect

IFRS 915 expected to replace 1AS 39
Financial Instruments Recognition and
Measurement from 2015, subject to
EU adoption IFRS 9 inissue as at

31 December 2012 concerns the
classification and measurement of financia!
assets and financial liabihties and the
de-recognrtion of financial Instruments
New requirements for impairment and
hedge accounting are expected to be
added to IFRS 2.n the first half of 2013

On 28 November 2012 the 1ASB 1ssued
an Exposure Draft, Classification and
Measurement Limited Amendments to
IFRS 9, which proposes a new category
for the classification of financial assets
and liabilities, "Fair value through other
comprehensive income’ Should these
proposals be adopted, the Group's PPP
financial assets will be classtfied as

“Fair value through other comprehensive
income" which would not result in matenal
changes to the current accounting of the
Group’s PPP financial assets

The requirements of IFRS 9 in1ssue as
at 31 December 2012 would result in

the Group's PPP financial assets being
reclassified from 'avallable-for-sale”,
which Is a category that will no longer
exist under the current new standard,

10 a debt instrument measured ether at
amortised cost or at far value through
profit or loss Assuming the Group
adopts fair value through profit er loss,
movements in the far value of PPP
financial assets will no longer be
recogrised In other comprehensive
incomsa Ratrospective application of this
requirement would result in the closing
balance of fair value movements
recagnised in PPP financial asset reserves
being transferred to retained sanings
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The effect within the Group's reserves
would be a transfer of £93m from PPP
financial asset reserves to retained
earnings The effect within the share of
joint ventures' and associates’ reserves
would be a transfer of £399m from PPP
financial asset reserves to retained earnings

Adopting amendments to 1AS 19
Employee Benefits would have increased
the 2012 net finance cost by £10m (2011
£17m} The estimated effect for 2013,
based on current actuarial assumptions, 1s
to increase the net finance cost by £21m

1 2 Re-presentation of comparative
information

The 2011 Income Statement has been
re-presented 1o separately disclose the
gains on disposals of interests in PPP
|otnt ventures on the face of the Income
statement Previously this amount was
included within other net underlying
operating expenses and disclosed within
the Notes to the Financral Statements
Refer to Note 381

The 2011 trade and other receivables
note has been re-presented to separately
identify trade receivables and other
receivables which were previousiy
amalgamated Refer to Notes 21 and 38 2

1 3 Basis of consohidation

The Group financial statements include
the results of the Company and 1ts
subsidiaries, together with the Group’s
share of the results of joint ventures and
associates, drawn up to 31 December
each year

a) Subsidiaries

Subsidianies are enties over which the
Group has control, being the power to
govern the financial and operating policies
of the Investee entity so as to obtain
benefits from 1ts activities The results

of subsidiaries acquired or sold in the
year are consolidated from the effective
date of acquisition to the effective date
of disposal

The acquisition method of accounting

1s used to account for the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group On acquisition,
the assets, labiliies and contingent
labilities of a subsidiary are measured at
their fair values at the date of acquisition
Any excess of the fair value of the cost
of acquisttion over the farr values of

the i[dentifiable net assets acquired 1s
recognised as goodwill Any deficiency
of the cost of acquisition below the fair
values of the identifiable net assets
acquired (discount on acquisition) I1s
credited to the income statement in the
penod of acquisition The interest of
non-controlling equity holders 1s stated
at the non-controlling equity holders’
proportion of the fair value of the assets
and liabilities recogrused




1 Principal accounting policies
continued

1 3 Basis of consolidation continued
a) Subsidiaries continued

Any acquisition or disposal which does not
result In a change in control 1s accounted
for as a transaction betwaen equity
holders The carrying amounts of the
contralling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in therr
relative interests in the subsidiary Any
difference between the fair value of the
consideration paid or received and the
amount by which the non-controlling
Interests are adjusted 1s recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the parent

Accounting policies of subsidiaries are
adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with those used by the
Group Allintra-Group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation

b} Jomnt ventures and associates

Joint ventures are those entities over
which the Group exercises joint control
through a contractual arrangement
Associates are entities over which

the Group s In a position to exercise
significant influence, but does not
control or exercise joint control, through
parbicipation in the financial and
operating policy decistons of the investee

The results, assets and Labilities of joint
ventures and associates are incarporated
In the financial staterments using the
eaguity method of accounting except
when classified as held for sale

The equity return from the military
housing joint ventures of Balfour Beatty
Investments US 1s contractually imited
to a maximum level of return, beyond
which Balfour Beatty investments

US does not share in any further return

Any excess of the far value of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the
far values of the wentfiable net assets
of the Jjoint venture or associate entity at
the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill Any deficiency of the fair value
of the cost of acquisition below the
Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable net assets of the joint
venture or associate at the date of
acquisition {discount on acquisition)

15 credited to the iIncome statement

In the period of acquisttion

Investments In joint ventures and
associates are Initialty carried 1n the
statement of financial position at cost
{including goodwill ansing on acquisition)
and adjusted by post-acquisition changes
n the Group's share of net assets of

Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

the joint venture or associate, less any
impairment In the value of individual
investments Losses of joint ventures
and associates in excess of the Group's
interest in those joint ventures and
assoclates are only recogrised to the
extent that the Group 1s contractually
hable for, or has a constructive obligation
to meet, the obligations of the joint
vemtures and associates

Unrealised gains and losses on
transactions with joint ventures and
assocliates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's Interest In the relevant joint
venture or associate

c) Jointly controlled operations

The Group's share of the results, assets
and habilities of contracts carned out

In conjunction with another party are
included under each relevant heading

In the income statement and statement
of financial position

14 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded at the rate of exchange at the
date of the transaction Monetary assets
and liabihties denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange at the reporting date Significant
exchange rates used in the preparation

of these financial statements are shown
in Note 1 28

For the purpose of presenting
consolidated financial statements, the
results of foreign subsidianies, associates
and joint venture entities are translated at
average rates of exchange for the year,
unless the exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which
case the exchange rates at the date

of transactrons are used Assets and
habilities are translated at the rates of
exchange pravailling at the reporting date
Goodwill and fair value adjustments
ansing on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and labilities
of the foreign entity and translated at the
rates of exchange at the reporting date
Currency translation differences ansing
are transferred to the Group's foreign
currency translation reserve and are
recognised In the iIncome statement

on disposal of the underlying investment

In order to hedge its exposure to certain
foreign exchange risks, the Group may
enter into forward exchange contracts
Refer to Note 1 26i{c} for details of the
Group s accounting policies in respect
of such derivative financial instruments

15 Revenue recogn:ition

Revenue 15 measured at the farr value of
the consideratton received or recetvable
for goods and services provided, net of

trade discounts, value added and sirmitar
sales based taxes, after eliminating
revenue within the Group Revenue

15 recognised as follows

s revenue from construction and service
activities represents the value of work
carned out during the year, including
amounts not invoiced

* revenue from manufacturing activities
1s recognised when titie has passed

* |nterest income 15 accrued on a time
basis using the sffective intarest
method by reference to the principal
cutstanding and the effective interest
rate, which 15 the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount

= dividend income I1s recognised when
the equity holder’s nght to receive
payment s established

1 6 Segmental reporting

The Group considers its Board of
Directors to be the chief operating
decision maker and therefore the
segmental disclosures provided in Note 3
are ahgned with the monthly reports
provided to the Board of Directors

The Group's reporting segments are
based on the types of services provided
QOperating segments with similar
economic charactenstics have been
aggregated into four reportable segments
A description of each reportable operating
segment 15 provided in Note 3 Further
information on the business activities

of eachreportable operating segment

is set out on pages 28t0 43

Working capital 1s the statement of
financial position measure reported ta
the chiet operating decision maker The
profitabiity measure used to assess the
performance of the Group 1s underlying
profit from operations

Segment results represent the contribution
of the different segments after the
allocauon of attnbutable corporate
overheads Transactions between
segments are conducted at arm’s length
market prices Segment assets and
llabiliies comprise those assets and
llabilities directly attributable to the
segments Corporate assets and liabilities
in¢lude cash balances, bank borrowings,
tax balances and dividends payable

Major customers are defined as
customers contributing more than 10%
of the Group's external revenue
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1 Principal accounting policies
continued

17 Construction and service contracts
When the ouicome of individual contracts
can be estimated reliably, contract
revenue and contract costs are recognised
as revenue and expenses respectively

by reference to the stage of completion

at the reporting date The stage of
completion 1s measured by the proportion
of the value of work done to the total
value of work under the contract

Prowvision 1s made for all known or
expectad losses on ndividual contracts
once such losses are foreseen Revenue
In respect of varations to contracts,
claims and incentive payments 1s
recognised when 1t Is probable 1t wilt be
agreed by the client Profit for the year
includes the benefit of claims settled on
contracts completed in previous years

1 8 Pre-contract bid costs and
recoveries

Pre-contract costs are expensed as
incurred until it 1s virtually certain that a
contract will be awarded, from which time
further pre-contract costs are recognised
as an asset and charged as an expense
over the period of the contract Amounts
recovered in respect of pre-contract costs
that have been written off are deferred
and amortised over the life of the contract

For construction and services projects,
the relevant contract Is the construction
or services contract respectively With
respect to PPP projects, there are
potentially three contracts over which
the recovered costs could be amortised,
the concession itself, the construction
contract or the services contract

An assessment 1s made as to which
contractual elemeént the pre-contract
costs relate to, In order to determine
which ts the relevant period for
amortisation The relevant contract 1s
elther the construction contract that
ulumately gives rise to a financial or
intangible asset, or the services contract
where there 15 no initial construction

1 9 Profit from operations

Protit from operations 1s stated after the
Group's share of the post-tax results of
equity accounted |oint venture entities and
associates, but before iInvestment income
and finance costs

110 Finance costs

Finance costs of debt, including premiums
payable on settlement and direct Issug
costs, are charged to the iIncome
statement on an accruals basis over the
term of the instrument, using the effective
interest method

111 Non-underlying items
Non-underlying items are items of
financial performance which the Group
believes should be separately identified on
the face of the income statement to assist
in understanding the underlying financial
performance achieved by the Group Such
items will affect the absolute amount of
the results for the period and the trend of
results Underlying tems are items before
non-underlying items

Non-underlying iterms mnclude

+ gains and logses on the disposal
of businesses, Investments and
property, plant and equipment, unless
this s part of a programme of releasing
value from the disposal of similar
businesses or Investments

* costs of restructuning and reorganisation
of existing businesses

e costs of integrating newly acquired
businesses

e acquisition and similar costs related to
business combinations

s imparrmeant and amortisation charges
on intangible assets arising on husiness
combinations {amortisation of acquired
Intangible assets)

* impairment of goodwill

These are examples, however, from uime
to time 1t may be appropriate to disclose
further 1items as non-underlying rtems

1n order ta highlight the underlying
performance of the Group Amaortisation
charges in respect of software are
included n undarlying items

112 Taxation

The tax charge comprises current tax and
deferred tax, calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantvely
enacted by the reporting date Current tax
and deferred tax are charged or credited
to the income statement, except when
they relate to iterms charged or credited
directly to equity, In which case the
relevant tax 1s also dealt with In equity
Current tax 1s based on the profit for

the year

Deferred tax s provided in full, using

the hability method, on temporary
differencas anising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilibes and their carrying
amounts In the financial statements
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Deferred 1ax on such assets and habilities
15 not recogrused If the tempoerary
difference arises from the inital
recogrution of goodwill or from the imitial
recognition {other than in a business
combination) of other assets and habidities
In 8 transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that i1t 15 probable that future taxable
profit will be avallable against which the
temporary differences can be utilised The
carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15
reviewed at each reporting date

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary
differences ansing on investrments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal

of the temporary difference can be
controlled by the Group and it 1s probable
that the temporary difference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and habilities are
offset when they relate to iIncome taxes
levied by the same taxation authonty and
the Group Intends to settle 1ts current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis

113 Intangible assets

a} Goodwill

Goodwill anses on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and other businesses, joint
ventures and associates and reprasents
the excess of the fair value of
consideration over the farr value of the
identifiable assets and hiabihities acquired
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes
and other businesses Is included in
nen-current assets Goodwill on
acquisitions of |oint ventures and
assoclates 1s included In Investments

In joint ventures and assoclates

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for
impairment and is carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses Goodwill
15 included when determining the profit
or loss on subsequent disposal of the
business to which it refates

Goodwill anising on acquisitions before the
date of transition to IFRS (1 January 2004)
has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts subject to being tested

for impairment Goodwill wntten off or
discount arising on acquisition credited 10
reserves under UK GAAP prior to 1998
has not been reinstated and 1s not included
in determining any subsequent profit or
loss on disposal

b) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisatron and
impairment losses




1 Principal accounting policies
continued

113 Intangible assets continued

¢) Research and development
Internally generated intangible assets
developed by the Group are recognised
only If all the following conditions ara met

s an asset s created that can be identified

¢ 1115 probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits

+ the development cost of the asset can
be measured reliably

Other research expenditure 15 wntten off
in the penod in which it 1s incurred

114 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment 1s stated

at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any recegnised impairment [oss

Cost tncludes expenditure associated with
bringing the asset to its operating location
and condition

115 Leasing

Leases which transfer substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee are classified as finance
leases All other leases are classified
as operaing leases

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at ther
far value or, If lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments,
determined at the inception of the lease,
and depreciation 1s provided accordingly
The liability to the tessor 1s includad in the
statement of financial pesiiion as a finance
lease obligation Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant effective rate

of intarest on the remaining balance of
the liability

Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to Income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease
Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter Into an operating lease
are also spread on a straight-line basts
over the lease term

116 Impairment of assets

Goodwilt arising on acquistions and other
assets that have an indefinite useful Iife
and are not subject to amortisation are
reviewed at least annually for imparment
Other intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever there is any
indication that the carrying amount

of the asset may not be recoverable
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If the recoverable amount of an asset
1s less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss 1s recognised

Recoverable amount 1s the hugher of farr
value less costs to sell and value in use
Value in use Is assessed by discounting
the estimated future cash flows that the
asset 1s expected to generate For this
purpose assets, including goodwill, are
grouped into cash-generating units
representing the lavel at which they are
monitared by the Board of Directors for
internal management purposes Goodwill
imparrment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods Reversals of other
impairment losseas are recognised In
income when they arise

117 Investments

Investments are recognised and
derecognised on the trade date where a
purchase or safe of an investment 1s under
a contract whose terms require delivery
of the iInvestment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and
are iniwally measured at cost, including
transaction costs

Available-for-sale investments are
measured at far value Gains and losses
ansing from changes in the fair value

of avallable-for-sale investments are
recognised in equity, unill the investment 1s
disposed or Is determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gan or loss
15 included in the net profit or loss for the
pericd Held to maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost

118 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and groups of assets
1o be disposed of are classified as held

for sale if their carrying amounts will

be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use Held
for sale assets are measured at the

lower of therr carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell

119 Inventories
Inventaries are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value

Cost Includes an appropriate proportion
of manufactunng overheads incurred in
bringing mventories to their present
location and condition and 1s determined
using the first-in first-out mathod Net
realisable value represents the estmated
selling pnice less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred In
marketing, selling and distribution

120 Trade receivables

Trade recevables are initiatly recorded at
fair value and subsequently measured at
amoritsed cost as reduced by allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts

121 Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing
and are stated at their nominal value

1 22 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, faults and
warranties, environmental restoration,
onerous leases, and other onerous
commitments are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the Group's hability Provisions are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event, 1t 1s probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated rehably

1 23 Borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts
are recorded at the proceeds recewed, net
of directissue costs Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement
or redemption and direct 1ssue costis, are
charged to income on an accruals basis
using the effective interest method and
are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not
settled in the pertod (n which they anse

1 24 Retirement benefit costs

The Group, through trustees, operates

a number of defined benefit and defined
contribution retirement and other long
term employee benefit schemes,

the majanty of which are of the defined
benefit type and are funded Defined
benehit contributions are determined in
consultation with the trustees, after taking
actuarial advice

For definaed benefit retirement benefit
schemes, the cost of providing benafits
recognised in the iIncome statement

and the defined benefit obligabons

ars detsrmined at the reporting date

by independent actuaries, using the
projected urit credit method The hability
recognised in the statement of financial
position comprises the present value of
the defined benefit pension obligation,
determined by discounting the estimated
future cash flows using the market viald
on a high quality corporate bond, less the
fair value of the plan assets Actuanal
gains and losses are recogrused i full in
the penod in which they occur outside
the incame statement in the statement
of comprehensive iIncome

Contrbutions to defined contribution
pension schemes are charged to the
Income statement as they fall due
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1 Principal accounting policies
continued

1 25 Share-hased payments
Employee services received in

exchange for the grant of share options,
perfarmance share plan awards and
deferred bonus plan awards since

7 November 2002 are charged in the
Income staterent on a straight-line basis
over the vesting penod, based on the farr
values of the eptions or awards at the
date of grant and the numbers expectied
to become exercisable The credits

In respect of the amounts charged are
included within separate reserves in
equity until such time as the options or
awards are exercised, when the proceeds
recerved in respect of share options are
credited to share capital and share
premium or the shares held by the
employee trust are transferred to
employees in respect of performance
share plan awards and deferred bonus
plan awards

1 26 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habilities
are recognised in the Group's staterment
of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractua!
provisions of the instrument

a) Classification of financial habilities
and equity instruments

Financial habilities and equity instruments
are classified according 1o the substance
of the contractual arrangements An
equity instrument Is any contract that
evidences a residual Interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting a!l of its
liabilities Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recorded at the proceeds
recerved, net of direct 1ssue costs

b) Cumulative convertible redeemable
preference shares

The Company’s cumulative convertible
redeemable preference shares are a
compound instrument, comprising

a hability component and an equity
component The fair value of the hability
component was estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate at the date
of 1ssue for a simular non-convertible
tnstrument The difference between

the proceeds of 1ssue of the preferance
shares and the far value assigned to

the hability component, representing the
embeadded option to convert the hability
Into the Company's ordinary shares, is
included in equity The interest expense
on the liabiity component is calculated
by applying the market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt prevalling at
the date of 1ssue to the hability component
of the instrument The difference

between this amount and the dividend
paid 1s added 10 the carrying amount of
the hability component and Is included
in finance charges, together with the
dividend payable

¢} Derivative financial instruments
and hedge accounting

The Group uses denvative financial
Instruments to manage interest rate nsk
and to hedge exposures to fluctuations In
fareign currencies and commodity prices
In accordance with Its nsk management
policy The Group does not use denvative
financial iInstruments for speculatve
purposes A descniption of the Group's
objectives, policies and strategies with
regard to derivatives and other financial
instruments 1s set out in Note 36

Denvatives are intially recognised in the
statement of financial position at far value
on the date the derivative transaction

15 entered Into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values

Changes in the farr value of dervatives
that are dessgnated and qualify as far
value hedges are recogmsed in the
Income statement together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged
1itemn that are attnbutable to the
hedged nisk

Changes in the farr value of the effective
portion of dervatives that are designated
and qualfy as cash flow hedges are
recognised in equity Changes in the fair
value of the neffective portion of cash
flow hedges are recognised in the income
statement Amounts accumuiated in
equity are transferred to the income
statement when the underlying
transactron occurs of, if the transaction
results In a non-financial asset or lability,
are Included in the tnitial cost of that asset
or hability

Changes in the fair value of dervative
financial instruments that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised In
the Income statement as they arnse

Hedge accounting I1s discontinued when
the hedging Instrument expires oris sold,
terminated, or exercised, or no longer
qualifres for hedge accounting At that
umne, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in equity
15 retained In equity unti! the hedged
transaction occurs If a hedged transaction
15 no longer expected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or lass recogrused In
equity I1s transferred to the iIncome
statement for the period

Denvatives embedded in other financial
instruments or other host contracts

are treated as separate dervatives and
recorded In the statement of financial
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position at fair value when their nsks and
characteristics are not clasely related to
those of the host contract Changes in tha
farr value of those embedded dervatives
recognised in the statement of financial
position are recogrused in the income
statement as they anse

d) PPP concession companies
Assets constructed by PPP concession
companies are classified pnncipally as
avallable-for-sa'e financial assets

In the construction phase, Income 15
recognised by applying an attributable
profit margin to the construction costs
representing the fair value of construction
services In the operational phase, income
Is recognised by allocating a proportion
of total cash received over the Iife of

the project to service costs by means

of a deemed constant rate of return on
those costs The residual element of
projected cash 15 allocated to the financial
asset using the effective interest rate
method, giving rnise to Interest Income
Due to the nature of the contractual
arrangements the projected cash flows
can be estumated with a high degree

of certainty

In the construction phase the fair value
of the Group's PPP financial assets I1s
determined by applying an attributable
proht margin on the construction costs
representing the fair value of construction
services performed In the operational
phase fair value 1s determined by
discounting the future cash flows
allocated to the financial asset using
discount rates based on long term gelt
rates adjusted for the nsk levels
associated with the assets, with
movemants In farr value recognised In
equity Amounts accumulated in equity
are transferred to the income statament
upon disposal of the asset

127 Judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements under tFRS requires
management to rake jJudgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and
habiliies at the reporting date and the
amounts of revenue and expenses
incurred duning the reporting period
Actual outcomes may differ from these
|udgements, estimates and assumptions
The judgements, estimates and
assumptions that have the most
significant effect on the carrying value
of assets and habilities of the Group as at
31 December 2012 are discussed below




1 Principal accounting policies
continued

1 27 Judgements and key sources

of estimation uncertainty continued
a) Revenue and margin recognition
The Group's revenue recognition and
margmn recognition policies, which are set
outin Notes 1 5and 17, are ceniral to
how the Group values the work 1t has
carned out in each financial year

These policies require forecasts to be
made of the outcomes of long term
professional services, construction
services and support services contracts,
which require assessments and
judgements to be made on recovery

of pre-contract costs, changes in

work scopes, contract programmes,
maintenance habilites and changes

IN COStS

b) Taxation

The Group 1s subject to tax In a number of
junsdictions and judgement Is required In
determining the worldwide provision for
income taxes The Group provides for
future habilities in respect of uncertain
tax positions where addittonal tax may
become payable in future periods and
such provisions are based on
management’s assessment of exposures

As set out in Note 112 above, deferred
tax I1s accounted for on temporary
differences using the liability method,
with deferred tax habilities ganerally heing
provided for in full and deferred tax assets
being recognised to the extent that itis
judged probable that future taxable profit
will anse agamst which the temporary
differences will be utihsed

c) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill 1s impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill has been allocated The value In
use calculation requires an estimate to be
made of the timing and amount of future
cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating umit and the apphcation
of a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value The discount
rates used are based on the Group's
weighted average cost of capital adjusted
to reflect the specific economic
environment of the relevant cash-
generating unit The carrying value of
goodwill at 31 December 2012 was
£1,160m (2011 £1,279m)
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d) Impairment of iInvestments in joint
ventures and associates

Investments in joint ventures and
associates are reviewed for impairmeant at
the reporting date Determimning whether
an investment balance is impaired requires
an estimation of the value i use of the
Joint venture or associate The value In

use calculation requires an estimate to be
made of the iming and amount of future
cash flows expected to arise from the
joint venture or associate and the
application of a suitable discount rate

in order to calculate the present value

The discount rates used are based on

the Group's weighted average cost of
capital adjusted to reflect the specific
economic environment of the joint venture
ar assoclate

e) Available-for-sale financial assets
At 31 December 2012 £3,183m {2011
£2,938m) of assets constructed by the
Group's PPP subsidiary, joint venture and
associate companies are classified as
"avallable-for-sale financial assets” In the
operational phase the farr value of these
financial assets 1s measured at each
reporting date by discounting the future
value of the cash flows allocated to the
financial asset A range of discount rates,
15 used from 4 70% to 7 70% (2011

4 83% to 7 83%), which reflects the
prevailing rnisk free interest rates and

the different nsk profiles of the vanous
concessions A £405m gain was taken to
equity In 2012 and a cumulative farr value
gain of £647m had arsen on these
financial assets as a result of movements
mn the fair value of these financial assets
at 31 December 2012

f) PPP derivative financial instruments
The Group's PPP subsidiary, joint venture
and associate companies use denvative
financial instruments, principally swaps,
to manage the interest rate and inflation
rate risks to which the concessions are
exposed by their long term ¢ontractual
agreements These derivatives are inibally
recognised as assets and iabilities at therr
fair value and subsequently remeasured
at each reporting date at their farr value

128 Exchange rates

The fair value of derivatives constantly
changes in response to prevalling
market conditions A loss of £20m was
taken to equity in 2012 and a cumulative
fair value loss of £433m had ansen

on these financial instruments at

31 December 2012

g} Recoverable value of recognised
recervables

The Group has recognised trade
receivables with a carrying value of
£824m (2011 £926m re-presented)
The recoverability of trade receivables
Is regularly reviewed in the light of the
available economic information specific
to each recevable and speacific provisions
are recognised for balances censidered
to be rrecoverable

h} Prowvisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain
tirming or amount and therefore in

making a reliable estimate of the quantum
and timing of habilities jJudgement 1s
applted and re-evaluated at each reporting
date The Group recognised provisions

at 31 December 2012 of £228m

{2011 £237m)

1) Rettrement benefit obligations
Details of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes are set out in Note 26,
including tables showing the sensitivity

of the Group pension schems obligations
and assets to different actuanal
assumptions At 31 December 2012, the
retirement benefit labiity recognised on
the Group's statement of financial position
was £338m (2011 £275m)} The effects —
of changes in the actuanal assumptions
underlying the benefit obligation, discount
rates and the differences between
expected and actual returns on

the schemes' assets are classified as
actuarial gains and losses During 2012
the Group recogrised net actuanal losses
of £126m in equity (2011 £53m gatns),
including s share of the actuanal

gains and losses ansing in joint ventures
and associates

SIINNY NG

The following key exchange rates were applied in these financial statements

Average rates

£1 buys 2012 2011 Changa
Uss 159 1860 {0 6)%
Euro 123 115 70%
Closing rates

£1 buys 2012 201 Change
Uss 162 155 4 5%
Euro 123 120 25%
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2 Revenue
Group Group  Company Company
2012 201 2012 20m
£m £m £m £m
Revenue from the provision of services” 9,466 9,460 - -
Revenue from manufacturing activities 13 33 - -
Proceeds from sale of development land 4 1 - -
Dwvidends from subsidianes - - 127 1
Diwvidends from joint ventures and assoctates - - 3 12
Total revenue 9,483 9,494 130 13
Investment income {Note 6) 62 57 6 6
Total revenue and investrment income 9,545 9,651 136 19

* Includes IAS 11 construction contract revenue of £8 127m (2011 £8 098m)

3 Segment analysis
Reportable segmants of the Group

* Professional Services — the provision of project management, architectural, design or other techmcal services performed by the
Group as a consultant

* Construction Services — activities resulting in the physical construction of an asset

* Support Services — activities which support existing assets or functions such as facihibes management, asset maintenance
and refurbishments

¢ Infrastructure Investments - acquisition, operation and disposal of infrastructure assets such as PPP concessions and airports

31 Total Group
Professional Construction Suppart Infrastructure  Corporata

Income statement — performance by activity Services  Services  Services lnvestments  actiwities Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 1,668 6,959 1,633 636 - 10,896
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {21) {830) {135} 427) - {1.413)
Group revenue 1,647 6,129 1,498 209 - 9,483
Underlying group operating profit/{lossy 97 69 439 29 {32) 212
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 1 53 3 40 - 97
Underlying profit/{loss) from operations! a8 122 52 69 (32) 309
Non-underlying ttems
- amortisation of acquired intangible assets {19) {13) {5) (8) - (45)

— goodwill mpairment in respect of Mainland European

rall businesses - {95) - - - {95)
— other non-underlying 1items {13} {51) {16) {12) (3} {95}
Profit/lloss) from operations 66 {37) 3N 49 {35} 74
Investment income 62
Finance costs {61)
Profit before taxation 75

2011 2011 201 2011 2014 20M
£m £m £m £m Em £m
Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 1,645 7,060 1,584 756 - 11,035
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates i {849} (140} (551) - {1,541}
Group revenue 1.644 6,201 1,444 205 - 9,494
Underlying group operating profit/{loss)’ a7 141 63 - {35} 256
Share of results of joint ventures and associates - 28 4 43 - 75
Underhlying profit/{loss) from operations’ 87 169 &7 43 (35} KX
Non-underlying items
- amortisation of acquired intangible assets (30) an {4} {11 - (62)
— aother non-underlying items (1 {11) {14} - - (26)
Profit/{lloss) from operations 56 141 49 32 {35} 243
Investment income 57
Finance costs (54)
Profit before taxation 246

1 Before non-underlying items {Notes 111 and 8)
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3 Segment analysis continued

3 1 Total Group continued
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Assets and habilities by activity P ernes - Services  Setvices mestments _ actwides  Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Due from construction contract customers 187 387 60 - - 634
Due to construction contract customers {127 (243) {12) - - {382)
Inventories and non-construction work in progress 5 79 87 - 1 172
Trade and other receivables - current 309 663 208 49 12 1,241
Trade and other payables — current {302) (1,455} (368) (43) (46) (2,214)
Provisions {15) {156]) {34) 4] {19) {228)
Working capital” 57 {725} {59) 2 {52) {777)

* Includes non-operating items current working capital and provisions

Total assets 864 2,268 579 1,341 740 5,792
Total habihties {571) {2,087) {449) {256} {1,120) {4,483)
Net assets/(labilities) 293 181 130 1,085 {380} 1,309
20m 201 201 201 2011 201

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Due from construction contract custormers 165 412 27 - - 604
Due to construction ¢ontract customers (151) {415) {10} - - {576)
Inventories and non-construction work in progress 1 €69 69 - 1 140
Trade and other receivables — current 309 794 233 49 25 1,410
Trade and other payahles ~ current (272} (1,679 (355) (52) (B8) {2,426)
Provisions {22} {156} (36} (2] {21 {237}
Working capital® 30 (975} {72} (5} {63) {1,085}

* Includes non-operating items current working capital and provisions
Total assets 8568 2,518 581 1,041 773 8,772
Total lrabilities {5686) {2,414) {430 {249} {850} {4,509}
Net assets/{liabilities) 292 105 151 792 {77) 1,263
Professional Construction Support Infrastructura  Corporate

Other infarmation Sarvices Services Services [Investment: activitias Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

£fm fm £m £m £m £m

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment {Note 15) n 23 13 1 1 49
Depreciation {(Note 15} 13 27 21 2 1 64
Gain on disposals of interests in PPP joint ventures {(Note 30 4) - - - 52 — 52
2014 2011 20m 201 2011 20M

tm £m £m fm fm fm

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment {Note 15) 9 31 34 2 1 77
Depraciation {(Note 15) 12 29 26 2 1 70
Gain on disposals of interests in PPP joint ventures (Note 30 5) — - - 20 - 20

United United Mainland Rast of

Performance by geographic destination Kingdom States Europe world Tatal
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

£fm £m £m £m £m

Revenue including share of joint ventures and assoctates 5,319 3,543 485 1,549 10,896
Share of revenue of joint ventures and associates {564) {119) {7) {723) {1,413)
Group revenue 4,795 3,424 478 826 9483
Non-current assets excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets 1,207 835 13 194 2,349
201 201 2011® 20115 2011

fm tm £m £m £m

Revenue including share of joint ventures and associates 5,700 3.413 520 1,402 11,035
Share of revenus of joint ventures and associates {675} {112 (26) {728) {1,541}
Group revenue 5,025 3,301 494 6874 9,484
Non-current assets excluding financia! assets and deferred tax assets 999 882 219 177 2277

5 Re-presentad to separataly disclose the geographic information refating to Marmland Europe

Major customers

Included in Group revenue are revenues of £2,240m {2011 £2,093m) from the US Government and £2,166m (2011 £2,626m)

from the UK Government, which are the Group's two largest customers These revenues are Included in the results across all four

reported segments
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3 Segment analysis continued

3 2 Infrastructure Investments {Balfour Beatty Investments UK and Balfour Beatty Investments US)

Share of joint Share of joint
ventures and ventures and
associates associatas
Group {Note 16 2]° Total Group  [Note 16 28 Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 20m 201
Underlying profit from operations’ £m £m £m £m £m £m
PPP UK" 2 35 37 1 37 3g
PPP US 12 6 18 12 7 19
Infrastructure (3) )] @) (3) nm {4)
Gain on disposals of interests in PPP joint ventures 52 - 52 20 - 20
63 40 103 30 43 73
Bidding costs and overheads {34) - {34) {30} - {30}
29 40 69 - 43 43
Net assets
PPP UK* 393 528 a1 329 299 628
PPP US 130 65 195 144 b6 200
Infrastructure 1 - 1 3 5 8
524 593 1,117 478 360 836
Infrastructure Investments central functions {32) - {32) {44) - {44)
Total Infrastructure Investments net assets 492 593 1,08% 432 360 792
Net borrowings in relation to PPP subsidianes (368) - {368) {332} - {332)
124 593 717 100 360 460
1 Before non-underlying items {Notes 1 11 and 8)
E The Group s share of the results of jaint ventures and assoc:ates 1s disclosed net of investment income finance costs and taxation
Including Singapore
3 3 PPP concession subsidiaries
The Group has a 100% interest in nine UK PPP concesstons through its sharehaldings in Connect Roads Sunderland Holdings Ltd,
Connect Roads South Tyneside Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads Derby Holdings Lid, Transform Schools (Knowsley) Holdings Ltd,
Connect CNDR Holdings Ltd, Connect Roads Coventry Holdings Ltd, Balfour Beatty Fire and Rescug NW Holdings Ltd, Connect
Roads Cambndgeshire Holdings Ltd, and Connect Roads Northamptonshire Holdings Ltd The perfaormance of the wholly owned
PPP concessions and ther statements of financigl position are surnmarnised below
2012 2011
£ £m
Income statement
Group revenug 90 90
Profit from operattons 2 1
Investment iIncome 31 25
Finance costs {27) {22)
Profit before taxation and intra-Group interest” 6 4
Statement of cash flows
Profit from operations 2 i
Increase in working capital {3) (n
Income taxes pad - -
Net cash outflow from operating acuvities {1) -
Net cash outflow from investing activities {22) {40)
Net cash outflow from financing activities {13) (22)
Net cash outflow {36} (62)
Net borrowings at beginning of year {332) (270}
Net borrowings at end of year® (368) {332)
Statement of financial position
PPP financial assets {(Note 18) 642 457
Derivative financial Instruments {141) (128)
Other net liabilities {8) -
393 329
Cash and cash eguivalents 25 18
Non-recourse term loans {393) {350)
Net assets/{lablities)® 25 {3)

* Excludes £3m {2011 £3m) subordinatad debt interest payable and £34m {2011 £20m) subordinated debt payable by PPP subsidianies to thair holding companies
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4 Profit/{loss) from operations

4 1 Profit/{loss) from operations is stated after charging/{crediting)

Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

2012 201
£fm £m
Research and development costs 3 6
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 64 70
Amortisation of intangible assets 49 66
Goodwill impairment in respect of Manland European rail businesses {Note 8) 95 -
Net reversal of trade recevables impairment provision (13) -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 -
Impairment of inventory a4 2
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {7} {4)
Loss on disposal of UK specialist raill manufacturing business - 7
Cost of inventory recogmised as an expense 223 172
Exchange gains and losses 1 (2}
Auditor's rermuneration 8 3]
Short-term hire charges for plant and equipment 118 114
Other operating lease rentals 110 113
4 2 Analysis of auditor’s remuneration
2012 2011
£m fm
Services as auditor to the Company 08 08
Services as auditor to Group subsidianes 43 43
Total audit fees 51 51
Audnt related assurance fees 05 05
Taxation compliance fees 03 03
Taxation advisory fees 01 04
Corporate finance fees 16 -
Other assurance fees 02 -
Other services 01 01
Total non-audit fees 28 13
Total fees in relation to audit and other services 79 64
5 Employee costs
51 Group
2012 2011
Employee costs during the year £m £m
Wages and salaries 2,253 2121
Redundancy 33 17
Social secunty costs 226 214
Pension costs (Note 26 2) 104 105
Share-based payments {Note 31) 7 6
2,623 2,463
2012 2013
Average number of Group employees Numbaer Number
Professional Services 13,894 13,819
Constructron Services 17,487 18,282
Support Services 16,984 16,634
Infrastructure Investrments 1,621 1,337
Corporate 188 213
50,174 50,195

At 31 Decamber 2012 the total number of Group employees was 50,304 {2011 50,301)

5 2 Company

The average number of employees of Balfour Beatty plc was 134 {2011 128} Total employee costs ¢f Balfour Beatty plc were £19m
{2011 £22m) Total employee costs comprise wages and salanies £14m {2011 £17m), social secunty costs £2m {2011 £2m), pension

costs £1m {2011 £1m), and share-based payments £2m (2011 £2m)

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012 112

SN TR




Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

6 Investment income

Group Group  Company Company
2012 2011 2012 20m
£m £m £m £m
PPP subordinated debt interest recervable 24 25 2 2
Interest receivable on PPP financial assets 31 25 - -
Interest receivable from subsidianes - - 3 3
Other interest receivable and similar incormne 7 7 1 1
62 57 [ 4]
7 Finance costs
) Group Group Company Company
2012 20117 2012 20117
£m £m £m £m
PPP non-recourse — bank loans and overdrafts 27 22 - -
Preference shares - finance cost 12 12 12 12
Other interest payable — loans under committed faciities? 8 3 8 3
— other bank loans and overdrafts? 3 6 1 1
- commitment fees 4 4 4 4
- other finance charges 7 4 - -
Net finance cost on pension scheme assets and liabilitias {(Note 26 2) - 3 - -
Interest payable to subsidianes - - 10 g
61 54 35 29
7 Re presented to separately disclose interest payable on loans under committed facihties
8 Non-underlying items
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £fm
81 Operating expenses {charged against)/credited to profit
Continuing operations
811 Amortisauon of acquired intangible assets (45) {62} - -
8 1 2 Other non-underlying items
— goodwill impairment in respect of Mainland European raill businesses (95) - - -
— other restructuring charges in respect of Mainland European rall businesses {9} - - -
— restructuring and reorganisation costs relating to other existing businesses (61) - {2) -
~ post-acquisition integraton, reorganisation and ather costs {9) {4) - -
—write-down of investment in Exeter International Airport {12) - - -
— cost of implementing UK shared service centre {4) {12) - {1
- acquisition related expenses - {3) - -
—loss on disposal of UK specialist rall manufactuning business - {7) - -
Total other non-underlying items {190) {26) {2) ()
Charged against profit before taxation {235) {88) {2) {1)
8 2 Tax on items above 33 27 1 -
Non-underlying items charged against profit for the year from
continuing operations {(198) (61) {1) i
Discontinued operation
8 3 Barking
— dwidends receved - 5 - 5
— {loss)/gain on disposal of Barking - {n - 54
- 4 - 58
{Charged against)/credited to profit for the year (196) {57) {1) 58
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8 Non-underlying items continued

811 The amertisation of acquired intangible assets compnses customer contracts £16m (2011 £24m), customer relationships £19m
{2011 £27m), and brand names £10m (2011 £11m)

81 21 Following a strategic review in the light of low activity levels and the commoditisation of work, the Group has decided to divest
all of its Mainland European rail businesses over ttime As a result, £95m (2011 £rl} of goodwill in Mainland European rail businesses
has been impaired, comprising Germany £80m, Scandinavia £12m, and Spain £3m Refer to Note 13

81 2 2 In addition to the goodwill Impairment, restructuning costs of £9m {2011 £nd) were incurred during the yaar in respect of the
European rall businesses

81 2 3 The Group 1s restructuring a number of its other businesses in order to increase 1ts focus on the needs of customers and upon
growth sectors, further integrate its service offering to these customers, and realise operational sfficencies In 2012 restructunng
costs of £61m were incurred {2011 £nil) retating to Construction Services UK £34m, where six business units will be streamlined and
restructured into one business with three business streams, Support Services UK £7m, other UK entiies £10m, and other non-UK
entriies £10m These 2012 restructuning costs compnse redundancy costs £20m, external advisers £10m, impairment of lang and
bulldings £5m, other property related costs £11m, pension curtalmant cost £2m, and other restructunng costs £13m

The Company incurred restructuring costs of £2m (2011 £nil) duning the year

81 2 4 Post-acquisition integration and reorganisation costs of £9m (2011 £4m) have been incurred in 2012, of which £8m (2011 £nil)
relates to a iability In respect of a geotechnical survey carned out by a company acquired by Parsons Brinckerhoff, prior to its own
acquisition by Balfour Beatty in 2009 The remaining £1m comprises £1m (2011 £1m) relating to Parsons Brinckerhoff post-acquisition
reorganisation costs, £nil (2011 £1rn) relating to SpawMaxwell, £nil (2011 £1m) relating to Rok, and £nil {2011 £1m) relating to various
other acquisibons

81 2 5 An impairment charge of £12m {2011 £nil) arose on the Group's 0% Interest in Regional & City Arrports {Exeter) Heldings Ltd
from wriung the carrying value of the Group's joint venture investment down to £nil, as a result of the continued effect of adverse
economic conditions upon traffic at regional airports, which was exacerbated by an increase in Arr Passenger Duty effective from
April 2012

81 2 6 The implementation of the UK shared service centre in Newcastle-upon-Tyne during 2012 led to incremental costs of £4m
{2011 £12m) being incurred, of which £nit {2011 £1rm) were incurred by the Company

81 27 No significant costs werse incurred in the acquisition of Subsurface on 31 December 2012 Costs of £3m were incurred during
2011 which were directly attributable to the following acquisitions Romec Services Ltd £1m, Fru-Con £1m, and Howard S Wright £1m

81 2 8 The UK specialist rail manufactuning business was sold during 2011 A loss of £7m arose on the sale which comprises a loss on
the disposal of the rall business operations of £4m, including writing off £7m goodwill, and an onerous lease hability of £3m due to a
property becoming vacant

81 3 In addition to the items included above during 2011, a net £nil non-underlying item arose In respect of Romec Services Ltd
comprising revaluation of the existing 49% stake on step acquisition £13m, service credit £{4)m, and preference dividend to Royal Mall
Group £(9)m

8 2 The non-underlying items charged against Group operating profit have given rise to a tax credit of £38m, comprising £14m on
amortsation of acqured intangible assets, and £25m on other non-underlying items (2011 £27m comprnising £23m on amortisation
of acquired intangible assets, and £4m on other non-underlying items)

The non-underlying tems charged against Company operating profit have given rise to a tax credit of £1m {2011 £nl)

8 3 On 2 March 2011 1t was resolved to dispose of the Company's effective 25 5% interest in Barking Power Ltd (Barking}, which
became a discontinued operation with all tems from this date classified as non-underlying items Subsequent to 2 March 2011,
dvidends of £5m were receved by the Company On 21 December 2011 the Company disposed of its interest in Barking which
resulted In a loss on disposal of £1m for the Group after transaction ¢osts and a gain of £64m for the Company Refer to Note 10
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9 Taxation

9 1 Taxation charge

Group
Non-
underlying
Underlying itams
items’ {Noto 8) Total Total Company Company
2012 2012 2012 2011 2012 201
£m £m £fm £m £m f.m
Total UK tax 17 {21) L)) 25 {9) {5)
Total non-UK tax 53 {18) 35 39 - -
Total tax charge/(credit) 70 {39} 3 64 {9) {5)
UK current tax
— corporation tax for the year at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 15 {(14) 1 - (10} (o)
— adjustments in respect of previous pernods {3) - {3 ~ 1 4
12 {14) {2 - {9) (6)
Non-UK current tax
- non-UK tax on profits for the year N 4 35 24 - -
- adjustments in respect of previous periods 2 - 2 {8} - -
33 4 37 16 - -
Total current tax 45 {10} 35 16 {9) (6
UK deferred tax
— current year chargef{credit) 3 {7} {4) 22 - 3
— adjustments In respect of previous periods {1) - {1} 1 - (2)
— UK corporation tax rate change 3 - 3 2 - -
5 {7} {2} 25 - 1
Non-UK deferred tax
- current year charge/{credit) 27 (22) L 14 - -
— adiustments in respect of previous periods {7) - N 9 - =
20 (22) {2) 23 - -
Total deferred tax 25 {29) {(4) 48 - 1

' Before non-underlying items {Notes 1 11 and 8)

The Group tax charge excludes amounts for joint ventures and associates (refer to Note 16 2), except where tax s levied at the Group level

In addition to the Group tax charge, tax of £70m 1s charged directly to equity {2011 £12m), comprising a deferred tax credit of £16m

{2011 £12m charge), a current tax credit of £1m {2011 £1m charge), and a defemed tax charge in respect of joint ventures and

associates of £86m (2011 £1m credit)

In addition to the Company tax credit, £1m of deferred tax 1s credited directly to equity {2011 £2m charged}

The weighted average applicable tax rate 1s 30% (2011 29%} based on underlying profit before taxation, excluding the results of joint

ventures and associates
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9 Taxation continued

9 2 Taxation reconcihiation

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Profit/{loss} before taxation 75 246 75 (32)
Less share of results of joint ventures and associates {97) (75) - -
{Loss)/profit before taxation (22) 17 75 {32)
Add non-underlying items charged excluding share of joint ventures and associates 235 88 2 1
Underiying profit/licss) before taxation and the results of joint ventures and associates’ 213 259 77 {31)
Tax on profit/loss} before taxation at standard UK carporation tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 52 62 19 (8)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7 4 1 2
Dividend income not taxable - - (32) (4)
Non-taxable disposals {12) (5) - -
Tax levied at Group level on share of joint ventures® and associates’ profits 5 7 - -
Preference share dividends not deducuble 3 3 3 3
Losses not avallable for offset 9 6 - -
Recognition of losses not previously recogntsed {1} {1) - -
Higher tax rates on non-UK earnings 13 2 - -
UK corporation tax rate change 3 2 - -
Adjustments In respect of previous periods {8) 4 1 2
Total tax charge/lcredit) on underlying profit/(loss} 70 91 (8) {5
Less tax credit on non-underlying items {39) {27} {1) -
Total tax chargeficredit) on profit/lloss) 3 64 9) {5)

1 Before non-underlying tems (Notes 1 H and 8)

10 Discontinued operation

On 2 March 2011 the Directors resolved to dispose of the Company's effective 25 5% interest in Barking Power Ltd (Barking) and
accordingly, from 2 March 2011, the Company’s interest in Barking was classified as a discontinued operation held for sale

Barking was previously accounted for as an associate using the equity method Subsequent to classification as a discontinued operation,
equity accounting was no longer applied and all Income and expenses relating to Barking were classified as non-underlying items

On 21 December 2011 the Company disposed of its effective 25 5% interest in Barking to the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (BBPF) for
1ts carrying value of £55m Transaction costs of £1m were incurred in respect of the disposal resulting in a £1m loss on dsposal for the
Group and a £564m gain for the Company

The £55m proceeds from the disposal of Barking to the BBPF and the £55m one-off BBPF deficit contribution were net settled
Barking was part of the Infrastructure Investments segment
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11 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic Diluted Basic Diuted
. 2012 2012 201 201
Earnings £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Earnings 44 44 182 182
Amartisation of acquired intangible assets — net of tax credit of £14m (2011 £23m) 31 3 39 39
Other non-underlying items — net of tax credit of £25m {2011 £4m) 165 165 22 22
Underlying earnings 240 240 243 243
Discontinued operation
Earnings - - 4 4
Other non-underlying items — net of tax of £nil {2011 £nil} - - 4 {4}
Underlying earnings - - - -
Total operations
Earnings 44 44 186 186
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets — net of tax credit of £14m (2011 £23m) 31 31 39 338
Other non-underlying items = net of tax credit of £25m (2011 £4m) 165 165 18 18
Underlying earnings 240 240 243 243
Basic Diluted Basic Ciluted
2012 2012 2011 2011
m m m [£1]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 684 685 683 684
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
2012 2012 2011 2011
Earnings per share Pence Pance Pence Pence
Continuing operations
Earnings per ordinary share 65 65 267 2687
Amorusation of acquired intangible assets 44 44 57 57
Other non-underiying 1tems 241 241 31 31
Underlying earnings per ordinary share 350 350 3565 355
Discontinued operation
Earnings per ordinary share - - 06 06
Other non-underlying 1tems - - {0 &) (0 B6)
Underlying sarnings per ordinary share - - - -
Total operations
Earmngs per ordinary share 65 65 273 273
Ameortisation of acquired intangible assets 44 44 57 87
Other non-underlytng 1items 241 241 25 25
Underlying earnings per ordinary share 350 350 3556 355
12 Dividends on ordinary shares
Per share Amount Per share Amount
2012 2012 2011 2011
Pence £m Pence fm
Proposed dividends for the year
Intenm — current year 560 38 530 38
Final — current year 8 50 58 850 58
14 10 86 13 80 94
Recognised dividends for the year
Final — prior year 58 b2
Interim — current year 38 36
96 88

The intenim 2012 dividend was paid on 7 Dacember 2012 Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting on 18 May 2013, the final
2012 dividend will be paid on 5 July 2013 to holders on the register on 26 Apnil 2013 The ordinary shares will be quoted ex-dwidend on

24 April 2013
2012 2011
£m £fm
Dividends on ordinary shares of the Company 96 88
Other dividends to non-controlling interests 1 -
Total recognised dividends for the year 97 88
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13 Intangible assets - goodwill

Accumulated

imparrment Carrying
Cost losses amount
: £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 1,242 {486) 1,196
Currency translation differences 1 - 1
Businesses acquired 89 - 89
Business disposed (7} - {7
At 31 December 2011 1,325 {46) 1,279
Currency translation differences (34) 2 {(32)
Impairment charges in respect of Mainland European rall businasses (Note 8) - {95) {95)
Business acquired {Note 30 1) 9 - 9
Businesses acquired — prior year (Note 30 3) {1 - (1)
At 31 December 2012 1,299 {139) 1,160
2012 2011
Carrying amounts of goodwill Kil'tljgndltjer:'l’ l;:\:t‘gg M;i::::: R\.evst:r?; Total K”-lngr;g;;‘(: g?;ttgg Mér:oa::!-’ Hs:c:rlc:js Total
by segment £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Professional Services 10 169 1 57 237 10 168 1 60 237
Construction Services 329 362 61 - 752 329 379 162 - 870
Support Services 125 - - - 128 125 - - - 125
Infrastructure Investments 4 42 - - 46 4 43 - - 47
Group 468 573 62 57 1,160 468 588 163 60 1,279

5 Re-presented to separately disclose the geographic information relating to Mainland Eurcpe

The recoverable amount of goodwill 15 based on value In use Cash flow forecasts are based on the expected workload of each
cash-generating unit {CGU} giving consideration to the current level of confirmed and anticipated orders Cash flow forecasts for the
next three years (2011 four years) are based on the Group’s 2013 budget and strategic roadmap The other key inputs In assessing
each CGU are 1ts revenue growth rate and discount rate The revenue growth rates have been applied to cash flows after three years
(2011 four years} into perpetuity and have been derived from esumated GDP growth rates based on published data for the economic
environment of each CGU less 1 0% to reflect current economic uncertainties and their consequent estimated effect on public sector
spending on infrastructure The cash flows assume a residual value based on a muluple of earnmngs before interest and tax

The cash flows have been discounted using CGU specific pre-tax discount rates of 9 0% to 13 7% {2011 10 3% to 13 4%) The discount
rates are revised annually applying updated market inputs to the capital asset pricing model

2012 2011
United United Mainland Rest of United Unted  Manland Rest of
Kingdom States Europe world Kingdom States Europe® world®
% % % % % % %
Inflation rate 22 22 22 22 20 17 20 17
Real growth rate 13 17 03 21 17 24 85 24
Nominal long term revenue growth rate appled 35 39 25 43 37 41 25 41

5 Re-presented to saparately disclose the geographic information relating to Mainland Europa

Following a strategtc review in the light of low activity levels and the commoditisation of work, the Group has decided to divest all of its
Mainland European raill businesses over time As a result, £95m {2011 £nil) of goodwill in Mainkand European rail businesses has been
imparred, comprising Germany £80m, Scandinavia £12m, and Spain £3m The residual goodwill in the CGU1s £61m

Sensitivities
The Group’s iImpairment review I1s sensitive to changes in the key assumptons used The major assumptions that result in signiftcant
sensitivities are the discount rate and the revenue growth rate

Except as noted below, a reasonable possible change in a single assumption will not grve nise to imparment in any of the Group's CGUs

Following the impairment in Mainland European rail businesses using a discount rate of 8 2% and revenue growth rate of 2 5% the
recoverable amount of goodwill1s £61m based on value in uss, with a consequent headroom of £nil A 1 0% increase in the discount
rate or a 1 0% reduction in the growth rate would lead 1o a further impairment of £16m or £13m raspectively

The recoverable amount of the Blackpoo! Internattonal Airport goodwill 1s £4m with headroom of £nil, based on the valug in use of
the trading business and the farr value of the land Any decrease in the fatr value of the land will lead to a commensurate impairment
of the goodwill
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14 Intangible assets — other

Customer Customer Brand
contracts relauonships names  Software™" Total
£m £m £m fm £m

Cost
At 1 January 2011 227 124 51 20 422
Currency translation differences 2 1 - -~ 3
Additions - - - 19 19
Businesses acquired 7 20 7 - 34
At 31 December 2011 236 145 58 39 478
Currency translation differences {9} {5) {n - {15)
Additions - - - 25 25
Business acquired {Note 30 1) 1 1 1 - 3
At 31 December 2012 228 141 58 64 491
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 {97} (51} (20} (3) (171}
Currency translation differences il i} - - (2
Charge for the year {24) {27) {11} {4} {66)
At 31 December 2011 {122} (79) {31) {7} {239)
Currency translation differences 5 3 1 - 9
Charge for the year {16) {19 {10) {4) {49)
At 31 December 2012 {133) {95 {40} {11) {279)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2012 95 46 18 53 212
At 31 December 2011 114 66 27 32 239

" Pumarly includes software of the UK shared service centre and operating companies with a cost of £45m {2011 £27m) and accumulated amortisation of £1m (2011 £nil}
* Of the total software £49m (2011 £30m) 18 internally generated software with a cost of £50m (2011 £30m re-presented) and accumulated amortisation of £1m (2011 £nil)

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, which are one to four years for customer
contracts, three to 10 years for customer relationships, three to seven years for software, and up to five years for brand names,
except for customer contracts and relationships relating to Parsons Brinckerhoff, Barnhart and Balfour Beatty Investments US which
are amortised on a basis matching the returns earned over the life of the underlying contracts and relationships These contracts have
a duration of up to eight years for customer contracts and relationships relating to Parsons Bnnckerhoff and Barnhart and up to 50 years
for customer contracts relating to Balfour Beatty Investments US The software for the UK shared service centre and operating
companies is amortised on a basis matching its usage profile over 1ts seven-year ife The Group’s knowledge sharing and collaberation
software 1s amortised on a basis matching its usage profile over its five-year life
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15 Property, plant and equipment

15 1 Movements

Group
Assels in
Land and Plant and course of
buldings equipment  construction Tetal
£m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 201 132 580 3 715
Currency translation differences - (2) - {2)
Additions 7 69 1 77
Disposals {2) {54} - {56)
Businesses disposed (17} 134) - (51)
Businesses acquired 2 3 - 5
At 31 December 2011 122 562 4 688
Currency translation differences (4) (9) - {13)
Additons 7 42 - 49
Disposals (8) {77 - {85)
Impairment {Note 8) {5) - - (5)
Transfers - 4 {4) -
At 31 December 2012 112 522 - 634
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 (37) {358} - (395)
Currency translation differences - 1 - L
Charge for the year {12) (58} - (70)
Disposals 1 38 - 39
Businesses disposed 3 22 - 25
At 31 December 2011 {45) {355) - (400)
Currency translation differences 1 5 - 6
Charge for the year {10) (54) - (64)
Disposals 5 66 - Fal
At 31 December 2012 {49) (338) - (387)
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2012 63 184 - 247
At 31 December 2011 77 207 4 288

The carrying amount of the Group's land and bulldings and property, plant and equipment held under finance leases was £7m (2011 £9m)
The Company has no land and bulldings or property, plant and equipment held under finance leasas

Except for land and assets in the course of construction, the costs of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their expected useful ives Buildings are depreciated at 2 5% pa or over the term of the lease, and plant and equipment s
depreciated at 4% 10 33% pa

15 2 Analysis of carrying amount of land and buildings

Group Group

2012 2011

£m £m

Freehold an 40
Long leasehoid - over 50 years unexpired 5 5
Short leasehold 27 32
63 77
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16 Investments in joint ventures and associates

16 1 Movements

Net assets Loans Provisions Tozal
£m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2011 328 241 {91} 488
Currency translation differences 3 - - 3
Income recognised 75 - - 75
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets 140 - - 140
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges (154) - - (154)
Fair value revaluation of other cash flow hedges 2 - - 2
Actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations {7} - - {7)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 1 - - 1
Dividends {54} - - {54)
Additions 10 - - 10
Barking disposal {55} - - {55)
Other disposals (6} (8) - {14)
Loans advanced - 32 - 32
Loans repaid - {1) - 4]
At 31 December 2011 293 264 (91) 466
Currency translation differences {5) - - (5)
Income recognised 97 - - 97
Farr value revaluation of PPP financial assets 374 - - 374
Farr value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges {8) - - (8)
Farr value revaluation of other cash flow hedges 1 - - 1
Actuanal losses on retirement benefit obligations {5) - - ()
Tax on items taken directly to equity {86) - - (86)
Diidends {58} - - {58}
Additions 20 - - 20
Disposals (68) {9) - {77}
Wite-down of investment in Exeter International Airport {12) - - {12}
l.oans advanced - 27 - 27
Loans repaid - {12) - {12)
Prowvisions utilised - - 4 4
At 31 December 2012 543 270 (87) 726

The principal joint ventures and associates are shown in Note 37 The onginal cost of the Group's investments Iin joint ventures and
associates was £199m (2011 £187m) The Group's share of borrowings of joint ventures and associates 1s shown in Note 16 2

The amount which was supported by the Group and the Company was £nil {2011 £1m), relating to the Group's share of guaranteed
borrowings The borrowings of Regional & City Airports (Exeter) Ltd and the PPP joint venture and associate entities are repayable over
periods extending up to 2044 As disclosed in Note 32, the Group has committed to prowvide its share of further equity funding of joint
ventures and associates in PPP projects and mihtary housing concessions Further, in respect of a number of these investments the

Group has committed not to dispose of 1ts equity interest until construction 1s complete As 1$ customary In such projects, banking
covenants restrict the payment of dividends and other distributions
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16 2 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates
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Infrastructure Investments

\ Professional Construction Support
Services Services Services UK PPP* US PPP Infrastructure Total Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 21 830 135 422 - 5 427 1,413
Underlying operating profit! 1 57 3 19 6 - 25 86
Investment income - 1 - 180 - - 180 181
Finance costs - - - {155) - {2) {157} {157)
Profit/{loss) before taxation 1 58 3 44 6 {2) 48 10
Taxation - {5) - {9) - 1 {8) {13)
Profit/{loss) after taxation 1 53 3 35 6 {1) 40 a7
Statement of financial position
Non-current assets
Intangible assets — goodwill - 30 - - - 12 12 42
— PPP concession intangible - - - 18 - - 18 18
— other - 2 - 1 - - 1 3
Property, plant and equipment - M 7 1 - 13 14 62
PPP financial assets - - - 2,641 - - 2,641 2,641
Military housing projects - - - - 65 - 65 65
Other non-current assets - 1" 2 1 - 3 14 27
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 202 9 21 - 2 213 429
Other current assets 2 357 27 95 - 15 110 496
Total assets 7 643 45 2,978 65 45 3,088 3,783
Current liabilities
Borrowings — recourse - {45} - - - - - (45)
Borrowings — non-recourse - - - {58) - - {58) {58)
Other current liabilities {3) {441) {37 (206) - {6) {212) (693)
Non-current iabilities
Borrowings — non-recourse - - - (1,871) - (38} (1,909) {1,909}
Other non-current liabilmes {3) (33 - (315) - {1 {316) {352)
Total habilities {6) {519 (37)  {2,450) ~ {45 {2,495) {3,057}
Net assets 1 124 8 528 65 - 593 726

* Ingluding Singapore
! Before non-underlying 1tems {Notes 111 and 8}

The Group's Investment in military housing joint ventures’ and associates’ projects 1s recognised at the nmal equity investment plus the
value of the Group’s accrued preferred return from the underlying projects The military housing joint ventures and associates have total
non-recourse net barrowings of £1,787m {2011 £1,717m) Note 37(e) details the Group’s military housing projects

Capital expenditure authonsed and contracted which has not been provided for in the financial statements of the jaint ventures and

assoclates amounted to £2m (2011 £2m}

As a result of the net far value revaluations of PPP financial assets and cash flow hedges on three PPP concessions, where the
borrowings are non-recourse to the Group, the Group has not recognised cumulative fair value revaluation charges to other

comprehensive income of £15m (2011 £10m)

Following the write down of the Group’s iInvestment in Exeter International Airport, where the borrowings ars non-recourse to the
Group, the Group ceased recognising 1ts share of Exster’s further losses of £1m (2011 £ril}
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16 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

16 2 Share of results and net assets of joint ventures and associates continued

Infrastructure Investments

Professional Constructien Support
Services Services Services UK PPP" US PPP infrastructure Total Total
2011 201 201 20m 201 2011 201 20m
Income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m £ £m
Revenue 1 849 140 536 2 13 551 1,541
Underlying operating profit' - 31 4 12 7 1 20 b5
Investment iIncome - 1 - 184 - - 184 185
Finance costs - - — {148} — {3) {151) {151)
Profit/(loss) before taxation - 32 4 48 7 {2) 53 88
Taxation - {4) - {11) - i {10) {14}
Profit/{loss) after taxation - 28 4 37 7 {1} 43 75
Statement of financial position
Non-current assets
Intangible assets — goodwill - 3 - - - 24 24 55
— PPP concession intangible - - - 19 - - 19 19
- other - - - 1 - - 1 1
Property, plant and eguipment - 42 1 - - " H 54
PPP financial assets - - - 2,481 - - 2,481 2,481
Military housing projects - - - - bb - 55 55
Other non-current assets - 13 - 4 - 11 52 65
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 193 =) 199 - 2 21 406
QOther current assets’ 3 341 42 96 1 2 a9 485
Total assets’ 6 6520 52 2,837 58 50 2,943 3.621
Current liabilities
Borrowings - recourse -~ {47) - - - - - {47
Borrowings - non-recourse - - - {79) - - (79 (79)
Other current hiabilities” {3) {442) {a1) {187) - {8) {195) {681)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings - recourse - {1} - - - - - {n
Borrowings — non-recourse - - - {(1,915) - {37 (1,952} {1,952)
Other non-current habilities {2) (36) - {357) - - {357) (395)
Tatal habilities {5) {526} (41)  {2,538) - {45} {2,583) {3.155)
Net assets 1 94 11 299 56 5 360 466
; Ra-presented in actordance with Group policy
Including Singapare
! Before non-underlying riems (Notes 1 11 and B)
16 3 PPP investments
Net Net
investment Reserves Total investmant Raserves Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Roads 101 238 339 99 {15} 84
Hospitals 78 45 123 80 75 15656
Schools 54 4 58 47 5 52
Other concessions 1 7 8 2 &) 8
PPP UK* 234 294 528 228 71 299
PPP US 53 12 65 45 1 56
PPP investments 287 306 593 273 82 355

A

Including Singapore
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16 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

16 4 Cash flow from/{to) joint ventures and associates

UK PPP" US PPP Other Total UK PPP" Us PPP Other Tatal
) 2012 2012 2012 2012 201 201 2011 2011
Cash flows from investing activities £m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Dvidends from joint
ventures and assoclates 25 7 26 58 26 3] 22 54
Subordinated debt interest received 20 - - 20 18 - - 18
Investments in and loans to joint ventures
and assoclates {15) (12) - (27 {3i) 10) - {41)
Disposal of investmaents in joint ventures 81 - - 81 28 - - 28
Net cash flow from/(to)
joint ventures and associates 11 {5) 26 132 41 (4) 22 59
UK PPP" us PPP Total UK PPP" us PPP Total
2012 2012 2012 20M 2011 2011
Investments 1n and lcans to joint ventures and assoclates £m £m £m £m £m £m
Equity - {12) {12) - {10} 110)
Subordinated debt proceeds {27) - (27) {32) - {32)
Subordinated debt repaid 12 - 12 1 - 1
Total investments in joint ventures and assoclates {15) {12) {27} {31} {10} {41)
" Including Sngapore
16 5 Share of reserves of joint ventures and associates
PPP Currency
Accumulated Hedging financial  translation
profit/lloss) FASErve asssts resarve Total
£m fm £rn fm fm
Balance at 1 January 2011 159 {113) 79 19 144
Currency transtation differences - - - 3 3
Income recognised 75 - - - 75
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets - - 140 - 140
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - {154} - - {154)
Fair value revaluation of other cash flow hedges - 2 - - 2
Actuanal movements on retirement benefit habrlities {7) - - - (7)
Tax on items taken directly to equity 1 32 (32) - 1
Dividends paid {(54) - - - (54)
Recycling of revaluation reserves to the income statement on disposal — - (6 - (6
Balance at 31 December 2011 174 {233) 181 22 144
Currency translation differences - - - (2) (2}
Income recognised a7 - - - 97
Fair value revaluation of PPP financial assets - - 374 - 374
Fair value revaluation of PPP cash flow hedges - {8) - - (8)
Fair valus revaluation of other cash flow haedges - 1 - - 1
Actuanial movements on retirement benefit liabiliies {s) - - - (5
Tax on items taken directly to equity - {5 (81) - (86)
Dividends {(58) - - - {58)
Recycling of revaluation reserves to the income statement on disposal - 27 (75) - (48)
Other reserves disposed* {72) - - - (72)
Balance at 31 December 2012 136 {218) 399 20 337
4 Includes £52m |oint vantures and associates reserves disposed relating to joint ventures disposed or iqurdated in prior years
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17 Investments

171 Group
Awvatlable-
for sala
Held to investments
maturnty In mutual
bonds funds Total
£m fm £m
Balance at 1 January 2011 46 49 a5
Currency translanion differences - 1 1
Fair value movements - (2) {2
Additions 14 7 21
Maturities/disposals {14) {5} {19
Balance at 31 December 2011 486 50 96
Currency translation differences - (2) {2}
Fair value movemsnts - 4 4
Additions - 5 5
Maturities/disposals (%) {5) {9)
Balance at 31 December 2012 42 52 94

The held to matunty bonds are held by Delphian Insurance Company Ltd, the Group’s captive Insurance company, and comprise
fixed rate bonds or treasury stock with an average yield to matunty of 1 20% (2011 2 08%} and weighted average |ife of 2 3 years

(2011 3 2 years) The far value of the bonds i1s £45m (2011 £48m), determined by the market price of the bonds at the reporting date
The maximum exposure to credit nsk at 31 December 2012 is the carrying amount These bonds have been pledged as securnity for

letters of credit issued in respect of Delphian Insurance Company Ltd

The avalable-for-sale investments in mutual funds compnse holdings in a number of funds, based on employees’ investment elections,

in respect of the deferred compensation obligations of the Group as disclosed in Note 26 The fair value of the avallable-for-sale
investments 1s £52m {2011 £50m), determined by the market price of each fund at the reporting date

17 2 Company
2012 20m
£m £m
Investment in subsidharies 2,072 1,877
investment In joint ventures and assoclates 3 3
Provisions {138) {138}
1,937 1,742
18 PPP financial assets
Schools Roads Other Total
fm £ £m fm
Balance at 1 January 2011 190 137 - 327
Income recognised In the Income statement
— construction contract margin - 1 - 1
— interest Income 11 13 1 25
Gains racognised in the statement of comprehensive income
— fair value movements 22 42 - 64
Other movements
— cash expenditure 8 47 24 78
- cash received 116} {23) - (39}
Balance at 31 December 2011 215 217 25 457
Income recognised in the income statement
- construction contract margin - 1 - 1
— interest income 12 16 3 N
{Losses)/gains recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
- fair value movements (3) 34 - 31
Other movements
— cash expenditure 10 38 19 67
— cash received {17) {26) {2} (45)
Balance at 31 December 2012 217 280 45 542

Assets constructed by PPP subsidrary concession companies are classified as avalable-for-sale financial assets and are denominated in
sterling The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the fair value of the PPP financial assets There were no disposals

or Impairment provisions in 2012 ¢or 2011
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2012 2011
£m £m
Unbilled non-construction work In progress 76 47
Raw materals and consumables 50 62
Development and housing land and work in progress 32 17
Manufacturing work In progress 6 6
Finished goods and goods for resale 8 8
172 140
20 Construction contracts
2012 2011
Contracts in progress at reporting date £m £m
Due from construction contract customers 634 604
Due to construction contract customers {382) {576)
252 28
The aggregate amount of costs icurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses for all contracts in progress that had not
reached practical completion at the reporting date was £15,647m {2011 £16,210m)
21 Trade and other receivables
Group Group Company Company
2012 20118 2012 20118
£m £m £m fm
Current
Trade recervables® 851 970 - -
Less Provision for timparment of trade receivables (29} {46} - -
822 924 - -
Other receivables? 69 124 6 8
Due from subsidianes - - 1144 1,285
Due from |oint ventures and assoclates 38 24 - -
Due from jointly controlled operations 1 2 - -
Contract retentions receivable 199 244 - -
Accrued income 38 34 - -
Prepayments 74 58 2 2
1,241 1,410 1,152 1,295
Non-current
Trade recevablas® 2 2 - -
Other receivables® 9 15 - -
Due from [oint ventures and associates 2 2 19 20
Contract retentions receivable 67 47 - -
Prepayments 4 5 4 5
Due on acquisitions 16 16 - -
100 87 23 25
Total trade and other receivables 1,341 1,497 1175 1,320
Comprising
Financial assets 1,263 1,434 1,169 1,313
Non-financial assets — prepayments 78 63 6 7
1,341 1,497 1,175 1,320

¥ Re-presented to separately identuty trade receivables and other recervables which were previously disclosed as trade receivables (Notes 1 2 and 38 2)

Based on prior experience, an assessment of the current economic environment and a review of the financial circumstances of individual
customers, the Directors believe no further credit risk provision 1s required in respect of trade recewvables

The Drrectors consider that the carrying values of current trade and other receivables approximate their fair values The far value of
non-current trade and other receivables amounts to £98m (2011 £83m) and has been determined by discounting future cash flows

using yleld curves and exchange rates prevalhing at the reporting date
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21 Trade and other receivables continued

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

Group Group
2012 2011
£fm £m
Balance at 1 January (486) {48)
Currency translation differences 1 -
{Charged)/credited to the Income statement
— additional provisions {9) {11
- unused amounts reversed 22 11
Utlised during the year 3 2
Balance at 31 December {29) {46)
Maturity profile of impaired trade receivables
Group Group
2012 20m
£m £m
Up to three months 1 2
Three to six months 3 1
Six to nine months 1 1
Nine to 12 months 1 5
More than 12 months 23 37
29 46

At 31 December 2012, trade recewvables of £245m (2011 £194m) were past due but not imparred These relats to a number of individual

customers where there is no reason to believe that the recevable 1s not recoverable

Maturity profile of trade receivables past due but not impaired

Group Group

2012 20m

£m fim

Up to three months 154 137
Three to six months 39 27
Six to nine months 15 13
Nine to 12 months 10 11
More than 12 months 27 6
245 194

The Company had no provision for impairrment of trade recetvables and no trade receivables that were past due but not impaired

In either year
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Group Group Company Company
2012 201 2012 201
£m £m £m £m
Current
Trade and other payables 900 1,183 10 B
Accruals 1,130 1,052 8 7
Deferred income 15 32 1 1
Advance payments on contracts” 19 18 - -
VAT, payroll taxes and soctal security 108 114 14 15
Due to subsidiaries - - 1,421 1,658
Due to joint ventures and associates 15 8 5 -
Dvidends on preference shares 5 5 5 5
Due on acquisitions 22 14 - -
2,214 2,428 1,464 1,594
Non-current
Trade and other payables 94 B9 - -
Accruals 16 19 - -
Deferred iIncome 4 8 - -
Advance payments on contracts 1 2 - -
Due to joint ventures and associates 25 25 25 25
Dus on acguisitions 19 21 - -
159 142 25 25
Total trade and other payables 2,373 2 668 1,489 1,619
Comprising
Financial fiabilities 2,150 2,326 1,474 1,603
Non-financial iabidities
~ accruals not at amortised cost 96 90 - -
- deferred income 19 38 1 1
— VAT, payroll taxes and social security 108 114 14 15
2,373 2,568 1,489 1,619
" Includes €14m {2011 £12m) advances on construction contracts
Maturity profile of the Group’s non-current trade and other payables at 31 December
Due to
Adwvance Jolnt
Trade paymants ventures
and othar Deterred on and Dus on
payables Accruals income contracts associates acquisitions Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Due within one to two years 47 6 - 1 - 3 57
Due within two to five years 14 7 3 - 3 7 34
Due after more than five years 33 3 1 22 9 68
94 16 4 1 25 19 159
Fair values 80 15 2 1 18 19 135
Due to
Advance font
Trade payments ventures
and other Deferrad an and Due on
payables Accruals Income contracls  a@ssociates  acquisitions Total
2011 201 2011 201 20Mm 201 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Due within one to two years 23 6 1 2 - 3 35
Due within two to five years 13 10 3 - 1 7 34
Due after more than five years 33 3 2 - 24 11 73
89 19 6 2 25 21 142
Fatr values 57 16 5 1 17 21 117

The tair value of non-current trade and other payables has been determined by discounting future cash flows using yeld curves and

exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date
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23 Provisions
Group Company

Contract Employee Other Other
OrOMVISIONS  DrowiSIons  provisions Total  provisions
£m fm £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 145 29 68 242 7
Currency transtation differences - - 1 1 -
Charged to the income staterment
— additional provisions a2 8 12 62 -
— unused amounts reversed (23) (2) (1) (36) (n
Utilised during the year {16) (5) (10} {31) -
Businesses disposed {1) — - {1} -
At 31 December 2011 147 30 80 237 6
Currency translation differences (3) - - (3} -
Transfers {6) 15 {9) - -
Charged to the income statement
— additional provisions 74 43 22 139 -
- unused amounts reversed (49) (14) (8) ¥al) (1
Utihsed during the year {38) (17 {19} {74} -
At 31 December 2012 125 57 46 228 5
Group Group  _Company Company
Contract  Employee Qther Contract Employes Othar Other Other
provistons provisions provisions Total provisions Provisions pProvisions Total provisians provisions
2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 201 20M 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Due within one year n 26 19 116 73 12 22 107 - -
Due within one to
1wo years 35 18 1 64 38 ] 15 62 1 i
Due within two to
five years 16 12 10 38 30 7 18 55 4 5
Due after more than
five years 3 1 & 10 6 2 5 13 - -
125 57 46 228 147 30 60 237 5 [

Contract provisions include construction insurance labiities retained in the Group's captive insurance company and construction fault
and warranty provisions Employee provisions are principally habrlites relating to employers’ iability insurance retained in the Group's
captive insurance company Other provisions principally comprise environmental provisions, legal claims and costs and onerous lease
and other commitrments

Provision i1s made for the Directors’ best estimate of known legal ciaims, investigations and legal actions in progress The Group takes
actuanal adwice in respect of provisions in the Group's captive insurance company
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24 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings

241 Group
Current Non-current Total Current’ Non-current Total’
2012 2012 2012 201 201 2011
£m £m £m frn fm £m
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
- bank overdrafts (10} - {10} (15} - (15)
—loans under committed faciities expinng In less than one year’ - - - (32} - {32
—loans under committed facilities expinng In more than one year’ (410) - {410} {180) - {180)
- other loans? {56) {2) {58) - {2) {2)
Secured borrowings at amortised cost
—finance leases {1) {3) {4) {4} {4) (8)
{477) {5) (482) {231} (6) {237)
Cash and deposits at amortised cost 515 - 515 574 - 574
Term deposits at amortised cost 2 - 2 3 - 3
Non-PPP cash and cash equivalents 517 - 517 577 - 577
40 (5) 35 3486 (6) 340

PPP non-recourse term Joans at amortised cost

- sterling floating rate term loan {2008-2027) {1) {21) {22) - (22) {22)
- sterling floating rate term loan {2011-2030) - (24) (24) ] {24) {25)
— sterling floating rate term loan {2012-2031) {1) (24) {25) (3 (21 {24)
- sterling floating rate term loan (2010-2034) {5) {165) {170} {6) {161) (167)
- sterling floating rate term loan (2016-2035) - {19) {19} - (7) )]
~ sterling floating rate term loan (2016-2035) - {10} {10) - (3) {(3)
— sterling floating rate term loan (2016-2036) - {11} {1 - {3) (3)
— sterling floating rate term loan (2012-2037) - (68} (68) 1) {65) (76)
— sterling floating rate term loan {2013-2037) {5} {39) {44) - (23) {23)

(12) (381) (393) {21 {329) {350)
PPP cash and cash equivalents 25 - 25 18 - 18

13 {381) {368) {3) {329) {332)
Net {borrowingsl/cash 53 (386) {333) 343 {335) 8

7 HAe-presentad to separately distiosa loans under committed faclites

The PPP preoject finance sterling term loans anse under non-recourse facilities in the subsidiary concession companies The borrowings
are secured by fixed and floating charges over each concession company’s nght, title and interest in certam assets and/for revenues and
over each concession company's shares held by therr immediate parent companies detailed in Nota 3 3

A significant part of the PPP non-recourse project finance floating rate term loans has been swapped into fixed rate debt by the use
of Iinterest rate swaps

Included i cash and cash equivalents above 1s restricted cash of £15m {2011 £10m) held by the Group’s captive insurance company,
Delphran Insurance Company Ltd, which 1s subject 1o Isle of Man insurance solvency regulations, and £25m (2011 £18m) relating to
amounts held by the PPP concession subsidianes

Cash, deposits and term deposits include the Group’s share of amounts held by jointly controlled operations of £232m {2011 £243m)
The Group discloses its borrowings under commuitted facilities as current habilities due to requirements in [AS 1 The borrowings
however are drawn down under committed facilities exginng in more than one year and the Group beheves they can be rolled forward
within the terms of the facilities

Maturity profile of the Group’s horrowings at 31 December

PPP PPP
non-recourse non recourse
project Finance Other project Finance Other

finance leases borrowings Total finance leasas  borrowings Total

2012 2012 2012 2012 201 20M 2011 20m

£m £m £m £m fm £m fm £m

Due on demand or within one year (12} 1 {476) {489) (21) {4) (227) (252)

Due within one to two years {9) {1 - {10) 12) n - {13)

Due within two to five years (50) {1 {1} (52) {36) - - {36}

Due after more than five years {322) {1) {1) {324) {281) (3) {2} {286)

{393) {4) {478) (875) {350) (8) {229) {687)

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings are egual to the fair values at 31 December 2012 and 2011 The farr values are
determined by discounting future cash flows using yield curves and exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date
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24 Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings continued

24 1 Group continued

Group undrawn committed borrowing facihties at 31 December in respect of which all conditions precedent were satisfied

PPP PPP
nonJyecourse non recourse
projsct Othar project Other
finance borrowings Total finance borrowings Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 20Mm 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Expiring 1n one year or less 1 - 41 64 20 B84
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years 36 55 a1 42 154 196
Expinng in more than two years 56 540 596 91 670 761
133 595 728 197 844 1,041
24 2 Company
Current Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
2012 012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m fm fm fm
Unsecured borrowings at amortised cost
—bank loans and overdrafts {586) - (56) {24) - (24)
— loans under committed facilines {410} - {410) {212) - 1212)
Net borrowings {466) - {466) {236) - {236)

The bank loans and averdrafts are sterling denominated, vanable rate instruments and repayable on demand Loans under committed
facilities comprise £410m (2011 £180m) sterling denominated borrowings and US$mil borrowings (2011 US$50m) which are vanable

rate instruments repayable within one year

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of £43m at 31 December 2012 {2011 E£mnil} Refer to Note 28 2

25 Deferred tax

25 1 Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when they relate to iIncome taxes levied by the same tax authority and the Group

intends to settle 1Its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Net deferred tax position at 31 December

Group Group Company Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Deferred tax assets 117 105 - -
Deferred tax liabilities {10) {15) - (1
107 90 - {1)

Movement for the year in the net deferred tax position

Group Company

£m £m

At 1 January 2011 155 2
Charged to income statement® {48) (1
Charged to equity® (12) (2}
Businesses acquired (5) -
At 31 December 2011 80 {1}
Credited to income statement® 4 "
Credited to equity?® 15 1
Businesses acquired (2} -
At 31 December 2012 107 =

% Group Includes £3m charged {2011 £2m) to the income statement and £5m charged {2011 £4m} 1o equity n relation to the reduction In the UK corporation tax rate
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25 Deferred tax continued

25 2 Group
Accelerated Rstrement  Unrelleved Share-
tax bansfit trading based
depraciaucn labhites losses payments Provisions Derivatives Total
Deferred tax assets £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 13 120 14 5 46 4 202
Currency translation differences - - - - m - m
Reclassifications/transfers {n - ] - (3 1 2}
Credited/(charged) to Income statement 5 (28) - - {26) - {49)
{Charged)/credited to equity — (17) - {2) 1 5 {13}
At 31 December 2011 17 75 15 3 17 10 137
Currency translation differences - 1 n - {(n - 1
Creditedf{charged) to incorme statement 3 {15} 7 - 4] - 1
Creditedf{charged) to equity - 19 - - - {S) 14
Business acquired - - - - {2} - {2}
At 31 December 2012 20 80 21 3 20 5 149
Revaluation Preference Fair value Loss
of properties Goodwill shares adjustments of IBAs Tatal
Deferred tax habilities £m Em £m £m £m fm
At 1 January 2011 (N {10) {7) {26) {(3) (47)
Currency translation differences - - - 1 - 1
Reclassifications/transfers - - - 2 - - 2
Credited to iIncome statement - - - - i 1
Credited to squity - - - - 1
Businesses acquired - - - (5! - (5)
At 31 December 2011 {1) {10 {6) (28) {2) {47)
Currency translation differences - - - 1 - 1
Creditedf{charged) to income statement - 3 - (1) 1 3
Credited to equity - - 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2012 {1) {7) {5) {28) {1) {42}
Total net deferred tax asset 107

The Finance Act 2011, which was enacted as at 31 December 2011, mplemented a reduction n the mamn UK corporation tax rate
from 27% to 26% effective from 1 Apnl 2011 and to 25% effective fram 1 April 2012 Subsequently, the Finance Act 2012, which was
enacted on 17 July 2012, reduced the main UK corporation tax rate by an additional 1% to 24% from 1 April 2012 and by a further 1%
10 23% from 1 Aprit 2013 In 2012, the effect of the reduction in the UK tax rate reduced the Group's net deferred tax asset by £8m,
with £3m being charged to the Income statement and £6m being charged to equity

In the 2012 Autumn Statement it was announced, although not enacted, that there will ba a further 2% reduction in the main UK
corporation tax rate to bring the rate down to 21% from 1 April 2014 Sheuld the future UK corporation tax rate reduction be enacted,
based on the latest forecasts, this will give nise to a further reduction in the Group's net deferred tax asset of £8m by 2014 with £3m
being charged to the iIncome statement and £5m being charged te aquity

At the reporting date, the Group had unrecognisad tax losses that arose over a number of years of approximately £280m (2011 £273m)
which are available for offset aganst future profits £22m (2011 £28m) will expire 20 years after the year in which they arose, using
losses incurred In earlier years before those incurred n later years, with the first expiry m 2021 The remaining losses may be carned
forward indefinitely

At the reporting date, the undistnbuted reserves for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was £905m {2011 £824m)
in respect of substdiaries and £128m (2011 £110m) in respect of joint ventures and associates No lability has been recognised in
respect of these differences bacause either no temporary difference arises or the timing of any distrbution 1s under the Group's control
and no distribution which gives nse to taxation i1s contemplated

25 3 Company

Deferred tax Deferred tax

liability assels
Share-  Retirerment Net deferred
Praferance based benafit 1ax assets/
shares payments tabibties  Prowisions Total {hability)
Deferred tax assets and habihties £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2011 {7) 3 3 3 9 2
Charged to iIncome statement - - - (1 (1) (1}
Credited/icharged) to equity® 1 )] {2) - {3} {2)
At 31 December 2011 {6) 2 1 2 5 )]
Credited/(charged) to equity® 1 - - - - 1
At 31 December 2012 {5) 2 1 2 5 -

9 The Company includes £nil credited (2011 £1m} to equity in relation 10 the reducuion in the UK carporation tax rate
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26 Retirement benefit liabilities

261 Group
The Group, through trustees, operates a number of defined contnbution and defined benefit pension schemes

Defined eontribution schemes are those where the Group’s obligation i1s imited to the amount that it contributes to the scheme
and the scheme members bear the investment and actuanal risks

Defined benefit schemaes are schemes other than defined ¢ontribution schemes and provide benefits based on employees’
pansionable service and their pensionable salary The majority of the Group's defined benefit schemes are funded

Defined benefit contrnbutions are determined in consultation with the trustees, after taking actuanal advice

The Group’'s main schemne 1s tha Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (BBPF), which includes defined contnbution and defined benefit sections
The defined benefit sections are closed to new members with the exception of employees where employment has transferred to the
Group under certain agreed arrangements

During the year ended 31 December 2011 the Group made a pension increase exchange (PIE) offer to certain current pensioners
widows and widowers of the BBPF to forego therr entitiement to future non-statutory inflationary increases in return for a higher
pension than their current entitlement At 31 December 2011, 509 members had accepied the PIE offer, resulting in a £2m reduction
In obligations and a consequential past service cost credit of £2m 1n 2011 The offer closed in February 2012 resulting in an additional
£2m reduction to the pension hability and a consequential net past service cost credit of £2m in 2012

Following the formal inennial funding valuation of the BBPF carned out as at 31 March 2010, the Group agreed to certain one-off deficit
funding contributions and to increase the amount of ongoing deficit payments 1o the BBPF to £48m per annum from Apnl 2010,
increasing each year by CP| {capped at 5%) plus 50% of any increase in the Company's dividend 1n excess of capped CPl In December
2011 a one-off deficit funding contribution of £65m was made

In anucipation of the formal tnenmial funding valuation as at 31 March 2013, the Group has agreed to make additional conditional deficit
contributions of £1m per month, payable quarterly in arrears, if the BBPF funding levels in any given month are below certain funding
targets set out in the BBPF journey plan The first payment was made in January 2013

The investment strategy of the BBPF 1s to hold assets of appropriate hquidity and marketability to generate income and capital growth
10 meet, together with contributions from tha Group, the cost of current and future benefits The BBPF invests partly in a diversified
range of assets including equities and hedge funds in anticipation that, over the longer term, they will grow 1n value faster than the
obligations The equrties are in the form of pooled funds and are a combination of UK, cther developed market and emerging market
equiies The remaining BBPF assets are principally fixed and index-lnked bonds and swaps in order to match the duration and inflation
exposure of the obligations and enhance the resilience of the funding level of the scheme The performance of the assets 1s measured
aganst market indices

On 21 December 2011, the BBPF acquired the Group's effective 256 5% Interest in Barking Power Ltd at its carrying value of £66m
Refer to Note 10

During the year ended 31 December 2012, Parsons Brinckerhoff Ltd operated a defined benefit scheme which has been closed to
new members (Parsons Brinckerhoff Scheme) since 31 July 2003 On 28 June 2012 the Parson Brinckerhoff Scheme released its legal
charge over a Group leasehold property with a book value of £4m at 31 December 2011 In return for a one-off deficit contribution of
£2 5m On 30 June 2012 the Parsons Brinckerhoff Scheme merged with the BBPF and agreed to make additional deficit payments of
£11m per annum to the BBPF, with the first payment made in October 2012

Certain Group employess are members of the Balfour Beatty Shared Cost section of the Railways Pension Scheme (Rarlways Penston
Scheme), which 1s closed to new members with the exception of employees transferring under certain agreed arrangements The
economic Intarest of the Group in this shared cost scheme 1s approximately 60% of the scheme’s assets and labilities, based on the
relevant provisions of the trust deed and rules and trustee guidelines regarding future surptus apportionments and deifioit financing

Active members continue to accrue benefits for future service Other schemes comprise funded and unfunded post-retirement bensfit
obligations 1n Europe and North Amenica, the majonty of which are closed to new entrants, and deferred compensation schemas in the
US, where an glement of employees’ compensation 15 deferred and invested in avaiable-for-sale assets (as disclosed in Note 171} in a

trust, the assets of which are for the ultimate benefit of the employees but are avallable to the Group's creditors in the event of insalvency

In the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group reassessed the difference between the RPl and CPl measures of price inflatien from
0 50% to 0 90% The increase was applied following consideration of research publshed by the Office for National Statistics (ONS)
and independent advice received from the Group's actuaries as a consequence of the Occupational Pensions {Revaltuation} Order 2010
published by the UK Government on 30 November 2010 These changes 1n assumptions gave nise to a £35m actuanal reduction m
hakbiulities which was credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive income

In the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group reassessed the difference between the RPI and CPl measures of price inflation from
0 90% to 0 70% The reduction was applied following further consideration of proposals made by the ONS to change the method to
calculate RPI and indspendent advice received from the Group's actuaries This change in assumptions gave rise to a £25m actuanal
increase n lhabilities which was charged to eguity In the statement of comprehensive income
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26 Retirement benefit liabilities continued

26 1 Group continued
Membership of the principal schemes

Our Accounts | Notss to the Financial Statemants

Balfour Beatty Rallways Balfour Beatty Railways Parsons
Pension Fund Penslon Scheme Pansion Fund Pansion Scheme Brinckerhoff Scheme
2012 2012 2011 2011 20171
Defined Defined Defined Defined Defined
benefit benefit benafit benefit benefit
Number of ohlgations Numberof obligatons Numberof obligatons Numberof obhgations  Numberof  obligations
members £m  members £fm  members £m _ members £m_ members £m
Defined benefit

- active members 3.404 614 260 43 3,892 587 287 45 - -
— deferred pensioners 11,887 794 1,476 54 11,105 600 1,514 47 9988 95

— pensioners, widow(er}s
and dependants 22,586 1,455 1,490 92 20,882 1,278 1,436 82 1,192 92
Defined contribution 10,373 - - - 8,953 - - - 1,735 -
Totatl 48,250 2,863 3,226 189 44,832 2465 3,237 174 3,925 187

IAS 19 prescribes the accounting for defined benefit schemes in the Group's financial statements Obligations are calculated using
the projected unit credrt method and discounted to a net present value using the market yield on a high quality corporate bond The
pension expense relating 1o current service cost 1s charged to contracts or overheads based on the function of scheme members and
1s included in cost of sales and net operating expenses The net finance cost arising from the expected return on plan assets and the
interest on scheme obligations ts mcluded in finance charges Actuanal gains and losses are reported in full in the statement of

comprehensive income The [AS 18 accounting valuation 1s set out in Note 26 2

A different calculation 1s used for the formal triennial funding valuations undartaken by the scheme trustees te determine the future

company contribution level necessary so that over time the scheme assets will meet the scheme obligations The principal difference
between the two methods 1s that under the funding basis the obligations are discounted using a rate of return reflecting the
composition of the assets in the scheme rather than the rate of return on a high quality corporate bond as required by |AS 19 for the
financial statements Detatls of the latest formal funding basis valuations are set out in Note 26 3 The assets of the schemes do not
include any direct holdings of the Group’s financial iInstruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assets of the Group

26 2 1AS 19 accounting valuations

Principal actuanal assumptions for the IAS 19 accounting valuations of the Group's principal schemes

Balfour Baifour
Beatty Railways Beatty Railways Parsons
Pension Pension Pansion Pension Brinckerhoff
Fund Schame Fund Scheme Scheme
2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
% Y Yo % %
Discount rate on obligations 440 440 4 85 4 85 485
Expected return on plan assets 510 605 520 585 530
Inflation rate — RPI 290 290 285 295 295
- CPI 220 220 20b 205 205
Future increases in pensionable salary
- certain members of the BBPF whose increase In pensionable pay 1s hmited - - - - -
~ certain other members of the BBPF that have a protected right to a defined
benefit membership 220 - 4 45 - -
- other members 440 220 4 45 395 -
Rate of increase in pensiens in payment {or such other rate as I1s guaranteed) 2 80 220 285 20b 300

The BBPF actuary undertakes regular mortality investigations based on the experience exhibited by pensioners of the BBPF and due to
the size of the membarship of the BBPF {48,250 members at 31 December 2012} 15 able to make compansons of this expenence with
the mortality rates set out n the vanous published mortality tables The actuary s also able to monitor changes in the exhibited mortality
over ime This research 1s taken into account in the Group’s mortality assumptions across its vanous defined benefit schemes

The mortality assumptions as at 31 December 2012 have been updated to reflect the expenence of Balfour Beatty pensioners for the
period 1 April 1997 to 31 March 2012 The mortality tables adopted for the 2012 and 2011 IAS 19 valuations are the SAPS tables with
a muluplier of 90% (2011 94%) for males and 103% (2011 103%) for females and an improvement rate of 1 6% pa from 2004 to 2013
{2011 1 5% pa from 2003 to 2010}, plus future mprovements frorn 2013 {2011 2010} in ne with the CMI core projection model
applicable to each member's year of birth with a long term rate of 1 256% pa for males and 1 00% pa for females (2011 1 5% pa for

both males and females)
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26 Retirement benefit liabilities continued

26 2 I1AS 19 accounting valuations continued

Principal actuanal assumptions for the [AS 19 accounting valuations of the Group's principal schemes continued

2012
Averaga life expectancy
at 65 years of age

2o0m

Average life expectancy

at 65 years of age

Male Female
Members in receipt of a pension 219 24 4
Members not yet In receipt of a pension {current age 50} 232 256

Male Female
220 24 6
238 265

The dernographic of the former members of the Parsons Brinckerhoff Scheme is different to that of other members and allowance has

been made for approximately three further years of life expectancy for these members of the BBPF

2012
Average life expectancy

Former members of the Parsons Brinckerhoff Scheme at 65 years of age

2m

Averaga life expactancy

a1 65 years of age

Male Female
Members in receipt of a pension 246 270
Members not yet in receipt of a pension {current age 50 260 28 2

Male Female
247 273
265 282

The BBPF defined contribution employer contributions paid and charged to the income statement have been separately identified in
the table below and the defined contnbution section assets and habilities amounting to £200m {2011 £150m} have been excluded from
the tables on pages 137 to 139 Defined contnibution charges for other schemes nclude contributtons to mult-employer pension schemes

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement

BaHour Balfour
Baatty Raihways Parsons Beatty Railways Parscns
Pension Pension Brinckerhoff Othar Pension Pension Brinckerhoff Other
Fund Scheme Scheme  achemes Total Fund Scheme Scheme schemas Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011 201
£m £fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost {40) {2) - (6} (48) {42) {3} {1 {6) (52)
Past service cost credit 2 - - - 2 2 - - - 2
Curtailment cost {Note 8} {2) - - - 2 - - - - -
Defined contribution charge (35) - {4) {17} {56) {33) - {5) {17) (55)
Included in employee costs {75) {2) 4) {23) (104) {73) {3} (6) (23) {105)
{Note 5}
Expecied return
on plan assets 126 8 3 - 137 126 9 8 - 143
Interest cost {122) {8) {4} {3) {137 {124} {8) {10) {4) {146)
Net investment income/ 4 - (1} (3) - 2 1 {2) {4) (3)
{finance cost) (Note 7)
Total charged to income
statement {71) {2) (5} (26) {104) {71) (2) (8) (27) (108)
Amounts recogntsed In the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Balfour Balfour
Beatty Raillways Parsons Beatty Raitways Parsons
Pansion Pension Brinckerhoff Other Pension Pension Brinckerhoff Other
Fund Scheme Schema  schemes Total Fund Scheme Schema schemes Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 2011 201
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m fm
Actuarial movements on
pension scheme obligations {174} {1) 2 (11) {194) (68) 4 (10) 3 {71
Actuanal movements on
pension scheme assets 73 1 - {1 73 141 8) (2} - 131
Total actuanal movements
recognised in the statement
of comprehensive iIncome
{Note 28 1) {101} {10) 2 {12) {121) 73 {4) 12} 3 60
Cumulative actuaral
movements recognised In
equity {338) {34) {6) {15) {393) (237} {24) {8} {3) {272)

The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £210m {2011 £274m)
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26 Retirement benefit liabilities continued

26 2 1AS 19 accounting valuations continued

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Posttion

Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

Balfour Balfour
Beatty  Rallways Beatty Raihways Parsons
Pension Pension Other Pension Pension Brinckerhoff Other
Fund Scheme  schemes' Total Fund Scheme Scheme schames’ Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 201 201 2011 20Mm 2011
£m £fm £m £m fm £m £m fm £m
Present value of obligations {2,863) {189) {99} {3,151) (2,465) {174} {187} (89} (2,915)
Fair value of plan assets 2,665 147 1 2,813 2,370 141 127 2 2,640
Liability in the statement
of finaneial position {198} (42) {98) {338) (95) {33) (60) (87} {275)

' Available-for-sale investmants in mutual funds of £52m (2011 £50m) are held by the Group to satisfy the Group s deferred compensation obligations (Note 17 1)

The defined benefit obligation comprises £97m {2011 £87m} ansing from wholly unfunded plans and £3,054m {2011 £2,828m) ansing

from plans that are wholly or partly funded

Movement in the present value of obligations

Balfour Balfour
Beatty Ramlways Parsons Beatty Railways Parsons
Panslon Pension Brinckerhoff Other Pension Pension Brinckaerhoff Cther
Fond Scheme Scheme schemes Total Fund Scheme Scheme schemes Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011 201 20m
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £fm £m
At 1 January (2,465) {174} {187 (89) (2,915} {2,34b) {175} {176) {89} (2,785)
Currency translation
differences - - - 2 2 - - - 1 1
Current service cost {40) {2) - (6} (48) (42} (3 nm (86} (52}
Past service cost credit 2 - - - 2 2 - - - 2
Curtailment cost {2) - - - (2) - - - - -
Interest cost {122} {8) {4} {3) {137) {124) {8) {10} (4) {148)
Actuanal movements from
reassessing the difference
between RP1and CPI {20) {5) - - {25} 23 10 2 - 35
Actuanal movements from
the ¢change in the mortality
assumptions 45 4 - - 49 - - - - -
Other actuanal movements {199} {10) 2 {11} {218) (91) {6) 2 3 1108)
Total actuanal movements {174} (11) 2 (1) {194) (68) 4 (10) 3 {71)
Contributions from members {1 ~ - - (1 {n - - - n
Benefits paid 124 6 4 8 142 13 8 10 6 137
Parsons Brinckerhoff
Scheme merger {185) - 185 - - - - - — -
At 31 December {2,863) {189) - {99) {3,151} {2,465} {174) {187) {89)  (2,915)
Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Balfour Balfour
Beatty Railways Parsons Beatty Raillways Parsons
Pansion Pansion Brinckerhotf Other Penston Pension Brinckerhoff Other
Fund Schame Scheme  schemes Total Fund Scheme Schema schemaes Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2014 201 2011
£rn £m £m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2,370 141 127 2 2,640 2,072 145 126 2 2,344
Expected return on plan
assets 126 8 3 - 137 126 2] 8 - 143
Actuaral movements 73 1 - {1 73 141 {8} {2) - 131
Contributions from employer
- regular funding 33 2 - - 35 37 2 - - 39
- ongoing deficit funding 55 1 2 - 58 51 1 6 - 5B
- one-off deficit funding - - 3 - 3 55 - - - 55
Contributions from members 1 - - - 1 1 - - - 1
Benefits paid {124) {6) (4) - (134) (113) (8) {10} - {131)
Parsons Brinckerhoff
Scheme maerger 13 - (131) - - - - - - -
At 31 December 2,665 147 - 1 2,813 2,370 141 127 2 2,640

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

137

SAUNNOW NS




Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

26 Retirement benefit liabilities continued

26 2 IAS 19 accounting valuations continued
Fair value and expected rates of return on the assets held by the schemes at 31 December

Balfour Beatty Railways Pension Parsons Brinckerhoff
Pension Fund Scheme Scheme Other schemes Total
Expacted Expected Expected Expacted Expacted
rate of rate of rate of rate of rate of
return Value return Value return Value return Value return Value
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
% £m % £m % £m % £m % £m
Return-seeking® 803 1,085 720 110 - - - - 795 1,175
Liability matching
bond-type assets™ 3356 1,321 2 60 37 - - - - 333 1,358
QOthert™ 220 279 220 - - — 220 1 220 280
Rate of return/total 510 2,665 605 147 - - 220 1 515 2,813
Expected Expected Expected Expected Expected
rate rate rate rata rate
of return Value of return Value of return Value of return Value of return Value
201 20Mm 201 201 20Mm 20m 20n 201 2om 201
% £m % £m % fm % £m % fm
Return-seeking® 8 34 835 714 92 730 89 - - 816 996
Liabtltty matching
bond-type assets™ 369 1,273 290 35 292 54 - - 364 1,362
Property - - 4 90 14 - - - - 490 14
Othert 255 282 255 - 255 4 255 2 255 268
Rate of returnfiotal 520 2,370 585 141 530 127 255 2 524 2,640

i} Includes invastments in developed market equities emserging market equities, debt and currency and hedge funds
{u} Includes investments in corporate bonds fixed interest gilts and index-hinked gilts
() Includas cesh and net current assets

The expected rates of return on scheme assets are the average of the expected returns on the assets held by the scheme on
31 December

Rates of return for each class

* Return-seeking assets and property — the long term rates of return on these assets are derived from current nisk free rates of return
with the addition of an appropniate future nisk premium from an analysis of historical returns, current market cenditions and forward
looking views of market participants

» Bonds - the rate reflects the yields avallable on the gilts and corporate bond holdings held at 31 Decernber

¢ Cash and other net assets — the rate reflects current short term returns on cash deposits

Estimated contrtbutions expected to be patd to the Group's principal defined benefit schemes during 2013

Balfour

Beatty Railways

Pension Pansion
Fund Scherma Total
2013 2013 2013
£m £m fm
Regular funding 29 2 31
Ongoing defiat funding 73 1 74
Total 102 3 105

Sensitivity of the Group's retirement benefit habilities at 31 December 2012 to different actuanial assumptions

{Decrease)/ (Decreasal/

increase INcrease

Percentage nobligations in obligations

Obligations potnisfyears % E£m
Increase in discount rate ' 05% (79)% {241)
Increase in market expectation of RPI inflation 05% 66% 202
Increase in salary growth 05% 02% 7
Increase in life expectancy 1 year 35% 106
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26 Retirement benefit liabilities continued

26 2 |IAS 19 accounting valuations continued

Sensitivity of the Group's retirement benefit assets at 31 December 2012 to changes in market conditions

{Decreaself (Decreaself
increase increase
Percentage In assets In assels
Assets ___paints % fm
Increase in interest rates 05% {5 2)% (146)
Increase in market expectation of RPl inflation 05% 34% 96
Year end historrcal information for the Group's retirement defined benefit schemes
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Prasent value of obligations {3,151) (2,918}  {2,785) {2,757} {2,102
Fair value of assets 2,813 2,640 2,344 2,171 1,841
Funded status {338) {275) {441} (586) {261)
Expenence adjustment for obligations {39) {11} 62 {9) (17
Expernience adjustment for assets 75 131 119 137 1432)
26 3 Latest formal funding valuations
Balfour Beatty Railways
Pension Pansion
Fund Scheme
£m £m
Date of last formal funding valuation 31/03/2010 311272010
Scheme deficit
Market value of assets 2,070 260
Present value of obligations {2,445} (268}
Deficit in defined benefit schems {375) {8}
Funding level 84 6% 97 0%

26 4 Company

Certain employees of the Company are members of the BBPF Assets, liabilities, income and expenditure relating to this fund are
allocated on an appropriate basis to Group companies participating in the scheme based on pensionahle payroll for the year The

Company’s share of the net IAS 19 deficit was £6m {2011 £4m)

27 Share capital
271 Ordinary shares of 50p each
Issued
Million £m
At 1 January 2011 686 343
Shares issued 1 1
At 31 December 2011 687 344
Shares 1ssued 1 =
At 31 December 2012 688 344

Allissued ordinary shares are fully paid Ordinary shares carry no nght to fixad income but each share carries the right to one vote at

general meetings of the Company

Ordinary Qrdinary
shares Considaration shares Consideration
2012 2012 2011 2011
Ordinary shares 1ssued during the year credited as fully paid Number £m Number Em
Savings-related share options exercised 866,427 2 665,516 2
Executive share options exercised 229,220 - 302,586 1
1,095,647 2 968102 3

At 31 December 2012 there were 3,645,518 share options outstanding under the savings-related share option scheme {SAYE) which
were granted between 2007 and 2010 {2011 6,200,690 granted between 2006 and 2010) The weaighted average exercise price 1S

254 9p (2011 263 5p} No options have been granted under the SAYE since 2010

At 31 December 2012 there were 689,049 share options outstanding under the executive share cptions scheme {ESOS) which were
granted between 2003 and 2004 {2011 924,010 granted between 2002 and 2004) These options are normally exercisable betwesen
three and 10 years after the grant date Performance conditions have been met for all outstanding options under the ESOS The

-

UINHI INMN

weighted average exercise price 1s 205 6p (2011 203 9p) No options have been granted under the ESOS since 2004
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27 Share capital continued

27 2 Cumulative convertible redeemable preference shares of 1p each

Authonsed lssued
Milhgn fm Millton fm
At 31 December 2011 and 2012 177 2 112 -

All 1ssued preference shares are fully paid During the current and prior year ne preference shares were repurchased for cancellation
by the Company

Holders of preference shares are entitled to a preferential dividend equivalent to a gross payment of 10 75p per preference share per
annum, payable halt-yearly A preference dividend of 5 375p gross (4 8375p net) per cumulative convertible redeemable preference
share of 1p was paid on 1 July 2012 in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2012 to holders of these shares on the register

on 25 May 2012 A preference dividend of 5 375p gross (4 8375p net) per cumulative convertible redeemable preference share

was paid on 1 January 2013 in respect of the six months ended 31 December 2012 to holders of these shares on the register on

23 November 2012

Any preference shares stll outstanding are redeemable on 1 July 2020 at £1 each, together with any arrears or accruals of dividend,
unless the holder exercises any option grantad by the Company to extend the redemption date The maximum redemption value of
all of the 1ssued and outstanding preference shares, excluding any arrears or accruals of dividend, was £112m at 31 December 2012
(2011 £112m)

At the option of the holder, preference shares are convertible on the first day of the next calendar month following receipt of

the conversion notice Into new Balfour Beatty plc ordinary shares effectively on the basis of 24 69136 ordinary shares for gvery

100 preference shares, subject to adjustment in certain circumnstances The Company I1s entitled to convert all outstanding preference
shares into ordinary shares if there are fewar than 44,281,239 preference shares in 1ssue or if the average of the closing mid-market
price for a Balfour Beatty plc ordinary share dunng a 30-day penod exceeds 810p, subject to adjustment (n certain aircumstances

The preference shares carry no voung rights at a general meeting of the Company, except where the dividend 1s six months or more

in arrears, or where the business of the meeting includes a resolution which directly affects the rights and privileges attached to the
preference shares or a resolution for the winding up of the Company On winding up the Company, holders are entitled to receive the
sum of £1 per preference share, together with any arrears or accruals of dividend, in priority to any payment on any other class of shares

The preterence shares are a compound instrument, comprising an equity and a hability component The fair value of the labitity
component at the date of 1ssue, included under non-current liabilities, was estimated using the prevailing market interest rate of 13 5%
for a similar non-converuble instrument The difference betwseen the proceeds of 1ssue of the preference shares and the farr value
assigned to the habihty component, representing the value of the equity canversion component, I1s included n equity holders’ equity,
net of deferred tax

Liability component recognised in the statement of financial position 221:1’ 2?::1
Redemption value of shares inissue at 1 January 112 112
Equity component 17 (17
Deferred tax and interest element (4) (5)
Liability component at 1 January at amortised cost 81 30
Interest accretion 1 1

Liabiity component at 31 December at amortised cost 92 91

The fair value of the liabiity component of the preference shares at 31 December 2012 amounted to £120m (2011 £124m} The farr
value 15 determined by using the market price of the preference shares at the reporting date

Interest expense on the preference shares is calculated using the effective interest method
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281 Group
Other reserves
Shara
Equity of jont
component ventures'
Called Share of and PPP  Currency Non-
up share premium preference  Special 8ssociates Hedging financial translation Merger Retained centrolling
capital  account shares reserve reserves®reserves assels reserve reserve Other  profits® interests Total
£m £m £m £m £m £rm £m fm £rm £m Em £m £m
At 1 January 2011 343 59 16 30 144 {31} 19 74 249 23 230 4 1,160
Profit for the year - - - - 75 - - - - - i - 186
Currency translation
differences - - - - 3 - - 1 - - - - 4
Actuanal movements on
retirement benefit labilittes - - - - {7 - - - - - 80 - 53
Farr value revaluations
— PPP financial assets - - - - 140 - 64 - - - - - 204
— PPP cash flow hedges - - - - (154)  {85) - - - - - - {239)
~ other cash flow hedges - - - - 2 {2) - - - - - - -
- available-for-sale
investments Iin mutual funds - - - - - - - - - {2} - - {2)
Tax on iterms taken directly
to equity - - 1 - 1 21 {16) - - 1 {20) = {12)
Total comprehensive
income/{expense) for the year - - 1 - 60 {66) 48 1 - {1 151 - 194
Ordinary dividends - - - - - - - - - - {88) - {88)
Joint ventures’ and
assoclates’ dividends - - - - {54) - - - - - 54 - -
issue of ordinary shares 1 2 - - - - - - - - - - 3
Recycling of revaluation
reserves to the income
statement on disposal - - - - (6} - - - - - - - (B}
Movements relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - - {6 b - -
Other transfers - - - {3} - - - - - - 3 - -
At 31 December 2011 344 61 17 27 144 {97) 67 75 249 17 355 4 1,283
Profit for the year - - - - 97 - - - - - (53) - 44
Currency translation
differences - - - - {2) - - (54} - - - - (56}
Actuanal movements on
retrement benefit liabilites - - - - {5} - - - - - {121) - [126)
Fair value revaluations
- PPP financial assets - - - - 374 - 3] - - - - - 405
~ PPP cash flow hedges - - - - 8 (12) - - - - - R - )
- other cash flow hedges - - - - 1 - - - - - - - 1
- avallable-for-sale
investments in mutual funds - - - - - - - - - 4 - - 4
Tax on items taken directly
to equity - - - - {86) - (5) - - {(n 22 - {70)
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year - - - - 3N {12} 26 {54) - 3 (152) - 182
Ordinary dividends - - - - - - - - - - {s8) (1 (97
Joint ventures’ and
associates’ dividends - - - - (58} - - - - - 58 - -
Issue of ordinary shares - 2 - - - - - - - - - - 2
Recychng of revaluation
resarves to the incomea
statement on disposal - - - - (48) - - - - - - - (48)
Movemants relating to
share-based payments - - - - - - - - - {2) 9 - ?
Reserve transfers relating to
Joint venture and associate
disposals? - - - - pri) - - - - - 72 - -
QOther transfers - - - {2) - - - - - - 2 - -
At 31 Decamber 2012 344 63 17 25 337 {109) 93 21 249 18 248 3 1,309

* Includes £52m transfers between the joint ventures and associates
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28 Movements In equity continued

28 2 Company

Other reserves

Called-up Shara compicillg:{
shara premium  of preference Special Merger Retained
capital account shares rasarve raserve Other protfits Total
£m £m £m £m fm £m fm £m

At 1 January 2011 343 59 16 30 249 72 382 1,151
Profit for the year - - - - - - 32 32
Actuanal movements on retirement benefit
habilities - - - - - - 6 6
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - 1 - - - (3 (2)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1 - - - 35 36
Ordinary dividends - - - - - (88) (88)
Issue of ordinary shares 1 2 - - - - - 3
Movements relating to share-based
payments - - - - - 2 1 3
Qther transfers - - - {3) - - 3 -
At 31 December 2011 344 61 17 27 249 74 333 1,105
Profit for the year - - - - - - 84 84
Actuanal movements on retirement benefit
habilities - - - - - - (3) (3)
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - 1 1
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 82 82
Ordinary dividends - - - - - - {96) {96)
Issue of ordinary shares - 2 - - - - - 2
Movements relating to share-based
payments - - - - - {2} 5 3
Other transfers - - - {2) - - 2 -
At 31 December 2012 344 63 17 25 249 72 326 1,096

The retained profits of Balfour Beatty plc are wholly distrbutable By special resolution on 13 May 2004, confirmed by the court on
16 June 2004, the share premiurn account was reduced by £181m and the £4m capital redemption reserve was cancelled, effective
on 25 June 2004, and a special reserve of £185m was created This reserve becomes distributable to the extent of future increases
In share capital and share premium account, of which £2m occurred in 2012 {2011 £3m)

28 3 The retained profits in the Group and the retained profit of the Company are stated net of investments in Balfour Beatty plc
ordinary shares acquired by the Group's employee discretionary trust, the Balfour Beatty Employee Share Ownership Trust, to satisfy
awards under the Balfour Beatty Performance Share Pian and the Balfour Beatty Deferred Bonus Plan In 2012, 1 Om {2011 1 2m)
shares were purchased at a cost of £3 0m (2011 £3 9m) The market value of the 3 7m {2011 3 7m) shares held by the Trust at

31 December 2012 was £10 1m (2011 £9 7m} The carrying value of these sharesis £11 8Bm (2017 £12 3m) Following confirmation
of the performance cnteria at the end of the performance penod in the case of the Performance Share Plan, and at the end of the
vesting penod In the case of the Deferred Bonus Plan, the appropriate number of shares will be unconditionally transferred to
participants In 2012, no shares were transferred to participants in relation to the April 2009 awards under the Performance Share Plan
{2011 0 5m shares for the Aprnl 2008 awards}, and 1 Om shares were transferred to participants in relation to awards under the
Deferred Bonus Plan {2011 0 7m) The trustees have waived the rnights to dividends on shares held by the Trust Other reserves

in the Group and the Company include £4 7m relating to unvested Performance Share Plan awards (2011 £4 8m), £2 9m relating

to unvested share options (2011 £4 3m}, and £3 4m relaitng to unvested Deferred Bonus Plan awards (2011 £4 2m)
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29 Notes to the Statements of Cash Flows

Group Group Company  Company
2012 20H1 2012 2011
£m £m £m fm
29 1 Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Profitfiloss) from continuing operations 74 243 104 9
Profit/{loss) from discontinued operation - 4 - 59
Share of rasults of joint ventures and associates — continuing operations {97) {75) - -
Dividends received — continuing operations - - (130} (13)
Dividends received — discontinued operation - {5} - (5)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 64 70 - -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 49 66 - -
Pension deficit payments
- ongoing deficit funding (58) (58) {2) (3}
- one-off deficit funding {3) - - -
Pension past service cost credit {2) {2} - -
Pension curtailment cost 2 - - -
Movements relating to share-based payments 6 6 1 -
Profit on disposal of investments in joint ventures {52) {20) - -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7 {4) - -
Loss/{igain} on disposal of Barking - 1 - (54)
Loss on disposal of UK specialist rall manufactuning business - 7 - -
Write-down of investmentin Exeter International Airport 12 - - -
Goodwill impairment in respect of Mainland European rall businesses 95 - - -
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 - - -
Impairment of inventory 4 2 - -
Other non-cash items {1) 1 - -
Operating cash flows before movements in warking capital 91 236 (27) {25)
Increase In operating working capital {310} {201} {52) {75)
Cash (used inl/generated from operations {219) 35 (79) {100)
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m Em £m
29 2 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and deposits 515 574 43 -
Term deposits 2 3 - -
PPP cash balances 25 18 - -
Bank overdrafts {10} {15} {56) {24)
532 580 {13} {24)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly quid investments with
onginal maturities of less than three months and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings 1in current habihties
in the statement of financial position

PPP Other Group Group Company  Company
2012 2012 2012 201 2012 201
£m £m £fm fm £fm £m
29 3 Analysis of movement in net [borrowings)/cash
Opening net cash/{borrowings) {332) 340 8 248 (2386) {55}
Currency translation differences - {17) {17} {2} - -
Net increase/ldecrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7 {38) {31) 32 11 31
Proceeds from new loans {64) {286) {350) (282) (230) {212)
Repayment of loans 21 32 53 8 32 -
Repayment of finance leases - 4 4 4 - -
Closing net {borrowings)/cash {368) 35 {333) 8 {423) {236}

29 4 Borrowings

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the significant movements in borrowings were a drawdown of shart term loans of £286m
{2011 £212m), repayment of shart term loans of £32m {2011 £nil}, a £6m net decrease {2011 £19m decrease) in bank overdrafts, an
increase of £64m (2011 £70m increase) in non-recourse loans funding the development of financial assets in PPP subsidiaries, and
repayment of £21m {2011 £8m) of non-recourse PPP loans
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30 Acquisitions and disposals

301 Current year acquisitions
Fair value of  Goodwnll

Parcentaga Cash Deferred Contingent  net assets  arising on
acqguired consideration consideration consideration acquired acquisition  Costs (n)
Notes  Acquisitien date Subsidiaty % £m £m £m £m £m £m
3011 31 December 2012 Subsurface Group Ingf 100 1 8 1 1 9 =

{) As at 31 December 2012 the farr values of acquired assets labilties and goodwill for this business have been determined on a provisional basis pending finalisation of the
post-acquisition reviaw of the fair values of the acquired net assets

{1} Costs directly atinbuzable 1o the acquisition have been expensed within non-underlying itams refer 10 Note 8

(1) Goodwill 1s not expected to be deductible for Income tax purposes

3011 On 31 December 2012 the Group acquired 100% of Subsurface Group Inc (Subsurface) for consideration of £10m, of which
£1m was paid in cash before the year end and £8m was paid on 14 January 2013 £1m 15 payable over three years subject to certain
provisions of the purchase agreement

The maximum consideration payable 1s £11m however the final purchase price 1s contingent on the closing statement of financial
position, before fair value adjustments, and achieving a working capital and property, plant and equipment target value The estimated
consideration payable based on the provisional statement of financial position at 31 December 201215 £10m

The acqussition of Subsurface enhances the Group's capabilities in injection waste wells and depleted aquifer and reservorr storage
The prowvisional fair value of net liabilittes acquired was £{2)m, intangible assets ansing were £3m and goodwill of £9m has been
recognised

301 2 The following summary presents the Group as If Subsurface had been acquired on 1 January 2012 The amounts include the
results of Subsurface, depreciation of the acquired net assets and amaortisation of the intangible assets recognised on acquisition
The amounts do not include any possible synergies from the acquisition The results of Subsurface and contracts for the penod
before acquisition have not been adjusted to reflect the Group's accounting policies nor to reflect the fair value adjustments made
on acquisition The information ts prowided for dlustrative purposes only and daes not necessarily reflect the actual results that would
have occurred, nor I1s it necessarily indicative of the future results of the combined companies and contracts

Total’

£m

Group revenue 9,517
Profit for the year 45

" Total Group figures had the acquisitions occurred on 1 January 2012

Subsurface contributed £nil to Group revenue and £nil to profit for the year ended 31 December 2012

Recogmsed amounts
of identifiable assets
acquired and
hablities assumed

£m
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets ~ customer contracts 1
Intangible assets — customer relationships 1
Intangible assets — brand names 1
Trade and other receivables L]
Other working capital (5)
Deferred taxation {2)
Identifiable net assets 1
Goodwll 9
Total congideration 10
Sausfied by
Cash consideration 1
Deferred consideration 8
Contingent consideration 1
Total consideration 10
Nat cash flow
on acquisitions
£m
Cash consideration L
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired -
Net cash outflow on acquisitions completed in 2012 1
Deferred consideration paid durning 2012 In respect of acquisitions completed in earlier years 3
4

Net cash outflow on acquisitions
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30 Acquisitions and disposals continued

30 2 Contingent consideration arrangements

Parsons
Brinckerhoff Howard

Inc S Wnight SpawMaxwell  Subsurface Total

£m £m tm £m £m
Contingent consideration recoverable/{payable)
At 31 December 2011 16 {7 (3) - 6
Movements/discount unwind - {2) 2 {1) (1)
At 31 December 2012 16 {9) {1) (1) 5

The fair value of the contingent cansideration arrangements Is estimated by applying the provisions of the purchase agreement to
management’s assessment of possible outcomes and discounting the expected contract costs and insurance claim proceeds to ther
present value The maximum amount that the Group could be required 1o pay or recerve under the terms of the contingent consideration
arrangements is £11m payable or £16m recevable in respect of Parsons Brinckerhotf, £9m payable in respect of Howard S Wright,
£3m payable in respect of SpawMaxwell, and £1m payable in respect of Subsurface

In addition to the amounts shown above, at 31 December 2012 £2m {2011 £4m) and £1m {2011 £1m) relating to the acquisitions
of Power Efficiency and Office Projects respectively are held in escrow to be paid in 2013 subject to certain provisions of the
purchase agreement

30 3 Prior year acquisitions

The fair values of the acquired assets and liabiliues disclosed as provisional at 31 Decemnber 2011 in respect of Fru-Con Construction
LLC and Howard § Wright were finalised during 2012, giving rise to a decrease in both goodwill and amounts due to construction
contract customers of £1m which is disclosed in the current year

The fair values of all other assets and habilities previously disclosed as provisional at 31 December 2011 have been finalised with no
material changes

30 4 Current year disposals

30 41 On 1 February 2012, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in the shares and loan notes 1ssued by Transform Schools (North
Lanarkshire) Holdings Ltd for a cash consideration of £18m This disposal resulted in a gain of £8m being recognised within underlying
operating profit, comprnising a loss of £2m in respect of the disposal of the investment in the Jjoint venture and a £10m gain 1n respect
of revaluation reserves recycled to the Income statement

30 4 2 On 11 May 2012 the Group disposed of its 33 3% interest in the shares and loan notes 1ssued by Health Management {(UCLH)
Holdings Ltd {HMU} for an agreed cash consideration of £66m On this date the Group ceased to jaintly control HMU by virtue of a put/
call structure wth a preferred bidder The other shareholders in HMU exercised pre-emption provisions in the shareholders' agreement
and the disposal was completed on 11 July 2012

As a consequence of the disposal, £2m was donated to the UCLH Chanty and treated as a cost of disposal This donation would not
have taken place had the disposal of HMU not taken place Additiona! transaction costs of £1m were incurred in respect of the disposal
The disposal resulted in a net gain of £44m being recognised within underlying operating profit, comprising a gan of £6m in respect of
the disposal of the investment in the joint venture and a £38m gain m respect of revaluation reserves recycted 1o the income statement

30 5 Prior year disposals

3051 On 3 May 2011, the Group disposed of 1ts UK specialist raill manufacturning business for £37m The fair value of net assets
disposed comprise property, plant and equipment £26m and working caprtal E8m No cash and cash equivalents were disposed
A total loss on disposat of £7m, including £7m goodwill written off and an onerous lease provision of £3m, was recognised withm
non-underlying items

305 2 On 23 June 2011 the Group disposed of a 60% interest in its Connect Roads Ltd jomnt venture for a cash consideration of £16m
Connect Roads Ltd holds a 100% interest in Connect AS0 Ltd The disposal resulted in a total gain of £14m being recognised

In underlying operating profit, compnsing £8m in respect of the gain on disposal of the investment in the joint venture and £6m n
respect of revaluation reserves recycled to the Income statement The Group retains a 25% Interest in Connect Roads Ltd following
the transaction

305 3 On 7 Novernber 2011 the Group disposed of 1ts 50% interest in the shares and loan notes issued by Consort Healthcare
Blackburn (Holdings) Ltd for a cash consideration of £12m This resulted in a gain on disposal of £6m beng recognised in underlying
operaung profit There were no revaluation reserves relating to Consort Healthcare Blackburn (Holdings) Ltd

305 4 On 21 December 2011 the Group disposed of its effective 25 5% Iinterest in Barking Power Ltd at its carrying value of £55m
Transaction costs of £1m were incurred resulting in a £1m loss on disposal betng recognised within non-underlying rtiems
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31 Share-based payments

The Company operates four equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, namely the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme
{SAYE), the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS), the Performance Share Plan {PSP) and the Deferred Bonus Plan {DBP) The Group
recognised total expenses relating to equity-settied share-based payment transactions since 7 November 2002 of £6 5m in 2012
(2011 £6 2m) Refer to the Remuneration Report for details of the varous schemes and to Note 28 1

311 Movements in share options

SAYE options ESOS options

Weighted Weightad Woeighted Waighted

average avarage average average

axercise exarcise exsn:lse exarcisg

prica price price price

2012 2012 2011 2011 2012 2012 201t 201

Number Pence Number Pence Number Pance Numbar Paence

Outstanding at 1 January 6,200,690 2635 9,014115 2699 755,224 2032 939,708 2016
Granted during the year - - - - - - - -
Forfeited during the year {683,176} 256 6 {1,526,224) 2801 - - {1,482) 1880
Exercised during the year {866,427} 2494 (665,518) 2738 {66,175} 1774 (183,000) 1972
Expired during the vear {1,005,569} 3118  (621,685) 3041 - - - =
Qutstanding at 31 Decembaer 3,645,518 2549 6,200,690 2635 689,049 2056 755,224 2032
Exercisable at 31 December 169,409 2935 161,899 2962 689,049 2056 755,224 203 2

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those SAYE opuons exeraised during the year was 298 2p (2011 308 6p)
and the weighted average remaining contractual ife of SAYE options outstanding at 31 December 2012 1s 1 6 years {2011 2 1 years)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those ESOS options exercised during the year was 287 7p {2011 303 4p)
and the weighted average remaining contractual life of ESOS options outstanding at 31 December 2012 15 10 year {2011 2 0 years)

31 2 Movements in share plans

PSP conditional awards DBP conditional awards

2012 20m 2012 2011

Number Number Number Number

QOutstanding at 1 January 8,700,324 8,171,418 2,291,952 2,247,852
Granted during the year 4,177,096 3,235,874 916,940 738,975
Awards in hau of drvidends - - 117,718 101,666
Forferted during the year (457,142) {464,604) (33,337) (71,671}
Exercised during the year - {412,560) {1,018,225} {724,970}
Expired during the year {2,231,693) {1,829,804) - -
Outstanding at 31 Dacember 9,688,585 §700,324 2,275,048 2,291,952
Exercisable at 31 December — - 16,727 -

The share price at tha date of exercise for thase PSP awards exarcised dunng 2011 was 330 Op and the weighted average remaining
contractual life of those PSP awards outstanding at 31 December 201215 1 4 years (2011 1 4 years)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for those DBP awards exercised duning the year was 288 8p (2011 333 8p)
and the weighted average remaining contractual ife of DBP awards outstanding at 31 December 201215 1 3 years (2011 1 2 years)

The principal assumptions, including expected volatility determined from the historical weekly share price movements over the
three-year period imrmediately preceding the award date, used by the consultants in the stochastic model for the 50% of the PSP
awards 1n 2012 subject to market conditions, were

Closing Calculated

share Expeacted Expsactad Risk free fair value

price before  volatibity of term of interast of an

award date shares awards rate award

Award date Pence % Years % Pance
16 April 2012 2737 290 30 048 159 2

For the 50% of the PSP awards in 2012 subject to non-market conditions and for the DBP awards in 2012, the farr value of the awards
1s the closing share price before award date
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Capital expenditure authonsed and contracted for which has not been provided for in the financial statements amounted to £14m
(2011 £12m) n the Group and £l {2011 £n1l) in the Company

The Group has committed to provide 1ts share of further equity funding and subordinated debt in PPP projects amounting to £13m
{2011 £34m} in respect of joint ventures and associates, £22m {2010 £37m) in respect of PPP subsidianes, and £12m (2011 £15m)
in respect of the military housing concessions of Balfour Beatty Investments US The future cash flow profile of the Group's share of
further equity funding and subordinated debt s shown in Note 37{g} In addition the Group 15 expected to prowide 1ts share of equity
funding and subordinated debt estimated at £77m for six PPP projects at preferred bidder stage (2011 £32m for eight PPP projects)

The Group leases land and builldings, equipment and other various assets under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The
leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights The lease expenditure charged to the ncome statement is disclosed

in Note 4 1

Future operating lease expenditure commitments

Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2012 2012 2011 2011
£m £m £m fm
Group
Due within one year Fal 62 81 49
Due between one and five years 191 55 197 56
Due after more than five years 109 1 61 -
n 118 339 105
Company
Due within one year 3 - 3 -
Due betwsen one and five years 3 - 7 -
6 - 10 _
Future committed operating lease income
Lend and Land and
buildings buldings
2012 201
£m £m
Group
Due within one year 4 3
Due between one and five years 4 6
8 9
Company
Due within one year 3 3
Dug between one and five years 3 8
6 g

33 Contingent liabilities

The Company and certain subsidiary undertakings have, in the normal course of business, given guarantees and entered into

caunterindemnities in respect of bonds relating to the Group's own contracts and given guarantees in respect of therr share of certain
contractual obligations of joint ventures and associates and certain retirement benefit lrabilities of the Baifour Beatty Pension Fund and
the Rallways Pension Scheme Where such agreements are entered into, they are considered to be and are accounted for as insurance
arrangements Guarantees are treated as contingent liabiities until such time as it becomes probable payment will be required under

the terms of the guarantee

Provision has been made for the Directors’ best estimate of known legal claims, investigations and legal actions in pragress The Group
takes legal advice as to the lkelhood of success of clairms and actions and no provision 18 made where the Directors consider, based on
that adwvice, that the action is unlikely to succeed, or that the Group cannot make a sufficiently reliable estimate of the potential obligation

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012 147

SHENAYI 1NN




Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

34 Related party transactions

Jomnt ventures and associates

The Group has contracted with, provided services to, and received management fees from, certain joint ventures and associates
amounting to £1,018m (2011 £851m) These transactions occurred in the normal course of business at market rates and terms In
addition, the Group procured equipment and labour on behalf of certain joint ventures and associates which were recharged at cost with
no markup The amounts due to or from joint ventures and associates at 31 December are disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 respectively

Pension schemes
The Group recharged the Balfour Beatty Pension Fund (BBPF) with the costs of admunistration and adwisers’ fees borne by the Group
amounting to £8m in 2012 (2011 £6m)

On 21 Decernber 2011 the BBPF, acting through ns Trustees, purchased the Group’s effective 25 5% interest in Barking Power Ltd at
its carrying value of £55m which was considered to be 1ts fair value Refer to Note 10

Key personnel

Remuneration of key personnel of Balfour Beatty plc 22::: 2%1:.
Short term benefits 3 957 4 329
Post-employment benefits 0139 0 305
Share-based payments 1714 1395

5 810 6029

Kay personnel compnse the executive Directors who are directly responsible for the Group’s activities and the non-executive Directors
The remuneration included above 1s that paid in respect of the pariod of tha year during which the individuals were Directors Further
details of Directors' emoluments, post-employment beneafits and interests are set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 96

35 Events after the reporting date

Infrastructure Fund

In January 2013, the Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Partners Fund reached first close with US$317m of commiutments, of which
Balfour Beatty has committed US$110m In February 2013, the commitments increased to US$420m and subsequent levels of close
are expected during 2013, ultimately reducing the Group's share in the fund to around 10% Drawdowns will depend on the timing

of iInvestments by the fund, but Balfour Beatty expects its commitment to be invested over the next three to four years

The fund will make investments in predonmunantly brownfield operational assets m its key target sectors of transport, energy and
utilities across the UK, Europe, and North America

Bilateral facility
In February 2013 the BNP Paribas Fortis bilateral facility matuning Aprii 2013 was extended to Apnl 2018 and increased from £50m
to £756m

US private placement
In March 2013 the Group rarsed US$350m through a US private placement of a senes of notes with an average coupon of 4 94%
over an average of 9 3 years

The Group has designated the US$ denominated borrowings as a netinvestment hedge against changes in the value of the Group's
US net assets due to exchange movements

Disposal of Rail Spain
In March 2013, as the initial step in 1ts policy of divesting of its Mainland European ral businesses, the Group sold its Spanish rail
engineernng business to 1ts local management
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36 Financial instruments

36 1 Capital nsk management

The Group and Compary manage thew capital to ensure thew ability to continue as a gotng concern and to mawntain an optimal caprtal
structure to reduce the cost of capital The components of capital are as follows equity attnibutable to equity holders of Balfour Beatty
ple comprising 1ssued ordinary share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Notes 271 and 28, preference shares as
disclosed in Note 27, US private placement as disclosed in Note 35, and cash and cash equivalents and borrowings as disclosed m
Note 24

The Group and Company maintain or adjust ther capital structure through tha payment of dividends to squity holders, 1ssue of new
shares and buyback of existing shares, and drawdown of new borrowings and repayment of existing borrowings The policy of the Group
and the Company Is to ensure an appropnate balance between cash, negative working capital and the value in the PPP investrent
portfolio, other than the non-recourse borrowings of companies engaged in PPP projects and infrastruciure investments

The overall capital risk management strategy of the Group and the Company remains unchanged from 2011

36 2 Group
Categones of financial instruments
Loans and Loans and
receivables recevables
at  Financial at
amortised liabilities Avallable- Held to amortised  Financiel  Availlable- Heald to
cost, cash at for-sale maturity cost cash habilties at for sale maturity
and cash amortised financial financial and cash amornsed financial financiat
equivalents cost assets assets Derlvatives equivalents cast assets assets Denwvatives
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 20M 2011 2011 20m
Group £m Em £m £m £m Em Em fm £m £m
Financial assets
Fixed rate bonds and treasury stock - - - 42 - - - - 46 -
Mutual funds - - 52 - - - - &0 - -
PPP financial assets - - 542 - - - - 457 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 542 - - - - [5te]) - - - -
Trade and other recevables 1,263 - - - - 1,434 - - - -
Derivatives - - - - 1 - - - -
Total 1,805 - 594 42 1 2,029 = 507 46 1
Financial habilities
Liability component
of preference shares - {92) - - - - {91} - - -
Trade and other payables - {2,150) - - - - (2,326} - - -
Unsecured borrowings - (478) - - - - (229} - - -
Secured borrowings - {4) - - - - (8} - - -
PPP non-recourse term loans - {393) - - - - {350) - - -
Denvatives - - - - 143 - - - - (130}
Total -  {317) - - 143 ~ _ (3,004) - - {130}
Net 1,805  {3.117) 594 42 {142) 2,028 (3,004) 507 46 {129)
Current year cornprehensive
incomef{expense) excluding share
of joint ventures and associates 27 {46) 66 2 {12) 17 {38) 87 2 {87)
Dervatives
Financial assets Financial habilities Financial assets Financial habilities
Non Non- Non- Non-
Current cutrent Total Current current Total Current current Total Currant currant Totat
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 201 20m 2011 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m frn
Foreign
currency
contracts
Held for trading at
fair value through
profit and loss 1 - 1 " - 1)) 1 - 1 m - (m
Designated as
cash flow hedges - - - {1) - (1} - - - {n - n
Interest rate
swaps
Designated as
cash flow hedges - - - {18} (123) {141) - - — (8) (120} {128}
1 - 1 {20) {123) {143) 1 - 1 (100 {120} {130}
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36 Financial instruments continued

36 2 Group continued

Non-derivative financial liabilities gross maturnity

The following table details the remaining contractual matunty for the Group's non-dervative finanoal iabiities The table reflects the
undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial habilities including interest that will accrue to those habilities except where the
Group 1s entitled to and intends to repay the liability before its matunty The discount column represents the possible future cash flows
included in the matunty analysis, such as future interest, that are not included in the carrying value of the financial hability

Maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities at 31 December

Total
PPP non-
non-recaourse Other  derivative
project Other financial financial Total Carrying
finance borrowings habilities habimes discount value
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £ £m £fm £m £m
Due on demand or within ane year (14) {477) {2,011} {2,502} 13 {2,489)
Due within one to two years {11) {1 (66) (78) 13 (65)
Due within two to five vears {65} {2) i61) {128) 48 {80)
Due after more than five years {577) {2) {209} {788) 305 {483
(667) {482) {2,347) (3,496) 379 {3.117
Discount 274 - 105 379
Carrying value {393} {482) {2,242} {3,117)
Total
PPP non-
non-recourse Other derivative
project Other financial financial Total Carrying
finance  borrowings liabikities liabiiiies discount value
2011 201 201 201 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
Due on demand or within one year {24) {231) {2,204) {2,459) 14 {2,445}
Dua within one to two years {(16) M {43) {60) 15 {45)
Due within two to five years {65) - {65) {130} 62 (68)
Due after maore than five years (610} {5} {224) {839} 393 (446)
{715) {237) {2,5386) (3,488) 484 (3,004)
Discount 365 - 119 484
Carrying vaiue {350) {237) (2,417) {3,004)

Dernivative financial habilities gross matunty

The following table details the Group’s expected matunty for its denvative financial labilities The table reflects the undiscounted net
cash inflows/{outflows} on the derivative instruments that settle on a net basis (interest rate swaps) and undiscounted gross inflows/
{outflows) for those derivatives that are settled on a gross basis (foretgn exchange contracts) When the amount payable or receivabte
15 not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference 1o the projected interest rates, using the yield curves at the
reporting date

Maturity profile of the Group’s derivative financial liabihities at 31 December

Payable Receivable Natpayable Payable Receivable Net payable
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Due on demand or within one year {205} 184 {21) (89) 75 (14)
Due within onhe to two years (27) 8 {19) 22) 7 (15}
Due within two to five years (60) 6 (54) {51) 4 47
Due after more than five years {121) - {121} {124 - {124}
Total {413) 198 {215) {286) B6 {200)

Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a vaniety of financial nsks market nsk, credit risk, and liquidity nsk The Group's financial nsk
management strategy seeks to minimise the potential adverse effect of these nisks on the Group's financial performance

Financial risk management is carried out centrally by Group Treasury under policies approved by the Board Group Treasury haises

with the Group's operating comparies to identify, evaluate and hedge financial nisks The Board provides wntten principles for overall
financial sk management, as well as written pelicies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk, credit
nsk, use of dernvative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity Compliance
with policies and exposure imits 1s monitored through the Group's internal audit and nsk managerment procedures The Group uses
derivative financial instruments tc hedge certain nsk exposures The Group does not trade in financial instruments, including derivative
financial instruments, for speculative purposes
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36 Financial instruments continued

36 2 Group continued

{a) Market nisk

The Group's activities expose It primarily to the financial nisks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and tnterest rates The
Group enters into a vanety of denvative finanecial tnstruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign currency nisk, including

» forward foreign exchange contracts and options to hedge the exchange rate risk ansing on trading actwvities transacted in a currency
that I1s not the functional currency of the operating company

* tnterest rate swaps to mitigate the cash flow varability in PPP concessions ansing from varnable interest rates on borrowings

There has been ne matenal change to the Group's exposure to market risks and there has been no change in how the Group manages
those nisks since 2011

{1} Foreign currency nsk management

The Group operates internationally and 15 exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from exposure to vanous currencies, pnimardy to US
dollars, euros, Australian dollars, Hong Kong dollars and United Arab Emirate dirhams Foreign exchange risk anses from future trading
transactions, assets and labilities and net investments in foreign operations

Group policy requires operating compantes to manage therr transactional foreign exchange nisk agamnst therr functional currency

At 31 December 2012 no individual entittes within the Group had matenal financial assets or labiltties in a functional currency cther
than their own Group Treasury enters into forward contracts on behalf of operating companies to cover 100% of foreign exchange
nsk above pre-set materiality levels determined by the Chief Financial Officer whenever a current or future foreign currency exposure
Is identified with sufficient reliability Hedge accounting 1s applied to these transactions

Refer 1o page 149 for detaris of forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at the reporting date in respect of foreign currency
transactional exposures

As at 31 December 2012, the notional principal amounts of foreign exchange contracts in respect of foreign currency transactions where
hedge accounting 15 not applied was £274m {2011 £116m) recevable and £287m {2011 £116m) payable The penod during which the
cash flows are expected to occur is up to five (2011 three) years and this will affect the income statement throughout the same periods

The Group has designated forward exchange contracts with a notional principal amount of £21m (2011 £26m) receivable and £23m
(2011 £26m) payable as cash flow hedges against highly probable caprtal expenditure which 15 expectad to occur in up to four
{2011 three} years Fair valus gans on these contracts of £ril {2011 £nil} have been taken to hedging reserves within equity

The cumulative amounts deferred in the hedging reserves relating to cash flow hedges at the reporing date 15 £ril {2011 Erul)

The Group’s Investments in foreign operations are exposed to foreign currency translation risks The Group's policy was amended in
prior years and at the reporting date the Group na longer entered into forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency
denominated net assets Since 2009 no translation risk has been hedgad

No significant amounts in relation to hedge inetfectiveness have been charged or credited to the income statement in relation to any
foreign exchange cash flow hedges

The hedging policy I1s reviewed penodically At the reporting date there had been no change to the hedging pelicies since 2011
In March 2013 the Group raised US$350m through a US private placement which has been designated as a net investment hedge
Refer to Note 35

{n) Interest rate risk management
Interest rate nsk anises in the Group's PPP concessions which borrow funds at both floating and fixed interest rates and hold available-
for-sale financial assets

Floating rate borrowings expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk The Group's policy to manage this nisk I1s to swap floating rate
interest to fixed rate, using interest rate swap contracts

In an interest rate swap, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on
agreed notional principal amounts The fair value of interest rate swaps Is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the
applicable yield curve at the reporting date The net effect of a movement in interest rates on income would therefore be immatenal

Durning 2012 and 2011, the Group's PPP subsidiaries’ borrowings at vanable rates of interest were dencminated in sterling

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding PPP subsidianies’ interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2012 totalled
£404m (2011 £365m} with maturities that match the maturity of the underlying borrowings ranging from one year to 24 years

At 31 December 2012, the fixed interest rates range from 4 2% 10 51% (2011 4 2% to 5 1%) and the principal floating rates are LIBOR
plus a fixed margin

(1i} Interest rate risk management continued

A 50 basis point iIncrease/decrease in the interest rate in which financial Instruments are held would lead to a £8m (2011 £19m)
Increase/£9m (2011 £21m) decrease in amounts taken directly to equity by the Group in relation to the Group’s exposure 1o Interest
rates on the available-for-sale financial assets and cash flow hedges of its PPP subsidianes

Interest rate risk also anses on the Group's cash and cash equivalents, term deposits and non-PPP borrowings A 50 basis point
mncrease/decrease in the mterest rate of each currency in which these financial instruments are held would lead to a £ml {2011 £1m)
Increase/£2m {2011 £nil) decrease in the Group’s net Investment Income
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36 Financial instruments continued

36 2 Group continued

(a} Market risk continued

{1ii) Price risk management

The Group's principal price nsk exposure anses i 1ts PPP concessions At the commencement of the concession an element of the
unitary payment by the client 1s indexed 1o offset the effect of inflation on the concession's costs To the extent that inflation differs
from the index used, the Group 1s exposed to a pnce rnisk

(b) Credit rnisk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk that a counterparty will default on s contractual obligations, resulung in financal loss Credit nisk anses from cash
and cash equivalents, derwvative financial instruments and credit exposures to customers, ncluding outstanding recewables and committed
transactions The Group has a policy of assessing the creditworthiness of potential customers before entering into transactions

For cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial Instruments the Group has a policy of only using counterparties that are
independently rated with a minimum long term credit rating of BBB+ At 31 December 2012 £37m {2011 £28m) did not meet this
criterion due to the operational and relationship difficulties in transfernng certan balances, however no losses are anticipated from
these counterparties The credit rating of a financial institution will determine the amount and duration for which funds may be
deposited under individual risk imits set by the Board for the Group and subsidizry companies Management monitors the utilisation
of these credit imits regularly

For trade and other receivables credit evaluation 1s performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable using iIndependent
ratings where avallable or by assessment of the customer's credit quality based on 1ts financial posttion, past experience and other
tactors The Group's most significant customers are public or regulated sector entities which generally have high credit ratings or
are of a high credit quality due to the nature of the customer

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the above at 31 December 1s the carrying value of financial assets recorded in the
financial statements, net of any allowance for losses

{c) Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity nsk by maintaining adequate cash balances and banking faciities, continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the matunty profiles of financial assets and liabilites Details of undrawn committed borrowing facilities
are set out in Note 24 1 The matunty profile of the Group's fmancial habihties 1s set out on page 150

Fair value estimaticn
The Group holds a number of financial instruments on the statement of financial position at therr fair values The following hierarchy
classifies each class of financial asset or hability depending on the valuation technigue applied in determining its fair value

Level 1 — The far value 1s calculated based on quoted prices traded in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies The Group holds
avallable-for-sale Investments in mutual funds which are traded in active markets and valued at the closing market price at 31 December

Level 2 — The farr value 1s based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or hability,

erther directly or indirectly The fair value of interest rate swaps 1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows

utilising yield curves at the reporting date The farr value of forward foreign exchange contracts ts determined using quoted forward .
exchange ratss at the reporting date and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching the maturnities of the foreign

exchange contracts

Level 3 — The fair value 1s based on unobservable nputs The fair value of the Group's PPP financial assets I1s determined n the
construction phase by applying an attributable profit margin that reflects the fair value of construction services performed In the
operational phase 1t 1s detarmined by discounting the future cash flows allocated to the financial asset at a discount rate which 1s
based on long term gilt rates adjusted for the risk levels associated with the assets The consequent movement in the fair value 1s
taken to equity

There have been no transfers between these categories in the current or preceding year

Fair valug measurgment 2012 Fair value measurament 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Leve! 2 Leve! 3 Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Avallable-for-sale mutual fund financial assets 52 - - 52 50 - - 50
Avallable-for-sale PPP financial assets - - 542 542 - - 457 457
Financtal assets — foreign currency contracts - 1 - 1 — 1 - 1
Total assets measured at far value 52 1 542 5385 50 1 457 508

Financial hiabihties — foreign currency contracts - (2) - {2) - {2} - (2} ‘

Financial liabilities ~ PPP interest rate swaps - {141) - {141) - {128) — {128}
Total liabilities measured at far value - {143} - {143) — {130) - {130}

In respect of the Level 3 PPP financial assets, a change in the discount rate would have a significant effect on the value of the asset
and a 50 basis points increase/decrease, which represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in the risk
adjusted discount rate, would lead to a £26m increase {2011 £16m)/£28m decrease (2011 £16m) in the fair value of the assets taken
through equity Refer to Note 18 for a reconciiation of the moverment of the opening balance to the closing balance

The carrying values less tmpairment provision of trade and other receivables and payebles approximate to their fair values due to thew
short term nature The fair value of financial liabilities for disclasure purposes is esumated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to the Group for similar financial instrumants
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36 Financial instruments continued

36 3 Company
Categornies of financial instruments
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Loans and Loans and
receivablas Financial recervablas
atamoartised habiliies Available- Hald to atamorssed  Fimancial  Awvailable- Held 10
cost, cash at for sale matunty cost cash liabilities at for-sale matunty
and cash amortised financial financial and cash amortised financial tinancial
aguivalents cost assats assets Denvatrves equivalents cast assets assets Dernwvatives
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 201 2001 2011
Company £m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 43 - - - - - - - - -
Trade and other recewvables 1,169 - - - - 1,313 - - - -
Derivatives - - - - 2 ~ - - - 3
Total 1,212 - - - 2 1,313 - - - 3
Financial habilities
Liabitity component of preference
shares - {92) - - -~ - {91 - - -
Trade and other payables - {1,474) - - - - {1,603) - - -
Unsecured borrowings - {466} - - - - (236) - - -
Derivatives - - - - {3] - — — - {3)
Total - (2,032) - - {3) - _ (1,930 - - t3)
Net 1,212 (2,032) - - 1 1,313 {1,930} - - -
Derivatives
Financeal assets Financial habilitres Financial assets Financial hiabilities
Non Non- Non- Non-
Current current Total Current current Total Current current Total Current current Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 201 201 201 201 201 20N
£m £m £m £m £m £m fm £m £m fm £m fm
Held for trading at
fair value through
profit and loss 2 - 2 {2) (1} {3) 2 1 3 (2) () (3)

The Company I1s responsible for executing all of the Group's external derivative contracts, except for those in relation to PPP
concessions The Company's external derivative contracts are matched with derivative contracts 1ssued by the Company 1o the
Group's operating companies The Company’s financial assets and financial labilities measured at far value are the derivative foreign
currency contracts shown in the table above The fair value of these foreign currency contracts Is determined using quoted forward
exchange rates at the reporting date and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates matching the maturities of the foreign

exchange contracts

The Company's denvatives are classified as Level 2 1n the fair value estimation hierarchy detalled above
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36 Financial instruments continued

36 3 Company continued
Non-derivative financial habihties gross maturity
Maturity profile of the Company's non-derivative financial habilities at 31 December

Total
non-
Other denvative
financial financiat Total Carrying
Borrowings habihties habilittes discount value
2012 012 201 2012 2012
£m £m £m £m £m
Due on demand or wathin one year {4686) (1,461) (1,927) 12 {1.915)
Due within one to twoe years - {11} {11} 11 -
Due withun two to five years - {35) {35) 32 (3)
Due after more than five years - {161) {161) 47 {114)
(466} {1,668) {2.134) 102 {2,032)
Discount - 102 102
Carrying value {466} (1,566] (2,032}
Total
non-
QOther danvative
financial financial Total Carrying
Borrowings habilitas habilities discount value
201 2011 20Mm 201 2011
£m £m £m fm fm
Due on demand or within one year {236) (1,581} {1,827} 13 {1,814}
Due within one to two years - {11 (11 n -
Due wathin two to five years - {34) {34} 32 {2)
Due after more than five years ~ (173) (173) 59 (114)
(236} {1,809} (2,045} 1156 (1,930)
Discount — 115 115
Carrying value (236} (1,694} {1,930}
Derivative financial habilities gross maturity
Matunity profile of the Company’s derivative financial liabilities at 31 December
Payable Receivable Payable Receivahle
2012 2012 201 20M
£m £m fm £m
Due on demand or within one year {245) 195 (132) 130
Due within one to two years {4) 4 (10) 9
Due within two to five years {3) 4 {8) 6
Total (252) 203 {148} 145

Financial risk factors

{a) Market risk

{i) Foreign currency risk management

For the Company, there would be no matenal effect of any strengthening/weakemng in US dollar, euro, Australian dollar, Hong Kong
dollar or United Arab Emirates dirham exchange rates against sterling The Company’s external forward foreign exchange contracts
hedge the currency nsk on foreign currency loans entered into with Group companies or are offset by forward foreign exchange
contracts with the Group's operating companies where Group Treasury 1s hedging the exchange rate risk arising on trading activities
on thewr behalf

{in) Interest rate risk management

A 50 basis point increase/decrease in the interest rate of sach currency in which financial instruments are held would lead to an £.8m
{2011 £5m) increase/decrease in the Company's net finance cost This 1s mainly atinbutable to the Company's exposure to UK interest
rates on Its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits and amounts due to and from its subsidianies There would be no effect on
amounts taken directly by the Company to equity

{b) Credit risk
The Company bears credit risk In respect to trade and other receivables and payables due from/to subsidiaries There were no amounts
past due at the reporting date The maximum exposure 1 the carrying value of the financial assets recorded in the financial staterments
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates

Country of
Incorporation
or registration

{a) Principal subsidiaries

Professional, Construction and Support services

Balfour Beatty Ciwvil Engineering Ltd

Balfour Beatty Construction Group In¢ us
Ralfour Beatty Construction Northern Ltd

Balfour Beatty Construction Scottish & Southern Ltd  Scotland
Balfour Beatty Enginearing Services Ltd Scotland
Balfour Beatty Group Ltd

Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Inc us
Balfour Beatty Raill GmbH Germany
Balfour Beatty Rail inc Us
Balfour Beatty Rall Ltd

Balfour Beatty Rall SpA Italy
Balfour Beatty Utility Solutions Ltd

Balfour Beatty WorkPlace Ltd

Mansell Construction Services Ltd

Parsons Brninckerhoff {Asia) Ltd Hong Kong
Parsons Brinckerhoff Australia Pty Ltd Australia
Parsons Brinckerhoff Group Inc us
Parsons Brinckerhoff Inc us
Parsons Brinckerhoff International Pte Ltd Singapore
Parsons Brinckerhoff Lid

Infrastructure Investments PPP

{refer Note 37 (d} and (e))

Balfour Beatty Communities LLC Us
Balfour Beatty Infrastructure Investments Ltd*

Balfour Beatty Investments Inc us
Balfour Beatty Investments Ltd

Other

Balfour Beatty Group Inc us
Balfour Beatty Investment Holdings Ltd*

Balfour Beatty LLC Js
Delphian Insurance Company Ltd* Isle of Man

Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

Courtry of Ownership
Incofpeoration Interest
o0 registraion %
{b) Principal joint ventures and associates
Professional, Construction and Support services
BK Guif LLC Dubal 490
Duteco Balfour Beatty LLC Duba) 490
Gammon China Ltd Hong Kong 500
Romec Lid 490

{c) Principal jointly controlled operations

The Group carnes out a number of its larger contracts in joint
arrangement with other contractors so as to share resources
and nsk The principal joint projects in progress during the year
are shown below

South-East England Roads 650
South-West England Roads 730
Crossrail 267
M25 DBFO 500
M25 Mantenance 525
M74 Motorway Scotland 250
Scotland Transery Scotland 700
Gotthard Base Tunnel Switzerland 250
Fort Riley Replacement Hospitat us 700
Carl R Darnall Army Medical Center us 500
Parkland Acute Care Hospital us 400
DFW Terminal Development Program us 600
Utah Data Center us 400
Nates

{1} Subsidiaries joint ventures and associetes whaose results did not, in the opinion
of the Directors, matenzlly affect the rasults or net assets of the Group are
not shown
{u} Unless otherwse stated 100% of the equity capital 1S owned and companies
are ragistered in England and Wales and the principal oparations of each company
ara conducted in the country of incorperation

* Indieates held directly by Balfour Beatty plc
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) Balfour Beatty Investments UK PPP concessions

Roads

Summary Balfour Beatty i1s a promoter, developer and investor in 12 road and street ighting projects under Balfour Beatty's Connect
brand to construct new roads, to upgrade and mantain existing roads and to replace and maintain street highting

Contractual arrangements The principal contract tn the roads concessions 1s the project agreement with the governmental highway
authority setting out the obligations for the construction, operation and maintenance of the roads including lifecycle replacerment by
Connect for the life of the concession to specified standards In the case of M1-A1, A30/A35 and ABO the inflation-indexed payment
is related to traffic volumes In the case of M77/GS0 and CNDR, the inflatton-indexed payment 1s partly based on availability and
partly on traffic volumes, and ts subject to any performance related deductions in the case of M25, the inflation-indexed payment

1s wholly hased on availability and 1s subject to any performance related deduciiens Construction of the roads was subcontracted

to construction joint ventures in which Balfour Beatty had a 50% interest or, In the case of the M77/GS0 and CNDR, 100% to

Balfour Beatty subsidiaries On the street lighting projects, payment is by a peniodic inflation-indexed availability payment subject to
performance deductions and the replacement and maintenance obligations have been subcontracted to 2 Balfour Beatty subsidiary
There are no provisions to reprice the contracts and all assets transfer to the ¢lient at the end of the concessions

Tatal debt
and equity

funding Financial  Duration Construction

Concession company {) Project £m  Shareholding close years _ completion

Connect M1-A1 Ltd M1-A1 30km road 280 50% Marech 1996 30 1999

Connect ABO Ltd ABQ 57km road 42 25% May 1998 30 1998

Connect A30/A35 Ltd A30/A35 102km road 127 85% July 1996 30 2000

Connect M77/GSO plc M77/GSO 25km road 167 B5% May 2003 32 2005

Connect Roads Sunderland Ltd Street ighting apparatus 27 100% August 2003 25 2008
in Sunderland

Connect Roads South Street ighting apparatus 28 100% December 2005 25 2010
Tyneside Ltd in South Tyneside

Connect Roads Derby Ltd Street hghting apparatus 36 100% April 2007 25 2012
in Derby

Connect Plus {M25) Ltd M25 J16 - J23, J27 -J30 and 1,308 40% May 2009 30 2012
A1{M} Hatfield Tunnel

Connect CNDR Ltd Carlisle Northern 176 100% July 2009 30 2012
Development Route

Connect Roads Coventry Lid Street ighting apparatus 56 100% August 2010 25 2015
in Coventry

Connect Roads Cambridgeshire Ltd Street ighting apparatus 51 100% Apnl 2011 25 2016
in Cambridgeshire

Connect Roads Northamptonshire Street ighting apparatus 64 100% August 2011 25 2016
Ltd in Northarmptonshire

Notes

{1} Registaered in England and Wales and the pnincipal operatians of each company are in England and Wales except Connect M77/GS0 ple which conducts its principal
oparations in Scotland

) Due to the shareholders agreament betweaen Balfour Beatty and the other sharehalder requining unammity of agreement n respact of significant matters relatad 10 the
financial and operating policies of this company the Directors consider as at the reporting date the Group did not control this company and it has been accounted for as
a joInt venture
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) Balfour Beatty Investments UK PPP cancessions continued

Hospitals

Summary Balfour Beatty 1s a promoter, developer and investor in seven hospital projects under Balfour Beatty's Consort Healthcare
brand to build hospital accommedation and to provide certain non-medical facilities management services over the concesston period

Contractual arrangements The principal contract 1s the project agreement between the concession company and the NHS Trust
Annflation-indexad payment 1s primanly based upon avallability of the hospital subject to any performance related deductions The
only projects whare construction of the hospitals was subcontracted to construction joint ventures in which Balfour Beatty subsidiaries
did not participate 100% 1s Edinburgh Royal Infirmary where the Group’s share was 85% The payments for the facilities management
services are repniced every five years All assets transfer to the client at the end of the concesstan, with the exception of Edinburgh
Royal Infirmary, where the client has the option to terminate the arrangement for the provision of the hospital and services in 2028

Total debt
and equity
funding Duration Construction
Concession company {i) Project £m__ Shareholding Financial closs years completion
Consort Healthcare (Durham) Ltd Teaching hospital 90 50% Mareh 1998 30 2001
Consort Healthcare Teaching hospital and 220 50% August 1998 30 2003
{Edinburgh Royal Infirmary) Ltd medical school
Consort Healthcare {Birmingham) Ltd  Teaching hospital and mental 553 40% dune 2006 40 2011
health hospital
Consort Healthcare (Mid Yorkshire) Ltd Pinderfields and Pontefract 31 50% June 2007 35 2010
general hospitals
Consort Healthcare (Salford} Ltd Teaching hospital and 136 50% September 2007 35 2012
medical school
Consort Healthcare (Tameside) Ltd General hospital 77 50% Septembear 2007 34 20Mm
Consort Healthcare (Fife) Ltd General hospital 170 50% Apnl 2009 30 201

Notes

{1t Registered in England and Weales and the principat operations of each company are in Engfand and Wales except Cansort Healthcara (Edinburgh Roya! Infirmary) Ltd and
Consort Healthcara (Fifel Ltd which ara registered in Scotland and conduct therr principal eperations i Scotland

Schools

Summary Balfour Beatty 1s a promoter, developer and investor in 13 schools projects prneipally under Balfour Beatty's Transform
Schools brand to design, build or refurbish schools and to provide certain non-aducational services ovar the concession period

Contractual arrangements The principal contract 1s the project agreement between the concession company and the local authorrty

that provides for an inflation-indexed payment based upon availability subject to any performance related deductions For projects other

than Aura Newcastle Ltd, constructron Is subcontracted to construction joint ventures of Balfour Beatty subsidianes and the facilities
management services are subcontracted to a Balfour Beatty subsidiary Construction and factiities management services on Aura
Newcastle are carried out by subsidianes of other shareholders The payments for the facilities management services are repriced
every five years All assets transfer to the client at the end of the concession

Tota! debt
and equity
funding Duration Construction
Concessian company (il Project Em__ Shareholding Financial close years completion
Transform Schools (Stoke) Ltd Grouped schools project in 84 50% QOctober 2000 25 2005
Stoke-on-Trent
Transform Schools (Rotherham) Ltd Grouped schools project in 13 50% June 2003 il 2006
Rotherham
Transform Schools {(Rassetlaw) Ltd Grouped schools project in 127 50% July 2005 27 2007
Bassetlaw, Notts
Transform Schools {Birminghamj Ltd Grouped schools project 89 50% March 2006 33 2009
in Birmingham
Aura Newcastle Ltd BSF project in 47 20% July 2007 25 2012
Newcastle-upon-Tyne
Transform Schools (Knowsley) Ltd BSF project in Knowsley 163 100% December 2007 27 2010
Transform Ishington Ltd ) BSF project in Ishngton 77 80% July 2008 26 2013
4 Futures Ltd BSF project in Southwark 70 B80% May 2009 26 2014
Blackburn with Darwen
and Bolton LEP Ltd BSF project in Blackburn 85 B0% January 2010 25 201
Derby City BSF Partnership Ltd BSF project in Derby 39 80% December 2010 25 2012
Future Ealing Ltd ) BSF project in Ealing 36 80% December 2010 25 2012
Oldham Education Partnership Ltd 1 BSF project in Oldham 40 890% December 2010 25 2012
Hertfordshire Schools Bulding
Partnership Ltd BSF project n Hertfordshire 55 80% January 2011 25 2012

Notes

&l Reaisterad in England and Wales and the principal operations of each company are in England and Wales

tn) Due 1o the shareholders agreement batwaen Balfour Beatty and the other sharghalders requinng unanimity of agreement in respect of signihicant matters related to the
financial and operating policies of this company, the Directors consider as at the reporting dato the Group did not contral this company and it has baen accountad for as

ajoint venture

Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012

157

SQAUINOY W 1NN




Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{d) Balfour Beatty Investments UK PPP concessions continued

Other concessions

Summary The Powerlink project comprises two companies UK Power Networks Services Powerlink Ltd (UKPNSPL), which operated
the London Underground high voltage power system under a 30-year contract and was responsible for procuring various new power
assets, and Power Asset Development Company Ltd (PADCO), which constructed the new-build power assets and leased them to
UKPNSPL Pevensey Coastal Defence Ltd (PCDL) has a 25-year contract with the Environment Agency to maintain a shingle bank sea
defence in East Sussex Gammon Capital {West} Pte Ltd has a contract to design, build and finance the new Insuitute of Technical
Education (ITE) College West in Singapore and provide long term facilities management services for the remainder of the 27-year
project Balfour Beatty Fire and Rescue NW Ltd s contracted to design, construet, fund and provide facilities for 16 community fire
stations in Merseysids, Cumbrnia and Lancashire UJBB Waste (Essex) Ltd has a 28-year PPP contract to design, build and aperate

a new sustainable waste treatment facibty for Essex County Council and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council

Contractual arrangements For the Powerlink project the principal project agreement ts the power services contract between
UKPNSPL and London Underground Ltd {LUL) that prowided for an inflation-indexed availability payment subject to any performance
deductions UKPNSPL operates and maintains the power network using its own staff and Is leasing the new power assets from
PADCO, which subcontracted construction to a construction joint venture in which the Group had a 40% interest LUL has exercised
1ts nght to terminate the contract in August 2013 PCDL's principal contract 1s the flood defence services agreement with the
Environment Ageney that provides for an inflation-indexed payment subject 1o any performance related deductions For the Singapore
project, the principal agreement I1s the project agreement wath the ITE of Singapore that prowides for an inflation-indexed avaitability
based payment subject to any performance deductions Construction 1s subcontracted to Gammon Pte Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Gammon China Ltd in which the Group has a 50% Interest The faciliies management services under the ITE agreement are
provided by a third party The principal contract for Balfour Beatty Fire and Rescue NW Ltd is the project agreement between the
concession company and Cumbna County Councll, Lancashire Combined Fire Authority and Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authonty
This agreement provides for an Inflation-indexed payment based upon availability subject to any performanca related deductions
Construction and facility management services are subcontracied to Balfour Beatty subsidianes The principal contract for UBB Waste
{Essex) Ltd 1s the project agreement betweaen the concession company, Essex County Council and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
This agreement provides for an inflation-indexed payment linked to both the avalability of the plant and waste processed Construction
services are subcontracted to a jont venture in which the Group has a 30% interest and operations are subcontracted to a subsidiary of
the other shareholder There are no provisions to reprice contracts and all assets transfer to the client at the end of the concession

Total debz
and equity
funding Duranon Construction

Concession company {1} Projact £m _ Shargholding Financial close years _complation
UK Power Networks Services Powerhnk Ltd o) London Underground 184 10%/25% August 1998 30 2006
/Power Asset Development Company Ltd power system
Pevensey Coastal Defence Ltd Sea defences 3 25% July 2000 25 nfa
Gammon Capital {West) Pte Ltd Technical education college 100 50% August 2008 27 2010
Balfour Beatty Fire and Rescue NW Ltd Community fire stations 55 100% February 2011 25 2013
BB Waste (Essex) Ltd \Waste processing plant 146 30% May 2012 28 2015
Notes

{1 Registered n England and Walas and the principal operations of each company are in England and Wales except Gammon Capital (West) Pte Ltd which 1s registered in
Singapore and conducts 1ts principal operations in Singapore

{1n The Group exercises sign:ficant influence through s partcipation in the managemant of UK Power Networks Services Powerlink Ltd and therefore accounts for its nterest
as an associate

158 Balfour Beatty Annual Report and Accounts 2012




Our Accounts | Notes to the Financial Statements

37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

(e} Balfour Beatty Investments US PPP concessions

Military housing

Summary Balfour Beatty through its subsidiary Balfour Beatty Communitigs LLC 15 a manager, developer, and invester in a number
of US military privatisation projects associated with a total of 47 US government military bases which includes 47 military farmily
housing communities and one unaccompanied personnel housing community that are expected 1o contain approximately 37,000
housing units once development, construction and renovation have been completed

The projects compnse 11 miltary family housing privatisation projects with the United States Department of the Army (Army), frve
projects with the Unied States Department of the Air Forca {Air Force) and two projects with the United States Department of the
Navy (Navy} In addition, there 1s one unaccompanied personnel housing (UPH) project with the Army at Fort Stewart

Contractual arrangements The first phase of the project, known as the initial development period, covers the penod of inial
construction or renavation of military housing on a base, typically lasting three to eight years With raspect to Army and Navy projacts,
the government becomes a member or partner of the project entity {Project LLC), the Air Force 1s not a named partner or member

in Balfour Beatty Communities’ Project LLCs, howsver it contributes a commitment to provide a government direct loan to the
Project LLC and has similar nghts to share in distnibutions and cash flows of the Project LLC On each project, the Project LLC

enters into a ground lease with the government, which prowvides the Project LLC with a leasehold interest in the land and title to the
improvements on the land for a penod of 60 years Each of these military housing privatisation projects includes agreements covering
the management, renovation, and development of existing housing units, as well as the development, construction, renovation and
management of new units during the term of the project, which, in the case of the Army, potentially could extend for up to an addrtional
25 years The 50-year duration of each project calls for continucus renovation, rehabilitation, demolition and reconstruction of housing
units At the end of the ground lsase term the Project LLC's leasehold interest terrminates and al! project improvements on the land
generally transfer to the government

Preferred returns The projects will typically receive, to the extent that adequate funds are available, an annual, mimimum preferred
rate of return On most existing projects, this annual mmimum preferred rate of return ranges from 9% to 12% of Balfour Beatty
Communities” iIniual equity contribution to the project During the initial development peniod, the projact 1s precluded from distributing
funds to pay the minimum preferred rate of return The unpaid amounts will generally accrue and accumulate, and can be used to fund
renovation and construction costs, If necessary If the accumulated funds are not needed to fund renovation and construction costs,
at the end of the inial development period they are distributed to pay accrued preierred returns to Balfour Beatty Communities and
the government in accordance with the terms of the project agreements

Allocation of remaining operating cash flows Subsequent to the initial development period, any operating cash flow remaining
after the annual mmimum preferred rate of return 1s paid 1s shared between Balfour Beatty Communities and the reinvestment

account held by the project for the benefit of the government On most of the existing projects, the total amount that Balfour Beatty
Communities Is entitled to receive (inclusive of the preferred return) I1s generally capped at an annual modified rate of return, or
cash-on-cash return, on its initial equity contribution to the project Histoncally, these caps have ranged between approximately 9%

to 18% depending on the particular project and the type of return {annual modified rates of return or cash-on-cash) However, in some
of the more recent projects, there are either no annual caps or lower projected annual rates of return The total capped return generally
will in¢lude the annual minimum preferred return discussed above The reinvestment account 1s an account established for the benefit of
the military, but funds may be wathdrawn for construction, development and renovation costs during the remaining life of a privatisation
project upon approval by the applicable military service

Return of equity Generally, at the end of a project term, any monies remaning in the reinvestment account are distributed to Balfour
Beatty Communities and the Army, Navy or Air Force, as applicable, in a predetermined order of pnonty Typically these distributions
will have the effect of providing the parties with sufficient funds to provide a mimimum annual return over the life of the project and

a complete return of the initial capital contribution After payment of the minimum annual return and the return of a party's initial
contrnibution, all remaiming funds will typically be distributed to the applicable military service
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{e} Balfour Beatty Investments US PPP concessions continued
Military housing continued

Total project

funding Duration  Canstruction
Military privatisation project ()i} Bases £m Financial close years completion
Mehitary family housing
Fort Carson Army base 109 November 2003 46 2004
- Fort Carscn expansion 80 November 2006 43 2010
- Fort Carsen GTA expansion 83 Apnl 2010 39 2013
Fort Stewart/Hunter Airfield Two army bases 234 November 2003 50 2012
Fort Hamilton Army base 38 June 2004 50 20098
Walter Reed Army Medical Center/Fort Detrick Two army bases 69 July 2004 50 2008
Navy Northeast Region Seven navy bases 306 Novernber 2004 50 2010
Fort Eustis/Fort Story Two army bases 108 March 2005 60 2011
- Fort Eustis expansion 5 July 2010 45 2011
Fort Bliss/White Sands Misstle Range Two army bases 264 July 2005 50 2011
— Fort Bliss expansion 30 December 2009 46 2011
- Fort Bliss GTA expansion phase | 101 July 2011 44 2014
- Fort Bliss GTA expansion phase |l 92 November 2012 43 2016
Fort Gordon Army base 67 May 2006 50 2012
Carlisle/Picatinny Two army bases 52 July 2006 50 2011
— Carlisle Hentage Heights phase |l 13 October 2012 44 2014
AETC Group 1 Four arr force bases 222 February 2007 50 2012
Navy Southeast Region 11 Navy bases 352 November 2007 50 2013
Vandenberg Aur force base 98 November 2007 50 2012
Fort Leonard Wood Army base 148 Acquired June 2008 47 2014
AMC West Three arr force bases 27N July 2008 50 2015
West Point Army base 135 August 2008 50 2016
Fort Jackson Army base 112 October 2008 50 2013
Lackiand Aur force base 67 Acquired December 2008 50 2013
Western Group Four air force bases 203 March 2012 50 2017
Military unaccompanied personnel housing
Fort Stewart UPH 22 January 2008 50 2010
Notes

{) Registered in the US and the principal operations of each project are conduciad in the US
{n) The share of results of the military hausing jeint vantures of Balfour Beatty Communities 1s imited to a pre-agreed preferred retyrn on funds invested

Student accommodation
Summary Balfour Beatty through 1ts subsidiary Balfour Beatty Campus Scolutions, LLC serves as a manager and developer for one
student accommaodation project

Total project
funding Duraticn  Construction
Student accommodatiaon project ) Project £m Finangial close years  completion
Florida Atlantic University Student housing 63 March 2010 30 2011

Motes
) Ragisterad in the US and the principal operations are conducted in the US
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37 Principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

{f) Non-PPP infrastructure investments
Summary Balfour Beatty 18 an investor in and a proroter and developer of non-PPP infrastructure investments

Project descriptions Exeter and Devon Awrport Ltd owns and operates Exeter International Airport Blackpool Airport Ltd owns and
operates Blackpool International Arrport

Total project

funding
Company () Project £m Shareholding Financial close
Exeter and Devon Airport Ltd Exeter International Airport £60m 60%  January 2007
Blackpool Airport Ltd o Blackpool International Airport £14m 95% May 2008

Notes
{) Registered in England and Wales and the principal operations of each company ara conducted in England and Wales
{u} Sharehalding quoted 1s economic Interest

{g) Total future committed equity and debt funding for the PPP concession companies
2016

2013 2014 2015 onwards Total

Concessions £m frn £m frn £rn
Roads - - 6 11 17
Hospitals - - - - —
Schools 3 4 - - 7
Other UK - 5 6 - "
3 9 12 1 35

Military housing 7 3 - 2 12
Total 10 12 12 13 47

In addition te the above the Group I1s expected to provide its share of equity funding and subordinated debt esumated at £77m for six
PPP projects at preferred bidder stage {2011 £92m for eight projects)

38 Prior year comparisons

381 The 2011 Income Statement has been re-presented 1o separately disclose the gains on disposals of interests in PPP joint ventures
on the face of the Income statement Previously this amount was included wathin other net underlying operating expenses and
separately disclosed within the Notes to the Financial Statements

As
As prewiously
re-presented reported
201 2011
£m £m
Gross profit 1,136 1136
Gain on disposals of investments 20 -
Other net underlying operating expenses {900) {880)
Underlying Group operating profit 256 256
38 2 The 2011 trade and other receivables note has been re-presented to separately identify trade receivables and other receivables
which were previcusly amalgamated (Note 21) A
S5
As praviously
ra presentad reported
2011 2011
£fm £m
Current
Trade recevables 970 1,094
Other receivables 124 -
Trade and other receivables 1,094 1,094
Non-current
Trade receivables 2 17
Other recevables 15 -
Trade and other receivables 17 17
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Group Five-Year Summary

Shareholder Information | Group Five-Year Summary

2012 20Mm 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m E£m

Income

Revenue tncluding share of joint ventures and associates
Share of revenue of joiInt ventures and associates

Group revenue from continuing operations

10.896 11,035 10,473 10,254 9,395

{1,413) {1,641) 1,237) {1,300) (1,134)

9,483 9,494 9,236 8,954 8,261

Underlying profit from continuing operations 309 AN 325 259 208
Underlying net investment income/ffinance costs) 1 3 {19) {15} 19
Underlying profit before taxation 310 334 306 244 227
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets {45) (62) (82) {18} (27}
Other non-underlying items {190) (26) {23} 48 48
Profit from continuing operations before taxation 75 246 20 244 248
Taxation on profit from ¢ontinuing operations {31) (64) {44) (54} (74)
Profit irom continuing operations after taxation a4 182 157 180 174
Profit/lloss) from discontinued operations after taxation - 4 {14) 21 19
Prafit for the year attributable to equity holders 44 186 143 21 193
Capital employed
Equity holders” funds 1,306 1,259 1,156 995 857
Liability component of preference shares 92 a1 89 88 87
Net borrowings/{cash) 333 {8) {248} {324) {297)
1,731 1,342 297 759 647
2012 201 2010 2009 2008
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pance
Statistics
Underlying earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations® 30 355 327 307 306
Basic earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations 65 267 230 334 333
Diluted earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations 65 267 229 333 331
Proposed dividends per ordinary share 1410 13 80 12 70 1189 1115

Underlying profit from continuing operations hefore net investment income/
(finance costs) including share of joint ventures and associates as a percentage
of revenue including share of joint ventures and associates

28% 30% 31% 25% 22%

MNotes

* Underlying earnings per ordinary share from continuing operations have been disclosed to give a clearer understanding of tha Group s underlying trading performance
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Shareholder Information

Financial calendar

2013
24 Apnl Ex-dividend date for finai 2012 ordinary dividend
26 April Finat 2012 ordinary dividend record date
16 May Annual General Mesting
22 May Ex-dividend date for July 2013 preference dvidend
24 May July 2013 preference dividend record date
5 June Final date for receipt of DRIP mandate forms {see below)
1 July Preference dividend payable
5 July” Final 2012 ordinary dividend payable
14 August” Announcement of 2013 half-year results

6 December®

Interim 2013 ordinary dividend payable

" Provistonal dates

Registrars

All administrative enquines relating to
shareheldings and requests to receive
corporate documents by emai! should,
in the first Instance, be directed to the
Company's Registrars and clearly state
your registered address and, If availlable,
your shareholder reference number
Please write t0

Capita Registrars, The Registry,

34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent
BR3 4TU, Telephone 0871 6§64 0300
from the UK {calls cost 10p per minute
plus network extras) and +44 20 8639
3389 from outside the UK (Monday to
Friday 8 30 am to 5 30 pm, UK time}
Alternatively, you can emall
ssd@capitaregistrars com

They can help you to check your
shareholding, register a change of address
or name, obtain a replacement dividend
cheque or tax voucher, record the death
of a shareholder

Dividends and dividend
reinvestment plan

Dividends may be paid directly into your
bank or buitding society account through
the Bankers Automated Cleanng System
{(BACS) The Registrars can provide

a dividend mandate form A dwvidend
reinvestment plan {(DRI1P} 1s offered which
allows holders of ordinary shares

to reinvest their cash dividends in the
Company's shares through a specially
arranged share dealing service Full details
of the DRIP and its charges, together
with mandate forms, are avallable at
www balfourbeatty-shares com

International payment service

Shareholders outside the UK may elect

to receive dividends paid direct into ther
overseas bank account, or by currency
draft, instead of by sterling cheque For
further information, contact the Company's
Registrars on +44 20 8639 3405 (from
outside the UK} or 0871 664 0385 from the
UK (calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras) Lines are open Monday to Friday

9 00amto 5 30 pm, UK time  Aliernatively,
you can log on to www balfourbeatty-
shares com and click on the link for
International Payment Service

Shareholder information on
the internet and electronic
communications

Our website www balfourbeatty com
provides a range of information about the
Company, our people and businesses and
our policies on corporate governance and
corporate responsiblity [t should be
regarded as your first point of reference
for information on any of these matters
The share price can also be found there

In conjunction with Capita Registrars, you
can create a Share Portal account, through
which you will be able to access the full
range of online shareholder services,
including the ability to view your holdings
and indicative share price and valuation,
view movements on your holdings and
your dividend payment history, register a
dividend mandate to have your dividends
paid directly into your bank account,
change your registered address, sign up
o recelve e-communications or access
the online proxy voting facility, download
and pnint shareholder forms

The Share Portal is easy to use

Please visit www balfourbeatty-shares
com Alternatively, you can email
shareportal@capita co uk

Gifting shares to your family
or to charity

To transfer shares to another member

of your family as a gift, please ask the
Registrars for a Balfour Beatty gift transfer
form Alternatively, If you only have a small
number of shares whose value makes it
uneconomic to sell them, you may wish

to consider donating them to the share
donation charity ShareGift {registered charity
no 1052686), whose work Balfour Beatty
supports Any shares that you donate to
ShareGift will be aggregated, sold when
possible, and the proceeds will be donated
to a wide range of other UK charities
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Since SharaGift was launched, over £16m
has been given to more than 1,800 chanties
The relevant share transfer form may be
obtained from the Registrars For more
information wvisit www ShareGift org

Share dealing services

Capita Share Dealing Services {a trading
name of Capita IRG Trustees Limited)
provide a telephone and online share
dealing service for UK and EEA resident
shareholders To use this service,
telephone 0871 664 0364 from the UK
{calls cost 10p per minute plus network
extras) and +44 20 3367 2686 trom
outside the UK {Monday to Friday 8 00 am
to 4 30 pm, UK time} Alternatively, you
can log on 1o www capitadeal com

Capuita IRG Trustees Limited 1s
authorised and regulated by the Financial
Services Authonty

London Stock Exchange Codes

The London Stock Exchange Daly Official
List (SEDOL) codes are Ordinary shares
0096162 Preterence shares 0087820

The London Stock Exchange "ticker"”
codes are Ordinary shares BBY
Preference shares BBYB

Capital gains tax {CGT)

For CGT purposes the market value on

31 March 1882 of Balfour Beatty plc's
ordinary shares of 50p each was 267 6p
per share This has been adjusted for the

1 for b nghts 1ssue in June 1392, the 2 for
11 nghts 1ssue In September 1996 and the
3 for 7 nghts 1ssue in October 2009 and
assumes that all nghts have been taken up

Consolidated tax vouchers

From (and including} the July 2013
dividend payments, Balfour Beatty will
provide a consolidated tax voucher This
will in future be 1ssued annually to all
shareholders who have therr dividends
paid direct to their bank accounts If you
would prefer to recewve a tax voucher at
each dwidend payment date rather than
annually, please contact the Registrars
A copy of the consolidated tax voucher
may be downloaded from the Share Portal
at www balfourbeatty-shares com

Enquiries

Enquines relating to Balfour Beatty's
results, business and financial positton
should be made in writing to the
Corporate Communications Department
at the address shown below or by email
to info@balfourbeatty com

Balfour Beatty plc Registered Office
130 Wilton Road, London SW1V 1LQ
Regrstered in England Number 395826




Forward-looking statements

This document may Include certain forward-looking
statements, beliefs or opintons, including statements
with respect to Balfour Beatty plc’s business, financial
condition and results of operations These forward-
looking statements can be identified by the use of
forward-looking terminology, Including the terms
"believes”, "estimates”, “plans”, “anticipates”,

“targets”, "ams"”, "continues”, “expects”, "intends”,

"hopes”, "may”, “will", “would”, "could” or "should”
or in each case, their negative or other various or
comparable terminology These statements are made
by the Balfour Beatty plc Directors in good farth based
on the information avallable to them at the date of this
report and reflect the Balfour Beatty ple Diractors’
beliefs and expectations By their nature these
staternents involve rnisk and uncertainty because they
relate to events and depend on circumstances that
may or may not occur in the future A number of
factors could cause actual results and developments
to differ maternially from those expressed or implied by
the forward-looking statements, including, without
hrnitation, davelopments in the global economy,
changes in UK and US government policies, spending
and procurement methodologies, fallure m Balfour
Beatty's health, safety or environmental policies and
those factors set out under “managing nsk” on pages
58 to 61 of this document

No representation or warranty 1s made that any of
these statements or forecasts will come 1o pass or that
any forecast results will be achieved Forward-looking
statements speak only as at the date of this document
and Balfour Beatty plc and its advisers expressly
disclaim any obligations or undertaking to release

any update of, or revisions to, any forward-looking
statements in this document No statement in

the document 1s intended to be, or intended to be
construed as, a profit forecast or to be interpreted to
mean that earnings per Balfour Beatty plc share for the
current or future financial years will necessarly match
or exceed the historical earnings per Balfour Beatty plc
share As aresult, you are cautioned not to place any
undue rehance on such forward-looking statements

Designed and produced by CONRAN DESIGN GROUP
Board photography by Andy Wilson
Printed in England by Pureprint

The paper used in the report contains 100% recycled
content, of which 100% 1s de-inked post-consumer waste
All of the pulp 1s bleached using an elemental chlorine free
process (ECF) Prninted in the UK by Pureprint using its
alcofree and pureprint’ environmental printing technology,
with vegetable inks used throughout Purepnintis a
CarbonNeutral® company Both the manufacturing mull and
printer are registered to the Environmantal Management
Systern 1IS014001 and are Forest Stewardship Council®
{FSC) chain-of-custody certified




Balfour Beatty

130 Wilton Road
London SW1V 1LQ

Telephone +44 (0] 20 7216 6800
Facsimile +44 (0} 20 7216 6950
www halfourbeatty com

Balfour Beatty is a regustered trademark of Baltowr Beaty plc

—~




